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To the Citizens, Governor,
and Members of the Legislature
of the State of Utah:

Itisour pleasure to present the 2009 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the State of Utah in accordance with Section
63A-3-204 of the Utah Code. Responsibility for the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the State's management. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the
enclosed data accurately presents the State's financial position and results of operationsin all material respects in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). We believe that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain
an understanding of the State’ s financia activities are included.

Internal Control. The State's systems of internal control over assets recorded in the accounting system have been designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance of safeguarding assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition
and to ensure the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements. The concept of reasonable assurance
recognizes that the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and that the evaluation of costs and
benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

Independent Auditors. In compliance with state statute, an annual financial audit of the “State Entity” is completed each
year by the Office of the Utah State Auditor in conjunction with other independent audit firms. Their audits were conducted
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. The
State Auditor’ s report on the Basic Financial Statementsisincluded in the Financial Section of this report.

Federal regulations also require the State to undergo an annual “Single Audit” in conformance with the Federal Single Audit
Act of 1984, as amended, and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A—-133, Audits of Sate and Local
Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. Information related to the Single Audit, including the schedule of expenditures
of federal awards, audit findings and recommendations, summary of prior audit findings, and the State Auditor’s report, is
issued in a separate report and will be available at alater date.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (M D& A). The discussion and analysis beginning on page 14 provides an overview
and analysis of the State’s Basic Financial Statements. This letter of transmittal is intended to complement the MD&A and
should be read in conjunction with it.

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

Structure. As shown in the organizational chart on page 10, state government is divided into three separate branches:
legislative, executive, and judicial. The duties of each branch are outlined in the Constitution of Utah, which can be amended
only by a mgjority vote of the State's citizens, and in the Utah Code, which can be amended by the Legislature or by citizen
initiatives. State government services provided to citizens include building and maintaining roads; providing public safety,
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health, and environmental protection services to protect the general welfare of the State’s citizens; helping adults, children,
and families through difficult times such as abuse, divorce, illness, death, and unemployment; fostering an attractive business
climate to encourage economic growth; and protecting public lands and natural resources for conservation and recreational
activities. The State also provides significant financial support to its higher education institutions, local governments, and
school districts to help those entities meet the specific needs of their constituents.

This report includes al funds of the State of Utah and includes all departments, agencies, and other organizational units
governed by the Legislature and/or the constitutional officers of the State. In addition to these primary government activities,
this report includes information related to component units that are financially accountable to the State. Although such
information is provided in this report, the MD&A and Basic Financia Statements focus on the primary government and its
activities. Separately issued financial statements are available from the significant discretely presented component units and
should be read to obtain a better understanding of their financia conditions. Additional information on all discretely
presented components units can be found in the notes to the financial statements (see Note 1. A.).

Budgetary Control. The Constitution of Utah requires that budgeted expenditures not exceed estimated revenues and other
sources of funding, including beginning fund balances. Annually, the Governor is required to submit a balanced budget by
fund, function (e.g., health), and activity (e.g., medical assistance) to the Legislature. The Legislature authorizes expenditures
in the annual Appropriations Acts. The Acts aso identify the sources of funding for budgeted expenditures. In the event
actual revenues are insufficient to cover budgeted expenditures, the Governor must order budget reductions or call a special
session of the Legidlature to address budget issues. Adjustments to the budget may also be made throughout the year for
changes in departmental or fund revenues so that departments and funds will not end the fiscal year in a deficit position. For
additional information on budgetary control see the notes to Required Supplementary Information on page 124.

Budget Stabilization. In accordance with Sections 63J3-1-312 and 313 of the Utah Code, the State maintains the General
Fund Budget Reserve Account in the General Fund (the “Rainy Day Fund”) and an Education Fund Budget Reserve Account
in the Education Fund (the “Education Reserve”). State law requires 25 percent of any revenue surplusin the General Fund to
be deposited in the Rainy Day Fund and 25 percent of any revenue surplus in the Education Fund to be deposited in the
Education Reserve, in each case up to a statutory limit. State law limits the totals of the Rainy Day Fund and Education
Reserve based on the amount of appropriations from the General Fund and Education Fund, respectively, for the fiscal year
in which the surplus occurred. In addition to the Rainy Day Fund and Education Reserve, the Legislature created the Disaster
Recovery Restricted Account to fund costs to the State directly related to a declared disaster. According to Section 633-1—
314 of the Utah Code, this fund receives 25 percent of the revenue surplus in the General Fund, after the transfer to the Rainy
Day Fund has been made.

Spending Limitation. The State has an appropriation limitation statute that limits the growth in the combined appropriations
from the General Fund and from income tax revenues for higher education to the relative growth in population and inflation.
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the State was $285.5 million below the appropriations limitation.

ECONOMIC CONDITIONSAND OUTLOOK

Economy. Nationally, corporate before-tax profits decreased by
17.6 percent in 2008 and are expected to decrease an additional
2.2 percent through the end of 2009 as the economy continues to
decline. The national unemployment annual average rate was
5.8 percent in 2008, and is expected to increase to 9.2 percent in
2009, and 10 percent in 2010. Utah’s economy began to slow in
the latter half of 2008 and further weakened in 2009, athough
less dramatically than in other parts of the country. In the
coming months, the recessionary rate is expected to slow, both
nationally and in Utah.

Utah's unemployment rate is expected to increase sharply from
3.4 percent in 2008 to 6.5 percent in 2009, and reach 6.8 percent
in 2010. Most Utah industries have experienced job losses,
making this the weakest employment environment in over 22
years. In 2008, personal income and nonagricultural wages rose
by 4.1 percent and 2.6 percent, respectively. In 2009, personal
income is expected to decrease 1.3 percent and nonagricultural
wages are expected to decline by 4 percent, as high
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unemployment causes downward pressure on income and wages. Taxable retail sales fell by 0.1 percent in 2008, and are
expected to fall an additional 8.1 percent through 2009, as consumers reduce spending to get through the recession. In 2008,
total construction value was $4.6 hillion, a sharp decline of activity from the 2006 record high of $7.4 billion. Construction
valuation is expected to decline further to $3.5 billion in 2009, as the slow down expands to nonresidential construction.
Residential construction, which reached a record high of $4.9 billion in 2006, is expected to decline from $1.9 billion in 2008
to $1.6 billion in 2009, but may be close to the end of its downward trend. Despite weakness in the economy, Utah continues
to grow through positive net migration of approximately 16,600 people in 2008 and 6,000 people in 2009. Utah has had
positive net migration for the past 19 years and thistrend is expected to continue in the coming years.

Industries. Utah’s nonagricultural employment growth is expected to contract 4.1 percent in 2009. A negative employment
growth rate israre in Utah's history. For the past year from September 2008 to September 2009, most industries experienced
job declines. Only education and health services and local and federal government added jobs to the Utah economy. It is
anticipated that several industries will experience dlight job gains during the first half of 2010 as the economy stabilizes. The
results for September 2008 to September 2009 are presented in the following table.

State of Utah
Jobs by Industry of Utah's Labor Force
(Expressed in Thousands)

Number Numerical Per centage Components

of Jobs Change Change of Labor Force
2009 (est.) 2008 2008 to 2009 2008 to 2009 2009 (est.)
Trade, Transportation, and Utilities ........... 237.6 247.9 (10.3) (4.2)% 19.6 %
Professional and BUSINESS ...........ccccueveeeen, 154.6 164.5 (9.9) (6.00% 12.8 %
Education and Health Services.................. 153.2 148.9 4.3 29 % 12.7 %
Government (Local/Federd) ..........ceue... 153.0 149.2 3.8 25 % 12.6 %
ManUfaCturing ..........ccveeeeverererereveesererenan, 113.9 124.8 (10.9) (8.7)% 9.4 %
Leisure and Hospitality ..........cccoeeevevennne, 110.6 114.9 (4.3) (3.7% 9.1 %
CONSLIUCHION ... 75.8 92.2 (16.4) (17.8)% 6.3 %
Financial ACtiVItieS .......cccvveveveeeeercienen, 70.6 735 (2.9) (3.9% 5.8 %
Government (State/Higher Ed.) ................. 64.9 65.5 (0.6) (0.9% 5.4 %
Other Services 335 35.9 (2.4) (6.7)% 2.8 %
10107200 i o 294 30.7 (1.3 (4.2)% 24 %
Natural Resources and Mining ................... 13.5 135 0.0 0.0 % 1.1 %
TOAl coevveeeeeeeee e 1,210.6 1,261.5 (50.9) 100.0 %

Source: Utah Department of Workforce Services, September 2009 Jobs by Industry and Components of Labor Force

Outlook. The national recession is expected to moderate over the coming months, with dower growth once the recession
does end. Utah historically rebounds quicker and with greater progress than the national economy. However, at least
initialy, that pattern is not expected to hold due to Utah's lagging housing market. Housing permits are forecast to remain
near historic lows throughout 2009. Overall, construction is expected to have a total employment decline of 22.9 percent by
the end of 2009. Credit markets, on which the construction industry depends, have not fully recovered. Job losses are till ina
downward trend in most industries and areas of the State. Utah’'s economy is expected to further weaken through the end of
2009, and then rebound slowly during 2010.

LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING

Debt Administration. Total general obligation debt remained fairly stable from 1999 through 2001. In fiscal years 2002
through 2003, under budget constraints coupled with a low interest rate environment, the State elected to increase its debt
by issuing more bonds for highway and building projects that otherwise would have been funded from current revenues.
During fiscal year 2004, the State advance refunded $316.5 million of general obligation bonds to take advantage of
continued low interest rates, but did not issue any other general obligation bonds. During fiscal year 2005, the State issued
$140.6 million of general obligation bonds for highway and capital facilities construction. The State issued no new general
obligation bonds during fiscal years 2006 and 2007, but provided funding for building and transportation projects under a
“Pay-As-You-Go” plan, using one-time and ongoing money. During the 2007 and 2008 General Sessions, the Legislature
authorized a total of $1.3 hillion in general obligation bonds for highway projects to address critical needs and in
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anticipation of future growth, spurred by the Governor’s
economic development initiatives. During the 2008
General Session, the Legislature also authorized $43.75
million in general obligation bonds for buildings, and
$42.5 million for the St. George Airport. In early fiscal
year 2008, the State issued $75 million in genera
obligation bonds for highway and capita facility
construction. During the 2009 General Session, $2.25
billion in general obligation bonds was authorized for
highway construction and $147 million for capital facility
projects. In late fiscal year 2009, the State issued $498.8
million for highway and capital facility construction. More
information about the State’'s long-term debt is found in
Note 10 to the Basic Financia Statements.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

The nation’s economy has been in recession for more than one year. Utah’'s economy has continued to slow, although less
dramatically than in other parts of the country. For fiscal year 2010, state tax revenue is projected to decrease 17.8 percent
from the fiscal year 2009 original projections. The Legislature covered anticipated revenue shortfalls by using one-time fund
balances and federal funding provided by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA). ARRA is a one-time
federal economic stimulus package provided to states to aid in recovering from the recession. The State received $387.6
million of ARRA fundsin fiscal year 2009, and anticipates receiving an additional $1.2 billionin fiscal year 2010. The funds
will provide relief or benefit to departments and programs throughout the State, including Public Education, Health,
Workforce Services, Higher Education, and Human Services. In this recessionary environment, the State was able to address
the following priorities for fiscal year 2010.

Education. State funding for education was again atop priority during the 2009 General Session. The fiscal year 2010 public
education budget was supported with $200 million one-time state funds and $298.4 million in ARRA funding. This allowed
the State to meet current needs and prepare for future population growth despite significant revenue reductions in General
and Education funds. The Weighted Pupil Unit, the primary funding mechanism for public education, was maintained at
$2,577. New student enrollment of 13,500 students was funded with an additional $53.2 million in ongoing money for fiscal
year 2010. The ability to maintain consistent funding for education will largely depend on the status of the economy in fiscal
year 2011.

Transportation. The Legidature provided for the State’s transportation needs during the 2009 General Session by providing
additional bond authorizations and increasing certain fees. Senate Bill 239, Transportation Revisions, authorized over $2 billion
of bonds for construction of state highway to be issued over multiple years. Beginning fiscal year 2010, Senate Bill 239 also
increased the motor vehicle registration fee by $20 for certain motor vehicles to compensate for a reduction of ongoing
General Fund earmarks to the Transportation Investment Fund. The increased fee will result in approximately $53 million in
ongoing revenue beginning in fiscal year 2010 that will be made available to fund highway projects.

Capital Projects. During the 2009 General Session, the Legidlature authorized $147 million of general obligation bonds to
fund state capital projects. Senate Bill 201, General Obligation Bond Authorization Amendments, authorized $115 million
general obligation bonds for certain capital projects, including $104.5 million for higher education projects. House Bill 4,
General Obligation Bond Authorizations, approved a $32 million bond to replace the cash withdrawn for the Snow College
Library and Multi-agency Government Office Building. Ongoing funding for capital improvement projects was reduced by
$27.2 million, and partially offset with one-time funding of $12.2 million in fiscal year 2009.

Economic Housing Stimulus. To provide stimulus to the struggling housing market and the Utah economy, the 2009
General Session authorized funding for the Home Run Program. This program provided grants of $6,000 to eligible
homebuyers purchasing a newly constructed residence. Approximately 1,650 grants were provided and funded with $10
million of ARRA federal funds. In fiscal year 2010 this program was extended with $8 million in ARRA federal funds
that will provide grants of $4,000 to approximately 1,950 additional homebuyers.

Health System Reform. During the 2009 General Session legislation was passed to continue health system reform that
began during the 2008 General Session. House Bill 188, Health System Reform — Insurance Market, created a defined
contribution market that in part offers a range of health benefit plan choices to small employer groups and their
employees. House Bill 331, Health Reform — Health Insurance Coverage in State Contracts, requires companies
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contracting with certain state entities for construction or design projects exceeding a specified dollar amount, to provide
a basic level of health insurance for their employees. Additional legislation was passed to improve the administration of
health care and to help consumers make more informed decisions regarding health care alternatives.

Technology. The State of Utah has had the following technology initiatives during the fiscal year:

Utah Public Finance Web site. In fiscal year 2009, the Utah Public Finance Web site, transparent.utah.gov, was launched
to help make the finances of the Utah state government transparent to its citizens. Additional legislation was passed
during the 2009 General Session that requires state institutions of higher education and local governments to report
public financial information to the Web site or on their own Web site in fiscal years 2010, and 2011, respectively. In the
October 2009 issue of Government Computer News, the Web site was recognized as one of the top ten government
agency information technology projects of 2009.

Data Center Consolidation. This project, started in January 2009, includes consolidating the 27 existing data centers
down to two, and reducing the physical server count from around 1,700 to 400 or less. A $4 million per year savingsis
expected to be realized by the state starting in fiscal year 2011.

National Web Site Awards. Utah.gov, the State of Utah’s web portal, was recently recognized as the top government site
in the nation by the Center for Digital Government. The Best of the Web award recognizes government Web sites on
their innovation, Web-based delivery of public services, efficiency, economy, and functionality. This is the third time
Utah has won this award since 2003. Utah.gov also won a Digital Government Achievement Award from the Center for
Digital Government for its Utah Public Meeting Notice service Web site.

Other Postemployment Benefit Plans and Employee Compensation. The Legislature appropriated $53.5 million in bath
fiscal years 2009 and 2010, which represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is actuarially projected to
fund the postemployment benefits over a period of twenty-five years. The 2009 General Session’s House Joint Resolution 29,
Legidative Direction to the Public Employees Benefit and Insurance Program, changed the State’s contribution for medical
coverage for health maintenance organization type plans from a 98 percent employer and 2 percent employee premium share
to a 95 percent employer and 5 percent employee premium share. Increased co-payments and deductible amounts were also
mandated for the fiscal 2010 year. Due to the recessionary economy and budget constraints, the Legislature did not fund an
increase in compensation or a cost-of-living adjustment for state employees.

AWARDSAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting to the State of Utah for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. This was
the twenty-fourth consecutive year the State has achieved this prestigious award.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable
legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current comprehensive annual
financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA
to determine its eligibility for another certificate. We are committed to this effort, and we intend to maintain a highly
qualified and professional staff to make this certification possible.

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and dedicated service of the entire staff of

the Division of Finance, Department of Administrative Services. We aso express our appreciation to the budget and
accounting officers throughout state government and to the Office of the Utah State Auditor for their dedicated efforts in

assisting usin the preparation of this report.
- W

John C. Reidhead, CPA
Director of Finance
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UTAH STATE AUDITOR

INDEPENDENT STATE AUDITOR'SREPORT

To the Members of the Legislature
of the State of Utah and

The Honorable Gary R. Herbert
Governor, State of Utah

We have audited the accompanying financia statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the State of Utah as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the
State’'s basic financia statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the State’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements
based on our audit. We did not audit the financia statements of Utah Housing Corporation, Utah Public
Employees Health Program, the University of Utah's hospital and component units, the Utah State University
Research Foundation, certain other college and university foundations, the Dairy Commission, and the Utah State
Retirement Systems, which represent 38 percent of the assets and 41 percent of the revenues of the aggregate
discretely presented component units and 67 percent of the assets and 37 percent of the revenues/additions of the
aggregate remaining fund information. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports
thereon have been furnished to us; and our opinions, insofar as they relate to the amounts included for those
agencies, funds, and component units, are based on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the State’s
internal control over financia reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable
basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the State of Utah as of June 30, 2009, and the respective changes in financial position and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report, dated November 23, 2009, on
our consideration of the State's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financia reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Sandards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The accompanying management’s discussion and analysis on pages 14 through 24 and the required supplementary
information on pages 118 through 127 are not a required part of the basic financia statements but are
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the
methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit
the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the State’'s basic financial statements. The introductory section, the supplementary information — combining
statements and individual fund statements and schedules, and the statistical section are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The supplementary information —
combining statements and individual fund statements and schedules on pages 132 through 191 has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied by us and the other auditors in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, isfairly stated in all material respectsin relation to the
basic financia statements taken as a whole. The introductory section on pages 1 through 10 and the statistical
section on pages 195 through 233 have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financia statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Auston G. Johnson, CPA
Utah State Auditor
November 23, 2009
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State of Utah Management’s Discussion and Analysis Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

INTRODUCTION

Thefollowing is adiscussion and analysis of the State of Utah’ s financial performance and position, providing an overview of the
State’ sactivitiesfor the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter in the Introductory
Section of thisreport and with the State' s financial statements that follow this section.

HIGHLIGHTS
Government-wide

e Total assets of the State exceeded liabilities by $16.68 hillion (reported as net assets). Of this amount, $1.769 hillion
(unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations while $14.910 hillion is restricted for
specific uses or invested in capital assets.

e The State' s total net assets decreased $42.6 million or 0.3 percent over the prior year. Net assets of governmental activities
increased $80.9 million or 0.6 percent. Net assets of business-type activities decreased by $123.6 million or 5 percent.

Fund Level

e Thegovernmental fundsreported combined ending fund balances of $3.325 billion, adecrease of $460.4 millionin comparison
with the prior year. Approximately 7.4 percent or $246.7 million of the ending fund balance is available for spending at the
government’ s discretion (unreserved, undesignated fund balance).

e TheGenera Fund ended thefiscal year with azero dollar surplus by using $37.2 million designated and budgeted to be used for
fiscal year 2010 to cover revenue shortfallsthat occurred in fiscal year 2009. The Education Fund ended the year with a$21.5
million surplus.

e The General Fund Budget Reserve Account (“Rainy Day Fund”) and the Education Budget Reserve Account ended the fiscal
year with balances of $188.9 million and $230 million, respectively. Other than statutory changesthat require any futureinterest
earnings of these accounts to be transferred to either the General Fund or the Education Fund, as applicable, the balances
remained preserved at fiscal yearend.

e Overall, salestax revenuesin the governmental funds declined by 13.3 percent. Combined tax revenueswere 11.3 percent lower
inthe General Fund and 12.8 percent lower in the Education Fund than the prior year. Tax revenuesin both funds declined asa
result of continued weakness in the local economy.

L ong-term Debt

e The State’ slong-term bonded debt increased anet $446.1 million or 12.5 percent. Theincreasein debt issued was used to fund
highway and capital facility construction, and to fund student loan programs.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Thisreport includesthe State’ sBasic Financial Statements, Required Supplementary I nformation, and Supplementary Information.
The Basic Financial Statements include three components: government-wide financial statements, fund financial statements, and
notes to the financia statements.

Government-wide Statements — Reporting the State asa Whole

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities beginning on page 27 together comprise the gover nment-widefinancial
statements. These statements provide a broad overview of the State’ s finances as a whole with along-term focus and are prepared
using thefull-accrual basis of accounting, similar to private-sector companies. Thismeansall revenuesand expensesare recognized
regardless of when cashisreceived or spent, and all assetsand liabilities, including capital assets and long-term debt, arereported at
the entity level.

The government-wide statements report the State’ s net assets—the difference between total assetsand total liabilities—and how they
have changed from the prior year. Over time, increases and decreases in net assets measure whether the State’' s overall financial
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State of Utah Management’s Discussion and Analysis Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

condition is getting better or worse. In evaluating the State’ s overall condition, however, additional non-financial factors should be
considered such as the State’'s economic outlook, changes in its demographics, and the condition of its capital assets and
infrastructure. The government-wide statements report three activities:

Governmental Activities—Most of the State’ shasic servicesfall under thisactivity including education, transportation, public safety,
courts, corrections, health, and human services. Taxes and federal grants are the major funding sources for these programs.

Business-type Activities— The State operates certain activities much like private-sector companies by charging feesto customersto
cover al or most of the costs of providing the goods and services. Student loans, unemployment compensation, water project loan
programs, and liquor sales are examples of business-type activities.

Component Units— A number of entitiesarelegally separate from the State, yet the State remains financially accountable for them.
Colleges and Universities, Utah Housing Corporation, and Utah State Fair Corporation are examples of component units.

Fund Financial Statements— Reporting the State’sMost Significant Funds

The fund financia statements beginning on page 31 provide detailed information about individual major funds, not the State asa
whole. A fund isagroup of related accounts that the State uses to keep track of specific resourcesthat are segregated for a specific
purpose. Somefundsare required by law to exist, while others are established internally to maintain control over aparticular activity.
All of the State's funds are divided into three types, each of which uses a different accounting approach.

Governmental Funds — Most of the State's basic services are accounted for in governmental funds and are essentially the same
functionsreported as governmental activitiesin the government-wide statements. Governmental funds usethe modified accrual basis
of accounting, which measures the flow of current financial resourcesthat can be converted to cash and the balances | eft at yearend
that are available for future spending. This short-term view of the State’ s financial position helps determine whether the State has
sufficient resources to cover expenditures for its basic servicesin the near future.

Proprietary Funds — Proprietary funds include enterprise funds and internal service funds and account for state activities that are
operated much like private-sector companies. Like the government-wide statements, proprietary fund statements are presented using
thefull-accrual basis of accounting. Activitieswhose customers are mostly outside of state government (e.g., water project loansto
local governments) are accounted for in enterprise funds and are the same functions reported as business-type activities. Thus, the
enterprise fund financial statements reinforce the information reported for business-type activities in the government-wide
statements, but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows. Activitieswhose customersare mostly other state
agencies (e.g., motor pool) are accounted for ininternal service funds. Theinternal service fund activitiesare consolidated with the
governmental activitiesin the government-wide statements because those services predominantly benefit governmental rather than
business-type activities.

Fiduciary Funds—Fiduciary fundsaccount for assetsthat, because of trust relationships, can be used only for trust beneficiaries. The
State isresponsible for ensuring these assets are used for their intended purposes. Fiduciary funds use full-accrual accounting, but
are not included in the government-wide statements because their assets are not available to finance the State’s own programs.

Reconciliation between Gover nment-wide and Fund Statements

The financial statements include schedules on pages 34 and 38 that reconcile and explain the differences between the amounts
reported for governmental activities on the government-wide statements (full-accrual accounting, long-term focus) with amounts
reported on the governmental fund statements (modified accrual accounting, short-term focus). Thefollowing are some of themajor
differences between the two statements:

e Capital assets and long-term debt are included on the government-wide statements, but are not reported on the governmental
fund statements.

e Capital outlay spending resultsin capital assets on the government-wide statements, but are expenditures on the governmental
fund statements.

e Bond proceedsresult inliabilities on the government-wide statements, but are other financing sources on the governmental fund
statements.

e Certain tax revenuesthat are earned but not yet available are reported as revenue on the government-wide statements, but are
deferred revenue on the governmental fund statements.

Notesto the Financial Statements

The notes beginning on page 58 provide additional schedules and information that are essential to acomplete understanding of the
financial statements. The notes apply to both the government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements.
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Required Supplementary Information (RSI)

Following the Basic Financia Statements are budgetary comparison schedules for major funds with legally adopted budgets and
condition assessment data related to infrastructure. In addition, the RSI includes schedules on the funded status and employer
contributions for the State’ s defined benefit Other Postemployment Benefit Plan. RSI further supportsthe information in the basic
financia statements.

Supplementary Information

Supplementary Information includes combining statements for the State’s nonmajor governmental, nonmajor proprietary and
fiduciary funds and for nonmajor discretely presented component units. This section also includes schedules which compare
budgeted expendituresto actual resultsat thelegal level of control, whichisgenerally thelineitemlevel of the AppropriationsActs.

FINANCIAL ANALYSISOF THE STATE ASAWHOLE

Net Assets

The State's total net assets decreased $42.6 million or 0.3 percent in fiscal year 2009. In comparison, net assets in the prior year
increased $729.8 million or 4.6 percent. Thisdecreasein total net assets resulted from aweak economy that had the combined effects
of high unemployment, lower tax revenues, and higher demand for government services. The changein net assetsiscomprised of the
following:

e Invested in Capital Assets — Total net capital assets increased $830.2 million or 7.9 percent as the State’s investment in
highways and buildings exceeded depreciation and net additional debt used to finance projects.

e Restricted Net Assets— Total restricted net assets decreased $434.9 million or 10.7 percent over the prior year. Of the $269.1
million decrease in restricted net assets of governmental activities, $98.6 million was aresult of a decrease in nonexpendable
public education net assetsasaresult of adecreasein net earningsin the permanent Trust Lands Fund. Restricted net assetsaso
decreased due to a$72.1 million decrease in expendabl e public education net assets as aresult of lower individual income and
corporate tax revenues. Net assets restricted for transportation al so decreased by $56.5 million asthe number of infrastructure
projects escalated despite less funding available due to lower tax revenues. Restricted net assets in business-type activities
decreased $165.8 million primarily due to unemployment claims exceeding related premiums by $209 million. This decrease
was offset by an increase of $43.1 million in additional loan capital in variousloan programs provided by investment income
and federal grants.

o Unrestricted Net Assets— Total unrestricted net assets in governmental activities decreased by $480.3 million or 41.1 percent
due to a decrease in carry-forward balances in the General Fund and other governmental funds of $195.5 million and $215.9
million, respectively. Total unrestricted net assetsin business-type activitiesincreased by $42.3 million or 4.1 percent primarily
due to the State providing additional capital to loan funds from mineral |ease and dedicated sales tax revenues.

State of Utah
Net Assetsas of June 30
(Expressed in Thousands)

Governmental Business-type Total Primary
Activities Activities Gover nment
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Current and Other Assets............ $ 4693031 $ 5092823 $ 5030178 $ 4770529 $ 9723209 $ 9,863,352
Capital ASSELS .....cocerervierieeenes 12,514,562 11,627,282 72,007 61,021 12,586,569 11,688,303

Total ASSELS ....c.oovevrrceenee 17,207,593 16,720,105 5,102,185 4,831,550 22,309,778 21,551,655
Current and Other Liabilities...... 941,661 869,300 58,871 57,036 1,000,532 926,336
Long-term Liabilities.................. 1,949,751 1,615,550 2,680,326 2,287,956 4,630,077 3,903,506

Total Liabilities................. 2,891,412 2,484,850 2,739,197 2,344,992 5,630,609 4,829,842
Net Assets:

Invested in Capital Assets,

Net of Related Debt ............ 11,277,630 10,447,357 13,751 13,837 11,291,381 10,461,194
Restricted ........ccovviniiiinienne 2,349,499 2,618,556 1,269,006 1,434,828 3,618,505 4,053,384
unrestricted ..o 689,052 1,169,342 1,080,231 1,037,893 1,769,283 2,207,235

Total Net ASSets ..o $ 14,316,181 $ 14235255 $ 2362988 $ 2486558 $ 16,679,169 $ 16,721,813

Percent change in total net
assets from prior year ................. 0.6 % (5.00% (0.3)%

16
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Thelargest component of the State’' s net assets, 67.7 percent, reflectsinvestmentsin capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, equipment,
roads, and other infrastructure) less the outstanding debt issued to finance those assets. As capital assets, these resources are not
availablefor future spending, nor can they be readily liquidated to pay off their related liabilities. Resources needed to repay capital-
related debt must be provided from other sources.

Restricted net assets comprise 21.7 percent of total net assets and are subject to constitutional, legal, or external constraints on how
they can be used. Net assetsthat are restricted by the Constitution of Utah include income and corporate taxes that can be used only
for public and higher education costs and motor fuel taxes that can be used only for transportation expenses.

The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets may be used to meet the State’s ongoing obligations, though certain laws and
internally imposed designations of resources further limit the purposes for which many of those net assets may be used.

The following schedule and charts summarize the State’ stotal revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets for fiscal year 2009.

State of Utah
Changesin Net Assets
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30
(Expressed in Thousands)

Total
Governmental Business-type Total Primary Per centage
Activities Activities Government Change
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2008 to 2009
Revenues
General Revenues:
TEXES .. s $ 5043745 $ 5535750 $ 22976 $ 23462 $ 5,066,721 $ 5,559,212 (8.9)%
Other Genera REVENUES ........cccvvveererereririenn 91,225 132,586 — — 91,225 132,586 (31.2)%
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services ........cocveeeeneneeneneninens 887,113 933,371 532,171 557,470 1,419,284 1,490,841 (4.8)%
Operating Grants and Contributions ... 3,177,737 2,658,284 214,876 143,853 3,392,613 2,802,137 211 %
Capital Grants and Contributions ... . 145,353 144,867 — — 145,353 144,867 0.3 %
Total ReVENUES ... 9,345,173 9,404,858 770,023 724,785 10,115,196 10,129,643 (0.1)%
Expenses
General GOVErNMENt .........ccovereerererererereennens 390,373 385,331 — — 390,373 385,331 13 %
700,307 679,920 — — 700,307 679,920 3.0%
254,980 255,319 — — 254,980 255,319 (0.1)%
189,069 191,910 — — 189,069 191,910 (1.5)%
123,209 125,587 — — 123,209 125,587 (1.9)%
Health and Environmental Quality ............... 1,812,067 1,649,209 — — 1,812,067 1,649,209 9.9 %
Higher Education ...........c.cccceeeecune 997,218 912,998 — — 997,218 912,998 9.2 %
Employment and Family Services 514,915 423,122 — — 514,915 423,122 21.7 %
Natural RESOUICES .......covvvreerrrreriereeiercneieee 174,730 159,955 — — 174,730 159,955 9.2 %
Community and Culture 139,840 132,687 — — 139,840 132,687 54 %
Business, Labor, and Agriculture.................. 101,995 95,563 — — 101,995 95,563 6.7 %
Public EQUCELION ........ccevreecieecieeiceece e 3,033,574 2,959,311 — — 3,033,574 2,959,311 25%
Transportation ................. 819,833 850,387 — — 819,833 850,387 (3.6)%
Interest on Long-term Debt .... 52,070 58,851 — — 52,070 58,851 (11.5)%
Student Assistance Programs .. — — 144,007 164,411 144,007 164,411 (12.9)%
Unemployment Compensation .................... — — 489,925 148,424 489,925 148,424 230.1 %
Water Loan Programs...........ccceevvveerenicnnnen — — 12,900 10,477 12,900 10,477 231 %
Community and Economic Loan Programs .. — — 2,349 2,310 2,349 2,310 1.7 %
Liquor Retail SAles ..o — — 168,844 160,635 168,844 160,635 51%
Other Business-type ACtivities ..o — — 35,635 33,417 35,635 33,417 6.6 %
Total EXPENSES ......ccveveveececreecreeseneene 9,304,180 8,880,150 853,660 519,674 10,157,840 9,399,824 81%
Excess Before Transfers .........oovovevnnneenenenns 40,993 524,708 (83,637) 205,111 (42,644) 729,819
TrANSTEN'S ..t s 38,953 37,733 (38,953) (37,733) — —
Changein Net ASSELS .......ccovrererirererenenes 79,946 562,441 (122,590) 167,378 (42,644) 729,819
Net Assets— Beginning as Adjusted ................. 14,236,235 13,672,814 2,485,578 2,319,180 16,721,813 15,991,994
Net Assets — ENding .....cccooevevnveevnennsenneennns $ 14,316,181 $ 14,235,255 $ 2,362,988 $ 2,486,558 $ 16,679,169 $ 16,721,813 (0.3)%

(Charts on next page.)
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Changesin Net Assets

This year the State received 50.1 percent of its revenues from state taxes and 35 percent of its revenues from grants and
contributions, mostly fromfederal sources. Inthe prior year, state taxes accounted for 54.9 percent and grants and contributions
were 29.1 percent of total revenues. Charges for goods and services such as licenses, permits, liquor sales, park fees, and court
fees, combined with other miscellaneous collections, comprised 14.9 percent of total revenuesin fiscal year 2009, compared to
16 percent in fiscal year 2008.

Governmental Activities

The State’s total governmental revenues from all sources decreased $59.7 million or 0.6 percent. Tax revenues decreased $492
million or 8.9 percent. This decrease in taxes reflects weak economic conditions and is similar to the decrease at the fund level.
However, dueto differencesin measurement focus and timing of collections, the decrease at the government-widelevel should not be
used to predict future decreases at the fund statement or budget level. With the exception of higher education, natural resources, and
transportation, as discussed bel ow, other significant changesin governmenta activities' revenuesand expenses mirror the changesin
the governmental funds. For further discussion, seethe section entitled “ Financial Analysis of the State's Governmental Funds’ on

page 19.

¢ Higher Education — Expensesincreased by $84.2 million compared to the prior year dueto an increasein the amount spent
for building projects completed for colleges and universities. When these buildings are compl eted, ownership istransferred
to the colleges and universities and reported as expenses on the government-wide statements. However there is no impact
on the governmental fund statements.

e Natural Resources—Expensesfor natural resource activitiesincreased $14.8 million, as compared to theprior year, asless
capital outlay was expended. Since less was expended for capital outlay in the fiscal year, expenses increased on the
government-wide statements.

e Transportation — Expenses for transportation activities decreased $30.6 million, as compared to the prior year, primarily
due to an increase in the amount spent for capital outlay (i.e., land, state roads, and bridges). The amount expended for
capital outlay is not reported as expenses, but as an asset on the government-wide statements.

Thefollowing table showsto what extent the State’ s governmental activitiesrelied on taxesand other general revenuesto cover al of
their costs. For fiscal year 2009, state taxes and other general revenues covered 54.7 percent of expenses. The remaining $4.21
billion or 45.3 percent of the total expenses were covered by charges for services and grants.

(Table on next page.)
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State of Utah
Net Cost of Governmental Activities
for theFiscal Year Ended June 30
(Expressed in Thousands)

Less Net Program Revenues
Program Program Program as a Per centage of
Expenses Revenues (Expenses) / Revenues Program Expenses
2009 2009 2009 2008 2009 2008
General GOvErNMENt ......cccveveevieieveeeieire e $ 390,373 $ 358,733 (31,640) $ 43,785 91.9 % 111.4 %
Human Services and Y outh Corrections........ 700,307 345,468 (354,839) (374,396) 49.3 % 449 %
Corrections, Adult 254,980 5,939 (249,041) (248,520) 23 % 27 %
Public Safety ................ 189,069 125,634 (63,435) (75,574) 66.4 % 60.6 %
COUMS .t 123,209 50,558 (72,651) (78,452) 41.0 % 37.5%
Health and Environmenta Quality ................. 1,812,067 1,472,475 (339,592) (392,963) 81.3 % 76.2 %
Higher EdUCELION ........cocevveeririneeneecreicenes 997,218 34,139 (963,079) (911,645) 34 % 0.1 %
Employment and Family Services.................. 514,915 454,323 (60,592) (64,727) 88.2 % 84.7 %
Natural RESOUICES ......cc.ccueuveieieieceieeiecvenan, 174,730 110,362 (64,368) (54,650) 63.2 % 65.8 %
Community and Culture 139,840 57,910 (81,930) (89,219) 41.4 % 328 %
Business, Labor, and Agriculture.................... 101,995 76,985 (25,010) (17,213) 75.5 % 82.0 %
Public Education ...........c.coceevveenieiiececeie, 3,033,574 502,798 (2,530,776) (2,538,693) 16.6 % 14.2 %
Transportation ........cceveeveeererrenesee s 819,833 614,879 (204,954) (282,510) 75.0 % 66.8 %
Interest and Charges on Long-term Debt ........ 52,070 — (52,070) (58,851)
Total Governmental Activities.................. $ 9,304,180 $ 4,210203 $ (5,093977) $ (5,143,628) 453 % 421 %

Business-type Activities

Revenues from the State's business-type activities increased $45.2 million or 6.2 percent from the prior year. The increase is
primarily due to a $71 million increase in federal grant revenue in the Unemployment Compensation Fund provided to extend
benefitsfor the unemployed as part of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA), aone-timefederal economic stimulus
package provided to statesto aid in recovering from the recession. Thisincrease was partially offset by a$25.3 million decreasein
chargesfor services caused in part by a$13.2 million decrease in unemployment taxes paid into the Unemployment Compensation
Fund as aresult of higher unemployment and a decrease in other miscellaneous revenues. Total expenses for the State’ s business-
type activities increased $334 million or 64.3 percent. The increase is primarily due to a $341.5 million increase in payments for
unemployment benefits due to higher unemployment in the weak economy.

All of the State’' s business-type activities operate from program revenues, except for the Water Loan Programs and the Agriculture
Loan Fund that by law receive dedicated salestax revenues and the Community I mpact Loan Fund that receivesfederal mineral lease
revenuesto provide additional capital for loans. Accounting standards require unemployment taxesthat are collected from employers
and deposited in the Unemployment Compensation Fund to be reported as chargesfor servicesrather than taxes. Therefore, taxesin
the business-type activities are comprised entirely of sales taxesin the water and agriculture loan programs.

FINANCIAL ANALYSISOF THE STATE'SGOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Fund Balances

At June 30, 2009, the State’' sgovernmental funds reported combined ending fund bal ances of $3.325 hillion. Of thisamount, $2.198
billion or 66.1 percent isreserved for specific programs by statelaw, external constraints, or contractual obligations. Unspent bond
proceeds, balances of restricted accounts, and agencies' nonlapsing balances are included in reserved fund balance. An additional
$880.2 million or 26.5 percent of total fund balances has been designated through internally imposed limitations on uses of certain
funds. Note 11 on page 100 provides more details about reserved and designated fund balances at June 30, 2009. The remaining
$246.7 million or 7.4 percent of fund balance is available for appropriation for the general purposes of the funds.

(Table on next page.)
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State of Utah
Governmental Fund Balances as of June 30, 2009
(Expressed in Thousands)

Uniform Transpor- Transportation Trust
General Education School tation I nvestment Lands Nonmajor
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Total

Reserved ..o $ 305224 $ — $ 194266 $ 447,158 $ — $ 915831 $ 335479 $ 2,197,958
Unreserved Designated ................. 327,467 496,176 2,902 48,402 — — 5,210 880,157
Unreserved Undesignated ............. — 21,501 — 179,612 (8,652) — 54,196 246,657

Total .o $ 632691 $ 517677 $ 197,168 $ 675172 $ (8652) $ 915831 $ 394,885 $ 3,324,772
Percent change from prior year .... (26.8)% 25.0 % (47.1)% 322 % (104.3)% (9.7)% (3.4)% (12.2)%

General Fund

During fiscal year 2009, the General Fund’ stotal fund balance decreased $232.2 million or 26.8 percent. Thisdecrease wasduein
large part to lower sales tax revenue as a result of the recessionary economy. To offset revenue shortfalls, the Legidature used
balances set aside for specific purposes along with agency carry forward monies to balance the budget, causing the reserved fund
balance to decrease by $165.6 million. The remainder of the decrease wasin the unreserved designated fund bal ance described as
follows.

The unreserved designated fund bal ance decreased $66.6 million or 16.9 percent. A significant part of the decrease was becausethe
Legislature appropriated $7.4 million of interest earned in the prior year from the General Fund Budget Reserve Account, and $21
million from the Disaster Recovery Restricted Account to the General Fund to offset budget shortfalls for fiscal year 2009. The
General Fund Budget Reserve Account and Disaster Recovery Restricted Account, both of which are reported as part of unreserved
designated fund balance, ended fiscal year 2009 with a balance of $188.9 and $13.8 million, respectively. Decreased tax accruals
designated by law accounted for most of the remaining change in the unreserved designated fund balance.

The General Fund ended fiscal year 2009 with azero dollar surplus, or unreserved undesignated fund balance, by using $37.2 million
of the $50.4 million of General Fund budgeted revenues set aside for fiscal year 2010. Thisleft $13.2 million set aside in the budget
and designated by the Legidature for fiscal year 2010 appropriations.

Total General Fund revenues increased $187 million or 4.1 percent from the prior year. Total tax collections decreased $225.8
million or 11.3 percent. The major decrease in tax revenues was salestax, which decreased $222.9 million or 13 percent, dueto the
weak economy. Federal contracts and grants increased by $380.1 million or 20.1 percent and was the largest single factor in
increasing non-tax revenues for the fiscal year. Of the increase, $362.9 million was provided by the American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act (ARRA). Federal mineral lease revenue increased by $38.2 million or 28.5 percent, in part due to higher energy
pricesin thefirst quarter of fiscal year 2009 that led to higher mineral |ease paymentsto the State. Miscellaneous and other revenue
increased by $43.8 million or 27.6 percent. An increase in Medicaid supplemental drug rebates of $12.8 million was the largest
singleincreasing revenue, with the balance of the increase across many miscellaneousrevenues. Theincreasein revenueswas offset
by a decrease in investment income of $45.7 million or 60.4 percent due to lower interest rates.

Total General Fund expenditures increased by $276.1 million or 5.7 percent as the economic slowdown of the past fiscal year
increased the public’s demand for government services. The increase was also duein part to a5 percent cost-of- living adjustment
(COLA) provided for state employees, 2 percent of which was provided by changes to certain employee health insurance plans.
Significant changes in expenditures occurred in the following areas:

e Health and Environmental Quality — Total expendituresin this category were up $162.9 million, primarily dueto increased
funding for Medicaid program costs resulting from a 19 percent increase in enrollees. A change to continuous open
enrollment of new applicants in the Children’s Health Insurance Plan (CHIP) aso contributed to the increase.

e Employment and Family Services — Total expenditures in this category increased $87.3 million due to a $74.1 million
increasein federal funding for Food Stamp program costs as aresult of anincreasein casel oads and benefits. Expenditures
alsoincreased $15.7 million due to increasesin the Unempl oyment | nsurance program administration; the Employment and
Training, Veterans, and Trade Act programs; and the Medicaid program administration.

e Human Services and Youth Corrections — Total expenditures in this category were up $22.4 million due to funding
increases in provider rates, and also increased demand for people with disabilities and child and family services.

e Public Safety — Total expendituresin this category increased $18.5 million due increases in highway safety programs.

e Higher Education — Total expenditures in this category decreased overall $26.5 million due to net budget reductions.
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ARRA fundswere used to restore $28.8 million to the institutions, but there still was anet reductionin fiscal year 2009 of
7.5 percent.

Budgetary Highlights— General Fund

The Legislature adopted theinitial fiscal year 2009 budget during the 2008 General Session. The original revenue estimatesin
the General Fund budget at the start of fiscal year 2009, excluding department-specific revenue sources such as federal grants
and departmental collections, and including miscellaneous transfers, were 0.6 percent higher than the final fiscal year 2008
budget. Budgeted expenditures were 7.6 percent lower than the final fiscal year 2008 budget. At the beginning of fiscal year
2009, revenue estimates were revised downward as sales and other taxes availablefor fiscal year 2009 were estimated to be $104.9
million lessthan anticipated. In September 2008, the 2008 Second Special Session of the Legislature was called by the Governor
to addressthe revenue shortfalls. During the Second Special Session, the Legislature reduced most fiscal year agency budgets by
3 percent, and made other budget adjustments as necessary to balance the budget.

The fiscal year 2009 budget was again addressed during the 2009 General Session of the Legislature (January to March 2009). At
that time, the general revenue estimates, primarily sales and use tax, had decreased $291.8 million from the original estimates
adopted in the 2008 General Session. In order to balance the General Fund budget, the Legislature made additional budget
reductions, utilized one-time fund balances and federal funding provided by the ARRA. Through the combined use of these fiscal
strategies, Legidatorswere ableto close the cumulative budget gap. In the end, taxes and other unrestricted revenues ended the year
$20.9 million above the final budgeted amounts.

Final budgets of department-specific revenue sources increased over original budgets; and actual department-specific revenues
increased over final budgets mostly due to an increase in departmental collections. Final budgets for many of the departmental-
specific revenue sources and rel ated expenditures such asfederal grants, departmental collections, and miscellaneous revenues, are
generally revised based on actual collections. The difference between final budgeted expenditures and actual expenditures is
primarily due to nonlapsing and unspent restricted funds that will be carried forward to the next year. However, $4.8 million of
unspent budgeted dollars were lapsed back to the General Fund by agencies.

Education Fund

Fund balance in the Education School Fund increased $103.7 million or 25 percent from the prior year due to a $99.5 million
increasein the designated fund balance. In the prior year, the amount set aside in the budget and designated by the Legidaturefor the
2009 fiscal year appropriationswas reported in the Uniform School Fund. Thisyear the designated fund balancefor 2010 fiscal year
appropriations is reported in the Education Fund as was directed by the Legisature. Revenue from corporate taxes decreased by
$161.4 million or 39.3 percent along with individual income taxes, which decreased $220 million or 8.6 percent. Although revenue
decreased significantly, transfers out also decreased and no expenditures were reported in the Education Fund. A total of $2.492
billion was transferred out for public and higher education. Of this amount, the Uniform School Fund received $2.182 billion for
public education, the General Fund received $237.7 million for higher education, and the Nonmajor Governmental Funds received
$74.4 million for debt service and capital-related projects.

The Education Fund ended fiscal year 2009 with a $21.5 million dollar surplus, or unreserved undesignated fund balance, as
compared to azero dollar surplusin the prior year. Inthe event of a surplus, Statelaw requires 25 percent of any revenue surplusin
the Education Fund to be transferred to the Education Budget Reserve Account, an account within the Education Fund. However,
State law prohibitstransfers of surplusto the Education Budget Reserve Account when the balance exceeds 7 percent of Education
Fund appropriations. At yearend, the balance exceeded the 7 percent limit, and as a result, no surplus transfer was made. The
Education Budget Reserve Account ended the fiscal year with a balance of $230 million.

Uniform School Fund

Fund balance in the Uniform School Fund decreased $175.6 million or 47.1 percent from the prior year, in part because the
designated fund balance at the beginning of the year was used for current year public education expendituresand lesswastransferred
in from the Education Fund. In addition, at yearend, the amount set aside in the budget and designated by the Legidlature for the
2010 fiscal year appropriationsis now reported in the Education Fund. Revenues in the Uniform School Fund increased by $220.2
million or 47.2 percent, primarily due to a$217.6 million increase in federal contracts and grants as aresult of the federal funding
provided by the ARRA. Expenditures increased $74.2 million or 2.5 percent as the Legislature increased funding for enrollment
growth for public education. The Uniform School Fund ended the year with azero dollar surplus, or unreserved undesignated fund
balance.

Transportation Fund

Fund balance in the Transportation Fund increased $164.5 million or 32.2 percent from the prior year primarily due to funding
provided through general obligation bond proceeds, most of which were unspent at June 30, 2009, and net transfers (appropriations)
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into the fund. Revenues increased by $20.7 million due in part to a $38.2 million increase in federal contracts and grants ($16.6
million of which wasfrom the ARRA) and a$65 million increase in miscellaneous and other income because of anincreasein fees
received from cooperative agreements with cities and counties for construction projects. These increases were offset by a $49.8
million decrease, in part due to adeclinein tax revenues asaresult of the weak economy. Aeronautics revenue al so decreased $34.5
million dueto areduction in fuel taxes collected and adecreasein federal aviation funding, which fluctuates based on the timing of
projects completed. Expenditures increased by $302.6 million or 27.6 percent as a result of increased spending on federal
participating highway projects. Over the past several years, there has been a major effort directed toward funding the State’s
transportation needs and critical highway projects.

Authorized federal funding for highway construction remainsrelatively stable from year to year. However, the spending of stateand
federal revenue reflects the timing of highway construction projects, which is impacted by a variety of circumstances such as
environmental studies or existing weather conditions. In addition, the Department of Transportation has discretion on allocating
federal funds among projects, which impactsthe amount of federal revenue reported in the Transportation Fund and Transportation
Investment Fund.

Transportation I nvestment Fund

Fund balance in the Transportation Investment Fund decreased by $208.5 million or 104.3 percent from the prior year as
expenditures and transfers out exceeded revenues. Revenuesin the fund decreased $37.7 million or 17.7 percent primarily dueto a
decreasein salesand usetax collections of $24.7 million. Federal contracts and grantsrevenue also decreased $13.2 millionor 91.6
percent asfederal funding slowed for specific Centennia Highway projects nearing completion. Although expenditures decreased by
$79.7 million or 21.4 percent, construction expenditures increased for other critical highway projects funded out of the
Transportation Fund.

Trust Lands Fund

The fund balance of the permanent Trust Lands Fund decreased by $98.6 million or 9.7 percent primarily due to a decline in
investment val ues due to general market conditions and asaresult of lower rates of return. The permanent fund also generated $24.8
million of cash investment earnings for the Uniform School Fund that is earmarked for distribution to local school districts. The
principal in the fund is held in perpetuity with earnings restricted primarily to support public education.

FINANCIAL ANALYSISOF THE STATE'SPROPRIETARY FUNDS

Student Assistance Programs

The net assets of the Student Assistance Programs decreased only slightly by $4.1 million or 0.1 percent. The decreaseisexplained
by changesin total assetsand total liabilities. Total assetsincreased by $362.8 million primarily dueto an increasein student loans
receivabl e as unemployed workersreturned to college in the down economy. Total liabilitiesincreased $366.9 mainly dueto anew
participating line of credit payable to the U.S. Department of Education for student loans. Of total net assets of $297.8 million,
$208.3 million is restricted for use within programs by bond covenants or federal law.

Unemployment Compensation Fund

The State’ s rising unemployment rate spurred by the state and national economic slowdown, resulted in a$341.5 million or 230.1
percent increase in benefit payments over the prior year. For the first time since fiscal year 2004, benefit payments exceeded
employer taxes and other revenues, resulting in a reduction of net assets of $208.7 million. Nonetheless, assets were sufficient to
handle the demand for benefits, although net assets decreased $209 million or 23.5 percent, to $679.3 million. The entire balance of
net assets in this fund is restricted for paying unemployment benefits by state and federal 1aw.

Water Loan Programs

The net assets of the Water Loan Programs increased $16.6 million or 2.4 percent from the prior year. Additional capital for loans
was provided from $22.5 million in dedicated sales tax revenues, $15.7 million in federal grants, and $3.2 million in investment
income, offset by net transfers out of the fund of $24.1 million. Loans receivable for the programsincreased $58.4 million or 10.6
percent over the prior year as additional funds were available for loans. Of total net assets of $706.6 million, $321.6 million is
restricted for use within the Water Loan Programs by federal grant requirements.

CAPITAL ASSET AND LONG-TERM DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets
The State’ scapital assetsincreased anet $898.3 million during the year. The change consisted of net increasesininfrastructure(i.e.,
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state roads and bridges) of $1.430 billion; land and related assets of $184.5 million; buildings and improvements of 45.5 million; and
anet decreasein construction in progress of $763.4 million. Machinery and equipment increased anet $1.5 million during the year.
Several buildingsfinanced by the State are actually owned by the colleges and universities, which are discrete component unitsof the
State. Therefore, while the capital assetsare on the component unit’ sfinancial statements, any outstanding debt issued by the Stateto
finance construction of those assetsisreported asaliability of the State’ s governmental activities. Thisin turn reduces unrestricted
net assets. As of June 30, 2009, the State had $88.8 million of outstanding debt related to capital assets of component units.

At June 30, 2009, the State had $221 million in commitments for building projectsin its capital projects funds and $1.233 billion
($181.9 million in the Transportation Investment Fund and $1.051 billion in the Transportation Fund) in commitmentsfor highway
construction and improvement projects. Funding for the commitmentswill come from existing resources in these funds and from
future bond proceeds and appropriations.

The State has adopted an allowabl e alternative to reporting depreciation for state roads and bridges (infrastructure assets) maintained
by the Utah Department of Transportation (UDOT). Under this alternative method, referred to asthe “modified approach,” UDOT
must maintain an asset management system and demonstrate that the infrastructure is being preserved at or above established
condition levels. Infrastructure assets accounted for under the modified approach are not depreciated, and maintenance and
preservation costs are expensed.

The State’ s established condition level for state roadsisto maintain 50 percent with arating of “fair” or better and no more than 15
percent with a“very poor” rating. The most recent condition assessment completed in 2008 (calendar year basis), indicated that 61
percent of theroadswerein“fair” or better condition. Only 13.9 percent of the roads assessed werein “very poor” condition. These
resultsreflect adight decline from conditionsin calendar year 2007, when 62.6 percent of theroadswere assessed as“fair” or better,
and 12.4 percent assessed were in “very poor” condition.

The State’ s established condition level for bridgesisto maintain 50 percent with arating of “good” and no morethan 15 percent of
bridgeswith a“poor” rating. The most recent condition assessment, completed in April 2009, indicated that 69 percent and 1 percent
of bridgeswerein “good” and “poor” condition, respectively. These results are similar to the prior year.

During fiscal year 2009, the State spent $369.2 million to maintain and preserve roads and bridges. Thisamount is5.8 percent above
the estimated amount of $348.8 million needed to maintain these assets at established condition levels.

More information about capital assets is included in Note 8 on page 86, and more detailed information on the State’'s modified
approach for reporting infrastructure is presented in the Required Supplementary Information on pages 126 and 127.

L ong-term Debt

The Constitution of Utah authorizesissuing general obligation debt only as approved by the L egislature. The Congtitution also limits
the total general obligation indebtedness of the State to an amount equal to 1.5 percent of the value of the total taxable property of
the State. The Sate Appropriation and Tax Limitation Act (i.e., statutory debt limit) further limitsthe outstanding general obligation
debt of the State to not exceed 45 percent of the maximum allowabl e state budget appropriation limit. As of June 30, 2009, the State
was $3.11 hillion below the debt limit established in the Constitution and $661.6 million below the statutory debt limit.

Revenue bonds of the State Building Ownership Authority are not backed by the general taxing authority of the State, but are payable
from rent revenue provided through appropriations of the Legislature or other operating revenues. Revenue bonds of the Student
Assistance Programs are not backed by the general taxing authority of the State, but are payable solely from specific fees or loan
repayments as pledged in the bond indentures.

State of Utah
Net Outstanding Bonded Debt as of June 30
(Expressed in Millions)

Total
Governmental Business-type Total Primary Per centage
Activities Activities Gover nment Change

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2008 to 2009

Generd Obligation Bonds..................... $ 15630 $ 11980 $ — 3 — $ 15630 $ 1,1980 30.5 %
Revenue Bonds:

State Building Ownership Auth. ...... 149.3 162.3 74.9 51.0 224.2 213.3 51%

Student Assistance Programs........... — — 2,235.4 2,165.2 2,235.4 2,165.2 32%

Total BondsPayable...........ccccceueueneee $ 17123 $ 13603 $ 23103 $ 22162 $ 40226 $ 35765 125 %
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Total bonds payable increased $446.1 million during the fiscal year. The State issued $498.81 million of general obligation bonds
during thefiscal year asthe State sought to take advantage of lower interest rates to fund both highway and capital facility projects.
Of the genera obligation bonds issued, $394.36 million was for highway construction and $104.45 million was for capital facility
construction. In addition, the State issued atotal of $217.005 million of revenue bonds. Of the revenue bondsissued, $25.505 million
was to provide for capital facility construction and $191.5 million was to provide capital for purchasing student loans in the Student
Assistance Programs.

The State’ sactive management of itsresources has hel ped the State maintainitstriple-A rating on general obligation bondsfromall three
national rating agencies, and double-A rating on | ease revenue bondsfrom two national rating agenciesfromwhich ratingswere sought.
Theseratings are the best available and save millions of dollarsin interest each year because the State is able to obtain very favorable
interest rates on new debt. Note 10 beginning on page 90 contains more information about the State’' s outstanding debt.

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK AND NEXT YEAR’'SBUDGET

Original general revenue estimates of the General Fund and Education Fund for fiscal year 2010 are lower than actual fiscal year
2009 revenues. The Legislature balanced the 2010 budget by using one-time fund balances and federal funding provided by the
ARRA. The State anticipates receiving up to $1.2 billion of ARRA fundsin fiscal year 2010. The funds will be used for genera
government, health, human services, employment, and public and higher education operations.

Preliminary data for fiscal year 2010 show tax revenues lower than the original 2010 expected budget estimates. The overall
unemployment rate is expected to increase in 2009 to 6.5 percent, up from the average 2008 rate of 3.4 percent. Taxableretail sales
are expected to decline 8.1 percent in 2009 and increase 2.2 percent in 2010. Personal income is expected to decline 1.3 percent in
2009, yet grow 2 percent in 2010. Because theseindicators are measured on acalendar year basis, theimpact on the State budget will
not be fully realized until well into fiscal year 2010. The Governor and Legislature are expected to review the fiscal year 2010
budget again during the upcoming 2010 General Session and take action as necessary to balance the budget.

CONTACTING THE STATE'SDIVISION OF FINANCE

Thisfinancia report isdesigned to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditorswith ageneral overview of the
State' s finances and to demonstrate the State’ s accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or
need additional financial information, please contact the Department of Administrative Services: Division of Finance, Financia
Reporting Section at (801) 538-3082 or visit our Web site at: www.finance.utah.gov.

The preceding discussion and analysisfocuses on the State’s primary government operations. With the exception of afew nonmajor
component units, the State's component units each issue separate audited financial statements that include their respective
management’s discussion and analysis. Component unit statements may be obtained from their respective administrative offices or
from the Office of the Utah State Auditor, Utah State Capitol Complex, East Office Building, Suite E310, Salt Lake City, UT 84114.
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State of Utah
Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2009 (Expressed in Thousands)

Primary Government

Governmental  Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
ASSETS
Cash and Cash EQUIVAIENES ..........cccceveveverieeecreeieeeie e $ 1,116,529 $ 1,080,442 $ 2,196,971 $ 573,263
INVESTMENTS ..o sre e 1,070,235 206,281 1,276,516 1,719,979
Taxes Receivable, net 753,290 — 753,290 —
Accounts and Interest Receivable, net ...........ccccevevveveinennenn, 754,113 141,689 895,802 453,090
Amounts Due From:
Component UNItS ......ooveeiieieenieeieisesee e 28,879 — 28,879 —
Primary Government — — — 3,442
Prepaid Items ..........ccccce.... 1,992 12,215 14,207 15,491
INVENTOTIES .ottt sttt neas 17,990 30,307 48,297 60,631
Internal BalanCes ...........cccoovveiiiiiiiiecee e 9,465 (9,465) — —
Restricted Investments 846,993 84,808 931,801 920,338
Deferred Charges ......coooveeiieieieneiceee s 4,159 56,793 60,952 33,173
Notes/Loans/Mortgages/Pledges Receivable, net ................ 26,396 3,427,108 3,453,504 1,406,949
OhEr ASSELS ....cveiivicciiecree ettt 62,990 — 62,990 82,003
Capital Assets:
Land and Related Non-depreciable ASSets ..........c.cceveunee. 1,088,212 17,930 1,106,142 123,196
INFrASITUCTUIE ... 9,406,853 — 9,406,853 —
COoNStrUCtion iN Progress .......ccovevveeeeereeeseneseseeesieseeeees 793,112 2,120 795,232 294,921
Buildings, Equipment, and Other Depreciable Assets ...... 2,094,420 77,833 2,172,253 4,864,674
Less Accumulated Depreciation .........c.coccoeevvevenenncenns (868,035) (25,876) (893,911) (2,158,927)
Total Capital ASSELS .......ccevveiriireieceeee e 12,514,562 72,007 12,586,569 3,123,864
Total Assets 17,207,593 5,102,185 22,309,778 8,392,223
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities ............ccccceeuenee 838,372 44,369 882,741 321,437
Amounts Due to:
Component UNItS .......ooveeieieinieeieceeee s 3,439 3 3,442 —
Primary GOVEINMENT .........cccovrvrieeenireeiensee e — — — 28,879
Securities LeNding ........coocevveieeneiieee s — — — 21,617
UNEArNed REVENUE .........ocuiieeieiiiie et 99,850 14,338 114,188 117,956
DEPOSItS ..o — 161 161 80,903
Long-term Liabilities (Note 10) ..
Due Within ONe YEaAr .....ccccvvevvviveeieciecie e 285,214 581,031 866,245 281,665
Due in More Than ONne YEar ......cccoevveeveveeceieciecie e 1,664,537 2,099,295 3,763,832 2,265,089
Total Liabilities ...cccviveiiiieiece e 2,891,412 2,739,197 5,630,609 3,117,546
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt .................. 11,277,630 13,751 11,291,381 2,529,490
Restricted for:
TranSPOrtation .........cccccevveiiviieeiei e 351,328 — 351,328 —
Public Education — Expendable .......... 987,123 — 987,123 —
Public Education — Nonexpendable .... 915,831 — 915,831 —
Higher Education — Expendable ............. — — — 820,122
Higher Education — Nonexpendable .............cccccovnerinnnen. — — — 477,027
DEDE SEIVICE ..ottt 5,103 — 5,103 173,931
Unemployment Compensation and Insurance Programs .. 4,844 679,263 684,107 110,975
L0AN PrOgrams ........ccceoieiieiieiienie et — 589,743 589,743 —
Other Purposes — Expendable 85,270 — 85,270 363
UNrestricted .....c.oovevveveevevece e 689,052 1,080,231 1,769,283 1,162,769

Total Net Assets

$ 14,316,181

$ 2,362,988

$ 16,679,169

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of Utah
Statement of Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(Expressed in Thousands)

Program Revenues

Operating Capital

Charges for Grants and Grants and

Activities Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions

Primary Government:
Governmental:
General GOVEIMMENT .....oveeeeeeeeeeeeereee oo ee et e e reeee e $ 390,373 $ 154,794 $ 203,939 $ —
Human Services and Youth Corrections ...........ccceeeveenne 700,307 13,359 332,109 —
Corrections, Adult 254,980 5,211 728 —
PUDBIIC SAfELY ... 189,069 51,475 74,159 —
(0T 5 £ 123,209 48,957 1,601 —
Health and Environmental Quality ...........cccccooveiiiinnnne 1,812,067 64,328 1,408,147 —
Higher Education ...........ccccoceoivrennene. 997,218 32,981 1,158 —
Employment and Family Services 514,915 8,067 446,256 —
Natural ReSOUICES .......ccceevvvrevireseeene 174,730 71,266 39,096 —
Community and Culture ................. 139,840 3,632 54,278 —
Business, Labor, and Agriculture 101,995 65,376 11,609 —
PuUblic EAUCALION ......cvevvvieeceeceeceeeceeee e 3,033,574 79,462 423,336 —
TranspPortation .........c.ccceoeerenerinenee e 819,833 288,205 181,321 145,353
Interest and Other Charges on Long-term Debt 52,070 — — —
Total Governmental ACtiVIties ......occccvvvvveeeviievcee e, 9,304,180 887,113 3,177,737 145,353
Business-type:
Student Assistance Programs ..........cccoceeevereecnenenieneeens 144,007 89,805 50,058 —
Unemployment Compensation ... 489,925 144,383 136,812 —
Water Loan Programs ..........ccceeeevvieeiienenenn. 12,900 12,234 18,885 —
Community and Economic Loan Programs .................... 2,349 7,838 9,039 —
Liquor Retail Sales ..o 168,844 228,474 45 —
Other Business-type Activities 35,635 49,437 37 —
Total Business-type ACtIVIties ........cccoeerierniicicneens 853,660 532,171 214,876 0
Total Primary GOVEIMMENt ..........ccccoveeviverieeeereeeceeie s $10,157,840 $ 1,419,284 $ 3,392,613 $ 145,353
Component Units:

Utah Housing Corporation ...............ccceeeeeeeernercnenennnns $ 115,681 $ 108,866 $ 10,000 $ —
Public Employees Health Program ... 591,855 581,917 16,838 —
University of Utah .........cccovvennennne 2,530,643 1,893,353 407,108 124,662
Utah State University ..........cccovveecvrvrnnenn 492,875 136,781 167,841 20,420
Nonmajor Colleges and Universities .........c.ccccocerrennnne 866,613 357,207 158,099 97,969
Nonmajor Component UNIts ..........ccooereiiiensenecnenn 66,476 29,257 2,174 —
Total Component UNItS .........cccceveeveveiircrereiieeeeeeceeienns $ 4,664,143 $ 3,107,381 $ 762,060 $ 243,051

General Revenues:
Taxes:

Sales and Use Tax

Individual Income Tax Imposed for Education
Corporate Tax Imposed for Education
Motor and Special Fuel Taxes Imposed for Transportation
Other Taxes

Total Taxes

Investment Income

State Funding for Colleges and Universities
State Funding for Other Component Units
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets

Miscellaneous

Permanent Endowments Contributions ...
Transfers—Internal Activities

Total General Revenues and Transfers
Change in Net Assets

Net Assets—Beginni

Adjustment to Beginning Net Assets

Net Assets—Beginni
Net Assets—Ending

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Governmental  Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

$  (31,640) $ — $ (31,640) $ —

(354,839) — (354,839) —

(249,041) — (249,041) —

(63,435) — (63,435) —

(72,651) — (72,651) —

(339,592) — (339,592) —

(963,079) — (963,079) —

(60,592) — (60,592) —

(64,368) — (64,368) —

(81,930) — (81,930) —

(25,010) — (25,010) —

(2,530,776) — (2,530,776) —

(204,954) — (204,954) —

(52,070) — (52,070) —

(5,093,977) 0 (5,093,977) 0

— (4,144) (4,144) —

— (208,730) (208,730) —

— 18,219 18,219 —

— 14,528 14,528 —

— 59,675 59,675 —

— 13,839 13,839 —

0 (106,613) (106,613) 0

(5,093,977) (106,613) (5,200,590) 0

— — — 3,185

— — — 6,900

— — — (105,520)

— — — (167,833)

— — — (253,338)

— — — (35,045)

0 0 0 (551,651)

1,762,745 22,976 1,785,721 —

2,336,528 — 2,336,528 —

252,095 — 252,095 —

337,395 — 337,395 —

354,982 — 354,982 —

5,043,745 22,976 5,066,721 0

29,267 — 29,267 922

— — — 751,866

— — — 34,330

15,583 — 15,583 —

46,375 — 46,375 —

— — — 25,276

38,953 (38,953) — —

5,173,923 (15,977) 5,157,946 812,394

79,946 (122,590) (42,644) 260,743

14,235,255 2,486,558 16,721,813 5,013,934

980 (980) — —

14,236,235 2,485,578 16,721,813 5,013,934

$ 2,362,988 $ 16,679,169 $ 5,274,677

$14,316,181
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State of Utah

Governmental Fund
Financial Statements

General Fund
This fund is the principal operating fund of the State. It accounts for all financial resources of the general
government except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Education Fund
This fund accounts for all revenues from taxes on income that support public and higher education in
the State.

Uniform School Fund
This fund is maintained to account for specific revenues and expenditures that support public elementary
and secondary schools and the State Office of Education.

Transportation Fund
This fund is maintained to account for revenues and expenditures associated with highway construction and
maintenance. Principal funding is provided from dedicated highway user taxes, fees, and federal funds.

Transportation Investment Fund

This fund was created by the Legislature to account for revenues and expenditures associated with
the maintenance and reconstruction of specific state and federal highways and designates Centennial
Highway projects to be accounted for within this fund. Funding is provided from federal funds, highway
general obligation bonds, registration fees, sales and use taxes, and appropriations.

Trust Lands
This permanent fund accounts for land grants and the sale of lands received from the federal Enabling Act.
The principal in the fund is perpetual with the earnings used primarily to support public education.

Nonmajor Funds
Nonmajor governmental funds are presented by fund type beginning on page 132.



State of Utah

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

June 30, 2009 (Expressed in Thousands)

Special Revenue

Uniform
General Education School Transportation
ASSETS
Cash and Cash EQUIVAIENTS ........ccccccceverrrevcvereieeeese e $ 348,597 $ 83,800 $ 174,253 $ 254,678
INVESTMENTS ..ot 70,488 229,910 26,573 456,112
Receivables:
ACCOUNES, NBL ..c.veeiecieccece e 519,217 — 111,187 94,589
ACCIUE INTEIESE ... 31 — — —
Accrued Taxes, NEL .....ccvviveeiieie et 165,315 517,330 1,615 56,367
Notes/Mortgages, net 1,419 — 9,369 285
Due From Other FUNAS ..........ccovvviiiiiiciecee e 37,381 1,572 322 20,411
Due From Component UNitS ........ccocoorereeinennenncneennens 232 — — —
INVENLOTIES ..ovvevveveceee e, — — — 13,324
Interfund Loans Receivable .... 34,899 — 34 —
Other ASSEtS .....ccceeveereieireenane. 21 — — —
TOAl ASSEES .ttt $ 1,177,600 $ 832,612 $ 323,353 $ 895,766
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities ..................... $ 415,472 $ 35,094 $ 117,200 $ 178,381
Due To Other FUNS ........cccocvieiiiiiiiee e 26,283 — 454 6,322
Due To Component UNItS ........ccecvrneeiennccenieeeieas — — 379 —
Deferred REVENUE .......c.eovveviiieciectee et 103,154 279,841 8,152 35,891
Total Liabilities ....ocveveieeiiiciceceeece s 544,909 314,935 126,185 220,594
Fund Balances:
Reserved for:

Nonlapsing Appropriations and Encumbrances ........... 137,879 — 46,193 3,279

Specific Purposes by Statute ...........ccceevrveierernrcnennnn 159,649 — 148,039 443,879

Interfund Loans Receivable ...........cccoevvevveciiieinenen, 7,696 — 34 —

DEDE SEIVICE ..vovviviieciececteceeee et — — — —
Unreserved Designated ..........ccoooeveeiveneciencsenec e 327,467 496,176 2,902 48,402
Unreserved Designated, reported in nonmajor:

Debt Service FUNAS .......ccoevevenienecececeeeese e — — — —
Unreserved Undesignated ...........ccoccevveveiieeniescninenan — 21,501 — 179,612
Unreserved Undesignated, reported in nonmajor:

Special Revenue FUNds ..........cccoevveviieieieieiccieenas — — — —

Capital Projects FUNOS ........ccccovevrnieiinnecc e — — — —

Total Fund Balances ..........ccccvevvevieveveieiece e 632,691 517,677 197,168 675,172
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances ............ccoovvcevvverecererennne $ 1,177,600 $ 832,612 $ 323,353 $ 895,766

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Special

Revenue Permanent
Nonmajor Total
Transportation Trust Governmental ~ Governmental

Investment Lands Funds Funds
$ — $ 831 $ 190,944 $ 1,053,103
— 846,993 287,152 1,917,228
— 13,252 9,392 747,637
— 1,741 24 1,796
12,663 — — 753,290
— 15,323 — 26,396
— 2,976 1,452 64,114
— — 28,597 28,829
— — — 13,324
— — — 34,933
— 62,969 — 62,990
$ 12,663 $ 944,085 $ 517,561 $ 4,703,640
$ — $ — $ 66,407 $ 812,554
19,872 64 30,581 83,576
— 12 3,048 3,439
1,443 28,178 22,640 479,299
21,315 28,254 122,676 1,378,868
— — 221,004 408,355
— 915,831 108,705 1,776,103
— — — 7,730
— — 5,770 5,770
— — — 874,947
— — 5,210 5,210
(8,652) — — 192,461
— — 67,415 67,415
— — (13,219) (13,219)
(8,652) 915,831 394,885 3,324,772
$ 12,663 $ 944,085 $ 517,561 $ 4,703,640
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State of Utah

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2009

Total Fund Balances for Governmental Funds ...........cccooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeees

Total net assets reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets
is different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and

therefore are not reported in the funds: (See Note 8)
Land and Related Non-depreciable ASSEtS ..........ccoeereirennieiiceeree e $ 1,088,195
Infrastructure, Non-depreciable ...........ccccooveivieiiienciecc e 9,406,853
CONSLIUCLION-TN-PrOQIESS ....cveveieitiieieieesie et 793,034
Buildings, Equipment, and Other Depreciable Assets 1,912,891

Accumulated depreciation ...........ccoceieieireiesereee e (760,277)

Some of the State’s earned revenues will be collected after yearend, but are not
available soon enough to pay for the current period’s expenditures, and therefore
are deferred inthe FUNAS. ..o e e

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
activities, such as insurance, information technology, and fleet operations to
individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included
in governmental activities in the Statement of Net ASSetS. ......cccccovveeniiiiiiiciiineenn

Bond issue costs are reported as current expenditures in the funds. However, issue
costs are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds and are included in the
governmental activities in the Statement of Net ASSets. .......coceeieiiiiiiiiiiiiiinannnes

Long-term liabilities and related accrued interest are not due and payable in the

current period and therefore are not reported in the funds: (See Note 10)
General Obligation and Revenue Bonds Payable ............cccccocoviiieiiiinnnne, (1,640,463)
Unamortized PremilmS ........covcevieiiiiieieiccee e (80,925)
Amount Deferred on RefUNAING .........covviiiiiiiiiiieeee e 10,108
Accrued Interest Payable (903)
Pollution Remediation Obligation ...........ccccoeieiencieneineeeeee e (7,687)
CompenSated ADSENCES .........ceiririiiiiirieie s (162,689)
Capital LeASES .....cceeverieierieerierieiese e (19,210)
Net Other Post Employment Benefit Obligation (3,918)

(Expressed in Thousands)

$ 3,324,772

12,440,696

379,710

73,064

3,626

(1,905,687)

Total Net Assets of Governmental ACHIVItIES ..........vviieiiiiiiiiii e

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of Utah

Statement Of Revenues, Expenditures, And Changes In Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 (Expressed in Thousands)

Special Revenue

Uniform
General Education School Transportation
REVENUES
Taxes:
SAIES ANA USE TAX w.vreeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et eeeee e eeeeeeees $ 1,487,652 $ — $ — $ 119,141
Individual Income Tax — 2,340,400 — —
COrPOrate TAX ..eeueerireerenresiesiesieeeie e seeens — 249,177 — —
Motor and Special FUEIS TaX ........ccoevrrieierniieeneee. — — — 337,529
Other TaXeS ...voeveveveeveeve s 280,934 — 33,359 8,474
Total Taxes 1,768,586 2,589,577 33,359 465,144
Other Revenues:
Federal Contracts and Grants ............ccoceevvevevveieeiireseeesens. 2,272,215 — 597,224 322,175
Charges for Services/Royalties ...... e 293,753 — 2,397 69,092
Licenses, Permits, and Fees ........ 23,018 — 5,002 77,237
Federal Mineral LEaSse ........coovveevveieiiieeiiee et 172,642 — — —
Federal AronautiCs ..........ccovvevevieie i — — — 34,141
Intergovernmental ..........cccovveierireeienenee e — — — —
Investment Income .............. e ————— 29,993 5,850 27,326 9,327
Miscellaneous and Other ..... 202,666 — 21,019 114,287
Total REVENUES .....cveveceeceectectececeeee et 4,762,873 2,595,427 686,327 1,091,403
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General GOVEINMENT ......c.coovviieiiicie e 283,138 — — —
Human Services and Youth Corrections 696,787 — — —
Corrections, AdUlt ..........coveviiei i 252,886 — — —
PUDIC SAfety ..o 209,961 — — —
COUIS vt 127,442 — — —
Health and Environmental Quality 1,806,126 — — —
Higher Education — State Administration ..............c....... 60,224 — — —
Higher Education — Colleges and Universities .... 746,846 — — —
Employment and Family Services .........ccccoovevvriicinnnns 519,282 — — —
Natural RESOUICES .....cveeviieeeieieeree ittt 173,138 — — —
Community and Culture 135,062 — — —
Business, Labor, and Agriculture 92,430 — — —
PUblic EAUCALION ....c.ccovvivecieeeeteece e — — 3,034,678 —
Transportation — — — 1,400,858
Capital QULIAY ......cceeeercie s — — — —
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement .........ccoccovvvviiieninese s — — — —
Interest and Other Charges ..........covevevvevienieieneiiienienens — — — —
Total EXPeNditures ......c.cceveevierisenieisieisesessieienens 5,103,322 0 3,034,678 1,400,858
Excess Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures ...........ccco...... (340,449) 2,595,427 (2,348,351) (309,455)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
General Obligation Bonds Issued ...........cccccovceiicicienienne — — — 394,360
Premium on Bonds Issued — — — 33,557
Capital Leases Acquisition 2,010 — — —
Sale of Capital ASSELS .....coeoeieireieere e 11,001 — — 6,157
Transfers In . 587,138 — 2,227,988 189,981
Transfers Out (491,877) (2,491,748) (55,265) (150,054)
Total Other Financing Sources (USeS) .......cccccevveuene 108,272 (2,491,748) 2,172,723 474,001
Net Change in Fund Balances ...........c.ccccoeeneeineiennne (232,177) 103,679 (175,628) 164,546
Fund Balances — Beginning ........... 864,868 413,998 372,796 510,626
Fund Balances — ENdiNg ........ccccoevvveeiivineeinseeies e $ 632,691 $ 517,677 $ 197,168 $ 675,172

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Special

Revenue Permanent
Nonmajor Total
Transportation Trust Governmental ~ Governmental
Investment Lands Funds Funds
$ 150,690 $ — $ 3741 $ 1,761,224
— — — 2,340,400
— — — 249,177
— — — 337,529
— — 31,946 354,713
150,690 0 35,687 5,043,043
1,200 — 14,296 3,207,110
— 76,732 21,274 463,248
22,955 — — 128,212
— — — 172,642
— — — 34,141
— — 9,446 9,446
948 (200,798) (5,169) (132,523)
— — 44,642 382,614
175,793 (124,066) 120,176 9,307,933
— — 41,938 325,076
— — 4,312 701,099
— — 2,562 255,448
— — 3,077 213,038
— — 1,683 129,125
— — 6,362 1,812,488
— — — 60,224
— — 35,804 782,650
— — 459 519,741
— — 5,168 178,306
— — 5,391 140,453
— — 9,536 101,966
— — 841 3,035,519
293,498 — 455 1,694,811
— — 196,204 196,204
— — 180,613 180,613
— — 64,675 64,675
293,498 0 559,080 10,391,436
(117,705) (124,066) (438,904) (1,083,503)
— — 104,450 498,810
— — 11,888 45,445
— — — 2,010
— 10,877 — 28,035
131,977 14,571 454,879 3,606,534
(222,796) — (146,019) (3,557,759)
(90,819) 25,448 425,198 623,075
(208,524) (98,618) (13,706) (460,428)
199,872 1,014,449 408,591 3,785,200
$ (8,652 $ 915,831 $ 394,885 $ 3,324,772
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State of Utah

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances —
Governmental Funds To the Statement of Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 (Expressed in Thousands)
Net Change in Fund Balances — Total Governmental Funds ....................ccoeeeie $  (460,428)

The change in net assets reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net
Assets is different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives as depreciation expense. The primary government also constructs
buildings for component units. When the buildings are completed they are

“transferred” to component units and are reported as expenses in the Statement of
Activities. This is the amount by which capital outlays $1,158,149 exceeded

depreciation $(58,452) and buildings “transferred” to component units $(154,276)
in the current period. (See Note 8) 945,421

In the Statement of Activities, only the gain/loss on the sale of assets is reported,

whereas in the governmental funds, the proceeds from the sales increase financial

resources. Thus, the change in net assets differs from the change in fund balance by

the ASSELS SOIA. ..iiiiviiiiitiicest et e e (57,130)

Net effect of revenues reported on the accrual basis in the Statement of Activities
that do not provide current financial resources and thus are not reported as revenues
in the funds until available. ... ... (10,041)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain

activities, such as insurance, information technology, and fleet operations, to

individual funds. The net revenue (expense) of the internal service funds is reported

with governmental aCtiVItieS. ........cccoviveiiiiiiiiseiese e (7,685)

Bond proceeds and capital leases provide current financial resources to
governmental funds by issuing debt which increases long-term liabilities in the
Statement of Net Assets. Repayments of bond and capital lease principal are
expenditures in the governmental funds, but reduce liabilities in the Statement of
Net Assets: (See Note 10)

BONAS ISSUBA ....cveviecericete ettt st bbb $ (498,810)
Premiums on Bonds Issued (45,445)
Capital Lease Additions .......... (2,010)
Payment of Bond Principal 180,613
Capital Lease PAYMENTS ........cccieiriiiieeieees et 1,569 (364,083)
Expenditures are recognized in the governmental funds when paid or due for: items
not normally paid with available financial resources; interest on long-term debt
unless certain conditions are met; and bond issue costs. However, the Statement of
Activities is presented on the accrual basis and expenses and liabilities are reported
when incurred, regardless of when financial resources are available or expenditures
are paid or due. This adjustment combines the net changes of the following
balances:
Pollution Remediation Obligation COStS ...........ccvevviineiiriciceci e 155
Compensated ADSENCES EXPENSES ......ccveruruerieiereirieierereeiesieesieseeresieseseeseeneas 23,892
Accrued Interest on Bonds Payable ............cccoevvieniiinienicincicecee 63
Amortization of Bond Premiums ...........ccccevevieiiveenns 15,486
Amortization of Amount Deferred on Refunding (3,462)
Deferred Bond 1Ssue COStS .........cceeveveeiceieeiieeieee s 1,676
Other Post Employment Benefit COSES .........ccccovvieeiirineiinicenseecieas (3,918) 33,892
Change in Net Assets of Governmental ACtiVities ...........coocvveiii i, $ 79,946

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

38



State of Utah

Proprietary Fund
Financial Statements

Student Assistance Programs

These programs are comprised of two programs administered by the State Board of Regents: the Utah
Higher Education Assistance Authority Student Loan Guarantee Program and the Student Loan Purchase
Program. The purpose of these programs is to guarantee the repayment of student loans made by
participating lenders to eligible student borrowers and to make loans to, and purchase the loans of,
qualified students attending eligible institutions of higher education. Funds are acquired from the sale

of bonds, lines-of-credit, variable rate demand notes, and financing agreements with the Student Loan
Marketing Association.

Unemployment Compensation Fund
This fund pays claims for unemployment to eligible recipients and is funded through employer
contributions and reimbursements, and federal grants.

Water Loan Programs

These programs provide loans to local governments, water districts, and other entities for the purpose

of upgrading water storage facilities and other related structures. Capital for this fund has been provided

from the General Fund or from general obligation bonds that have been repaid from general tax revenues.
Additional funds have been generated by issuing revolving fund recapitalization revenue bonds that were

secured by notes receivable and repaid from the collection of these notes.

Nonmajor Funds
Nonmajor enterprise funds are presented beginning on page 156.

Governmental Activities — Internal Service Funds

These funds are maintained to account for the operation of state agencies that provide goods or services
to other state agencies and other governmental units on a cost-reimbursement basis. These funds are
presented in more detail beginning on page 166.



State of Utah

Statement Of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2009 (Expressed in Thousands)
Business-type Activities — Enterprise Funds
Student Unemployment Water Nonmajor
Assistance Compensation Loan Enterprise
Programs Fund Programs Funds
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash EQUIValENtS ..........ccovvieriiiinniininnccie e $ 110,723 $ 642,206 $ 86,208 $ 241,305
INVESTMENTS ..ovviiiciiie et 205,361 — — —
Receivables:
ACCOUNLES, NEL .t s 11,932 64,669 114 11,972
Accrued Interest ........ccevevveennee. 37,178 — 6,472 4,542
Notes/Loans/Mortgages, net .... 458,636 — 33,579 33,790
Due From Other Funds ............... — — 80 27,850
Due From Component UNItS ..........ccoevrreninnienineennee e, — — — —
Prepaid IBMS ...coviveeicicecce e 12,212 — — 3
Inventories ............. — — — 30,307
Deferred Charges — — — —
Total CUrrent ASSELS ......eovvviirieiiisie e 836,042 706,875 126,453 349,769
Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted INVESIMENLES ......covvvviciiiiii e 84,808 — — —
Investments ............c..... — — — 920
Prepaid Items .........cccoovveninnn — — — —
Accrued Interest Receivable ..........ccovveennne — — 3,894 916
Notes/Loans/Mortgages Receivables, net .... 1,936,847 — 577,867 386,389
Deferred Charges .......covveieiieienneienseesseesese e 56,793 — — —
Capital Assets:
LaNd ..o e — — — 17,930
Infrastructure ........ccccoecvvvrnnnne, — — — 304
Buildings and Improvements ... 12,576 — — 49,832
Machinery and EQUIPMENT ........coovevriivieniinieniee e 1,358 — — 13,763
CONSEruCtion iN PrOQress ......cccovvveveererieiesinnieseseseesiesesenees — — — 2,120
Less Accumulated Depreciation .. (2,853) — — (23,023)
Total Capital Assets .................. 11,081 0 0 60,926
Total Noncurrent Assets ..... 2,089,529 0 581,761 449,151
TOLAl ASSELS .eveveieieieciiecec ettt 2,925,571 706,875 708,214 798,920
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities ........cc.ccccovrviennne 23,148 2,766 1,347 16,841
DEPOSILS ...t — 64 — 97
Due To Other Funds ............ — 12,954 236 24,205
Due To Component Units .... — — — 3
Interfund Loans Payable ...... — — — —
Unearned REVENUE .........ccoeevevivieiriesiiene, 2,694 — 7 3,596
Policy Claims and Uninsured Liabilities .. 1,308 11,828 — —
Contracts/Notes Payable ... 297,381 — — —
Revenue Bonds Payable ...........ccocoveeviiiieniiiinnieinneiensien 268,110 — — 2,360
Avrbitrage Liability 44 — — —
Total Current Liabilities 592,685 27,612 1,590 47,102
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Accrued Liabilities ......coovivriiiieniiienceee e 267 — — —
Unearned Revenue ............... 8,041 — — —
Interfund Loans Payable .............cccovvvnuene. — — — —
Policy Claims and Uninsured Liabilities .. 1,805 — — —
Contracts/Notes Payable ............ccccovrvinne. — — — —
Revenue Bonds Payable ... 1,967,249 — — 72,503
Arbitrage Liability ........ 57,738 — — —
Total Noncurrent Liabilities .. 2,035,100 0 0 72,503
Total Liabilities ....ovoveeiiiieiiseiseecsis e 2,627,785 27,612 1,590 119,605
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt .................... 2,025 — — 11,726
Restricted for:
Unemployment Compensation and Insurance Programs ... — 679,263 — —
L0aN PrOgrams .....c..cviereieiienieisesie e 208,299 — 321,639 59,805
Unrestricted (Deficit) ... 87,462 — 384,985 607,784
TOtAl NET ASSELS ..ottt $ 297,786 $ 679,263 $ 706,624 $ 679,315

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Governmental

Activities —
Internal
Service
Total Funds

1,080,442 $ 63,426
205,361 —
88,687 4,545
48,192 —
526,005 —
27,930 26,238

0 50

12,215 1,710
30,307 4,666

0 16
2,019,139 100,651
84,808 —
920 —

0 282

4,810 —
2,901,103 —
56,793 517
17,930 17
304 303
62,408 6,081
15,121 175,145
2,120 78
(25,876) (107,758)
72,007 73,866
3,120,441 74,665
5,139,580 175,316
44,102 19,830
161 —
37,395 2,261

3 J—

0 27,203

6,297 96
13,136 16,711
297,381 28
270,470 69
44 —
668,989 66,198
267 —

8,041 165

0 7,730

1,805 26,939

0 484
2,039,752 736
57,738 —
2,107,603 36,054
2,776,592 102,252
13,751 73,158
679,263 4,844
589,743 —
1,080,231 (4,938)

2,362,988

$ 73,064
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State of Utah

Statement Of Revenues, Expenses, And Changes In Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 (Expressed in Thousands)
Business-type Activities — Enterprise Funds
Student Unemployment Water Nonmajor
Assistance Compensation Loan Enterprise
Programs Fund Programs Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
Sales and Charges for Services/Premiums ...........ccccccvvee. $ 7,705 $ 144,383 $ 386 $ 273,423
Fees and ASSESSMENTS ........cocveeeireiirieiirieeans 4,069 — 448 4,159
Interest on NOteS/MOItgages .....covvvevrrereeeseiesrerieeseeenenns 77,160 — 11,355 7,359
Federal Reinsurance and Allowances/Reimbursements ..... 41,991 99,972 — —
MISCEIANEOUS ...o.veveiericiiieese s 871 — 45 808
Total Operating REVENUES ........ccceviverieenieiesieiieenianens 131,796 244,355 12,234 285,749
OPERATING EXPENSES
AAMINISTIALION ..o 4,636 — 9 34,032
Purchases, Materials, and Services for Resale ................... — — — 152,643
GrANES .oveicrie e — — 6,381 1,504
Rentals and Leases .... — — — 2,107
Maintenance ................. — — — 2,591
Interest ........oeveeee.. 55,285 — — —
DEPreCiation ......ccocveveerieiiiiieesiec e 545 — — 1,740
Student Loan Servicing and Related Expenses .................. 35,067 — — —
Payment to Lenders for Guaranteed Claims 44,858 — — —
Benefit Claims and Unemployment Compensation ........... — 489,925 — —
Supplies and Other Miscellaneous ............cccccovverirrieennne 3,477 — 6,510 9,775
Total Operating EXPENSES ......ccccvvveireeninerenisieenieneeens 143,868 489,925 12,900 204,392
Operating INCOmMe (LOSS) ...c.cvvveveeniriereirinieieinesieeens (12,072) (245,570) (666) 81,357
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
INVESTMENE INCOME ... 8,067 36,840 3,221 5,154
Federal Grants ..o — — 15,664 3,967
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital ASSEtS ........ccccocereerieeerienae — — — —
TaAX REVENUES ...ttt — — 22,451 525
INterest EXPENSe .......cccovvereeerecenierennenn — — — (2,436)
Refunds Paid to Federal Government ... — — — —
Other Revenues (EXPENSES) .....cvrvereirererererenierieeniereeieneene (139) — — —
Total Nonoperating Revenues (EXpenses) ..........cc...... 7,928 36,840 41,336 7,210
Income (Loss) before Transfers ..........cccvevviicenine (4,144) (208,730) 40,670 88,567
TraNSTEIS TN oo — — 8,890 65,139
TransSfers OUL .......cooeiiirieeeee e — (227) (32,992) (79,763)
Change in Net ASSELS ......cocvireireiiereese e (4,144) (208,957) 16,568 73,943
Net Assets — Beginning 301,930 888,220 690,056 606,352
Adjustment to Beginning Net ASSets ..........ccccverreriennn — — — (980)
Net Assets — Beginning as Adjusted ..........coocoevvveinnnnenn, 301,930 888,220 690,056 605,372
Net ASSEts — ENAING ..ovvvveviiiieiieisescsese e $ 297,786 $ 679,263 $ 706,624 $ 679,315

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Governmental

Activities —

Internal

Service

Total Funds
$ 425,897 $ 293,920
8,676 —
95,874 —
141,963 —
1,724 44
674,134 293,964
38,677 108,431
152,643 76,608
7,885 —
2,107 2,343
2,591 23,859
55,285 —
2,285 16,395
35,067 —
44,858 —
489,925 11,980
19,762 52,252
851,085 291,868
(176,951) 2,096
53,282 1,564
19,631 —
0 (178)
22,976 —
(2,436) (68)

0 (1,046)

(139) (231)
93,314 41
(83,637) 2,137
74,029 324
(112,982) (10,146)
(122,590) (7,685)
2,486,558 79,769
(980) 980
2,485,578 80,749
$ 2,362,988 $ 73,064
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State of Utah

Statement Of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(Expressed in Thousands)

Business-type Activities — Enterprise Funds

Student Unemployment Water Nonmajor
Assistance Compensation Loan Enterprise
Programs Fund Programs Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers/Loan Interest/Fees/Premiums ... $ 69,176 $ 135,765 $ 11,975 $ 330,619
Receipts from Loan Maturities ............ccccocevreieiencnncnnn 199,763 — 36,970 27,081
Receipts Federal Reinsurance & Allowances/Reimburse .. 44,624 99,994 — —
Receipts from State CUSIOMENS ........cccocereeireerinerecreenns 10,932 — — 10,548
Student Loan Disbursements Received from Lenders ....... 476,554 — — —
Student Loan Disbursements Sent to Schools/Lenders ...... (480,289) — — —
Payments to Suppliers/Claims/Grants ..........c.cocoeevrirrienene. (30,837) (484,225) 348 (166,648)
Disbursements for Loans Receivable ............ccocooeeiiinne (575,956) — (95,744) (70,607)
Payments on Loan Guarantees ...........ccoeeeverereneenrerenienn. (43,037) — — —
Payments for Employee Services and Benefits .................. (10,606) — 9) (29,366)
Payments to State Suppliers and Grants ...........cccocoeeeenn. — — (11,635) (21,098)
Payments of Sales, School Lunch, and Premium Taxes .... — — — (40,764)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating ACHIVItIES .......ccoceveiriiniie e (339,676) (248,466) (58,095) 39,765
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Borrowings Under Interfund Loans ..........ccccocevervierienenen. — — — 19,597
Repayments Under Interfund Loans ................ — — — (16,651)
Receipts from Bonds, Notes, and Deposits ............coccceenne 490,124 13 — —
Payments of Bonds, Notes, Deposits, and Refunds ........... (123,006) (14) — —
Interest Paid on Bonds, Notes, and Financing Costs ......... (73,434) — — —
Federal Grants and Other REVENUES .........cccccvvevivviiiinennee. — — 15,664 4,398
Restricted Sales Tax — — 22,451 525
Transfers In from Other Funds ...........cccovveiiiiiiiiiie i, — — 8,890 63,052
Transfers Out to Other FUNdS ..........cccoovviiiiise — (227) (32,992) (78,223)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Noncapital Financing Activities ..........c.cccorrenene. 293,684 (228) 14,013 (7,302)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Borrowings Under Interfund Loans ..........c.coceovrvvneienininns — — — —
Repayments Under Interfund Loans ................... — — — —
Proceeds from Bond and Note Debt Issuance — — — 27,270
Proceeds from Disposition of Capital Assets — — — 73
Principal Paid on Debt and Contract Maturities ................ — — — (2,517)
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets ................ (65) — — (28,271)
Interest Paid on Bonds, Notes, and Capital Leases .... — — — (2,287)
Transfers In from Other FUNAS ........ccccooveeieviicecce e, — — — 2,087
Transfers Out to Other FUNS .........ccovieviciiiiicecece, — — — (1,540)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Capital and Related Financing Activities .............. (65) 0 0 (5,185)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from the Sale and Maturity of Investments ........ 771,070 — — 173
Receipts of Interest and Dividends from Investments ........ 8,134 36,840 3,384 5,046
Payments to Purchase INVeStments ...........ccccovveeeencrennne (713,875) — — —
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
INvesting ACLIVILIES .......cccceivrerreree e 65,329 36,840 3,384 5,219
Net Cash Provided (Used) — All Activities ............ 19,272 (211,854) (40,698) 32,497
Cash and Cash Equivalents — Beginning ..........c.cccceceevrerene. 91,451 854,060 126,906 210,482
Adjustment to Beginning Cash and Cash Equivalents .......... — — — (1,674)
Cash and Cash Equivalents — Ending ..........cccovveeiinirrenennne, $ 110,723 $ 642,206 $ 86,208 $ 241,305

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Governmental
Activities —
Internal
Service
Total Funds

$ 547,535 $ 47,027

263,814 —
144,618 —
21,480 261,739
476,554 —
(480,289) —
(681,362) (141,290)
(742,307) —
(43,037) —
(39,981) (105,719)
(32,733) (37,488)
(40,764) —
(606,472) 24,269
19,597 —
(16,651) (4,460)
490,137 —
(123,020) (1,301)
(73,434) (30)
20,062 13
22,976 —
71,942 —
(111,442) (10,129)
300,167 (15,907)
0 4725
0 (4,337)
27,270 —
73 3,421
(2,517) (48)
(28,336) (18,983)
(2,287) (43)
2,087 324
(1,540) 17
(5,250) (14,958)
771,243 —
53,404 1,564
(713,875) —
110,772 1,564
(200,783) (5,032)
1,282,899 66,784
(1,674) 1,674

$ 1,080,442 $ 63,426
Continues
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State of Utah

Statement Of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

Continued

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(Expressed in Thousands)

Business-type Activities — Enterprise Funds

Student Unemployment Water Nonmajor
Assistance Compensation Loan Enterprise
Programs Fund Programs Funds
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME
(LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED)
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating INCOME (LOSS) .....ccovrvrverereriirereiiesiereresssrsvereeas $ (12,072) $ (245,570) $ (666) $ 81,357
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (L0ss)
to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation EXPENSE ......cccoceiveererenereeiesisiesie e 545 — — 1,740
Interest Expense for Noncapital
and Capital FiNanCing .......c.coceevrvnreiennnieenenneeens 62,927 — — —
Miscellaneous Gains, Losses, and Other Items ............ 5,450 — — 1,178
Net Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Accounts Receivable/Due From Other Funds ............. 6,777 (9,461) 639 15,778
Notes/Accrued Interest Receivables ............cccccoeeeeee. (397,506) — (58,987) (45,314)
INVENLONIES ..o — — — (1,696)
Prepaid Items/Deferred Charges ............... (29) — — 24
Accrued Liabilities/Due to Other Funds (5,773) (2,236) 919 (12,902)
Unearned Revenue/DepOoSits ........cccevvverreerieerieiesienas — — — (400)
Notes Payable ... — — — —
Policy Claims Liabilities ........cc.ccccooevviviiiinieiiiiiceins — 8,801 — —
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating ACtiVIties .......ccccoeveeeiiiieereeece e, $ (339,676) $ (248,466) $ (58,095) $ 39,765
SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING,
CAPITAL, AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments .............. $ — $ — $ 437 $ 876
Total Noncash Investing, Capital, and
Financing ACtiVIties ...........ccceevvvieirescceccees $ 0 $ 0 $ 437 $ 876

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Governmental
Activities —
Internal
Service
Total Funds

$ (176,951) $ 2,096

2,285 16,395
62,927 —
6,628 —
13,733 14,900
(501,807) —
(1,696) 2,153
0 (959)
(19,992) (12,580)
(400) (65)

0 (36)

8,801 2,365

$ (606,472) $ 24,269

$ 1,313 $ 253

$ 1,313 $ 253
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State of Utah

Fiduciary Fund Financial
Statements

Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds

These funds are used to account for defined benefit pension plans and defined contribution plans
administered by the Utah Retirement Systems and to account for the State Post-Retirement Benefits Trust
Fund, a defined benefit Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (OPEB Plan) administered by the State.

Investment Trust Fund
This fund is used to account for the investments related to external participants in the Utah State Public
Treasurer’s Investment Fund.

Private Purpose Trust Funds
These funds are used to report resources of all other trust arrangements under which principal and income
benefit individuals, private organizations, or other governments.

Agency Funds

Agency funds account for assets held by the State as an agent for other governmental units, other
organizations, or individuals.

Individual funds are presented by fund type beginning on page 176.



State of Utah

Statement Of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds

June 30, 2009 (Expressed in Thousands)
Pension and Private
Other Employee Investment Purpose
Benefit Trust Trust Trust Agency
Funds Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash EQUIVAIENS ..........ccccoveveeeriiiccerececea $ 1,026,029 $ 2,019,995 $ 19,950 $ 166,586
Receivables:
ACCOUNES ...ttt 230 — 5,744 6,294
CONHBULIONS ..o 38,931 — — —
INVestmMents ......ccccoevvveeeeeciieeeeens 435,551 — — —
Accrued Interest — 24,491 — —
Accrued Assessments — — 10,840 —
Due From Other Funds 3,850 — 1,130 105
Investments:
DEDt SECUITIES ...ocveeveieeiceiceece e 5,845,232 4,028,842 926,459 21,676
Equity INVESIMENTS ..o 6,208,338 — 1,781,926 —
Absolute Return 2,097,466 — — —
Private Equity ............ 1,442,274 — — —
Real Estate ............. 3,280,056 — — —
Mortgage Loans 6,845 — — —
Invested Securities Lending Collateral 1,192,833 — — —
Investment CONracts ........coceeevveeeiveeeiieccie e 39,220 — — —
Total INVESIMENLS ....cveevveiciece e 20,112,264 4,028,842 2,708,385 21,676
Capital Assets:
13 o 1,779 — 271 —
Buildings and Improvements ............coccovervinenencnneenn 11,405 — 10,715 —
Machinery and EQUIPMENT ........ccoovvieiinnieiicecee 3,875 — 934 —
Less Accumulated Depreciation ...........ccccocceeenerieennene. (16,534) — (2,653) —
Total Capital ASSELS ....ccovrvreveeirireereeeer s 525 0 9,267 0
TOtAl ASSELS ..vevevecvecreceecticeieece e 21,617,380 6,073,328 2,755,316 $ 194,661
LIABILITIES
ACCOUNtS PAYabIE .......covviiiei e 835,371 — 2,346 $ —
Securities Lending Liability .......c.cccovvviinnieiniinicnn 1,192,833 — — —
Due To Other FUNAS ........oovviiiiieeieceeceecee e — — 135 —
Due To Individuals, Organizations, and
Other GOVEIMMENES .......ccoeeeeiriecreeireecre et — — — 194,661
Unearned REVENUE .......ccccveveeeeiiieierecre ettt — — 260 —
Leave/Postemployment Benefits ...........cccovveinnnicninnnn. 7,416 — — —
Policy Claims Liabilities/Insurance Reserves 5,109 — 292,863 —
Real Estate Liabilities ...........cccocveeviiiiceieciecee e, 1,231,575 — — —
Total Liabilities ...cocvveeveeiiiiiciceeee e 3,272,304 0 295,604 $ 194,661
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for:
Pension BENEFits .......coccueeicvieiiieecee e 15,886,067 — —
Other Postemployment Benefits 69,767 — —
Defined Contribution 2,389,242 — —
POOI PartiCipants .........cccoevveierieiiiiiesee e — 6,073,328 —
Individuals, Organizations, and Other Governments ...... — — 2,459,712
Total NEt ASSEES ...vvcvvceiceiciceeeeceecee e $ 18,345,076 $ 6,073,328 $ 2,459,712
Participant Account Balance Net Asset Valuation Factor .... 1.001386

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of Utah

Statement Of Changes In Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(Expressed in Thousands)

Pension and Private
Other Employee Investment Purpose
Benefit Trust Trust Trust
Funds Fund Funds
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
IVIBIMIDEE .ottt e ee e reeearerea $ 306,037 $ — $ 411,637
EMPIOYEL oot 684,019 — —
Court Fees and Fire Insurance Premiums ..........ccceeevevveens 12,291 — —
Total Contributions ..........coeeveeevieieeie e 1,002,347 0 411,637
Pool Participant DEPOSILS .......coevrveirereiirieeseresiesieesie e — 7,605,228 —
Investment Income:
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments ....... (5,939,740) 28,172 (568,043)
Interest, Dividends, and Other Investment Income ............ 502,728 104,205 78,582
Less Investment EXPENSES ........ccoevrerrereienerinenieens (50,764) (259) —
Net Investment INCOME .......ccceevvveevciieiiiic e (5,487,776) 132,118 (489,461)
Transfers From Affiliated Systems ........cccocovevvveiieiinnine, 14,537 — —
Other Additions:
ESCHEALS ...t — — 15,585
Royalties and Rents ..........cc.coceeenne — — 3,259
Fees, Assessments, and Revenues — — 73,023
Miscellangous ........c..ccovvevveeiviirinnenns — — 12,413
Total Other ....ccoveviieececece e 0 0 104,280
Total Additions ........ccocvvevveviereiece s (4,470,892) 7,737,346 26,456
DEDUCTIONS
Pension BENETILS ......ccoeveieiiiiccee e 863,530 — —
Retiree Healthcare Benefits 27,585 — —
Refunds/Plan Distributions 169,121 — —
Earnings Distribution ...........ccccoevvieiniinnieie e — 132,962 —
Pool Participant Withdrawals ............cccccvveinennieninnenn — 8,014,905 —
Transfers To Affiliated Systems 14,537 — —
Trust Operating EXPENSES ........ccovveirinirinieineise e — — 30,501
Distributions and Benefit Payments ............ccccoveveirnnene. — — 152,232
Administrative and General EXPenses ..........ccoceeveereernne. 17,868 — 24,897
Total Deductions .........ccoceveeieiecieriecece e, 1,092,641 8,147,867 207,630
Change in Net Assets Held in Trust for:
Pension BENEFitsS ........cccoveceiiiiceece e (5,064,589) — —
Other Postemployment Benefits 17,886 — —
Defined Contributions ..........cccccceeevieniennae (516,830) — —
P00l PartiCipants ...........ccccoerivreeirnieeien e — (410,521) —
Individuals, Organizations, and Other Governments ...... — — (181,174)
Net Assets — Beginning 23,908,609 6,483,849 2,640,886

Net Assets — Ending

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of Utah

Component Unit
Financial Statements

Utah Housing Corporation

The Corporation was created to provide an alternative source of funding for home mortgages, particularly
for lower income families. It is funded entirely through the issuance of bonds that are repaid from the
interest and principal payments made on mortgages.

Public Employees Health Program

This program provides employee medical and other insurance services predominantly for agencies of the
State. It also provides claims processing and insurance services for local governments and other public
entities within Utah.

University of Utah and Utah State University

These universities are funded through state appropriations, tuition, federal grants, and private donations
and grants. In addition to instruction, these universities provide research and other services. The
operations of the University of Utah also include its hospital and clinics.

Nonmajor Component Units
Nonmajor component units are presented beginning on page 188.



State of Utah

Combining Statement Of Net Assets
Component Units

June 30, 2009 (Expressed in Thousands)

Utah Public Employees  University Utah
Housing Health of State
Corporation Program Utah University
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash EQUIVAIENTS .........cccccevereiercvereeieeese e $ 54,854 $ 10,744 $ 255,979 $ 40,261
INVESTMENTS ..ot 172,638 31,267 600,854 48,343
Receivables:
ACCOUNES, NBL ..c.veiveciecece e e — 28,799 287,004 58,829
Notes/Loans/Mortgages/Pledges, net .... 27,269 — 8,781 1,200
ACCIUE INTEIESE ... 6,484 1,812 4,678 —
Due From Primary GOVernment ............ccoceoevereenereneennnne — — 3,048 —
Prepaid Items .......ccccoevveiiieici e 1,315 11,042 — 1,937
INVeNtories .......cccccevevcveeennen. — — 40,019 4,372
Deferred Charges — — 18,192 —
Total CUIrrent ASSELS .......oeveieiiriecreecee e 262,560 83,664 1,218,555 154,942
Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted INVESIMENES .......ccoeviiiiiiecrieciecee e 474,813 — 316,904 65,289
Accounts Receivables, net — — — 31,714
INVESTMENTS L.ttt — 184,622 345,774 130,203
Notes/Loans/Mortgages/Pledges Receivables, net ............. 1,223,069 — 103,931 11,260
Deferred Charges ........oceoevrerieieneisese e 11,510 — — —
OLhEI ASSEES ..ttt 6,815 — 67,958 —
Capital Assets (net of Accumulated Depreciation) ............ 6,398 267 1,578,878 490,663
Total Noncurrent ASSELS ......ccvvevverereseseeeeeeneenns 1,722,605 184,889 2,413,445 729,129
TOtAl ASSELS . 1,985,165 268,553 3,632,000 884,071
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities ..................... 57,080 13,557 180,296 37,381
Securities Lending Liability .........ccccovveiinniiiniicin — 21,617 — —
Deposits — — 68,052 471
Due To Primary GOVErNMENt .........ccccvvevvevrerinerienieeniens — — 15,095 3,002
UNEarned REVENUE .........ccuvieeieiecieiieeee e — 2,818 66,991 16,051
Current Portion of Long-term Liabilities (Note 10) ........... 136,199 67,359 31,304 21,653
Total Current Liabilities ........ccccoovvveeiieceeiecceee, 193,279 105,351 361,738 78,558
Noncurrent Liabilities:
AcCrued Liabilities ......cccvevveveieieie e 43 — — —
Unearned Revenue .............. 8,210 — — 540
DEPOSItS ..ovveveverrcreiee e — — 9,492 —
Due To Primary Government ........ s — — — —
Long-term Liabilities (Note 10) ........cccevvvevriiviiiicieiens 1,550,239 51,960 396,633 145,541
Total Noncurrent Liabilities ........c.cccoevevvevveviiiirinnns 1,558,492 51,960 406,125 146,081
Total Liabilities ..cvcvvieiieiciccece s 1,751,771 157,311 767,863 224,639
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt ................ 3,709 267 1,202,270 383,603
Restricted for:
Nonexpendable:
Higher EAUCAtION .......c.ccooveiiiiiiici e — — 308,512 78,668
Expendable:
Higher Education — — 512,674 171,456
Debt Service ........ 173,931 — — —
Insurance Plans ... — 110,975 — —
OhEI v — — — —
UNFESIICIE ...t 55,754 — 840,681 25,705
TOtAl NEE ASSELS ..ttt $ 233,394 $ 111,242 $ 2,864,137 $ 659,432

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Nonmajor

Component

Units Total
$ 211,425 $ 573,263
81,043 934,145
32,989 407,621
5,438 42,688
350 13,324
394 3,442
1,197 15,491
16,240 60,631
3,471 21,663
352,547 2,072,268
63,332 920,338
431 32,145
125,235 785,834
26,001 1,364,261
— 11,510
7,230 82,003
1,047,658 3,123,864
1,269,887 6,319,955
1,622,434 8,392,223
33,070 321,384
— 21,617
1,827 70,350
9,613 27,710
23,346 109,206
25,150 281,665
93,006 831,932
10 53
— 8,750
1,061 10,553
1,169 1,169
120,716 2,265,089
122,956 2,285,614
215,962 3,117,546
939,641 2,529,490
89,847 477,027
135,992 820,122
— 173,931
— 110,975
363 363
240,629 1,162,769
$ 1,406,472 $ 5,274,677

55



State of Utah

Combining Statement Of Activities
Component Units

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

EXPENSES ...vvvvveveceseseseeisesse sttt sss s

Program Revenues:

Charges for Services:
TUItIoN aNd FEES ...
Scholarship Allowances

Sales, Services, and Other Revenues

(net of University of Utah patient

services allowance of $60,942)
Operating Grants and Contributions ...........ccccoceerenenns
Capital Grants and Contributions ..........cc.cceeeevveiieiinnnns
Total Program REVENUES ..........ccoovvrveinnieeininienenes
Net (Expenses) Revenues

General Revenues:
State APPropriations .........ccccceveeererereneieneiesene e
Unrestricted Investment INCOME ......c.cccoeeviveieiveveeneene,
Permanent Endowments Contributions ............cccoeeevvveeveenen.
Total General REVENUES .........ccveeveeveeieiieciecreeiveens
Change in Net ASSEtS .....cccvreererrireesereeeee

Net Assets — BEGINNING ......coeireeriirieeee e
Net ASSEtS — ENAING ..oveveverieeiieieesieesese e

(Expressed in Thousands)

Utah Public Employees  University Utah
Housing Health of State
Corporation Program Utah University
$ 115,681 $ 591,855 $ 2,530,643 $ 492,875

— — 192,898 108,284

— — (23,548) (34,708)
108,866 581,917 1,724,003 63,205
10,000 16,838 407,108 167,841
— — 124,662 20,420
118,866 598,755 2,425,123 325,042
3,185 6,900 (105,520) (167,833)
— — 266,761 148,256

— — 15,855 5,510

0 0 282,616 153,766

3,185 6,900 177,096 (14,067)
230,209 104,342 2,687,041 673,499
$ 233,394 $ 111,242 $ 2,864,137 $ 659,432

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Nonmajor

Component

Units Total
$ 933,089 $ 4,664,143
304,281 605,463
(50,389) (108,645)
132,572 2,610,563
160,273 762,060
97,969 243,051
644,706 4,112,492
(288,383) (551,651)
371,179 786,196
922 922
3,911 25,276
376,012 812,394
87,629 260,743
1,318,843 5,013,934
$ 1,406,472 $ 5,274,677
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State of Utah

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Index to the Notes to the Financial Statements
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Notesto the Financial Statements
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

The accounting policies of the State of Utah conformin all materia
respects with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as
prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.
Preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP
reguires management to make estimates and assumptionsthat affect
the reported amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

A. Reporting Entity

For financial reporting purposes, the State of Utah reporting entity
includesthe“primary government” and its“component units.” The
primary government includes al funds, agencies, boards,
commissions, and authorities that are considered an integral part of
the State's activities. The State's component units are legaly
separate organizations for which the State’s elected officials are
financially accountable.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has set
forth criteria to be considered in determining financial
accountability. These criteriainclude appointing a voting majority
of an organization’sgoverning body and either: (1) theability of the
State to imposeitswill on that organization or; (2) the potential for
the organization to provide specific financia benefitsto, or impose
specific financial burdens on the State. Where the State does not
appoint a voting majority of an organization's governing body,
GASB standards require inclusion in the reporting entity if an
organization isfiscally dependent on the State, itsresourcesareheld
for the direct benefit of the State or can be accessed by the State, or
the relationship is such that it would be misleading to excludeit.

Except where noted below, the Stat€'s component units issue their
own separate audited financial statements as specid-purpose
governments engaged only in business-type activities. Thesefinancid
statements can be obtained from their respective administrative
offices or from the Office of the Utah State Auditor, PO. Box
142310, Salt Lake City, UT 84114.

Entities such asthelocal school districts, charter schools, and other
local authorities of various kinds that may only partially meet the
criteria for inclusion in this report have not been included. (The
State’'s support of the public education system is reported in the
Uniform School Fund, a special revenue fund.)

Blended Component Units

Blended component units provide services entirely or amost
entirely to the primary government. GASB standards require this
type of component unit to be reported as part of the primary
government and blended into the appropriate funds.

Utah State Building Ownership Authority (blended with the primary
government’s debt service and capita projectsfunds) — TheAuthority
was created by the Legidature as a body politic and corporate for the
purpose of financing, owning, leasing and operating facilitiestomest the
needs of state government. It is comprised of three members: the
Governor or designee, the State Tressurer and the Chair of the State
Building Board. Separatefinancid statementsarenot required or issued
for the Authority.
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Discrete Component Units

Discretely presented component units are reported in a separate
column and/or rows in each of the government-wide statements to
emphasize that they are legally separate from the State.

The Governor appoints at least a majority of the governing board
members of each of the State's component units, subject in most
cases to approval by the Senate. The Utah Housing Corporation is
included in the reporting entity because of its ability to issue moral
obligation debt of the State and low-income housing tax credits. The
other component units are included in the reporting entity because
under the criteria established by GASB, the State has the ability to
imposeitswill on these organizations. The collegesand universities,
the Public Employees Health Program, Comprehensive Heslth
Insurance Pool and the Schoolsfor the Deaf and Blind areincluded as
component units due to the level of oversight provided by the State.
The Governor-appointed board members of the remaining component
units can be replaced at will.

The State's major discrete component units are;

Utah Housing Corporation — The Corporation issues bonds to
provide capital for housing and home mortgages, especially for low
and moderate-income families. Operations are financed from bond
proceeds and from mortgage and investment interest and fees.

Public Employees Health Program — This Program provides
employee medical and other insurance services predominantly for
agencies of the State. It also provides claims processing and
insurance services for local governments and other public entities
within Utah. The Program is administered by the Utah State
Retirement Board.

University of Utah and Utah State University — These
universities are funded primarily through state appropriations,
tuition, federal grants, and private donations and grants. In
addition to instruction, these universities provide research and
other services. The operations of the University of Utah also
include its hospital and clinics.

The State’'s nonmajor discrete component units are:

Comprehensive Health Insurance Pool — The Pool is a nonprofit
guasi-governmental entity established within the State Insurance
Department. It provides access to health insurance coverage for
residents of the State who are considered uninsurable.

Utah Schoolsfor the Deaf and the Blind — These School s provide
practica education to individuals with hearing and/or vision
impairments. Although not required, these Schools issue separate
but unaudited financial statements.

Heber Valley Historic Railroad Authority — The Authority is an
independent state agency that maintains and operates a scenic and
historic railroad in and around the Heber Valey. The Authority hasa
separate compilation report, but separate audited financial
statements are not required or issued for it.

Utah State Fair Corporation — This is a nonprofit public
corporation that operates the State Fair Park and conducts the Utah
State Fair and other various expositions and entertainment events. It
receives state appropriations for operations and working capital.
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Colleges and Universities— Weber State University, Southern Utah
University, Salt Lake Community College, Utah Valley University,
Dixie State College of Utah, College of Eastern Utah, Snow
College, and the Utah College of Applied Technology. Separate
audited financial statements are not required or issued for the Utah
College of Applied Technology; however, its significant branch
campuses each issue separate audited financial statements.

State Charter School Finance Authority — The Authority was
created to provide an efficient and cost-effective method of issuing
conduit debt on behalf of charter schools to acquire or construct
charter school facilities. The debt isthe responsibility of the charter
schools, and neither the State nor any political subdivision of the
Stateis obligated for repayment of the debt. Accordingly, this debt
is not included as part of the State’s reporting entity. There is no
financial activity for the Authority and therefore no financial
statements are required or issued.

Fiduciary Component Units

Utah Retirement Systems (defined benefit pension plansand defined
contribution plans) — Utah Retirement Systems (URS) administers
pension funds for various public employee retirement systems and
plans of the State and its political subdivisions. URS is an
independent state agency subject to legidative and executive
department budgetary examination and comment. The Utah State
Retirement Board, a seven-member board, is established by statute
to administer the systems and plans, and to serve as investment
trustees of the funds. Six members are appointed by the Governor
with the advice and consent of the Senate, while the State Treasurer
serves as the seventh member. Because of the State’s trustee
responsibilitiesfor these systems and plans, GAAP reguiresthemto
be reported as pension trust funds of the primary government rather
than discrete component units. In accordance with GAAR, fiduciary
funds and component unitsthat arefiduciary in nature are excluded
from the government-wide financial statements.

Related Organization (Excluded from Financial Statements)

Workers' Compensation Fund — This Fund is a nonprofit quasi-
public corporation created by the Legislature for a public purpose
that providesworkers' compensation insuranceto private and public
employers. The Governor appointssix of the Fund's seven board of
directors, but the State'sfinancial accountability for the Fund does
not extend beyond making the appointments.

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Satements
Gover nment-wide Financial Satements

The Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities report
information on all nonfiduciary activities of the primary government
and its component units. Primary government activities are
distinguished between governmental and business-type activities.
Governmental activities generaly are financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange revenues.
Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees
charged to external parties for goods or services.

The Statement of Net Assets presents the reporting entities' non-
fiduciary assets and liabilities, with the difference reported as net
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assets. Net assets are restricted when constraints placed upon them
are either externaly imposed or are imposed by constitutional
provisions or enabling legidation.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the
direct expenses of agiven function or segment is offset by program
revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
within a specific function. The State does not allocate general
government (indirect) expenses to other functions. Program
revenues include: (1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by agiven function; and (2) grants and contributions that
arerestricted to meeting the operational or capital requirementsof a
particular function. Taxes and other revenues not meeting the
definition of program revenues are reported as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

Separatefinancia statements are provided for governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are
excluded from the government-wide statements. For governmental
and proprietary fundsfinancial statements, theemphasisison major
individual governmental and enterprise funds, with each displayed
in a separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise
funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. Internal
servicefunds are al so aggregated and reported in a separate column
on the proprietary funds financia statements.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial
Satement Presentation

Government-wide Financial Satements

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when the related liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of the cash flows. Nonexchange transactions, in which the
State receives value without directly giving equal valuein exchange,
include taxes, grants, and donations. Tax revenue is recognized in
the fiscal year in which the related sales, wages, or activity being
taxed occurred. Revenue from grants and donationsisrecognized in
thefiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been met.

Governmental Fund Financial Satements

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the
current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as
they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to
be available when they are collected within the current period or
expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of
the current period. For this purpose, the State generally considers
taxes and other revenuesto be availableif therevenuesare collected
within 45 days after yearend. An exception to this policy is federal
grant revenues, which generally are considered to be available if
collection is expected within 12 months after yearend.

Expenditures are generally recorded when the related liability is
incurred, as under the accrua basis of accounting. However,
expenditures for principal and interest on long-term debt are
recorded when due or when amounts have been accumulated in the
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debt service fund for payments of interest to be made early in the
following year. Also, expenditures and related liabilities for
compensated absences, postemployment benefits, and claims and
judgments are recorded only to the extent they have matured (come
due for payment).

Major Governmental Funds — The State reports the following
major governmental funds:

e  General Fund. Thisfund isthe principal operating fund of the
State. It accounts for al financia resources of the genera
government, except those required to be accounted for in
another fund.

e  Education Fund. This specia revenue fund accounts for all
revenues from taxes on intangible property or from atax on
income that supports public and higher education.

e Uniform School Fund. Thisspecial revenuefund accountsfor
specific revenues and expenditures that support public
elementary and secondary schoolsin the State.

e Transportation Fund. Thisspecial revenuefund accountsfor
revenues and expenditures associated with highway
construction and maintenance.

e Transportation I nvestment Fund. Thisspecia revenuefund
accounts for revenue and expenditures associated with
Centennial Highway projects and other specific highway
projects.

e Trust LandsFund. Thisisapermanent fund that accountsfor
land grants and the sale of lands received from the federa
Enabling Act. The principal in the fund is perpetual, with the
earnings used primarily to support public education.

Nonmajor Governmental Funds — The State's nonmgjor
governmental funds include other specia revenue funds, capital
projects funds, and debt service funds. The nonmajor special
revenue funds account for specific revenue sourcesthat are legally
restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. Examples include
tobacco settlement monies, environmental activities, crime victim
reparations, debt collections, and rural development programs. The
capital projects funds account for the resources used for the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of capital facilities other
than those financed by proprietary funds. The debt service funds
account for resources used for the payment of interest and principal
on genera long-term debt obligations.

Proprietary Fund Financial Satements

Thefinancial statements of the proprietary funds are reported using
the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting, similar to the government-wide financial statements
described previously. Proprietary fundsinclude both enterprise and
internal servicefund types. Enterprise fundsreport the activitiesfor
which fees are charged to external users for goods or services.
Internal service funds account for goods and services provided
primarily to other agencies or funds of the State, rather than to the
general public.

Reporting for business-type activitiesand enterprise fundsfollow dll
GASB pronouncements, and al Financial Accounting Standards
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Board's (FASB) pronouncementsissued on or before November 30,
1989, except those that conflict with a GASB pronouncement. The
State has elected not to apply FASB pronouncements issued after
November 30, 1989.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expensesfrom
nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generaly
result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing
operations. Revenues and expenses not meeting this definition, such
assubsidies and investment earnings, are reported as nonoperating.

M ajor Enterprise Funds— The State reportsthe following major
enterprise fundsin its proprietary fund statements:

e  Sudent Assistance Programs. These programs makeloansto,
and purchase loans of, qualified students attending eligible
higher education institutions. The programs also guaranteethe
repayment of student loans made by participating lenders to
eligible students.

e Unemployment Compensation Fund. Thisfund pays claims
for unemployment to eligible recipients.

e Water Loan Programs. This fund provides loans to local
governments, water districts, and other entitiesfor the purpose
of upgrading water storage facilities and other related
structures.

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds— The State's nonmajor enterprise
fundsincludeloan programsfor communities, low-income housing,
agricultural, transportation infrastructure, and other purposes;
Alcoholic Beverage Control (stateliquor stores); Utah Correctiona
Industries; State Trust Lands Administration; and the Utah Dairy
Commission.

Internal Service Funds — The State also reports the internal
servicefund typein the proprietary funds statements. The activities
accounted for ininternal servicefundsinclude technology services,
fleet operations, risk management, copy and mail services, property
management, and human resource management. In the government-
wide financial statements, interna service funds are included with
governmental activities.

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements

Thefiduciary funds account for assets held by the Statein atrustee
capacity or as an agent for other individuals or organizations. The
fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
The following fiduciary fund types are reported:

Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds — These
funds account for the plan assets, liabilities, net assets, and
changes in net assets of: (1) defined benefit pension plans and
defined contribution plans administered by Utah Retirement
Systems; and (2) the State Post-Retirement Benefits Trust Fund, a
defined benefit other postemployment health care plan (State
Employees’ OPEB Plan), administered by the State.

Investment Trust Fund — This fund is used to account for the
investmentsrelated to external participantsin the Utah State Public
Treasurer’s Investment Fund.
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Private Purpose Trust Funds — These funds report resources of
all other trust arrangements in which principal and income benefit
individuals, private organizations or other governments. Examples
include the Utah Navajo Royalties Holding, Unclaimed Property
Trust, Employers Reinsurance Trust, Petroleum Storage Tank Trugt,
and the Utah Educational Savings Plan Trust.

Agency Funds— These funds account for assets held by the State
as an agent for other governmental units, other organizations, or
individuals. These funds include fines, forfeitures, tax collections,
and withholding taxes for employees.

Component Unit Financial Statements

The combining component unit financial statementsare presentedin
order to provideinformation on each of the major component units
included in the component unit’s column of the government-wide
statements. The component unit financial statements are reported
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. The information is presented in order to be
consistent with the government-wide statements, and islessdetailed
than the presentation in each component unit’s separately issued
financial statements. The component unitsfollow all current GASB
pronouncements, and all FASB pronouncementsissued on or before
November 30, 1989, except those that conflict with a GASB
pronouncement. In addition, as alowed by GASB standards, the
Public Employees Health Program has elected to apply all
applicable FASB pronouncementsissued after November 30, 1989,
that do not conflict with GASB standards.

D. Fiscal Yearends

All funds and discretely presented component units are reported
using fiscal years which end on June 30, except the defined benefit
pension plans and defined contribution plans (fiduciary funds),
administered by Utah Retirement Systems, Utah State Fair
Corporation (nonmajor component unit), and the Utah Dairy
Commission (nonmgjor enterprise fund), which have fisca years
ending December 31.

E. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets/Fund Balances
Cash and Cash Equivalentsand Investments

Cash equivaentsare generally considered short-term, highly liquid
investments with a maturity of three months or less from the
purchase date. The Student Assistance Programs (enterprise fund)
use atrustee for their long-term investing needs, and they consider
any cash and cash equivalents held by their trustee as investments.

All cash deposited with the State Treasurer by state entities is
maintained by the Treasurer in various pooled investment funds.
The State Treasurer invests the deposited cash, including the cash
float, in short-term securities and other investments. All interest
revenue is alocated to the General Fund unless state law or trust
agreements require alocations of interest to other funds. Funds
authorized to receive interest earnings are segregated into separate
investment pools, and interest isallocated based on cash baancesin
the pool.
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Investments (including cash equivalents) are under the control of
the State Treasurer or other administrative bodies as determined by
law. In certain instances, investments may be restricted by law or
other legal instruments. Investments are presented at fair value. The
fair value of investments is based on published prices and
quotationsfrom major investment brokersat current exchangerates,
as available. For investments where no readily ascertainable fair
value exists, management, in consultation with their investment
advisors, has determined the fair values for the individua
investments. Investments held as security deposits which are not
held for investment purposes are carried at cost. The Utah
Retirement Systems' (defined benefit pension plans and defined
contribution plans) mortgages are val ued on an amortized cost basis
which approximetes fair value, and the fair value of real estate
investments has been estimated based on independent appraisals.

The State’s Unemployment Compensation Fund (enterprise fund)
monies are required by the Social Security Act to beinvestedin the
U.S. Department of Treasury, Bureau of Public Debt Unemployment
Trust Fund (BPDUTF), which is not registered with the SEC. The
fair value of the positionin the BPDUTF isthe same as the val ue of
the BPDUTF shares.

Utah Retirement Systems (defined benefit pension plansand defined
contribution plans) held four types of derivative financial
instruments at yearend: futures, currency forwards, options, and
swaps. Futures contracts are traded on organized exchanges to
minimize credit risk. Currency forwards are entered into in order to
hedge the exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange rates
on foreign currency dominated portfolio holdings. Utah Housing
Corporation (major component unit) entersinto various rate swap
contractsin order to increase funding capabilities. The Corporation
sells variable rate bonds and minimizes the inherent risk with the
use of floating-to-fixed interest rate swap contracts. See Note 3 for
additional information about derivatives.

Receivables

Accountsreceivablesin the governmental and busi ness-typeactivities
consst mainly of amounts due from the Federa Government,
customers, and others. Receivables from the Federa Government are
reasonably assured; accordingly, no dlowance for uncollectible
accounts has been established.

Notes/mortgages receivablesin the governmental and busi ness-type
activities are primarily long-term loans for local governments and
agricultural development, home mortgages, and individua student
loans. The interest rates on the loans vary but are generally lower
than market rates and, in some cases, are non-interest bearing.
Student loans in the Student Assistance Programs (business-type
activities) are fixed and variable rate federaly insured loans.
Student loans are insured at 95 to 100 percent of their principal
balance depending on the date disbursed.

Accrued taxesinclude receivablesfor taxpayer-assessed taxeswhere
the underlying exchange has occurred in the period ending June 30
or prior, net of applicable estimated refunds and allowances.

Note 5 provides adisaggregation of governmental and business-type
receivables, including abreakout of current/noncurrent balancesand
established allowances.
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Inventories and Prepaid Items

Proprietary funds and component unitsinventories arevalued a the
lower of cost or market. Cost evaluation methods include first-in-
first-out (FIFO), last-in-first-out (LIFO), average cost, weighted
average, weighted moving average, and retail inventory method.

Governmental fund inventories are recorded as expenditures when
purchased except for Transportation Fund inventories that are
recorded as expenditures when consumed. Transportation Fund
inventories are valued using a weighted average cost.

Prepaid items related to governmental funds are immaterial and
recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds financial
statements when paid.

Prepaid itemsfor the Student Assi stance Programs (enterprise fund)
are primarily federal default fees charged at the time loan proceeds
aredisbursed and are amortized over the estimated lives of theloans
using a method which approximates the interest method of
amortization.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, buildings, equipment, and
infrastructure (roads, bridges, drainage systems, lighting systems,
and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or
business-type activities columns, or in the component units column
on the government-wide Statement of Net Assets. Capital assets of
proprietary funds and fiduciary funds are aso recorded in their
respective fund statements. Capital assets, with the exception of
infrastructure, are defined by the State as assets, which cost $5
thousand or more when acquired and have an estimated useful life
greater than oneyear. Infrastructure assets are capitalized if the cost
is over $1 million. Purchased or constructed capital assets are
recorded at cost or at estimated historical cost where historical cost
is not available. Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated
fair value at the date of donation.

Capital assets purchased by governmental funds are recorded as
expenditures in the governmental fund financial statements. Interest
expense for capita asset congtruction related to governmenta
activities is not capitalized. Interest expense incurred during
construction of capital facilitiesrelated to business-type activitiesand
component unitsisimmaterial and is not capitalized in all cases.

Buildings, equipment, and other depreciable assets are
depreciated using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Asset Class Years
Equipment 3-15
Aircraft and Heavy Equipment 5-30
Buildings and |mprovements 3040
Land Improvements 5-20
Infrastructure 15-80

As provided by GASB standards, the State has elected to use the
“modified approach” to account for infrastructure assets (i.e., roads
and bridges) maintained by the State’'s Department of
Transportation. Thisincludesinfrastructure acquired prior to fiscal
year 1981. Under this approach, depreciation expense is not
recorded and only improvements that expand the capacity or
efficiency of an infrastructure asset are capitalized. Using this
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approach requires the State to: (1) maintain an inventory of the
assets and perform periodic condition assessments; (2) estimate each
year the annual amount to maintain and preserve the assets at the
condition level set by the State; and (3) document that the assetsare
being preserved approximately at or abovethe condition level set by
the State. Other infrastructure, which is primarily maintained by the
Department of Natural Resources, is capitalized and depreciated.

Most works of art and historical treasures are not capitalized or
depreciated. These assets are held for public exhibition, education,
or research rather than financial gain. These assets are also
protected, unencumbered, and preserved and subject to policies
requiring the proceeds from sales of collection items to be used to
acquire other collection items. The State's assets of this nature
includethe State Fine Art Collection, photographs, prints, paintings,
historicd documents and artifacts, monuments, statues, and
paeontologica and archaeological collections.

Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities include the ligbility for employee payrolls and
liabilities accruing over time where demand for payment is due
shortly after fiscal yearend. See Note 6 for additional information
about accrued liabilities.

Deferred Revenue — Unear ned and Unavailable

In the government-wide statements, proprietary fund statements, and
fiduciary fund statements, unearned revenueisrecorded when cash
or other assets are received prior to being earned. In the
governmental fund statements, deferred revenue is recorded when
revenueiseither unearned or unavailable. Deferred revenuesfor the
Student Assistance Programs (enterprise fund) are primarily
guarantee fees that are recognized as income over a period of ten
years using the sum-of-the-years-digits method.

Poalicy Claims Liabilities

Policy claims liahilities are for insurance claims incurred prior to
the reporting date and are based on actuarial estimates. Policy
claimsliabilitiesfor Unemployment Insurance arefor claimsfiled as
of the reporting date. A substantial portion of policy claims
liahilities is long-term in nature. Therefore, claims liabilities are
reported as long-term liabilities on the Statement of Net Assets.

L ong-term Debt

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations
are reported as liabilities. Bond premiums and discounts, deferred
amounts on refunding, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds using the bonds outstanding
method or straight-line method, which approximates the effective
interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable
bond premium or discount and deferred amount on refunding. Bond
issuance costs are reported as deferred charges (assets).

In the governmental fund financial statements, bond premiumsand
discounts, aswell asbond i ssuance costs, are recognized during the
current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are
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reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt
issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceedsreceived, are
reported as debt service expenditures.

The Tax Reform Act of 1986 requires governmental entitiesissuing
tax-exempt bondsto refund to the U.S. Treasury interest earningson
bond proceedsin excess of theyield on those bonds. Governmental
entities must comply with arbitrage rebate requirementsin order for
their bonds to maintain tax-exempt status. Entities are required to
remit arbitrage rebate payments for non-purpose interest to the
federal government at least once every five yearsover thelife of the
bonds. Federal regulations also require the Student Assistance
Programs (enterprise fund) to keep the yield on student loanswithin
adesignated percentage of theinterest cost of the rel ated tax-exempt
borrowing. One method of reducing this yield is to make yield
reduction payments to the United States Treasury. Estimated yield
reduction payments may be made by the end of the tenth year and
every fifth year thereafter during thelife of the bonds. Some State of
Utah bonds may be exempt from the rebate requirements if they
meet certain statutory exceptions per the regul ations.

Arbitrage liability is treated as an expense in the government-wide
Statement of Net Assetsand the proprietary fund financial statements
when the liagbility is recognized. Arbitrage liability is recorded as an
expenditure in the governmenta fundsfinancia statementswhen the
liagbility is due. At June 30, 2009, the total estimated arbitrage rebate
lighility in the Student Assistance Programs (enterprise fund) was
$57.783 million, of which $56.221 million represents yield
reduction payments and $1.562 million represents the estimated
liability for non-purpose interest. Other arbitrage liabilities are
immaterid.

Compensated Absences and Postemployment Benefits

Employees vacation leave is accrued at arate of four hours every
two weeksfor thefirst five years of employment, and growsto arate
of seven hours every two weeks after 20 years of employment.
There is no requirement to use vacation leave, but a maximum of
320 hours may be carried forward at the beginning of each calendar
year. Unused vacation leaveis paid to employees upon termination.
Employeeswho have asick |eave balancein excess of 144 hours at
the beginning of a calendar year are eligible to “convert” up to 40
hours of sick leaveif less than that amount is used during the year.
Employees may use converted sick leave in place of annual leave.
Any balance in converted sick is paid to employees upon
termination. This converted sick leave program ends on January 1,
2014. The total liability of the governmental activities for
compensated absences is recorded in the government-wide
Statement of Net Assets as part of long-term liabilities. However, in
accordance with GAAP, the liability is not recorded in the
governmental fundsfinancial statements. See Note 10 for additional
information about the liability.

Employeesearn sick leave at arate of four hoursfor each two-week
period, with no limit to the amount that can be accumulated. The
State does not reimburse employees for unused sick leave upon
termination unless employees are eligible for retirement or the sick
leaveis“converted”. Sick leave is expended when used.

At retirement, for participating agencies, an employee receives 25
percent of the value of al unused accumulated sick leave as a
mandatory employer contribution into a401(k) account. Each day
of remaining sick leave earned prior to January 1, 2006, may be
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used to participate in the State's Other Postemployment Benefit
Plan (State Employees OPEB Plan) to purchase health and life
insurance coverage or Medicare supplemental insurance. Any
remaining sick leave earned on or after January 1, 2006, is
converted to avalue (based on the higher of the employee’srate of
pay at retirement or the average pay rate of retireesin the previous
year) and placed in a defined contribution plan — health
reimbursement arrangement administered by Utah Retirement
Systems. TheAnnual Reguired Contribution (ARC) needed to fund
current and future liabilities of the State Employees’ OPEB Planis
provided by charges to agency budgets. Payments of
postemployment health and life insurance benefits to retirees are
made from the State Employees’ OPEB plan that isadministered as
asingle-employer defined benefit healthcare plan. See Note 17 for
additional information about the State's OPEB Plan administered as
an irrevocable trust.

The State of Utah also administers the Elected Officials OPEB
Plan, a single-employer defined benefit heathcare plan. Only
governorsand legislators (elected officials) that retire after January
1, 1998 and have 4 or more years of service can elect to receiveand
apply for this benefit. To qualify for health coverage, elected
officials must be between 62 and 65 years of age and either be
active members at the time of retirement or have continued coverage
with the program until the date of eligibility. To qualify for
Medicare supplemental coverage an elected official must be at least
65 years of age. The State will pay aportion or all the health benefit
costs for the elected official and spouse based on years of service.
See Note 17 for additional information.

For administrative purposes, the State maintains compensated
absences poolswithin the General Fund, Uniform School Fund, and
Transportation Fund. The ongoing payments from the pools are
provided by charges to agency budgets as benefits are earned.
Vacation leave taken astime off is paid from current budgets when
used. Payment of leave balances at termination is made from the
compensated absences pools. Proprietary funds, Utah Schools for
the Deaf and the Blind, and private purpose trust funds of the
primary government also participate in the pools and the OPEB
Plan, and have no liability for leave or postemployment benefits
once their contributions have been made.

Compensatory time for overtime worked may be earned up to a
maximum of 80 hours. Any overtime exceeding 80 hours is paid
when earned. In accordance with GAAP, compensatory time is
expended when the leave is taken in governmental funds, but is
expensed when earned for budgetary purposes.

Vacation earnings, sick leave earnings, and termination policies vary
among component units and from the primary government’spalicies,
but usualy vacation leave is expended when earned and sick leaveis
expended when used.

Net Assets/Fund Balances

The difference between assets and liabilitiesis“ Net Assets’ on the
government-wide, proprietary fund, and fiduciary funds financial
statements and “ Fund Balance” on the governmental fund financial
Statements.

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balances are
classified asreserved, designated, or unreserved. Reservesrepresent
those portions of fund balance not appropriable for expenditure or
legally segregated for a specific future use. Designated fund
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balances represent tentative plans for future use of financia
resources.

F.  Revenuesand Expenditures/Expenses

When an expenditure/expense is incurred for purposes for which
both restricted and unrestricted resources are available, it is the
State’s genera policy to userestricted resourcesfirst. However, the
State has some programs that are funded by appropriations from
both unrestricted resources and resources required by law to be
deposited in a specific subfund for a specific purpose (which may
include restricted resources). In those instances, it is the State's
policy to expend those resources proportionally based on the
amounts appropriated from each source.

Grants

Federal grants and assistance awards made on the basis of entitle-
ment periods are recorded as revenues when entitlement occurs. All
federal reimbursement-type grants are recorded as revenues when
the related allowable expenditures are incurred and all applicable
eligibility requirements are met.

Federal grants include nonmonetary transactions for food and
vaccine commodities. Commaodities revenue and expenditures are
valued at their federally reported value. Commodity inventories at
yearend areimmaterial. For thefiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the
State reported revenue and expenditures of $19.467 million for
commodities in the General Fund, and $15.078 million for
commodities in the Uniform School Fund (special revenue fund).

Investment | ncome

Investment income includesinterest, dividends and other earnings,
and the change in fair value of investments. Negative investment
income is reported where the decrease in the fair value of
investments due to market conditions exceeded the other
components of investment income.

In accordance with state law, interest and dividend income from
investments in the Trust Lands permanent fund and the State
Endowment Fund (nonmajor governmental fund) isassignedto and
reported directly in the Uniform School Fund and the Genera Fund,
respectively. One half of the applicable income reported in the
Genera Fund is then transferred back into the State Endowment
Fund to increase the principal in the fund as required by state law.

Retirement and Employee Benefit Costs

Most state employees participate in a defined benefit pension plan
and/or defined contribution plan administered by Utah Retirement
Systems. Contributions collected for the pension plans and
contribution plans and the retirement benefits paid are accounted for
in the Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds. All costs
for pension, health, and federa social security contributions are
reported as expenditures in the appropriate function in
governmental fund types or as expenses in applicable proprietary
fund types. Pension and other benefit costs are recognized in the
fiscal year in which the underlying payroll cost isincurred.
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G. Interfund Transactions
Government-wide Financial Satements

Interfund Activity — In general, eliminations have been madeto
minimize the double counting of internal activity, including
internal service fund type activity. However, interfund services,
provided and used between different functional categories, have
not been eliminated in order to avoid distorting the direct costs
and program revenues of the applicable functions. Operating
transfers between governmental and business-type activities are
reported at the net amount.

Interfund Balances — Interfund receivables and payables have
been eliminated from the government-wide Statement of Net Assets,
except for the residua amounts due between governmental and
business-type activities.

Governmental Fund Financial Satements

Interfund Activity — Interfund transactions for goods sold or
servicesrendered for aprice approximating their external exchange
value, and employee benefit contributions are accounted for as
revenues and expenditures/expenses in the funds involved.

Transfers are used to report flows of cash (or other assets)
between funds without equivalent flows of assets in return or a
requirement for repayment. The State’s transfers are based on
legislative appropriations or other legal authority. Transfers are
presented in Note 13.

NOTE 2. BEGINNING NET ASSET ADJUSTMENTS
AND OTHER CHANGES

Beginning Net Assets Adjustments

The Transportation Infrastructure Loan Fund wasreevaluated and is
now reported as a nonmajor enterprise fund. It was previously
reported as an internal service fund. As a result of this change, a
reclassification $2.670 million was made to reduce beginning net
assets of internal service funds and increase beginning net assets of
nonmajor enterprise funds. Amounts included in the governmental
activitieson the prior year Statement of Net Assetsand Statement of
Activities included the following: $2.670 million in total assets;
and, $87 thousand in total revenue.

The Energy Efficiency Fund was reevaluated and certain activities
are now reported within the Property Management internal service
fund. These activities were previously reported within a nonmajor
enterprise fund. As a result of this change, a reclassification of
$3.650 million was made to reduce beginning net assets of
nonmajor enterprise funds and to increase beginning net assets of
interna service funds. Amounts included in the business-type
activitieson the prior year Statement of Net Assetsincluded $3.650
million in total assets. There was no prior year activity on the
Statement of Activities.

(Notes continue on next page.)
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NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits and investments for the primary government and its
discrete component units are governed by the Utah Money
Management Act (Utah Code, Title 51, Chapter 7) and rules of the
State of Utah Money Management Council. However, the Act also
permits certain funds that have a long-term perspective to make
investments of a long-term nature, such as equities and bond mutual
funds. In the primary government these are the State Endowment
(special revenue fund), Employers’ Reinsurance Trust (private
purpose trust), and Utah Educational Savings Plan Trust (private
purpose trust). Exempt from the Act in the primary government are
the Trust Lands (permanent fund), Utah Retirement Systems and
State Post-Retirement Benefits Trust Fund (pension and other
employee benefit trust funds). The discrete component units exempt
from the Act are Utah Housing Corporation, Public Employees
Health Program, and the college and universities’ endowment funds.

A. PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a
bank failure, the State’s deposits may not be recovered. The Money
Management Act requires that deposits be in a qualified depository.
The Act defines a qualified depository as any financial institution
whose deposits are insured by an agency of the federal government
and which has been certified by the State Commissioner of
Financial Institutions as meeting the requirements of the Act and
adhering to the rules of the Utah Money Management Council.

Deposits in the bank in excess of the insured amount are uninsured
and uncollateralized. Deposits are not collateralized nor are they
required to be by state statute. The deposits for the primary
government at June 30, 2009, were $437.544 million. These
deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

e  $291.807 million were exposed to custodial credit risk as
uninsured and uncollateralized.

e  Exposure to custodial credit risk cannot be determined for
$117.618 million of the primary government deposits which
are in an FDIC-Insured Savings account at Zions First National
Bank (Bank) for Account Owners in the Utah Educational
Savings Plan Trust (UESP) (private purpose trust).
Contributions to and earnings on the FDIC-Insured Savings
account are insured by the FDIC on a pass-through basis to
each Account Owner up to the maximum amount set by federal
law. The amount of FDIC insurance provided to an individual
is based on the total of (1) the value of an Account Owners
investments in the UESP’s FDIC-Insured Savings account plus
(2) the value of other accounts held (if any) at the Bank, as

determined by the Bank and by FDIC regulations. It is the
Account Owners responsibility to determine how deposits in
the FDIC-Insured Savings account would be aggregated with
other deposits at the Bank for purposes of FDIC insurance.

Investments

The Money Management Act defines the types of securities
authorized as appropriate investments and the conditions for making
investment transactions. Investment transactions may be conducted
only through qualified depositories, certified dealers, or directly
with issuers of the investment securities.

The Act authorizes investments in both negotiable and
nonnegotiable deposits of qualified depositories and permitted
depositories; repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements;
commercial paper that is classified as “first tier” by two nationally
recognized statistical rating organizations, one of which must be
Moody’s Investors Service or Standard & Poor’s; bankers’
acceptances; obligations of the United States Treasury including
bills, notes, and bonds; obligations, other than mortgage derivative
products, issued by U.S. government sponsored enterprises (U.S.
Agencies) such as the Federal Home Loan Bank System, Federal
Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac), Federal National
Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae), and Student Loan Marketing
Association (Sallie Mae); bonds, notes, and other evidence of
indebtedness of political subdivisions of the State; fixed rate
corporate obligations and variable rate securities rated “A” or
higher, or the equivalent of “A” or higher, by two nationally
recognized statistical rating organizations; and shares or certificates
in a money market mutual fund as defined in the Act.

Statute allows certain funds acquired by gift, devise or bequest to be
invested according to Rule 2 of the Money Management Council.
Rule 2 allows the State to invest these funds in any of the above
investments or in any of the following, subject to satisfying certain
criteria: professionally managed pooled or commingled investment
funds, or mutual funds which satisfy certain criteria; common stock,
convertible preferred stock or convertible bonds; and corporate
bonds or debentures. Currently, the Utah Education Savings Trust is
the only entity required to comply with Rule 2.

The primary government’s investments at June 30, 2009, are
presented below. All investments, except those of the Utah
Retirement Systems (pension and other employee benefit trust
funds), are presented by investment type and debt securities are
presented by maturity. The Utah Retirement Systems are presented
consistent with their separately issued financial statements by
investment type.

(Table on next page.)
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Primary Gover nment I nvestments
(except pension and other employee benefit trust funds)
(Expressed in Thousands)

Investment M aturities (in years)

Fair Less More
Investment Type Value Than 1 1-5 6-10 Than 10
Debt Securities
U.S. TreasUMNES . ....ccevrueirierieesecseeenenas $ 7,028 $ 5,307 $ 433 $ 1,288 $ —
U.S. AQENCIES....ooeeenrreeierieeereseeeseee e senes 76,159 64,286 11,030 — 843
Corporate DEDL ......cvevveeeeeeeee e 6,928,260 6,925,898 2,362 — —
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit .............. 65,198 65,198 — — —
Money Market Mutual Fund ....................... 2,360,000 2,360,000 — — —
Commercial Paper.......ccccoevveeeeieiesesesennens 187,206 187,206 — — —
Bond Mutual Fund * .........ccoveiniiniennes 753,519 — — 753,519 —
Repurchase Agreements..........cccceveveennenne. 7,928 7,928 — — —
10,385,298 $ 9,615,823 $ 13825 $ 754,807 $ 843

Other Investments
Equity SeCUrities .......ccooeeerereieeerenee e 14,793
Equity Mutual Funds Securities:

DOMESLIC ... 1,993,020

International ..........cccoveeeneennenenennens 379,566
U.S. Unemployment Trust Poal................... 640,384
Redl Estate Held for Investment Purposes... 43,565
Real Estate Joint Ventures..........cceeeeeeuveenne 1,894
Component Units Investment in Primary

Government’s Investment Pooal ............... (409,747)

TOA o $13,048,773

* At June 30, 2009, the bond mutual fund had an average effective maturity of 6.7 years.

The mgjority of the primary government’s corporate debt securities
are variable-rate securities, which adjust periodicaly to the
prevailing market interest rates. Because these securities frequently
reprice, interest rate risk is substantially reduced at each periodic
reset date. In the table above, variable-rate securities are presented
according to the length of time until the next reset date rather than
the stated maturity.

In addition, significant funds with a long-term investment
perspective have the following mix of investments (percentagesare
of the fund'stotal investments).
eUtah Educational SavingsPlan Trust (private purposetrust) —
$1.457 billion, 63.1 percent, in domestic equity mutual fund
securities; $514.761 million, 22.3 percent, in bond mutua
fund; $192.401 million, 8.3 percent, in international equity
mutual fund securities; and $144.847 million, 6.3 percent, in
the Utah Public Treasurer’s Investment Fund.

eTrust Lands (permanent fund) — $397.752 million, 48.1
percent, in domestic equity mutual fund securities; $198.829
million, 24.1 percent, in bond mutual fund; $187.165 million,
22.6 percent, in international equity mutual fund securities;
and $42.798 million, 5.2 percent in real estate.

eState Post-Retirement Benefits Trust (pension and other
employee benefit trust funds) —$36.006 million, 53.7 percent,
in domestic equity mutual fund securities; $24.863 million,
37.1 percent, in bond mutua fund; and $6.215 million, 9.2
percent, in the Utah Public Treasurer’s Investment Fund.

eState Endowment Fund (specia revenue fund) — $22.412
million, 39.8 percent, in domestic equity mutua fund
securities; $15.066 million, 26.7 percent, in bond mutual
fund; and $18.871 million, 33.5 percent, in the Utah Public
Treasurer’s Investment Fund.

(Table on next page.)
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Utah Retirement Systems
(pension and other employee benefit trust funds)
Investments at Fair Value
At December 31, 2008
(Expressed in Thousands)

Investment Type

Debt Securities— DOMESLIC.......cueeeveeeeeecieereecee e
Debt Securities— International ...........ccceeeveeeeeeieeeceeieeeeeens
Equity Securities — DOMESLIC.......ccerveeeereie e
Equity Securities— International .............ccccoeeverereeencnennens
Short-term SecuritiesS POOIS ..........ccccceievieieieecccece e

Mortgage Loans:

Real EState NOLES........cecuiciecieciccieeeceeee e
REal ESLALE.......coecviieiciecieeceeeee et e
Private Equity (Venture Capital) .........cccoerereeererineenecrieene
ADSOIULE REEUMN......oeeceveeee et
Guaranteed Investment CONtracts.........ccocevveeveeeesiesieeseeinnns
Equity Securities— Domestic (Pooled) .........ccoevrereneicriennne
Mutual Fund — International ............ccccoevveievevicieeicececeen

Investments Held by Broker-dealers
Under Securities Lending Program:

U.S. Government and Agency SeCurities..........covenenne.
Corporate Debt Securities—DOmestic........cccvvvevreeeeneee
Debt Securities— International..........c.ccoeevereveereenenes
Equity SecuritieS— DOMESLIC.......coevrreeerieirieieesreeneenes
Equity Securities— International ............ccceoeveeenieninnne

Total INVESIMENES......civieerieiririeesierees e
Securities Lending Collateral Podl .........c.cccoeevevevieviceeninnenn,

Total INVESIMENES......ceeicvieciecereecree et

Interest Rate Risk — I nvestments

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will
adversely affect the fair value of an investment.

The primary government’ s policy for managing interest raterisk is
to comply with the State’ sMoney Management Act. Section 51-7—
11 of the Act requires that the remaining term to maturity of
investments may not exceed the period of availability of thefundsto
be invested. The Act further limits the remaining term to maturity
onall investmentsin commercia paper, bankers acceptances, fixed
rate negotiable deposits, and fixed rate corporate obligationsto 270—
365 days or less. In addition, variable rate negotiable deposits and
variable rate securities may not have a remaining term to final
maturity exceeding two years. Funds that follow Rule 2 of the
Money Management Council may not allow the dollar-weighted
average maturity of fixed-income securities to exceed ten years.

The Utah Retirement Systems (URS) (pension and other employee
benefit trust funds) manage their exposure to fair value loss arising
fromincreasinginterest rates by complying with thefollowing policy:

Total
Defined Defined All Systems
Benefit Contribution and Plans
$ 3,530,507 $ 1,219,322 $ 4,749,829
531,765 — 531,765
2,814,945 488,403 3,303,348
1,744,677 130,881 1,875,558
1,040,698 1,546 1,042,244
6,845 — 6,845
3,280,056 — 3,280,056
1,442,274 — 1,442,274
2,097,466 — 2,097,466
— 39,220 39,220
— 304,210 304,210
— 64,483 64,483
334,176 — 334,176
75,746 23,491 99,237
105,362 — 105,362
430,302 40,723 471,025
129,858 21,270 151,128
17,564,677 2,333,549 19,898,226
1,105,354 87,479 1,192,833
$ 18,670,031 $ 2,421,028 $ 21,091,059

e For domestic debt securities managers, an individual debt
securities investment manager’s portfolio shall have an
effective duration between 75 and 125 percent of the effective
duration of the appropriate index.

e The international debt securities investment managers shall
maintain an effective duration of their portfolio between 50
and 150 percent of the appropriate index.

Duration isameasure of adebt investment’s exposureto fair value
changes arising from changes in interest rates. It uses the present
value of cash flows, weighted for those cash flows as a percentage
of the investment’ s full price.

The URS compares an investment’ s effective duration against the
Barclays Capital Aggregate Index for domestic debt securities and
the Barclays Capital Global Aggregate Index for international debt
securities. Theindex range at December 31, 2008, was 2.78 — 4.64
for domestic debt securities and 2.56 — 7.68 for international debt
securities. At December 31, 2008, no individua debt security
investment manager’ s portfolio was outside of the policy guidelines.
At December 31, 2008, thefollowing tables show theinvestmentsby
investment type, amount, and the effective weighted duration.

(Table on next page.)
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Utah Retirement Systems
(pension and other employee benefit trust funds)
Debt Securities | nvestments, Domestic
At December 31, 2008
(Expressed in Thousands)

Defined Benefit Plans Defined Contribution Plans Total
Effective Weighted Effective Weighted  All Systems
Investment Fair Value Duration Fair Value Duration and Plans
Asset-backed Securities.........oevveeeereireenenne. $ 158,330 0.79 $ 35452 1.58 $ 193,782
Commercial Mortgage-backed.............c........ 179,880 412 90,382 2.78 270,262
Corporate Bonds.........ccccoeevvevieeeveeecennenenns 790,948 5.32 256,732 411 1,047,680
Fixed Income Derivatives — Futures............ (476,344) NA — — (476,344)
Fixed Income Derivatives — Options........... (2,485) NA — — (2,485)
Fixed Income FULUres........ccocoeeecvveeeeceneeeenen. 476,344 NA — — 476,344
Government AQeNCIeS........coveveerereesiereeneenes 212,546 3.29 120,403 2.80 332,949
Government Bonds.........ccocveeevieeeeireineennens 345,389 7.95 26,667 7.50 372,056
Government Mortgage-backed Securities..... 1,845,372 331 247,383 0.78 2,092,755
Guaranteed Fixed INnCOME........ccocvvevveirvennne 1,506 3.26 — — 1,506
Index Linked Government Bonds................. 97,211 6.86 — — 97,211
Municipal/Provincial Bonds..............ccccceeen... 1,077 12.01 — — 1,077
Non-government Backed C.M.Oss................ 329,359 1.62 — — 329,359
Other Fixed INCOME ......ccveerveeeecriceeereeiene 1,521 0.32 214,229 NA 215,750
Other Liabiliti€S...cueeeveeeeeeeececececeeeeceeiee (22,840) NA — — (22,840)
Other OptioNS.......covvieeieeeeeeeee e (4,465) NA — — (4,465)
Swap Liabilities .....cccoovvvveceieeeicece e (53,662) NA — — (53,662)
SWEPRS. ..ottt 60,742 NA — — 60,742
Treasury Inflation Protected Securities......... — NA 36,083 5.08 36,083
Treasury NOES.......cvcveveieeiinenee e — NA 215,482 331 215,482
Total Debt Securities Investments,
DOMESLIC ..cvvecveeeeceecee et ereesrens $ 3,940,429 4.04 $ 1,242,813 2.40 $ 5,183,242
Utah Retirement Systems
(pension and other employee benefit trust funds)
Debt Securities | nvestments, | nter national
At December 31, 2008
(Expressed in Thousands)
Defined Benefit Plans
Effective Weighted
I nvestment Fair Value Duration
Corporate Bonds..........cccooeveeeeereeieeeiienenne $ 159,531 5.25
Fixed Income Derivative — Futures............. 37,969 7.70
Fixed Income FULUrES..........ccoerereneeiiceenene (37,969) NA
Government AQENCI€S........coveeeereeerereneereenns 11,295 3.64
Government Bonds..........occeveeicieeeeceee e, 431,565 6.67
Index Linked Government Bonds................. 15,692 6.22
Municipal/Provincial Bonds............cccccceu... 18,037 4.75
Non-government Backed C.M.Oss................ 1,007 (0.02)
Tota Debt Securities Investments,
INEEMNELEONEL ..o $ 637,127 6.27
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Credit Risk of Debt Securities

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an
investment will not fulfill its obligations. The primary government,
with the exception of the Utah Retirement Systems (URS) (pension
and other employee benefit trust funds), follows the Money
Management Act as previously discussed asits policy for reducing
exposure to investment credit risk.

The primary government’s rated debt investments as of June 30,
20009, with the exception of URS, wererated by Standard and Poor’s
and/or an equivalent nationally recognized statistical rating
organization and theratings are presented bel ow using the Standard
and Poor’s rating scale. Securities rated less than “A” met the
investment criteria at the time of purchase.

Primary Government Rated Debt | nvestments
(except pension and other employee benefit trust funds)
(Expressed in Thousands)

Fair Quality Ratings

Debt | nvestments Value AAA AA A BBB
U.S. AQENCIES......coeveriierereeeeceeee s $ 76159 $ 74521 $ — 3 — 3 —
Corporate Debt.........cccooeoeneiieniieieee. $ 6928260 $ 434600 $ 1656480 $ 4588900 $ 45,531
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit.......... $ 65198 $ — $ 44834 $ 20104 $ —
Money Market Mutual Fund................... $ 2,360,000 $ 400,000 $ — 3 — % —
Commercial Paper.........cceeeeveeeeeeereeeenn. $ 187206 $ — 3% — 3 — % —
Bond Mutual Fund...........ccoecevevevrevnnenee. $ 753519 $ — % — % — 3 —
Repurchase Agreements — Underlying:

U.S. Treasuries. ......ccovveeeeeeveereeesnennnns $ 1612 $ — % — % — 3 —

U.S. AQENCIES......cocveeeeeeeieierereeeeeeeinas $ 6,316 $ 6,316 $ — 3 — 3 —

Continues Below
Quality Ratings

Debt | nvestments BB D Al* Unrated
U.S. AQENCIES......oeceeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ — % — 3 — % — % 1,638
Corporate DEDL.........ccceveuerereirieeeeeeceeenns $ 60399 $ 12880 $ 13500 $ — % —
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit.......... $ — % — 3 —  $ — % 260
Money Market Mutua Fund................... $ — — 3 —  $ — $ 1,960,000
Commercial Paper..........cceeveveeeeeevivennen. $ — 3 — 3 — $ 187,206 $ —
Bond Mutual Fund...........ccoccevevevrennenee. $ — 3 — % — 3 — $ 753519
Repurchase Agreements — Underlying:

U.S. TreasurieS....coeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneens $ — % — 3 — % — % 1,612

U.S. AQENCIES.....coeeeereeecteeee e $ — % — % —  $ —  $ —

* Alis Commercia Paper rating

The URS expects its domestic debt securitiesinvestment managers
to maintain diversified portfolios by sector and by issuer using the
following guidelines:

e U.S government and agency securities — no restriction.

e  Total portfolio quality shall maintain aminimum overal rating
of “A” (S&P) or equivalent rating.

e  Securitieswith aquality rating of below BBB—are considered
below investment grade. No more than 5 percent of an
investment manager’s assets at market with asingleissuer of 1
percent of the total portfolio can be below investment grade.

e  Upon approval, adomestic debt securitiesinvestment manager
may invest up to 10 percent of the portfolio in non-U.S. dollar
denominated bonds.

e Upon approval, the international debt securities investment
managers may hold up to 25 percent of the market value of
their portfolios in securities rated below investment grade
(S&P index BBB— or Moody's index Baa3). The remaining
assets shall have on average an investment grade rating.
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Theweighted quality rating average of the domestic debt securities,
excluding pooled investments, at December 31, 2008, isAAA and
thefair value of below gradeinvestmentsis $75.508 million or 1.92
percent of the domestic portfolio. The weighted quality rating
average of the international debt securities investments, at
December 31, 2008, is AAA and the fair value of below grade
investments is $11.435 million or 1.79 percent of the international
portfolio.

The following table presents the URS credit risk ratings as of
December 31, 2008:

(Table on next page.)
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Utah Retirement Systems
(pension and other empl oyee benefit trust funds)
Debt Securities Investmentsat Fair Value
At December 31, 2008
(Expressed in Thousands)

Defined
Contribution Total
Defined Benefit Plans Plans All Systems
Quality Rating Domestic  International Total Domestic and Plans
$1178698 $ 326,986 $ 1505684 $ 118247 $ 1,623,931
13,311 20,868 34,179 — 34,179
69,117 116,279 185,396 34,947 220,343
19,970 15,326 35,296 2,798 38,094
104,601 38,881 143,482 215,976 359,458
194,052 22,849 216,901 21,263 238,164
69,209 21,329 90,538 20,130 110,668
112,633 35,192 147,825 119,802 267,627
60,243 23,004 83,247 12,743 95,990
56,711 4,978 61,689 13,606 75,295
1,081 — 1,081 3,493 4,574
11,437 5,926 17,363 3,090 20,453
1,468 231 1,699 — 1,699
5,646 4,219 9,865 1,296 11,161
6,908 129 7,037 — 7,037
7,380 — 7,380 8,525 15,905
8,126 — 8,126 11,404 19,530
6,917 — 6,917 — 6,917
276 — 276 — 276
568 — 568 — 568
870 — 870 13,762 14,632
24,831 930 25,761 7,001 32,762
Total credit risk
debt securities............ 1,954,053 637,127 2,591,180 608,083 3,199,263
U.S. Government
and Agencies............. 1,932,861 — 1,932,861 634,730 2,567,591
Pooled investments........ 53,515 — 53,515 — 53,515
Total debt securities
investments................ $ 3940429 $ 637,127 $ 4577556 $ 1,242,813 $ 5,820,369

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments in foreign banks. URS aso has $15.377 million of investments for
which exposure to custodia credit risk could not be determined.

Custodial credit risk for investmentsistherisk that, in the event of a

failure of the counter party, the State will not be ableto recover the
value of the investment or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The primary government does not
have aformal policy for custodial credit risk.

The primary government’s investments at June 30, 2009, except
those of the Utah Retirement Systems (URS) (pension and other
employee benefit trust funds), were held by the State or in the
State's name by the State’s custodial banks; except $7.928 million
of repurchase agreements where the underlying securities were
uninsured and held by the investment’s counterparty, not in the
name of the State.

At December 31, 2008, the URSinvestments wereregistered in the
name of URS and held by their custodians; however, thereis6.178
millionfrictional cash and cash equivalents subject to custodial risk
in foreign banks held in URS' name, but because it isin foreign
banks it is subject to custodia risk. URS does not have an
investment policy regarding custodial credit risk for frictional cash
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Concentration of Credit Risk — Investments

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the
magnitude of agovernment’sinvestment in asingle issuer.

Except for the Utah Retirement Systems (URS) (pension and other
employee benefit trust funds), the primary government’s policy for
reducing this risk of loss is to comply with the Rules of the Money
Management Council. Rule 17 of the Money Management Council
limits investments in a single issuer of commercia paper and
corporate obligationsto between 5 and 10 percent depending uponthe
total dollar amount held in the portfolio. Fundsthat follow Rule 2 of
the Money Management Council arelimited to investmentsin equity
securities and fixed income corporate securities to no more than 5
percent of all fundsin any oneissuer and no more than 25 percent of
all fundsin any oneindustry. No morethan 5 percent of all funds may
be invested in securities of acorporation that has been in continuous
operation for less than three years. No more than 5 percent of the
outstanding voting securities of any one corporation may be held. In
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addition, Rule 2 limits investment concentrationsin certain types of
investments. The Money Management Council limitations do not
apply to securitiesissued by the U.S. government and its agencies.

The primary government had no debt securities investments at
June 30, 2009, with more than 5 percent of the total investmentsin
asingleissuer.

The Utah Retirement Systems debt securities investments had no

single issuer investments at December 31, 2008, that exceed their

diversified portfolio by sector and by issuer using the following
guidelines:

e AAA/Aaa Debt Securities — no more than 5 percent of an
investment manager’s assets at market with a single issuer.

o  AA-/Aa3 Debt Securities or higher — no more than 4 percent
of an investment manager’s assets at market with a single
issuer.

e  A-/A3 Debt Securities or higher— no more than 3 percent of
an investment manager’s assets at market with asingle issuer.

e BBB-/Baa3 Debt Securities or higher — no more than
2 percent of an investment manager’s assets at market with a
single issuer.

e  For Debt Securities — no individual holding shall constitute
more than 10 percent of the market value of outstanding debt
of asingleissuer with the exception of the U.S. government or
its agencies, or collateralized mortgage obligations.

e  For Domestic Equity Securities— noindividual holdingsshall
constitute more than 4 percent of the securities of any single
issuer. Also, no more than 8 percent of an investment
manager’s assets shall be invested in the equity or REIT
securities of any single issuer at market; or if specificaly
authorized in the manager’s contract, the exposure of the
portfolio to any singleissuer shall not exceed the greater of 5
percent of the portfolio value or 2 percent of the portfolio value
plus the benchmark weight measured at the time of purchase.

e  For International Equity Securities— no morethan 8 percent of
aninvestment manager’sassetsshall beinvested in the equity or
REIT securities of any singleissuer at market; or if specifically
authorized in the manager’s contract, the exposure of the
portfolio to any singleissuer shall not exceed the greater of 5
percent of the portfolio value or 2 percent of the portfolio value
plus the benchmark weight measured at the time of purchase.

Foreign Currency Risk — Investments

Foreign currency risk istherisk that changesin exchange rates will
adversely affect the fair value of an investment or a deposit. The
primary government, except the Utah Retirement Systems (URS)
(pension and other employee benefit trust funds), does not have a
formal policy to limit foreign currency risk.

The Utah Educational SavingsPlan Trust (private purposetrust) has
$192.402 million and the Trust Lands (permanent fund) has
$187.165 millioninvested ininternational equity funds. Assuch, no
currency denomination is presented.

The Utah Retirement Systems (URS) (pension and other employee
benefit trust funds), expect the International Securities Investment
Managersto maintain diversified portfolios by sector and by issuer
using the following guidelines:

e Internationa investment managers invest in fixed income
instruments and equity instruments of corporations
headquartered outside of the United States unless specifically
authorized within the investment manager’s contract.

e Domestic investment managers are alowed to invest in
international corporations traded in American Depository
Receipts (ADR).

e Portfolios should be adequately diversified to limit foreign
currency and security risk.

Risk of loss arises from changes in currency exchange rates. URS

exposure to foreign currency risk is shown below.

(Table on next page.)

72



State of Utah Notesto the Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Utah Retirement Systems

(pension and other employee benefit trust funds)

Foreign Currency Risk

International | nvestment Securities at Fair Value
At December 31, 2008

(Expressed in Thousands)

Defined
Contribution Total
Defined Benefit Plans Plans All Systems
Currency Short-Term Debt Equity Total Equity and Plans
American Depository Receipts (ADR) USdollar... $ — 3 693 $ 637577 $ 638270 $ — $ 638270
ArgentinEPESD ....cvvveeerereeieirse st 8 10 1,041 1,059 — 1,059
Austrdian dollar 54 18,863 39,610 58,527 5,558 64,085
Brazilianred .................. — 5,670 1,886 7,556 — 7,556
British pound sterling ..... 2,499 84,825 200,919 288,243 22,826 311,069
(02072 o[-0 o (o] | = 25 14,247 37,207 51,479 863 52,342
Cayman Idandsdollar..........cccoeverreerneineerseireernnens — 154 — 154 — 154
Chilean peso......coeevuee — 1,325 — 1,325 — 1,325
Chinese yuan renminbi ... — — 4,095 4,095 — 4,095
CZECh KOTUNAL.....eoveetete e — — 5,189 5,189 — 5,189
DaANiSN KIONE ....ecvvceeetrecetees et sssessssssnsenas 129 4,169 2,549 6,847 395 7,242
Estonian kroon . — — 656 656 — 656
EUrO.....c.ocveveveririannns 1,852 295,759 392,066 689,677 50,146 739,823
Hong Kong dollar ... 231 — 26,460 26,691 3,085 29,776
lcdlandic krona. — 261 — 261 — 261
Indian rupee...... — — 5,615 5,615 — 5,615
Japaneeyen............ 784 122,001 299,878 422,663 38,981 461,644
Kazakhgani tenge... — 378 — 378 — 378
Koreanwon............. 5 5341 3,135 8,481 — 8,481
Liberiandallar..... — — 285 285 — 285
Madaysian ringgit 17 4,422 1,813 6,252 — 6,252
Mexican peso.............. — 23,766 530 24,296 — 24,296
New Zedand dollar .... 128 — 47 175 79 254
Norwegian krone......... 148 5,100 5,051 10,299 916 11,215
Panamanian balboa..... — 1,971 5,966 7,937 — 7,937
Philippinespeso. .......... — — 478 478 — 478
POHSN ZIOtY ... — 2,636 — 2,636 — 2,636
Puerto Rico —US dollar........ceuveeecveeeeerreeecreerennnas — — 13,112 13,112 — 13,112
Qatari riyal.......ccooveveeeeeneenees — 513 — 513 — 513
Russian Federation ruble.... — 12,504 720 13,224 — 13,224
SINGAPOrE AOHA ... 124 10,593 6,642 17,359 798 18,157
South AfriCan rand..........ceceeeeeeeereereeeeeeeece e — — 5,761 5,761 — 5,761
Swedish krona............. 93 12,782 17,908 30,783 4,329 35,112
SWISSTranC ......ccceeeevennee. 130 6,665 146,271 153,066 13,979 167,045
Tawanese new dollar ..... 29 — 7,376 7,405 — 7,405
Thai baht....... — — 1,155 1,155 — 1,155
Tunisandinar .. — 641 — 641 — 641
Turkish Lira.....ccoeeeerveveeecreenne. — — 3,537 3,537 — 3,537
United Arab Emirates dirham.... — 1,838 — 1,838 — 1,838
Pooled International Investments.............cevveeeveenne — — — — 74,679 74,679
Total Securities Subject to
Foreign Currency RiSK........c.ocveereereerrereereensernenns $ 6,256 $ 637,127 $ 1874535 $ 2517918 $ 216,634 $ 2,734,552
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B. COMPONENT UNITS
Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

The custodial credit risk for depositsistherisk that inthe event of a
bank failure, the component unit’s deposits may not be recovered.

The component units follow the Money Management Act by
making deposits only in qualified financia ingtitutions in
accordance with the Act. The deposits in the bank in excess of the
insured amount are uninsured and uncollateralized. Depositsare not
collateralized nor are they required to be by state statute. The
deposits for the component units at June 30, 2009, were $224.377
million. Of these, $203.115 million were exposed to custodial credit
risk as uninsured and uncollateralized.

Investments

The component units follow the applicable investing criteria
described above for the primary government, with the exception of
Utah Housing Corporation and Public Employees Health Program
which are exempt from the Money Management Act.

College and university funds from gifts, private grants, and the
corpus of funds functioning as endowments are invested according

to the requirements of the Uniform Prudent Management of
Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) and State Board of RegentsRule
541, Management and Reporting of Institutiona Investments (Rule
541) or separate endowment investment policies which have been
approved by their Board of Trustees and by the Board of Regents.
The UPMIFA and Rule 541 alow the Entity to invest endowment
funds (including gifts, devises, or bequests of property of any kind
from any source) in any investments allowed by the Money
Management Act or any of the following subject to satisfying
certain criteriac professionally managed pooled or commingled
investment funds registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission or the Comptroller of the Currency (e.g., mutua
funds); professionally managed pooled or commingled investment
funds created under 501(f) of the Internal Revenue Code which
satisfy the conditionsfor exemption from registration under Section
3(c) of the Investment Company Act of 1940; any investment made
in accordance with the donor’s directions in a written instrument;
and any alternative investment funds that derive returns primarily
fromhigh yield and distressed debt (hedged or non-hedged), private
capital (including venture capital, private equity, both domesticand
international), natural resources, and private rea estate assets or
absolute return and long/short hedge funds.

The component units' investments at June 30, 2009, are
presented bel ow.

Component Units I nvestments
(Expressed in Thousands)

Investment M aturities (in years)

Fair Less More
Investment Type Value Than 1 1-5 6-10 11-20 Than 20
Debt Securities
U.S. TrEASUMES......ccveieeereereecteeresteeee et enre e snenneas $ 597852 $ 345783 $ 244211 $ 6,906 $ 952 $ —
Government National Mortgage Association........ 9 — — — 9 —
U.S. AQENCIES ..o reeieesiee e es 672,667 408,923 7,057 15,793 208,073 32,821
Corporate DEDL ......oveeeeereriee e 263,467 130,431 80,433 36,451 15,500 652
Commercial Paper ........ccoccoerereeienienene e 20,943 20,943 — — — —
Money Market Mutual Funds 329,664 329,664 — — — —
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit..........cccvcuvnenee. 5,640 5,341 299 — — —
Municipal/Public Bonds...........cccccevveeiivecieniennn. 12,993 1,852 1,009 3,139 6,993 —
Repurchase Agreements..........cccoceveveeeveeceeeenenne, 27,192 27,192 — — — —
Guaranteed Investment Contracts...........c.cc.u....... 165,804 114,993 16,023 3,732 31,056 —
Bond Mutual Funds...........cccoeeveveeieeeenececeienee. 123,984 — 3,586 118,428 1,970 —
Securities Lending Cash Collatera Pool .............. 21,617 21,617 — — — —
Utah Public Treasurer’s Investment Fund............. 409,747 409,747 — — — —
2,651,579 $ 181648 $ 352618 $ 184449 $ 264553 $ 33473

Other Investments
Equity Securities:

DOMESLIC...eeeiceeeeeceie et 41,104

INtErNational .........ccveeieeeeeeeeee e 2,176
Equity Mutual Funds Securities:

DOMESLIC....vvevecieere ettt ereens 333,287

INternational.........ccooveveeeeieciece e 275
AREINBLIVES. ....c.viiveericeectecee et 847
COMMOAITIES......ccveireereirecrecreere e 676
Real Estate Held for Investment Purposes............ 1,268
o] = $ 3,031,212
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Interest Rate Risk — I nvestments Credit Risk of Debt Securities

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an
adversely affect the fair value of an investment. The component investment will not fulfill its obligations. The component units
units’ policy for managing interest raterisk isthe same as described policy for reducing exposureto investment credit risk isthe sameas
above for the primary government. described abovefor the primary government. The component units

debt investments as of June 30, 2009, were rated by Standard and
Poor’s and/or an equivalent nationally recognized statistical rating
organization and theratings are presented below using the Standard
and Poor’srating scale.

Component Units Rated Debt | nvestments
(Expressed in Thousands)

Fair Quality Ratings

Debt | nvestments Value AAA AA A BBB
U.S. AQENCIES......oivirieieiieieieeeee e $ 672,667 $ 670,389 $ — $ 2,278 $ —
Corporate Debt .........coeoeeereeeeee e $ 263,467 $ 9,762 $ 44,103 $ 159,848 $ 43,221
Commercial Paper........ccoceeeceeeeeeceeeeeeeeennns $ 20,943 $ — $ — $ — $ —
Money Market Mutual Funds.......................... $ 329,664 $ 277,798 $ — $ — $ —
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit .................. $ 5,640 $ — $ — $ 3,485 $ —
Municipa/Public Bonds............ccccoeeeevevirerennne. $ 12,993 $ 9459 $ 1,728 $ — $ —
Guaranteed Investment Contracts.................... $ 165,804 $ — $ — $ — $ —
Bond Mutual FUNds..........ccccovvvevveeeeeecviecrenens $ 123,984 $ 34 $ — $ 776 $ —
Securities Lending Cash Collateral Pool ......... $ 21,617 $ — $ — $ — $ —
Utah Public Treasurer’s Investment Fund ....... $ 409,747 $ — $ — $ — $ —
Repurchase Agreements — Underlying:

U.S. AQENCIES....ceeieeeieeeeeeee e $ 6,130 $ 2,646 $ — $ — $ —

Money Market Mutual Funds...................... $ 21,062 $ — $ — $ — $ —

Continues Below
Quality Ratings

Debt | nvestments BB B CCC cC C
U.S. AQENCIES....oooeceeceeceeeeeeeeteeeee e, $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
Corporate DEDL........coeveeeeieeeeere e $ 2116 $ 733 $ 1,028 $ 867 $ 90
Commercial Paper........cooeeeeeeeeeeceeeeeereseeenanes $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
Money Market Mutual Funds $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit .................. $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
Municipal/Public Bonds..........c.ccccccvevevevevnenes $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
Guaranteed Investment Contracts.................... $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
Bond Mutual FUNdS.........ccooveeeeeeeeeeeeeseeen $ 20 $ 295 $ — $ — $ —
Securities Lending Cash Collateral Pool ......... $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
Utah Public Treasurer’s Investment Fund ....... $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
Repurchase Agreements — Underlying:

U.S. AQENCIES.....ooeveeeeeceere e $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —

Money Market Mutual Funds...................... $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —

Continues Below
Quality Ratings

Debt I nvestments Al~* Unrated
U.S. AQENCIES. ....reveeeeeeeecee e $ — $ —
Corporate DEDL ........ccveeiieiiieeceee e $ — $ 1,699
Commercial Paper........cccueveeeeeviirereeeieinnas $ 209 $ —
Money Market Mutual Funds...............c.c......... $ — $ 51,866
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit .................. $ — $ 2155
Municipal/Public Bonds..........ccccccoceevererennnan. $ — $ 1,806
Guaranteed Investment Contracts................... $ — $ 165,804
Bond Mutual FUNGS.........coeeveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeesenanens $ — $ 122,859
Securities Lending Cash Collateral Podl ......... $ — $ 21617
Utah Public Treasurer’'s Investment Fund ....... $ — $ 409,747
Repurchase Agreements — Underlying: ...........

U.S. AQENCIES.....ceveneiecreeeteeeeteee e $ — $ 3484

Money Market Mutual Funds...................... $ — $ 21,062

* Alis Commercia Paper rating
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Custodial Credit Risk — Investments

Custodial credit risk for investmentsistherisk that, in theevent of a
failure of the counter party, the component unitswill not be ableto
recover thevalue of theinvestment or collateral securitiesthat arein
the possession of an outside party. The component unitsdo not have
aformal policy for custodia credit risk.

The various component units investments at June 30, 2009, were
held by the component unit or in the name of the component unit by
the component unit’ s custodial bank or trustee, except thefollowing
which were uninsured, were not registered in the name of the
component unit, and were held by (expressed in thousands):

Counterparty
U.S. Treasuries ......ccccoeeerrerieeeninenenens $ 544,829
U.S. Agencies......... $ 410,046
Corporate Deb.................. $ 20,396
Repurchase Agreements .......... e $ 10177
Equity Securities— Domedtic.............. $ 3,590
Equity Mutual Funds Securities—
DOMESLIC...veeveeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e eeeeeeeaens $ 36,807
Counterparty’s Trust Department or Agent
U.S. Treasuries ......c.cooeerirerererieenenenens $ 38570
U.S. AQENCIES .....ecveeeeeieeeree e $ 328
Corporate Debt e $ 132,652
Repurchase Agreements..................... $ 17,015

Concentration of Credit Risk — Investments

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the
magnitude of agovernment’sinvestment in asingleissuer. Except
for Utah Housing Corporation and Public Employees Health
Program, the component units’ policy for reducing thisrisk of loss
isthe same as described above for the primary government for non-
endowment funds. For college and university endowments funds,
their policy for reducing this risk of lossis to follow the Uniform
Prudent Management of Ingtitutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) and
State Board of Regents Rule 541, Management and Reporting of
Ingtitutional Investments (Rule 541) or separate endowment
investment policies which have been approved by their Board of
Trustees and by the Board of Regents.

The Utah Housing Corporation places no limit on the amount the
Corporation may invest in any oneissuer. More than five percent of
the Corporation'sinvestmentsarein the Federal National Mortgage
Association, Roya Bank of Canada Guaranteed Investment
Contracts, and CDC Guaranteed Investment Contracts. These
investments are 14.33 percent, 9.55 percent, and 5.50 percent,
respectively, of the Corporation's total investments.

Public Employees Health Program'’ s policy limits the amount that
may be invested in any one issuer to between 2 and 5 percent,
depending on the credit rating of the security. Thereis no limit to
investments in U.S. Government and Agency Securities. All
investments are within policy limits.

Foreign Currency Risk — Investments

Foreign currency risk istherisk that changesin exchange rates will
adversely affect the fair value of an investment or a deposit. The
component units do not have a forma policy to limit foreign
currency risk.
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C. SecuritiesLending

The Utah Retirement Systems (URS) (pension and other employee
benefit trust funds) and the Public Employees Hedth Program
(PEHP) (component unit) participate in security lending programs
as authorized by their Boards. Under these programs, securitiesare
transferred to an independent broker or dedler in exchange for
collateral in the form of cash, government securities, and
irrevocable bank | etters of credit equal to gpproximately 102 percent
of the market value of the domestic securities on loan (both URS
and PEHP) and 105 percent of the market value of the international
securities on loan (URS only), with a simultaneous agreement to
return the collateral for the same securities in the future. For both
state entities, their custodial bank is the agent for its securities
lending program. Securities under loan are maintained in the
financia records, and corresponding liabilities are recorded for
market value of the collateral received.

At yearend, neither the Utah Retirement Systems nor Public
Employees Hedth Program had any credit risk exposure to
borrowers because the collateral exceeded the amount borrowed.
The securitieson loan at yearend for the entitieswere $1.161 hillion
and $21.112 million, respectively, and the collatera received for
those securities on loan was $1.193 billion and $21.617 million,
respectively. Under the terms of the lending agreement, both state
entities are indemnified against loss should the lending agent be
unable to recover borrowed securities and distributions due to
borrower insolvency or failure of the lending agent to properly
evaluate the creditworthiness of the borrower. In addition, they are
indemnified against loss should the lending agent fail to demand
adequate and appropriate collateral on atimely basis. All securities
loaned can be terminated on demand by either the state entity or the
borrower. Cash collateral is invested in the lending agent’s short-
term investment pool.

The short-term investment pool guidelines specify that aminimum
of 20 percent of the invested cash collateral isto be available each
business day and that the dollar weighted average maturity of
holdings should not exceed 60 days. The relationship between the
maturities of the short-term investment pool and each of the state
entities' loans is affected by the maturities of the securities loans
made by other entities that use the agent’s pool, which the state
entities cannot determine. Since the securitieslending collateral isin
a pool maintained by the custodia bank, the state entities do not
have the ability to pledge or sell the securities, and it is not
necessary to report the total income and expenses of securities
lending.

D. DerivativeFinancial I nstruments
Utah Retirement Systems

The Utah Retirement Systems (URS) (pension and other employee
benefit trust funds) invests in derivative financial investments as
authorized by Board policy. Derivatives arefinancial arrangements
between two parties whose payments are based on, or “derived”
from, the performance of some agreed-upon benchmark. At
December 31, 2008, URS had four types of derivative financia
investments: futures, currency forwards, options, and swaps.

Futuresrepresent commitmentsto purchase (asset) or sell (liability)
securities at afuture date and at a specified price. Futures contracts
are traded on organized exchanges (exchange traded) thereby
minimizing URS' credit risk. The net changein the futurescontracts
valueissettled daily in cash with the exchanges. Net gains or losses
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resulting from the daily settlements are included with trading
account securities gains (losses) in the Statement of Changes in
Fiduciary Net Assets. At December 31, 2008, URS investmentshad
the following futures balances (expressed in millions):

Value Covered
By Contract

Long — cash and cash equivalent

derivative — fUtUres..........cccoceevernenen. $ 373887
Short — cash and cash equivalent

derivative — fULUres.........cccveveverernnnne. $ (27.148)
Long — cash and cash equivalent futures..... $ 27.148
Short — cash and cash equivalent futures..... $ 373.887
Long — equity derivatives— futures............. $ 446.893
Short — equity futures...........ccccceeeveereereneane. $ (446.893)
Long — debt securities

derivatives — futures. ..........cccceuvurenene. $ 180978
Short — debt securities

derivatives — futures. ........cccvvrererecnee. $ (619.353)
Long — debt securities futures............c....... $ 619.353
Short — debt securities futures..................... $ (180.978)

Currency forwards represent forward foreign exchange contracts
that are entered into in order to hedge the exposure to changesin
foreign currency exchange rate on the foreign currency dominated
portfolio holdings. A forward foreign exchange contract is a
commitment to purchase or sell aforeign currency at afuturedateat
a negotiated forward rate. The gain or loss arising from the
difference between the original contracts and the closing of such
contracts is included in net realized gains or losses on foreign
currency related transactions. At December 31, 2008, URS
investments included the following currency forwards balances
(expressed in millions):

Currency forwards (pending foreign

exchange purchases).......c.ccovevreeeeeen $ 254.149
Currency forwards (pending foreign
exchange Sales) ......cccoeevreirecennenene $ (252.881)

Optionsrepresent or give buyerstheright, but not the obligation, to
buy or sell an asset at a preset price over a specified period. The
option’spriceisusually asmall percentage of the underlying asset’'s
value. As awriter of financial options, URS receives a premium at
the outset of the agreement and bears the risk of an unfavorable
change in the price of the financia instrument underlying the
option. Asapurchaser of financial options, URS paysapremium at
the outset of the agreement and the counterparty bearstherisk of an
unfavorable change in the price of the financial instrument
underlying the option. At December 31, 2008, URSinvestmentshad
the following options balances (expressed in thousands):

Value Covered
By Contract

Cash and cash equivalent

purchased call options...........ccccueue.... $ (626)
Cash and cash equivalent

purchased put Options...........cccceeeeenene $ (12)
Debt securities purchased call options........ $ (1,276)
Debt securities purchased put options......... $  (1,209)

URS has entered into various interest rate swap agreements in an
attempt to manage their exposure to interest rate risk. Interest rate
risk represents the exposure to fair value losses arising from the
future changes in prevailing market interest rates. Swaps represent
an agreement between two or more parti esto exchange sequences of
cash flows over aperiod in the future. In the most common type of
interest rate swap arrangement, one party agrees to pay fixed
interest payments on designated dates to a counter party who, in
turn, agrees to make return interest payments that float with some
reference rate. Most of the interest rate swaps were purchased in
connection with variablereal estate debt. Those interest rate swaps
alowed URSto effectively convert most of their long termvariable
interest rate credit facility loans into fixed interest rate loans,
thereby mitigating some of their interest rate risk. Gains and losses
on swaps are determined based on market valuesand arerecorded in
the Statement of Changesin Fiduciary Net Assets. At December 31,
2008, URS investments had the swap market value balances as
shown in the table below.

Utah Retirement Systems
(pension and other employee benefit trust funds)
Interest Rate Swaps
December 31, 2008
(Expressed in Millions)

Outstanding URS Counter party Maturity Fair
Notional Amount* Rate** Rate** Date Value
Interest Rate Swaps:
$ 1,137.699 4.0570 % — 5.4640 % LIBOR 20102021 $ (164.945)
$ 461.520 3.5000 % —5.7700%  Three Month LIBOR 2009-2018 $ (53.662)
$ 551.700 Three Month LIBOR  3.4163 % — 5.5250 % 2009-2027 $ 60.743
Total Interest Rate Swaps $ 2,150.919 $ (157.864)

*  Base used to calculate interest
** | ondon Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR)
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Utah Housing Corporation

The following are disclosures for derivative financial instruments
held by Utah Housing Corporation (major component unit).

Objective — In order to protect against the potential of rising
interest rates on its variable rate debt, the Corporation has entered
into 76 separate pay-fixed, receive-variableinterest rate swapsas of
June 30, 2009. The cost of these swaps is less than what the
Corporation would have paid to issue fixed rate debt. The
Corporation’s swaps are al similar in nature and summary
information is included in this report. More detailed information

about each swap isincluded in the Corporation’s separately issued
financial statements.

Terms, Fair Values, and Credit Risk — Theterms, including the
fair values of the outstanding swaps as of June 30, 2009, are
summarized bel ow. The notional amounts of the swaps matched the
principal amounts of the associated debt at the time of issuance.
Except as discussed under rollover risk, the Corporation’s swap
agreements contain scheduled reductions to outstanding notional
amounts that are expected to approximately follow scheduled or
anticipated reductions in the associated bonds payable.

Utah Housing Corporation
Interest Rate Swap and Cap Agreements
June 30, 2009
(Expressed in Thousands)

Fixed
Outstanding Rate Paid Variable Rate
Notional by the Received from Fair Termination
Amount Issue Dates Corporation Counterparty Values Dates
Interest Rate Swap Agreements
$ 539,780 2008 3.920 %10 5.610 % SIFMA* plus.27 % $ (55,833) 20222030
124,000 2008 3.730 % t0 4.253 % SIFMA* plus.11 % (10,889) 2026-2030

37,450 2008 3.713 % to 4.000 % SIFMA* plus .08 % (1,601) 2028-2032
14,000 2008 3.299 % to 3.200 % SIFMA* (632) 2023
35,215 2008 4640%t07.760%  LIBOR** plus.15 % (3,543) 2010-2020
25,610 2008 5.301 %10 5.545 % LIBOR** plus.01 % (1,316) 2038

$ 776,055 $ (73.814)

*  Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association
**  London Interbank Offered Rate

Fair Values — The fair values of swaps are a function of market
interest rates and the remaining term on the swap contracts. Thefair
values of the swap contracts were estimated using the zero-coupon
method. This method cal culates the future net settlement payments
required by the swap, assuming that the current forward rates
implied by the yield curve correctly anticipate future spot interest
rates. These payments are then discounted using the spot rates
implied by the current yield curve for hypothetical zero-coupon
bonds due on the date of each future net settlement on the swaps.

Credit Risk — During the year ended June 30, 2009 the
Corporation replaced all of its 75 interest rate swapswith anotional
amount of $781.65 million due to a credit event affecting its
counterparties. Two new counterparties have provided the
Corporation with replacement swaps in the same notiona amount,
with the same maturity dates and at the samefixed payer ratesasthe
origina swap agreements. In connection with the swap
replacements, a premium of $8.903 million was received. This
premium is represented in the financial statements as deferred
revenue and isbeing amortized over thelife of the swap agreements.
The ability to acquire replacement swaps demonstrates a strong
mitigating factor associated with credit and fair value risks.

Basis Risk — The Corporation’s tax-exempt variable-rate bond
coupon payments have historically been substantially the same as
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the SIFMA rate. Its taxable variable-rate bond coupon payments
have historically been substantially the same asthe LIBOR rate. As
theinterest rate swaps pay avariable rate based on the SIFMA rate
(tax-exempt debt), or the LIBOR rate (taxable debt), the
Corporation therefore has limited exposure to basis risk except as
disclosed under the Tax/Cross-over Risk.

Tax / Cross-over Risk — Forty-nine of the Corporation’s SIFMA
based swaps are exposed to additional basisrisk if theLIBOR rateis
3.5 percent or greater and in some cases 4 percent or greater. When
theLIBOR rateisgreater than 3.5 percent or 4 percent, the provider
will pay the Corporation 68 percent of the LIBOR rate, rather than
the SIFMA rate. Historically, on average, 68 percent of the LIBOR
rate has been substantially the same asthe Corporation’ stax-exempt
variable-rate bond coupon payments. However, thisrelationship has
been subject to more basis risk than the relationship between
SIFMA and the Corporations tax-exempt variable-rate bond
payments.

Termination Risk — The Corporation or the counterparty may
terminate any of the swapsif the other party fails to perform under
thetermsof the contract. Inaddition, the Corporation hastheoption
to terminate at any time at market rates (i.e., fair value adjusted for
the counterparty’s transaction costs).
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Rollover Risk — The Corporation is exposed to rollover risk on
swaps that mature or may be terminated prior to the maturity of
the associated debt. When these swaps terminate, or in the case of
the termination option, the Corporation will not realize the
synthetic rate offered by the swaps on the underlying debt issues.
As of June 30, 2009, the Corporation’s swap termination dates
ranged from O to 24.5 years prior to the maturity dates of the
associated debt.

NOTE 4. INVESTMENT POOL

The Utah State Treasurer’s Office operates the Public Treasurer’s
Investment Fund (PTIF) investment pool. The PTIF isavailablefor
investment of funds administered by any Utah public treasurer.
Participation is not required and no minimum baance or
minimum/maximum transaction is required. State agencies and
funds that are authorized to earn interest also invest in the PTIF as
an interna investment pool. No separate report as an external
investment pool has been issued for the PTIF.

The PTIF isnot registered with the SEC as an investment company
and is not rated. The PTIF is authorized and regulated by the Utah
Money Management Act, (Utah Code Title 51, Chapter 7). The Act
establishes the Money Management Council, which oversees the

activities of the State Treasurer and the PTIF. The Act lists the
investmentsthat are authorized which are high-grade securitiesand,
therefore, minimizes credit risk except in the most unusua and
unforeseen circumstances.

Depositsinthe PTIF are not insured or otherwise guaranteed by the
State of Utah, and participants share proportionally in any realized
gains or losses on investments.

The PTIF operates and reports to participants on an amortized cost
basis. The income, gains, and losses, net of administration fees, of
the PTIF are alocated to participants on theratio of theparticipant’s
share to the total funds in the PTIF based on the participant’'s
average daily balance. The PTIF allocates income and issues
statements on a monthly basis. Twice a year, a June 30 and
December 31, which are the accounting periods for public entities,
the investments are valued at fair value and participants are
informed of the fair value valuation factor that enables them to
adjust their statement balancesto fair value.

The PTIF condensed financial statements, inclusive of external and
internal participants along with the portfolio statistics for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2009, are as follows:

Public Treasurer’s I nvestment Fund
Satement of Net Assets
June 30, 2009
(Expressed in Thousands)

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivadents..............

Investments

Interest Receivable............coveeueenee..
Total ASSELS......ccvevveneennn.

Net Assets Consist of:

................................. $ 2,544,118

7,012,392

................................. 24,491
................................. $ 9,581,001

External Participant Account Balances..........cccceeeeeceennee
Internal Participant Account Balances:
Primary Government..........ccoceceoeeerenenesesesesenens
Component UNItS........cocooereeirieneneneseseese e
Undistributed Reserves and Unrealized Gains/L0sses......

(Notes continue on next page)

79

6,074,555

3,097,052
405,193
4,201

9,581,001

1.001386
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Public Treasurer’s I nvestment Fund
Satement of Changesin Net Assets
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(Expressed in Thousands)
Additions
Pool Participant DEPOSITS ........ccccvvveveeieveieiieeeesie e $ 10,088,974
Investment Income:
Investment Earnings........ccccoevereenereereeneeneeseseeeenee 173,464
Fair Value Increases (DECreases) .......ccovevvereeneereeenne 45,877
Total Investment INCOME. ........coceuvervicveereiiieeens 219,341
Less Administrative EXpenses.........ccccevveeeeresvenenn (353)
Net Investment INCOME..........oceverererrereeiinenne 218,988
Total AdditionS.......cceeveeeeeeeceee e, 10,307,962
Deductions
Pool Participant Withdrawals...........cccccoevvenievericciceene, 11,207,850
Earnings Distributions...........ccccovvevveiiieiineseseececesea 202,127
Total Deductions..........c.coevvenreenenienennene 11,409,977
Net Increase/(Decrease) From Operations (1,102,015)
Net Assets
Beginning of Year.........cccccvviievieeciceeece e 10,683,016
Net Assets — ENd Of YEar .....cccccovvvvereeeeeeeneninisieienens $ 9,581,001
Public Treasurer’s I nvestment Fund
Portfolio Statistics
June 30, 2009
Range Weighted
of Average
Yields Maturity
Money Market Mutual Fund.............ccccceeeee. 0.13%-1.28% 1.00 days
Certificates of Deposit — Negatiable.............. 1.38% —3.10% 31.94 days
Certificates of Deposit — Nonnegotiable....... 1.25%—-1.80% 56.33 days
U.S. AQENCIES......ocveiririiiieieeeieeee e 1.00%—-1.75% 254.66 days
Corporate Bonds and NOtes...........cccoevvevvenee 0.00 % —8.06 % 65.86 days
Commercial Paper........ccocceeerienineneienenene 0.70 % —1.45 % 29.29 days
June 30, 2009
Weighted Average
Average Adjusted
Yield Maturity
Total Investment Fund...........cccooereierincnnne 1.62 % 50.00 days
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Deposits and I nvestments

The following disclosure of deposits and investments is for the
PTIF, whichincludes external and internal participants. These assets
are aso included in the Note 3 disclosures of deposits and
investments for the primary government. To avoid duplication,
some of the detailed information in Note 3 has not been repeated in
this note.

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

The custodial credit risk for depositsistherisk that inthe event of a
bank failure, the PTIF s deposits may not be recovered. The PTIF
follows the Money Management Act by making deposits only in
qualified financial ingtitutions in accordance with the Act.

The deposits in the bank in excess of the insured amount are
uninsured and uncollateralized. Deposits are not collateralized nor
arethey required to be by state statute. The depositsfor the PTIF at
June 30, 2009, were $3.14 million. Of those, $2.250 million were
exposed to custodial credit risk as uninsured and uncollateralized.

Investments
The PTIF followsthe Money Management Act by investingonly in
securities authorized in the Act. See Note 3 for information on

authorized investments.

The PTIF investments at June 30, 2009, are presented below.

Public Treasurer’s I nvestment Fund | nvestments
(Expressed in Thousands)

Investment Maturities (in years)

Fair Less

Investment Type Value Than 1 1-5
Debt Securities
U.S. AQENCIES ..o $ 73,428 $ 63,402 $ 10,026
Corporate Bonds and Notes............... 6,913,812 6,913,812 —
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit..... 64,843 64,843 —
Money Market Mutual Fund.............. 2,360,000 2,360,000 —
Commercia Paper ........cccevvevceinennn. 174,988 174,988 —

$ 9,587,071 $ 9,577,045 $ 10,026

The magjority of the PTIF's U.S. agencies and corporate debt
securities are variable-rate securities, most of which reset every
three months to the market interest rate. Because these securities
frequently reprice to prevailing market rates, interest rate risk is
substantially reduced at each periodic reset date. In thetable above,
variable-rate securities are presented according to the length of time
until the next reset date rather than the stated maturity.

Interest Rate Risk — Investments
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will

adversely affect the fair value of an investment. The PTIF spolicy
for managing interest rate risk isto comply with the State’s Money

Management Act. See Note 3 for information on requirementsof the
Act related to interest rate risk.

Credit Risk of Debt Securities

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an
investment will not fulfill its obligations. The PTIF follows the
Money Management Act as its policy for reducing exposure to
investment credit risk. The PTIF's rated debt investments as of
June 30, 2009, were rated by Standard and Poor’s and/or an
equival ent nationally recogni zed statistical rating organization and
the ratings are presented below using the Standard and Poor’s
rating scale.

(Notes continue on next page)
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Public Treasurer’s I nvestment Fund Rated Debt I nvestments
(Expressed in Thousands)

Fair Quality Ratings
Rated Debt | nvestments Value AAA AA A BBB
U.S. AQENCIES....ceeeeereecrieeieneeea $ 73,428 $ 73,428 $ — $ — $ —
Corporate Bonds and Notes.......... $ 6,913,812 $ 434,600 $ 1,653,158 $ 4,579,124 $ 45,531
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit $ 64,843 $ — $ 44835 $ 20,008 $ —
Money Market Mutual Fund......... $ 2,360,000 $ 400,000 $ — $ — $ —
Commercial Paper..........cccccueuenee. $ 174,988 $ — $ — $ — $ —
Continues Below
Quality Ratings
Rated Debt I nvestments BB D Al* Not Rated
U.S. AQENCIES....o.oeeeeeeereeeeeeeens $ — % — % — 3 — $ —
Corporate Bonds and Notes.......... $ 60,399 $ 127,500 $ 13,500 $ — $ —
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit $ — % — 3 — 3 — $ —
Money Market Mutual Fund......... $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 1,960,000
Commercial Paper..........cccceueuenee. $ — $ — $ — $ 174,988 $ —

* Alis Commercia Paper rating

Concentration of Credit Risk — Investments

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the
magnitude of a government’s investment in a single issuer. The
PTIF s policy for reducing this risk of loss is to comply with the
Rules of the Money Management Council. Rule 17 of the Money
Management Council limits investments in a single issuer of
commercia paper and corporate obligationsto 5 percent of thetotal

dollar amount held in the portfolio. The Money Management
Council limitations do not apply to securities issued by the U.S.
government and its agencies. The PTIF had no debt securities
investments at June 30, 2009, with more than 5 percent of the total
investmentsin asingle issuer.

(Notes continue on next page.)
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NOTE 5. RECEIVABLES

Receivables as of June 30, 2009, consisted of the following (in thousands):

Accounts Receivable

Notes/

Federal Customer Other Interest Taxes M ortgages
Governmental Activities:
General Fund........ccooeevveeennenrresee $ 36175 $ 201,081 $ 12075 $ 31 $ 187445 $ 2,626
Education Fund............ — — — — 628,326 —
Uniform School Fund... 106,835 4 4,348 — 1,615 9,369
Transportation Fund...........ccccoeeevvenee. 70,612 22,615 1,723 — 57,491 285
Transportation Investment Fund............ — — — — 14,839 —
Trust Lands — — 13,252 1,741 — 15,323
Nonmajor FUNdS..........cccevvevveeeeeeiiennns — 9,392 — 24 — —
Internal Service Funds...........ccocovvreenne — 4,545 — — — —
Adjustments:

Fiduciary Funds..........cccccoeeeninennnnnn. — — 135 — — —
Total Receivables........ccccoeeirvinncenee 533,622 237,637 31,533 1,796 889,716 27,603
Less Allowance for Uncollectibles:

General FuNnd........cocoevveeenenreeereeee — (50,114) — — (22,130) (1,207)
Education FuNnd..........ccoceveeeeienencienns — — — — (110,996) —
Transportation Fund............ccccveuee. — — (361) — (1,124) —
Transportation Investment Fund — — — — (2,176) —
Receivables, net .........cccccveenienncene $ 533622 $ 187523 $ 31172 $ 1,796 $ 753290 $ 26,396
Current Receivables........cccoceoveeninnnne. $ 533622 $ 166543 $ 18498 $ 1,796 $ 657614 $ 3,054
Noncurrent Receivables........................ — 20,980 12,674 — 95,676 23,342
Total Receivables, Nt .......ccooeveereenneee. $ 533622 $ 187523 $ 31172 $ 1,796 $ 753290 $ 26,396
Business-typeAdctivities:

Student Assistance Programs ................ $ 10146 $ 1,786 $ — $ 37178 % — $ 2,399,202
Unemployment Compensation... 3,065 68,873 — — — —
Water Loan Programs..........cccceeeeeeniene — 114 — 10,366 — 611,446
Nonmaor FUNAS........cccoceeererenrieerieens 831 11,141 — 5,458 — 420,179
Total Receivables........ccccoeevrvinnieenee 14,042 81,914 0 53,002 0 3,430,827
Less Allowance for Uncollectibles:

Student Assistance Programs................. — — — — — (3,719)
Unemployment Compensation — (7,269) — — — —
Receivables, net .........cccccveeviinncene $ 14042 $ 74645 $ 0 $ 53002 $ 0 $ 3,427,108

Accounts receivable balances are an aggregation of amounts due
from the federal government, customers, and others. Receivables
from customersinclude charges for servicesto local governments,
fees and fines issued by the courts and corrections, employer
contributionsfor unemployment benefits, and recelvablesasaresult
of overpayments to individuals receiving state assistance.

Receivablesfor fiduciary fundslisted above represent amounts due
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from fiduciary funds that were reclassified as external receivables
on the government-wide Statement of Net Assets.

Aggregated receivables for component unitsat June 30, 2009, were
$1.795 billion for major component units and $65.209 million for
nonmajor component units, net of an alowance for doubtful
accounts of $155.082 million and $5.911 million, respectively.
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NOTE 6.

ACCOUNTSPAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities as of June 30, 2009, consisted of the following (in thousands):

Salaries/ Service Vendors/ Tax
Benefits Providers Other Government  Refunds Interest Total

Governmental Activities:
General Fund........ccooeveveeieecieceenn, $ 55860 $ 248083 $ 3648 $ 72914 $ 2129 $ — $ 415472
Education Fund...........ccoeeeeeveeveeenneee. — — — — 35,094 — 35,094
Uniform School Fund..........ccce...... 2,899 1,638 16,326 96,337 — — 117,200
Transportation Fund...........cccccccenve... 5,811 49 128,050 41,876 2,595 — 178,381
Nonmajor FUNdS..........cccererenerenenen. 98 — 35,950 578 — 29,781 66,407
Internal Service Funds..........cccueeuee. 5,695 — 14,130 — — 5 19,830
Adjustments:

Fiduciary Funds..........cccccoevviunnnne. — — — 5,085 — — 5,085

(0121 ST — — — — — 903 903
Total Governmental Activities.......... $ 70363 $ 249770 $ 230942 $ 216,790 $ 39818 $ 30689 $ 838,372
Business-typeActivities:
Student Assistance Programs............ $ 1712 % — $ 7146 $ 10345 $ — $ 4212 $ 23415
Unemployment Compensation ......... — 2,022 — 744 — — 2,766
Water Loan Programs...........ccceeuee.e. — — 1,347 — — — 1,347
Nonmajor FUNdS..........ccceeeeverereeennen. 2,163 — 12,234 1,968 — 476 16,841
Adjustments:

Fiduciary Funds.........cccccceeenennene — — — — — — —
Total Business-typeActivities........... $ 385 $ 2022 $ 20727 $ 13057 $ 0 $ 468 $ 44369

Accounts payable and accrued liability balances are an aggregation
of amounts due to: (1) state employees for salaries/benefits; (2)
service providersfor childcare, job servicesand health services; (3)
vendors and miscellaneous suppliers; (4) loca and federal
governments for services; (5) individuals and others as a result of
tax overpayments; and (6) interest due on bonds and other
obligations.

Adjustmentsfor fiduciary fundslisted above represent amountsdue
to fiduciary fundsthat were reclassified as external payableson the
government-wide Statement of Net Assets. Other adjustments are
due to differences in the presentation and the basis of accounting
between the fund financial statements and the government-wide
Statement of Net Assets.

(Notes continue on next page.)
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NOTE 7. INTERFUND BALANCESAND LOANS

Interfund Balances

Interfund balances at June 30, 2009, consisted of the following (in
thousands):

Dueto Genera Fund from:

Uniform School Fund..........ocoeeeiininnneceeene $ 132
Transportation Fund 1,176
Trust Lands FuNd .......ccooveieveeieneee e 33
Nonmajor Governmental Funds..............cccceeeeee. 1,894
Unemployment Compensation Fund.... 11,382
Water Loan Programs..........cccceeeeeerenieesenieeneenns 212
Nonmgjor Enterprise Funds 20,439
Internal Service Funds............ 2,041
Fiduciary FUnds...........cooovvvievieveeieicece e 72
Total due to General Fund from
OtNEN FUNTS ... $ 37,381
Due to Education Fund from
Unemployment Compensation Fund..................... $ 1572
Due to Uniform School Fund from:
Genera FUNd.......cccooovvneeeise e $ 319
Internal Service FUNGS..........cccocvveeneennenenienn 3
Total due to Uniform School Fund from
Other fUNAS ......ceeoveeeee e $ 322
Due to Transportation Fund from:
Genera FUNd.......cccooovvneeiinne e $ 446
Uniform School Fund...........ccccoeeniinnienciinne 3
Transportation Investment Fund.............cccccceue. 19,872
Nonmajor Governmental Funds..............cccveueeee. 1
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds............ccccooevveneneeneee 3
Internal Service FUNAS..........cccoeeveeveciesecieies 86
Total due to Transportation Fund from
Other fUNAS ...c.oveveieee e $ 20411
Dueto Trust Lands Fund from
Nonmajor Enterprise FUNds...........ccccceevevereerneee. $ 2976
Due to Nonmajor Governmental Funds from:
General FUNd.........coooveuveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 840
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds...........ccccceevvviiennenen. 480
Internal Service FUNGS..........cccoccveenvenncneniene 105
Fiduciary FUNdS..........cccooeivievierieiecce e 27
Total due to Nonmajor Governmental Funds from
OtNEN FUNAS ..o $ 1452
Due to Water Loan Programs from:
Genera FUNd.......cccooovvneeiie e $ 49
Trust Lands Fund 31
Total due to Water Loan Programs
fromother funds ...........c.coveveveceeeeeeeeeee $ 80

Due to Nonmajor Enterprise Funds from:

Genera FUNd ........cooeieininneeeeesseee e $ 262
Uniform School Fund ..o 28
Transportation Fund............cccccee.... 3
Nonmajor Governmental Funds. 27,533
Water Loan Programs .........ccceceeeeenerieenieseenienee 24
Total due to Nonmajor Enterprise Funds from -
OtNEN FUNDS. ...t $ 27,850
Dueto Interna Service Funds from:
Genera FUNd ........cooeeienirineec s $ 20,606
Uniform School Fund...........ccccocvieeveccieviecnee, 146
Transportation Fund............ccoceeeieinienicncneneens 4,675
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 442
Nonmajor Enterprise FUNdS..........ccccceeeverenennnns 307
Internal Service FUNdS ........ccccovvevniinncncniencne 26
Fiduciary FUNAS.........ccoovvvievieieieecece e 36
Total dueto Internal Service Funds from
OtNEN FUNDS ..ot $ 26,238
Due to Fiduciary Funds from:
GENEral FUND ... $ 3761
Uniform School Fund ... 145
Transportation Fund...........cccceveveevieiecieneceseen 468
Nonmajor Governmental Funds..............cccceu.n. 711
Total due to Fiduciary Funds from
OtNEN FUNDS. ...t $ 5085
Total Due to/DUEfromS .......ccvueeeriririrereeieieeeens $ 123,367

These balances resulted from the time lags between the dates
that: (1) interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable
expenditures occur; (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting
system; and (3) payments between funds are made.

Interfund Loans

Interfund loans at June 30, 2009, consisted of the following (in
thousands):

Payable to Genera Fund from

Internal Service FUNAS..........covveeiriniririeiceenes $ 34,899
Payable to Uniform School Fund from

Internal Service FUNdS.........cccoovveerncrnencnienne 34
Total Interfund Loans Receivable/Payable ............ 34,933

The interfund loans receivable/payable balances consist of
revolving loanswith Internal Service Funds. The balance payable
to the General Fund from Internal Service Funds of $34.9 million
includes $7.696 million that is not expected to be repaid within
one year.

(Notes continue on next page.)
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NOTE 8. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2009, was as follows (in thousands):

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance

Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets Not being Depreciated:

Land and Related ASSELS .....c.coveeveeereccnecrieeen $ 908,448 $ 187,822 $ (8,058) $ 1,088,212

INFrastrUCtUNE ..o 7,976,676 1,475,658 (45,481) 9,406,853

Construction-1N-Progress...........ccoeeeeeeeeieneeennens 1,557,346 932,181 (1,696,415) 793,112
Total Capital Assets Not being Depreciated.............. 10,442,470 2,595,661 (1,749,954) 11,288,177
Capital Assets being Depreciated:

Buildings and Improvements...........cccceevververienne. 1,457,138 82,944 (6,011) 1,534,071

INFIraSrUCUIE ... 47,215 1,652 (18) 48,849

Machinery and EQUipment...........ccccoeeeeeeeeeneneens 512,078 38,859 (39,437) 511,500
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated .................... 2,016,431 123,455 (45,466) 2,094,420
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:

Buildings and Improvements...........ccccceoevereninnns (460,935) (40,063) 2,766 (498,232)

INfrastruCture .........oooeeeeeeeeeeere e (10,188) (1,673) 18 (11,843)

Machinery and EQUipment...........cccceeeeeeeeenennnns (360,496) (33,111) 35,647 (357,960)
Total Accumulated Depreciation...........ccocvveeervenene. (831,619) (74,847) 38,431 (868,035)
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated, Net............. 1,184,812 48,608 (7,035) 1,226,385

Capital ASSELS, NEL.......cvveeereeeeeereeeeree e $11,627,282 $2,644,269 $(1,756,989) $12,514,562

Business-typeActivities:
Capital Assets Not being Depreciated:

Land and Related ASSELS........coeireeeniecnieinieieenn $ 13216 $ 4,714 $ — $ 17,930

Construction-1N-Progress.........c.oeeveeveenecneenes 1,299 1,993 (1,172) 2,120
Total Capital Assets Not being Depreciated.............. 14,515 6,707 (1,272) 20,050
Capital Assets being Depreciated:

Buildings and Improvements............ccccoevevveeenenne. 54,887 7,521 — 62,408

INFrastruCture .......ocoevveeereeirecere e 304 — — 304

Machinery and EQUipment..........coccoeveerrenennenenn 15,576 196 (651) 15,121
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated .................... 70,767 7,717 (651) 77,833
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:

Buildings and Improvements...........ccccceevevveenunne. (11,760) (1,620) — (13,380)

INfraStrUCtUre ....ocveveeeeeecccee e (67) (6) — (73)

Machinery and EQUipment...........ccccoeeeeeereneneees (12,434) (633) 644 (12,423)
Total Accumulated Depreciation...........ccocceeeeereeeene. (24,261) (2,259) 644 (25,876)
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated, Net............. 46,506 5,458 @) 51,957

Capital ASSetS, NEt.......ccovveereiieerreeeeiene $ 61,021 $ 12,165 $ (1,179) $ 72,007

Construction-in-progress  of governmental activities includes and universities. For fiscal year 2009, $154.276 million of buildings
amounts for buildings the State is constructing for colleges and were completed for colleges and universities. On the government-
universities (component units) that are funded by state wide statement of activities, thebuilding “transfers’ arereported as
appropriations or state bond proceeds. As the buildings are higher education expenses of governmental activities and as
completed, the applicable amounts are del eted from construction-in- program revenues of component units.

progress of governmental activitiesand “transferred” to the colleges
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Depreciation expense of governmental activities was charged to functions as follows (in thousands):

General GOVEMNMENE ..........coeiviireereireieieeee e ereenes $ 13,722
Human Services and Youth Corrections.................... 5,682
CorrectionS, AdUlt ........c..eeeieeeeieieee e 6,221
PUDIIC SAfELY ...t 4,820
(@01 ¥ g £ 5,371
Health and Environmental Quality..........cccceevveennenne. 2,098
Employment and Family Services...........ccccveevennen. 2,160
Natural RESOUICES........cccveriereireeiecreecee et 7,579
Community and Culture...........ccceevveeveeeeiecesesiene 421
Business, Labor, and Agriculture..........cccoeevnenene. 928
Public EQUCALION .........ccvveeveecieeectee e 838
TranSPOrtation ......cc.eceeeeeeeeceese e 8,612

Depreciation on capital assets of the State's internal
service fundsis charged to the various functions
based on their usage of services provided............. 16,395

Discretely Presented Component Units

The following table summarizes net capital assets reported by the discretely presented component units (in thousands):

Public
Utah Employees University Utah Nonmajor
Housing Health of Sate Component
Corporation Program Utah University Units Total

Capital Assets Not being Depreciated:

Land and Other ASSELS .......covvvevrerieenienne $ 1,472 $ — $ 18550 $ 17,092 $ 86,082 $ 123196

Construction-In-Progress...........cccceeveeenene — — 251,339 14,052 29,530 294,921
Total Capital Assets Not being Depreciated .. 1,472 0 269,889 31,144 115,612 418,117
Capital Assets being Depreciated:

Building and Improvements...................... 5,064 — 1,540,607 610,938 1,268,841 3,425,450

INfrastruCture.........coovevervenerec e — — 178,243 — 36,868 215,111

Machinery and Equipment ...........c.cccoeue.. 1,695 1,793 837,108 194,767 188,750 1,224,113
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated......... 6,759 1,793 2,555,958 805,705 1,494,459 4,864,674
Less Total Accumulated Depreciation........... (1,833) (1,526) (1,246,969) (346,186) (562,413) (2,158,927)
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated, Net . 4,926 267 1,308,989 459,519 932,046 2,705,747
Discretely Presented Component Units—

Capital Assets, NEt ....coveeeereerreeeceeene $ 6,398 $ 267 $ 1,578,878 $ 490,663 $1,047,658 $ 3,123,864

(Continues on next page.)
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The State had long-term construction project commitmentstotaling $221.003 million at June 30, 2009. The following construction projects have
remaining commitments and represent reservations of fund balance in the Capital Projects Funds (nonmajor governmental funds):

Capital Projects Fund

Construction Project Commitments

(Expressed in Thousands)

Remaining

Construction

Project Description Commitment
02243750 U of U — New Museum of Natural History $ 54,639
06292700 USU — USTAR Life Sciences Building 25,506
06291750 U of U — USTAR Neuroscience & Biomedica Technology 23,635
08273770 USU —Verna Bingham Entrepreneurship 16,910
07258700 Snow — Library/Classroom Building 9,722
08008770 USU — Early Childhood Research Center 9,355
07268300 Multi Agency Office Building 7,625
07042390 Unified State Lab Facility 6,855
06281150 St. George Courthouse 6,578
07260750 U of U — Nursing Building Renovation/Expansion 6,385
06272750 U of U — Eccles School of Business 5,024
05174250 UBATC Verna Branch Building 2,456
07292900 UDOT — New Hurricane Maintenance Station 2,209
05225750 U of U — Hospital Expansion 2,149
07030550 POST Academy Remodel 1,952
09024670 SLCC — Center for New Media 1,609
07354100 Corrections — Lone Peak Facility Security Control System 1,309
08228030 ABC — New Hurricane Store 1,289
02156050 State Capitol Restoration 1,274
08227030 ABC — New Cedar City Store 1,272
08032470 UNG — Vernal, Camp Williams, American Fork, Price Armories 1,263
07297730 SUU — Gibson Science Center Addition 1,139
08211900 UDQT - Parleys Canyon Maintenance Station Replacement 1,118
08231110 CUCF - 192 Bed Expansion 1,100
— All Others 28,630
Total Commitments $ 221,003

(Notes continue on next page.)
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NOTE 9. LEASE COMMITMENTS

The State leases office buildings and office and computer
equipment. Although the leasetermsvary, most | eases are subject to
annual appropriations from the State Legidature to continue the
lease obligations. If an appropriation is reasonably assured, leases
are considered noncancellable for financial reporting purposes.

Leases, that in substance are purchases, are reported ascapital lease
obligations. In the government-wide financial statements and
proprietary fund financial statements, assetsand liabilitiesresulting
from capital |easesare recorded at theinception of theleaseat either
the lower of fair value or the present value of the future minimum
lease payments. The principal portion of |ease paymentsreducesthe
liability, and the interest portion is expensed.

On the governmental fund financial statements, both the principal
and interest portions of capital lease payments are recorded as
expenditures of the applicable governmental function.

The primary government’s capital lease payments were $1.569
millionin principal and $1.09 million ininterest for fiscal year 2009.
As of June 30, 2009, the historical cost of the primary government’s
assets acquired through capital leases was $25.812 million of which

$24.274 millionwas buildingsand $1.538 million was equipment and
other depreciable assets. As of June 30, 2009, the accumulated
depreciation of the primary government’s assets acquired through
capital leases was $9.01 million of which $8.173 million was
buildings and $837 thousand was equipment and other depreciable
asSets.

Operating leases contain various renewal options, as well as some
purchase options. However, due to the nature of the leases, they do
not qualify as capital leases and therelated assets and liabilitiesare
not recorded. Any escalation clauses, sublease rentals, and
contingent rentswere considered immaterial to thefuture minimum
lease payments and current rental expenditures. Operating lease
payments are recorded as expenditures or expenses when paid or
incurred.

Operating lease expenditures for fiscal year 2009 were $33.941
million for the primary government and $27.911 million for
component units. For fiscal year 2008, the operating lease
expenditureswere $30.378 million for the primary government and
$33.494 million for component units. Future minimum lease
commitmentsfor noncancellable operating | eases and capital leases
as of June 30, 2009, were as follows:

Future Minimum L ease Commitments
(Expressed in Thousands)

Operating L eases Capital Leases
Primary Component Primary Component
Fiscal Year Government Units Total Government Units Total

2010......crirerenene $ 23289 $ 29,538 $ 52,827 $ 2,564 $ 16,642 $ 19,206
2011....coiiiene 18,754 27,691 46,445 2,206 14,283 16,489
2012.....coiirerne 14,428 24,334 38,762 1,885 11,679 13,564
2013....ccovire 11,308 21,491 32,799 1,840 8,976 10,816
2014.....coovirne 6,358 19,976 26,334 1,871 5,019 6,890
2015-20109........... 9,363 73,869 83,232 8,424 11,396 19,820
2020-2024........... 2,037 41,344 43,381 6,946 6,699 13,645
2025-2029........... 10 14,222 14,232 957 672 1,629
2030-2034........... 10 3,089 3,099 — — —
2035-2039........... 10 2,625 2,635 — — —
2040-2044............ 10 — 10 — — —
2045-2049.......... 10 — 10 — — —
2050-2054........... 10 — 10 — — —
2055-2060........... 7 — 7 — — —
Total Future

Minimum Lease

Payments $ 85604 $ 258,179 $343,783 26,693 75,366 102,059
Less Amounts Representing INtEreSt .........oovveveeieeeieieceseceseeeeeeee e (7,483) (11,554) (19,037)
Present Value of Future Minimum Lease Payments...........cccceeeeveeievecesenenenas $ 19,210 $ 63,812 $ 83,022
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NOTE 10. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
A. Changesin Long-term Liabilities

Changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2009, are presented in the following table. As referenced below, certain long-
term liabilities are discussed in other Notes to the Financial Statements.

Long-term Liabilities
(Expressed in Thousands)

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental Activities
General Obligation Bonds...........ccovveerevnenenennens $ 1,161,510 $ 498,810 $ (167,700) $ 1,492,620 $ 175,490
State Building Ownership Authority
Lease Revenue Bonds..........ccccevveeeieeneninsiennens 161,614 — (12,960) 148,654 13,620
Net Unamortized Premiums..........ccccevvenireneniennn 51,011 45,445 (15,494) 80,962 —
Deferred Amount on Refunding..........ccceeveevevieeenene (13,621) — 3,470 (10,151) —
Capital Leases (NOtE€9)....ccovrvevreeereeererereseereenens 18,769 2,010 (1,569) 19,210 1,584
Contracts Payable .........cccoooeieiriniieie e 559 — 47) 512 28
Compensated Absences (Notes 1 and 17)* ............. 186,581 54,120 (78,012) 162,689 77,720
ClaiMS. ..ot 41,285 11,980 (9,615) 43,650 16,711
Pollution Remediation Obligation** 7,842 942 (1,097) 7,687 61
Net Other Post Employment Benefit Obligation..... — 3,918 — 3,918 —
Total Governmental Long-term Liabilities.................. $ 1,615,550 $ 617,225 $ (283,024) $ 1,949,751 $ 285214
Business-typeActivities
Revenue BONAS.........cocoueerieirenieesee e $ 2,165,180 $ 191,500 $ (121,358) $ 2,235,322 $ 268,110
State Building Ownership Authority
Lease Revenue Bonds..........cccovveevveeenieerieenennns 50,246 25,505 (2,075) 73,676 2,360
Net Unamortized Premiums.........ccccoeeceeeeeeeeecsenenn. 1,117 587 (213) 1,491 —
Deferred Amount on Refunding.........ccccceeveveennenne. (318) — 51 (267) —
Contracts/Notes Payable..........ccccovveverieciceciennn, — 297,381 — 297,381 297,381
Claims and Uninsured Liahilities............cccccoeviennene 5,786 500,181 (491,026) 14,941 13,136
Arbitrage Liability (NOt€ 1) .....cceovvvverivirieieienes 65,945 — (8,163) 57,782 44
Total Business-type Long-term Liabilities.................. $ 2,287,956 $ 1,015,154 $ (622,784) $ 2,680,326 $ 581,031
Component Units
Revenue BoNnds..........ccoeereeniniennienineeneeseeieenas $ 2,238,461 $ 179,702 $ (229,813) $ 2,188,350 $ 157,522
Net Unamortized Premiums/(Discounts) ................ 1,928 603 (91) 2,440 (512)
Capita Leases/Contracts Payable (Notes 9 and 10) 76,335 9,544 (15,921) 69,958 15,538
Notes Payable ........ccoccovrerieeenerereeee e 45,271 4,498 (4,590) 45,179 5,086
ClaiMS. ..ot 124,445 586,863 (589,351) 121,957 69,997
Leave/Termination Benefits (Note 1).........ceeeee. 95,953 82,755 (59,838) 118,870 34,034
Total Component Unit Long-term Liabilities.............. $ 2,582,393 $ 863,965 $ (899,604) $ 2,546,754 $ 281,665

*  Compensated absences of governmental activities are liquidated in the Genera Fund, Uniform School Fund, or Transportation Fund
according to the applicable employing state agency. Claims liabilities of governmental activities are liquidated in the Risk
Management Internal Service Fund.

** Under the federal Superfund law, the State is responsible for sharing remediation costs at sites where the Environmenta Protection
Agency expends Superfund trust monies for cleanup. Currently there are seven sites in various stages of cleanup, from initial
assessment to cleanup activities. The pollution remediation ligbilities associated with these sites were measured using the actual
contract cost, where no changes in cost are expected, or the expected cash flow technique. Liability estimates are subject to change
due to price increases or reductions, technology, or changes in applicable laws or regulations governing the remediation efforts. The
State does not anticipate recovering reimbursements from the parties who caused the pollution.

B. General Obligation Bonds obligation bonds have been issued to refund general obligation

bonds, revenue bonds, and capitalized |eases. General obligation

The State issues genera obligation bonds to provide funds for
acquisition, construction, and renovation of maor capital
facilities and for highway construction. In addition, general
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State had $233.841 million and $3.049 hillion of authorized but authorizations remaining, respectively. General obligation bonds
unissued general obligation building and highway bond payable information is presented bel ow.

General Obligation Bonds Payable
(Expressed in Thousands)

Date Maturity Interest Original Balance
Bond Issue Issued Date Rate Issue June 30, 2009
2001 B Highway/Capita Facility Issue............. 07/02/01 2004-2009 4.50 % $ 348,000 $ 37,650
2002 A Highway/Capital Facility Issue............. 06/27/02 2003-2011 3.00 %10 5.25 % $ 281,200 18,075
2002 B Refunding ISSUE.........covvveereeeriene e 07/31/02 2004-2012 3.00 %10 5.38 % $ 253,100 221,125
2003 A Highway/Capital Facility Issue............. 06/26/03 2005-2013 2.00 % to 5.00 % $ 407,405 234,125
2004 A Refunding ISSUE........cccveeveeeerieereeeeenns 03/02/04 20102016 4.00 % to 5.00 % $ 314,775 314,775
2004 B Highway/Capital Facility Issue............. 07/01/04 2005-2019 4.75 %10 5.00 % $ 140,635 101,660
2007 Highway/Capital Facility Issue................ 07/03/07 2008-2014 4.00 % to 5.00 % $ 75,000 66,400
2009 A Highway ISSUE. .......ccevrereeniriirieeienes 03/17/09 20102023 2.00 % to0 5.00 % $ 394,360 394,360
2009 B Capital Facility ISSUE.......c.cccevevreenennne 05/19/09 2010-2015 4.00 % $ 104,450 104,450
Total Genera Obligation
Bonds Outstanding.........c.ccoeeeeeeceniennnns 1,492,620
Plus Unamortized Bond Premium............. 79,591
Less Deferred Amount on Refunding........ (9,396)
Total General Obligation
Bonds Payable..........ccccceeeeviieeeicreinne $ 1,562,815
General Obligation Bond I ssues
Debt Service Requirementsto Maturity
For Fiscal Years Ended June 30
(Expressed in Thousands)
Principal
2001 B 2002 A 2003 A 2004 B 2007
Highway/ Highway/ 2002 B Highway/ 2004 A Highway/ Highway/
Fiscal Capital Capital Refunding Capital Refunding Capital Capital
Year Facility Facility Bonds Facility Bonds Facility Facility
2010.....cee.. $ 37,650 $ 5,750 $ 50,835 $ 61,125 $ — $ 11,180 $ 8,950
2011 ... — 6,000 53,670 50,025 39,310 25,755 10,185
2012. ............. — 6,325 56,705 15,100 40,830 30,600 15,030
2013....ccovnne — — 59,915 52,575 11,245 3,575 10,300
2014 ... — — — 55,300 18,480 3,750 10,720
2015-2019 .... — — — — 204,910 21,775 11,215
20202024 ... — — — — — 5,025 —
Total ...... $ 37,650 $ 18,075 $221,125 $234,125 $ 314,775 $ 101,660 $ 66,400
Continues Below
Principal
2009B
2009A Capital Total Total Total
Fiscal Highway Facility Principal I nterest Amount
Year Bond Bonds Required Required Required
2010.....ccoeeee $ — $ — $ 175,490 $ 63,100 $ 238,590
2011 ... 23,665 450 209,060 52,783 261,843
2012. ... 23,680 19,175 207,445 42,945 250,390
2013....ccoveee 23,680 19,950 181,240 34,434 215,674
2014.............. 23,680 20,775 132,705 28,292 160,997
2015-2019.... 124,740 44,100 406,740 68,621 475,361
20202024 .... 174,915 — 179,940 21,249 201,189
Totd ...... $ 394,360 $ 104,450 $ 1,492,620 $ 311,424 $ 1,804,044
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C. RevenueBonds

Revenue honds payable consists of those issued by the Utah State
Building Ownership Authority, the Utah State Board of Regents
Student Loan Purchase Program, the Utah Housing Corporation,
and various colleges and universities. These bonds are not
considered general obligations of the State.

Governmental Activities

The Utah State Building Ownership Authority (SBOA) has issued
bonds for the purchase and congtruction of facilities to be leased to
state agencies and other organizations. The bonds are secured by the
facilities and repayment is made from lease income gppropriated by
the Legidature and is not considered pledged revenue of the State.
The outstanding bonds payable a June 30, 2009 are reported as a
long-term liability of the governmenta activities, except for $72.504
million and $2.359 million and which are reported in the Alcohalic
Beverage Control Fund, and the Utah Correctiona Industries Fund
(nonmgjor enterprise funds), respectively. These portions are reported
as liahilities of the businesstype activities on the government-wide
statement of net assets.

Business-typeActivities

The Utah State Board of Regents Student Loan Purchase Program
(Student Assistance Programs) bonds were issued to provide funds
for student loans and are secured by al assets of the Board of
Regents Revenue Bond Funds and by the revenues and receipts
derived from such assets. The Board of Regents has dso issued a
revenue bond for an office facility secured by funds within the
Board of Regents budget that would otherwise be expended for rent.

The Student Assistance Programs include $566.802 million of
bonds bearing interest at an adjustable rate, which is determined
weekly by a remarketing agent. The Programs bonds aso include
adjustable rate bonds that are set by an auction procedure every
28 days in the amount of $847.1 million and $807.725 million of
bonds that are auctioned every 35 days.

The Student Assistance Programs bonds issued under the 1988
Trust Estate are limited obligations of the Board secured by and
payable solely from the Trust Estate established by the Indenture.
The bonds were issued to finance eligible student loans. The Trust
Estate consists of: Student loans acquired under the indenture; all
proceeds of the bonds and net revenues in the funds and accounts;
and any other property pledged to the Trust Estate. The Board has
pledged these assets and net revenues to repay $482.902 million
of outstanding student loan revenue bonds which are payable

through 2044. The total principal and interest remaining to be
paid on the bonds is discussed below. Principa and interest paid
for the current year and total net revenues before interest expense
were $142.55 million and $20.316 million, respectively.

The Student Assistance Program’s bonds issued under the 1993
Trust Estate are limited obligations of the Board secured by and
payable solely from the Trust Estate established by the Indenture.
The bonds were issued to finance eligible student loans. The Trust
Estate consists of student loans acquired under the indenture, all
proceeds of the bonds and net revenues in the funds and accounts,
and any other property pledged to the Trust Estate. The Board has
pledged these assets and net revenues to repay $1.552 hillion of
outstanding student loan revenue bonds which are payable
through 2046. The total principa and interest remaining to be
paid on the bonds is discussed below. Principa and interest paid
for the current year and total net revenues before interest expense
were $43.592 million and $37.638 million, respectively.

The Student Assistance Program’s bonds issued under the 2008
Trust Estate are limited obligations of the Board secured by and
payable solely from the Trust Estate established by the Indenture.
The bonds were issued to finance eligible student loans. The Trust
Estate consists of student loans acquired under the indenture, all
proceeds of the bonds and net revenues in the funds and accounts,
and any other property pledged to the Trust Estate. The Board has
pledged these assets and net revenues to repay $191.5 million of
outstanding student loan revenue bonds which are payable
through 2009. The total principal and interest remaining to be
paid on the bonds is discussed below. Principa and interest paid
for the current year and total net loss before interest expense were
$485.449 thousand and $393.087 thousand, respectively.

Discrete Component Units

The Utah Housing Corporation revenue bonds were issued to
provide sources of capital for making housing loans to persons of
low or moderate income. Bonds repayments are made from the
pledged mortgage payments.

The University of Utah, Utah State University and nonmajor
component units issued revenue bonds for various capital
purposes including student housing, special events centers,
student union centers, and hospital and research facilities. The
bonds are secured by pledged student building fees and other
income of certain college activities.

Information on pledged revenues for discrete component units for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, is presented below.

(Table on next page.)
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Pledged Revenue — Component Units

(Expressed in Thousands)

Utah University Utah Nonmajor
Housing of Sate Component
Corporation Utah University Units
Type of Revenue Pledged* .........cccovevevnene. D A,B,C A,B A
Amount of Pledged Revenue ........................ $3,037,160 $420,844 $156,262 $124,190
Term of CoOmMMItMENt .......ccoevverrieerecrieiene Thru 2050 Thru 2032 Thru 2035 Thru 2033
Percent of Revenue Pledged...... 100.00 % 100.00 % 100.00 % 100.00 %
Current Year Pledged Revenue $ 108,866 $109,050 $ 26,337 $ 10,461
Current Year Principal and Interest Paid ...... $ 262,900 $ 54,849 $ 7,184 $ 8,555
*Type of Revenue Pledged:
A = Student and housing fees, auxiliary net revenues from bookstores, parking, stadium and event
centers, and other campus generated charges and fees.
B = Research net revenue generated from the recovery of alocated facilities and administrative
rates to grants and contracts.
C = Hogpital and clinic net revenues from providing various health and psychiatric services to the
community.
D = Principal and interest repayments from issuing and servicing mortgage loans on single and
multi-family housing.
Revenue Bonds Payable — Primary Gover nment
(Expressed in Thousands)
Date Maturity Interest Original Balance
Bond Issue Issued Date Rate Issue June 30, 2009
Governmental Activities
SBOA L ease Revenue Bonds:
Series 1992 A 07/15/92 1993-2011 5.30 %10 5.75 % $ 26,200 $ 6,190
Series 1992 B..... 07/15/92 19942011 4.00 % to 6.00 % $ 1,380 335
Series 1993A ... 12/01/93 1995-2013 4.50 %10 5.25 % $ 6,230 1,835
Series 1998 C.... 08/15/98 20002019 3.80 % to 5.50 % $ 101,557 77,500
Series 2001 A ... 11/21/01 20052021 4.00 % to 5.00 % $ 69,850 5,350
Series2001 B .... 11/21/01 2002-2024 3.00 %10 5.75 % $ 14,240 11,670
Series 2003......ccvrrrrereeesee e 12/30/03 20052025 2.00 % to 5.00 % $ 20,820 16,310
SErieS2004 A ... 10/26/04 20052027 3.00 %10 5.25 % $ 32,458 29,464
Total Lease Revenue Bonds Outstanding.. 148,654
Plus Unamortized Bond Premium............. 1,371
Less Deferred Amount on Refunding........ (755)
Total Lease Revenue Bonds Payable..... $ 149,270
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Revenue Bonds Payable — Primary Gover nment
(Expressed in Thousands)

Date Maturity Interest Original Balance
Bond I ssue | ssued Date Rate I ssue June 30, 2009

Business-typeActivities

Sudent Assistance Programs:
1988 Trust Estate

Student Loan Indentures................... 19882005 20052044 Variable $ 504,985 $ 482,902
1993 Trust Estate
Student Loan Indentures................... 1993-2006  2009-2046 Variable and $1,556,790 1,551,900
2008 Trust Estate 4.45 %10 4.55 %
Student Loan Indentures................... 2008 2042-2048 Variable $ 191,500 191,500
Office Facility Bond Fund..................... 2002,2004  2003-2024 3.00%t05.25% $ 11,780 9,020
Total Revenue Bonds Outstanding............ 2,235,322
Plus Unamortized Bond Premium............. 37
Total Revenue Bonds Payable................... $ 2,235,359
SBOA L ease Revenue Bonds:
SerieS 1998 C....ovvvevveereeeriecriee e 08/15/98 20002019 3.80 % t0 5.50 % $ 3543 $ 2,915
Series2001 B.....c.oevveireeeeeeee 11/21/01 2004-2023 3.25%105.25% $ 11,540 9,020
SerieS 2003 ... 12/30/03 2005-2025 2.00 % to 5.00 % $ 1,905 1,545
SerieS2004 Ao 10/26/04 2005-2025 3.00 %10 5.25 % $ 13,347 11,821
SerieS2006 A ..o 01/10/06 20062027 3.50 % to 5.00 % $ 8355 7,785
SerieS 2007 Ao 07/10/07 2009-2028 4.25 %10 5.00 % $ 15,380 15,085
SerieS2009 A ... 03/25/09 20112030 3.00 % to 5.00 % $ 25505 25,505
Total Lease Revenue Bonds Outstanding . 73,676
Plus Unamortized Bond Premium............. 1,454
Less Deferred Amount on Refunding ....... (267)
Total Lease Revenue Bonds Payable........ $ 74,863
Tota Lease Revenue/
Revenue Bonds Payable.................... $ 2,459,492
Revenue Bond | ssues— Primary Gover nment
Debt Service Requirementsto Maturity
For Fiscal Years Ended June 30
(Expressed in Thousands)
Principal
1988 1993 2008 1992 A 1992 B 1993 A 1998 C
Trust Estate Trust Estate Trust Estate Office Utah Sate  Utah Sate Utah Sate  Utah Sate
Sudent Sudent Sudent Facility Building Building Building Building
Fiscal Loan Loan Loan Bond Ownership Ownership Ownership  Ownership
Year Indentures Indentures Indentures Fund Authority  Authority  Authority  Authority
2010......cco..... $ 37,600 $ 38,525 $191,500 $ 485 $1,945 $ 105 $ 425 $7,950
2011......c....e... — — — 510 2,060 110 445 8,410
2012......c.n... — — — 535 2,185 120 470 8,345
2013......conee. — — — 555 — — 495 8,805
2014............... 19,500 — — 585 — — — 9,290
2015-2019..... 298,767 — — 3,365 — — — 37,615
2020-2024...... — 35,000 — 2,985 — — — —
2025-2029..... 20,500 80,000 — — — — — —
2030-2034..... 21,185 179,000 — — — — — —
2035-2039..... 49,500 410,600 — — — — — —
2040-2044...... 35,000 273,775 — — — — — —
2045-2049..... 850 535,000 — — — — — —
Totd ....... $482,902  $1,551,900 $191,500 $9,020 $ 6,190 $ 335 $ 1,835 $80,415

Continues Below
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Principal

2001A 2001 B 2003 2004 A 2006 A 2007 A 2009 A
Utah Sate Utah Sate Utah Sate Utah Sate Utah Sate  Utah Sate  Utah Sate
Building Building Building Building Building Building Building

Fiscal Ownership Ownership Ownership Ownership Ownership  Ownership Ownership
Year Authority  Authority  Authority  Authority  Authority  Authority  Authority
2010.............. $ — $ 1,055 $1,275 $2,405 $ 300 $ 520 $ —
2011............... — 1,090 1,325 2,550 315 545 830
2012 .............. — 1,135 1,375 2,665 325 565 875
2013.............. — 1,175 1,440 2,795 335 585 900
2014 .............. — 1,225 835 2,945 350 610 925
2015-2019..... 5,350 7,030 4,715 14,415 1,975 3,500 5,150
2020-2024 .... — 7,980 5,810 9,720 2,440 4,390 6,550
2025-2029 .... — — 1,080 3,790 1,745 4,370 8,350
2030-2034 .... — — — — — — 1,925
2035-2039 .... — — — — — — —
20402044 .... — — — — — — —
2045-2049 .... — — — — — — —
Totd ...... $5,350 $20,690 $17,855 $41,285 $ 7,785 $15,085 $ 25,505

Continues Below

Total Total

Fiscal Principal Interest Amount
Year Required Required Required
2010.............. $ 284,000 $ 36,101 $ 320,191
2011............... 18,190 34,236 52,426
2012 .............. 18,595 33,299 51,894
2013.............. 17,085 32,391 49,476
2014 .............. 36,265 30,950 67,215
20152019 .... 381,882 85,956 467,838
2020-2024 .... 74,875 57,688 132,563
2025-2029 .... 119,835 39,646 159,481
20302034 .... 202,110 31,918 234,028
2035-2039 .... 460,100 18,376 478,476
20402044 .... 308,775 7,331 316,106
2045-2049 .... 535,850 1,008 536,858

Totd ...... $2,457,652 $ 408,900 $2,866,552

(Notes continue on next page.)
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Revenue Bonds Payable — Component Units
(Expressed in Thousands)
Date Maturity Interest Original Balance
Bond I ssue | ssued Date Rate Issue June 30, 2009
Variable and
Utah Housing Corporation Issues........ 19942009 2009-2050 1.50 % to 9.00 % $ 3,021,003 $ 1,685,845
Variable and
University of Utah Revenue Bonds 1987-2008 2014-2032 3.00%t06.75% $ 451,060 320,021
Utah State University Revenue Bonds. 1999-2009 2014-2035 1.90 %t05.25% $ 111,670 98,315
Nonmajor Component Units
Revenue Bonds..........cccoceeereeenenenenienenns 1998-2008 2010-2033 2.00 % to0 6.00 % $ 117,445 84,169
Total Revenue Bonds Outstanding 2,188,350
Colleges and Universities
Plus Unamortized Bond Premium 2,440
Total Revenue Bonds Payable $ 2,190,790
Revenue Bond | ssues— Component Units
Debt Service Requirementsto Maturity
For Fiscal YearsEnded June 30
(Expressed in Thousands)
Principal
Utah University Utah Nonmaj or Total Total
Fiscal Housing of Sate Component Principal Interest Amount
Year Corporation Utah University Units Required Required Required
2010.....cceuenee. $ 135,606 $ 127721 $ 3,573 $ 5,622 $ 157,522 $ 96,157 $ 253,679
2011......coeee 27,272 15,301 3,755 5,331 51,659 94,335 145,994
2012.....coeene. 27,013 13,951 4,557 6,239 51,760 91,963 143,723
2013....ccoveene 27,829 14,441 4,725 4,343 51,338 89,643 140,981
2014.......cun. 29,264 15,168 4,937 4,514 53,883 87,262 141,145
2015-2019....... 167,338 72,399 22,748 20,070 282,555 396,637 679,192
2020-2024....... 215,473 72,725 16,835 16,685 321,718 324,289 646,007
2025-2029....... 306,558 77,095 18,620 12,455 414,728 237,602 652,330
2030-2034....... 377,348 26,220 15,575 8,910 428,053 133,000 561,053
2035-2039....... 283,585 — 2,990 — 286,575 45,837 332,412
2040-2044........ 70,183 — — — 70,183 10,560 80,743
2045-2049....... 14,805 — — — 14,805 2,798 17,603
2050-2054....... 3,571 — — — 3,571 194 3,765
Totd ......... $ 1,685,845 $ 320,021 $ 98315 $ 84,169 $ 2,188,350 $ 1,610,277 $ 3,798,627
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D. Conduit Debt Obligations

Of the Utah Housing Corporation (component unit) bonds
outstanding, $333.926 million were issued as multi-family
purchase bonds. Of those bonds, $333.926 million are conduit
debt obligations issued on behalf of third parties. The Corporation
is not obligated in any manner for repayment of the conduit debt.
However, in accordance with the Corporation’s accounting
policies, the conduit debt is reported in the Corporation's
financial statements.

In 1985, the State Board of Regents authorized the University of
Utah (component unit) to issue Variable Rate Demand Industrial
Development Bonds for the Salt Lake City Marriott University
Park Hotel separate from the University. The bonds are payable
solely from revenues of the hotel. The bonds do not constitute a
debt or pledge of the faith and credit of the University of Utah or
the State and, accordingly, have not been reported in the
accompanying financia statements. The outstanding balance of
the bonds at June 30, 2009, is $5.1 million.

The State Charter School Finance Authority (component unit)
issued conduit debt obligations on behalf of various charter
schools. The debt is the responsibility of the charter schools, and
neither the State nor any political subdivision of the State is
obligated in any manner for repayment of the debt. Accordingly,
this debt has not been reported in the accompanying financial
statements. The outstanding balance at June 30, 2009, is $104.045
million in tax-exempt and $710 thousand in taxable conduit debt.

E. Demand Bonds

e  The Student Assistance Programs had $566.802 million of
demand bonds outstanding at June 30, 2009, subject to
purchase on the demand of the holder at a price equal to
principal plus accrued interest, on seven days notice and
delivery to the Board's remarketing agent.

In the event bonds cannot be remarketed, the Board has
standby bond purchase agreements and a letter of credit
agreement sufficient to pay the purchase price of bonds
delivered to it. The Board pays quarterly fees to maintain the
standby bond purchase agreements and letter of credit on the
demand bonds.

The Student Assistance Programs have an irrevocable direct-
pay letter of credit expiring November 15, 2011, in the
amount of $37.462 million to support the Series 1993 A
bonds of $35 million. In addition, the Student Assistance
Programs have a standby bond purchase agreements of
$19.799 million expiring November 20, 2013 to support the
Series 1988 C bonds of $19.5 million, $83.099 million
expiring November 16, 2025 to support the Series 1995 L
bonds of $77.454 million, $104.917 million expiring April
29, 2025 to support the Series 1996 Q and 1997 R honds of
$97.79 million, $152.946 million expiring February 11, 2024
to support the 2005 Series W and X bonds of $145.558
million. The Student Assistance Programs have in place a
letter of credit expiring December 15, 2009, in the amount of
$204.407 million which supports the Series 2008 A bonds of
$191.5 million. The letter of credit expires within one year of
June 30, 2009, as aresult, the Series 2008 A bonds have been
classified asacurrent liability.

As of June 30, 2009, the Student Assistance Programs had
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drawn $334.6 million upon the liquidity facility to support
certain bonds under the 1988 Series C, 1995 Series L, 1996
Series Q, 1997 Series R, 2005 Series W, and 2005 Series X
which had not been remarketed. Under the terms of the
liquidity facility, the interest on the bonds held in the liquidity
facility are paid at the Bank Rate which is defined as the
greater of the Federa Funds Rate plus 0.50 percent per
annum, or the Prime Rate. The Bank Rate on the bonds
increases by 1.25 percent if the bonds remain in the liquidity
facility for more than 90 days. The Bank Rate for the year
ended June 30, 2009 ranged between 3.25 percent and 6.25
percent. The bonds ae redeemable in semi-annua
installments from available funds, provided that dl of the
unpaid principa amount of Bank Bonds shall be redeemed by
the seventh anniversary of the Bank Purchase Date. The total
bonds held in the liquidity facility as of June 30, 2009 was
$318.267 million.

On December 16, 2008, the Student Assistance Programs
issued $191.5 million of variable rate Series 2008A student
loan revenue bonds at par. The Student Assistance Programs
used $99.67 million of the proceeds to refund, in total, the
variable rate 2007 Series Y student loan revenue bonds. The
refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition
price and the net carrying amount of the old debt of $1.15
million. This difference reported as deferred bond issuance
costs, will be amortized through the year 2042 using the
straight line method. The Student Assistance Programs
completed the refunding to manage its interest costs and to
replace the supporting liquidity facility. The variable rate
refunding issue has no stated minimum rate and a maximum
rate of 12 percent per annum. The range of potentia savings
from the refunding will vary depending on the actua interest
costs incurred over the life of the Series 2008 A bond. Based
upon a minimum rate of O percent, the Student Assistance
Programs would have no reduction in cash flow and no
economic gain (i.e., the difference between the present
values of the old debt and new debt service payments). At a
maximum rate of 12 percent, the Student Assistance
Programs could have a reduction in cash flow of $67.5
million with an economic gain of $16.1 million.

As of June 30, 2009, there were insufficient clearing bids on
all of the Student Assistance Program’s 1988 Revenue Bond
Fund bonds bearing interest at an adjustable rate, which is set
by auction procedure every 28 or 35 days (ARCS). Interest on
these bonds will be caculated a the maximum rate. In
genera, the Maximum Auction Rate means, for any taxable
auction, a per annum interest rate on the ARCs which, when
taken together with the interest rate on the ARCs for the one
year period ending on the final day of the proposed auction
period, would result in the average interest rate on the ARCs
not being in excess of, the lesser of the 91 day United States
Treasury Bill Rate plus 1.2 percent or LIBOR plus 1.5 percent
for such one year period. For atax exempt bond the Maximum
Auction Rate means, for any auction, a per annum interest rate
on the ARCs which, when taken together with the interest rate
on the ARCs for the one year period ending on the find day of
the proposed auction period, would result in the average
interest rate on the ARCs not being in excess of, the lesser of
the After Tax Equivdent Rate plus 175 percent or the Kenny
Index for such one year period absent achangein therating on
the bonds. The Maximum Auction Rate for the year ended
June 30, 2009 ranged between 0 percent and 14 percent.

As of June 30, 2009, there were insufficient clearing bids on
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all of the Student Assistance Program’s 1993 Revenue Bond
Fund bonds bearing interest at an adjustable rate, which is set
by auction procedure every 28 or 35 days (ARCS). Interest on
these bonds will be caculated a the maximum rate. In
genera, the Maximum Auction Rate means, for any taxable
auction, a per annum interest rate on the ARCs which, when
taken together with the interest rate on the ARCs for the one
year period ending on the final day of the proposed auction
period, would result in the average interest rate on the ARCs
not being in excess of, the lesser of the 91 day United States
Treasury Bill Rate plus 1.2 percent or LIBOR plus 1.5 percent
for such one year period. For atax exempt bond the Maximum
Auction Rate means, for any auction, a per annum interest rate
on the ARCs which, when taken together with the interest rate
on the ARCs for the one year period ending on the final day of
the proposed auction period, would result in the average
interest rate on the ARCs not being in excess of, the lesser of
the After Tax Equivadent Rate plus 175 percent or the Kenny
Index for such one year period absent achangein therating on
the bonds. The Maximum Auction Rate for the year ended
June 30, 2009 ranged between 0 percent and 14.7 percent.

e  The Utah Housing Corporation (component unit) had $906.24
million of bonds outstanding at June 30, 2009, subject to
purchase on the demand of the holder at a price equa to
principal plus accrued interest, on delivery to the
remarketing agent.

In the event the variable rate bonds cannot be remarketed,
the Corporation has entered into various irrevocable Standby
Bond Purchase Agreements (Liquidity Facility) with seven
different banks totaling $1.16 bhillion. These Agreements
provide that these institutions will provide funds to purchase
the variable rate bonds that have been tendered and not
remarketed. These liquidity providers receive a fee ranging
from 12.5 to 95 basis points of the outstanding amount of the
variable rate bonds paid on a quarterly basis. As of June 30,
2009, none of the original commitments were available for
replacement of existing liquidity facilities or to issue new
variable rate bonds.

e The University of Utah (component unit) Series 1997 A
bonds in the amount of $8.81 million currently bear interest
at aweekly rate in accordance with bond provisions. When a
weekly rate is in effect, the bonds are subject to purchase on
the demand of the holder at a price equal to principal plus
accrued interest on seven days notice and delivery to the
University’s tender agent. If the bonds cannot be remarketed,
the tender agent is required to draw on an irrevocable
standby bond purchase agreement to pay the purchase price
of the bonds delivered to it. The standby bond purchase
agreement is with JP. Morgan Chase Bank and is valid
through July 30, 2010. While funds were drawn during the
period, eventualy al bonds were successfully remarketed
and the issue was resolved by the end of October. The
interest requirement for the Series 1997 A Bonds is
calculated using an interest rate of 0.4 percent, which is the
ratein effect as of June 30, 2009.

The University’'s Hospital Revenue Bonds Series 2008 in the
amount of $20.64 million currently bear interest at a daily rate in
accordance with the bond provisions. When a daily rate is in
effect, these bonds are also subject to purchase on the demand of
the holder at a price equd to principa plus accrued interest. The
University’s remarketing agent is authorized to use its best efforts
to sell the repurchased bonds at a price equd to this same amount
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plus accrued interest. If the bonds cannot be remarketed, the tender
agent is required to draw on an irrevocable letter of credit to pay
the purchase price of the bonds delivered to it. This agreement is
with Wells Fargo bank, N.A. and is valid through December 1,
2010 or earlier on the occurrence of certain events. No funds have
been drawn against the letter of credit. The interest requirement for
the bonds is calculated using an annualized interest rate of 0.25
percent which isthe rate effective at June 30, 2009.

F. Defeased Bonds and Bond Refunding

In prior years, the State defeased certain general obligation and
revenue bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds and other
monies available for debt service in irrevocable trusts to provide
for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly,
the trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are
not included in the Statement of Net Assets. At June 30, 2009, the
tota amount outstanding of defeased generd obligation bonds was
$316.485 million. At June 30, 2009, the total amount outstanding
of defeased revenue bonds was $60.425 million.

In prior years, component units defeased certain revenue bonds by
placing the proceeds of new bonds and various bond reserves in
irrevocable trusts to provide for al future debt service payments on
the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability
for the defeased bonds are not included in the component unit column
on the Statement of Net Assets. At June 30, 2009, $104.976 million
of college and university bonds outstanding are considered defeased.

G Contracts Payable

Component unit capital leases/contracts payable include $6.145
million in life annuity contracts.

H. NotesPayable

In March 2009, the Student Assistance Programs began
participating in the U.S. Department of Education (ED) Loan
Participation Purchase Program, which was created under the
“Ensuring Continued Access to Student Loans Act of 2008” (Pub.
L. No. 110-227). The Loan Participation Purchase Program was
created to assst lenders in obtaining financing for student loans
during the 2008-2009 and 2009-2010 academic years. Under the
Loan Participation Purchase Program, ED may purchase a 100
percent participation interest in student loans disbursed after May 1,
2008. ED advances to the lender a line of credit equa to the
principa amount of the student loan. The pledged loans are
serviced internaly by the Loan Participation Purchase Program and
administered by a custodian. The Loan Participation Purchase
Program has pledged collections from $299.349 million of
participating loans to repay the line of credit from ED of $297.381
million. Monthly interest cost on the line of credit is equal to the
Commercial Peper rate plus 0.50 percent. Interest is payable
monthly to ED. The Loan Participation Purchase Program for the
2008-2009 academic year ended on September 30, 2009. At that
time, the loans were sold to ED.

The notes payable balance consists of notes issued by component
units for the purchase of buildings and equipment. The notes bear
various interest rates and will be repaid over the next 16 years.
They are secured by the related assets. Payment information on
notes payableis presented below.
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Notes Payable Debt Service Requirementsto Maturity
Component Units
For Fiscal Years Ending June 30
(Expressed in Thousands)

Principal
University Utah Nonmajor Total Total

Fiscal of Sate Component Principal Interest Amount
Year Utah University Units Required Required Required
2010.....coruene $ 949 $ 1,947 $ 2,190 $ 5,086 $ 2,293 $ 7,379
2011 ..o 949 1,938 1,180 4,067 2,055 6,122
2012 ..o 803 1,899 3,888 6,590 1,789 8,379
2013 861 1,988 522 3,371 1,456 4,827
2014 ... 922 1,806 112 2,840 1,305 4,145
2015-2019......... 5,750 9,361 667 15,778 4,076 19,854
2020-2024 ........ 1,316 5,248 794 7,358 746 8,104
20252029 ........ — 89 — 89 — 89

Totd .......... $ 11,550 $24,276 $ 9,353 $45,179 $ 13,720 $58,899

I.  Debt Service Requirementsfor Derivatives

Swap Payments and Associated Debt — As explained in Note
3.D., Utah Housing Corporation (major component unit) had
entered into 76 separate pay-fixed, receive-variable interest rate
swaps as of June 30, 2009. Using rates as of June 30, 2009, debt

service requirements of the Corporation’s outstanding variable-
rate debt and net swap payments are presented below. As rates
vary, variable-rate bond interest payments and net swap payments
(receipts) will vary. The principal, interest and net swap interest
are included in the Component Unit debt service schedule
presented on page 96 for Utah Housing Corporation.

Utah Housing Corporation
Swap Payments and Associated Debt
For Fiscal Years Ending June 30
(Expressed in Thousands)

Variable Rate Bonds Interest

Fiscal Rate
Year Principal Interest Swaps, Net Total
2010 . $ 15,485 $ 17,197 $ 31,296 $ 63,978
2010 e 1,775 16,839 31,276 49,890
2012 .o 1,525 16,797 31,191 49,513
2013 e 1,675 16,761 31,115 49,551
2014 ..ot 2,445 16,721 31,023 50,189
2015-2019 ...cceeiireeiisieiene 40,490 82,131 151,894 274,515
2020-2024 .....ccoovrvrirriririrnens 100,145 74,445 136,763 311,353
2025-2029 .....occoeeveeeiernene 168,000 60,693 110,027 338,720
20302034 .....cccveeeeeeeane 252,495 37,501 64,946 354,942
20352039 .....ccccvevireeeeieens 183,460 11,148 17,368 211,976
20402044 ......c.oveeeeeeenne 5,695 122 101 5,918

Total e $ 773190 $ 350,355 $ 637,000 $ 1,760,545
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NOTE 11. GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCESAND
NET ASSETSRESTRICTED BY ENABLING

LEGISLATION

A. Governmental Fund Balances— Reserved and Designated

The State's reserved fund balances represent: (1) Nonlapsing
Appropriations which include continuing appropriations or

nonlapsing funds, encumbrances for construction contracts in the
capital projects funds, and limited encumbrances in the general
and specia revenue funds; or (2) Restricted Purposes which
include fund baances that are legaly restricted for other
purposes, assets restricted by bond agreements or other external
restrictions, and those portions of fund balance that are not
available for appropriation or expenditure, such as loans to
internal service funds. A summary of the nature and purpose of
these reserves by fund type at June 30, 2009, follows:

Reserved Fund Balances
(Expressed in Thousands)

General Fund:
LegiSIatUre.. .. e
Governor
Elected OfficialS......cocovvieveeice e
Administrative Services
Tax Commission
Human Services

Environmental Quality
Higher Education
Employment and Family Services.................
Natural RESOUICES ......cc.evrerveerieireeienerieieeee
Community and Culture..........c.cccveevrevnnne.
Business, Labor, and Agriculture
Industrial Assistance Account
Loansto Internal Service Funds....................
Tobacco Settlement Funds
Qil Overcharge Funds..........ccccovevvieieviennene.
Mineral Bonus ACCOUNt..........ccceeeeerereerinninns
Other PUIPOSES.......ccvveerreirreireeieseeenesieenes

Unifor m School Fund:
Minimum School Program
State Office of Education
School Building Program...........cccceceeeenenene
School Land Interest
Growth in Student Population
Loansto Interna Service Funds....................

Transportation Fund:
Transportation
Public Safety
Corridor Preservation

Trust Lands Fund:
Funds Held as Permanent Investments..........

Nonlapsing Restricted Total
Appropriations Pur poses Reserved
$ 4,842 $ — $ 4,842
13,051 1,160 14,211
14,111 1 14,112
1,760 7,122 8,882
8,370 4,276 12,646
8,570 6,022 14,592
9,787 — 9,787
28,081 10,470 38,551
1,893 9,605 11,498
11,593 10,514 22,107
1,322 4,845 6,167
630 — 630
2,597 11,946 14,543
17,170 34,213 51,383
3,781 210 3,991
9,260 13,886 23,146
— 29,175 29,175
— 7,696 7,696
— 5,309 5,309
— 1,224 1,224
1,061 9,671 10,732
$ 137,879 $ 167,345 $ 305,224
$ 31,905 $ — $ 31,905
14,288 757 15,045
— 16,322 16,322
— 28,872 28,872
— 102,088 102,088
— 34 34
$ 46,193 $ 148,073 $ 194,266
$ 3279 $ 403,109 $ 406,388
— 11,940 11,940
— 23,710 23,710
— 5,120 5,120
$ 3279 $ 443,879 $ 447,158
$ 0 $ 915,831 $ 915,831
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Reserved Fund Balances
(Expressed in Thousands)

Nonlapsing Restricted Total
Appropriations Purposes Reserved
Non-major Gover nmental Funds:
Capital Projects........ccccvvveeeveevierceies e $ 221,004 $ 901 $ 221,905
DEDt SEIVICE ...vvvieieeeeieeee s — 5,770 5,770
State ENdOWMENt.........cvvirerenrereiecersnnee — 79,480 79,480
Environmental Reclamation.............c.c.oeu.... — 19,465 19,465
Other PUIPOSES ....ceceverieiieienie e — 8,859 8,859
TOtE v $ 221,004 $ 114,475 $ 335,479

Designated Fund Balances
(Expressed in Thousands)

Uniform
General Education School Transportation
Fund Fund Fund Fund

Designated for:
Budget Reserve (Rainy Day) Account .............. $ 188,940 $ — $ — $  —
Education Budget Reserve Account................... — 229,960 — —
Disaster Recovery ACCOUNt........ccocveveeeernernnn. 13,803 — — —
Postemployment and Other Liahilities.............. 111,508 166,416 2,902 48,402
Fiscal Year 2010 Appropriations:

Line ltem Appropriations..........cc.ccoceevenene 13,216 99,800 — —
Capital Projects......covvveveeieieceiisieseeeeseanens — — — —
Debt SErVICe.....oeiiiee e — — — —

o) S $ 327,467 $ 496,176 $ 2,902 $ 48,402

Continues Below
Transportation Nonmajor Total
Investment Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds

Designated for:
Budget Reserve (Rainy Day) Account .............. $ — $ — $ 188,940
Education Budget Reserve Account................... — — 229,960
Disaster Recovery ACCOUNt .........ccoererereeneenenns — — 13,803
Postemployment and Other Liabilities.............. — — 329,228
Fiscal Year 2010 Appropriations:

Line Item Appropriations...........c.cceeeeeueee. — — 113,016
DEDt SENVICE. e — 5,210 5,210

TOA e $ — $ 5,210 $ 880,157
B. Net Assets Restricted by Enabling L egisation The government-wide Statement of Net Assets reports $3.616

billion of restricted net assets, of which $20.125 million is

The State's net assets restricted by enabling legislation represent restricted by enabling legislation.

resources which a party external to a government—such as
citizens, public interest groups, or the judiciary—can compel the
government to use only for the purpose specified by the
legislation.
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NOTE 12. DEFICIT NET ASSETSAND FUND BALANCE

Funds reporting a deficit total net assets position at June 30, 2009,
are (in thousands):

Private Purpose Trust Funds:
Employers’ ReINSUranCe .........ccoveeeevvevevevenene $ (39,624)
Petroleum Storage Tank $ (22,481)

The deficit in the Employers Reinsurance Trust represents the
unfunded portion of the actuarial estimate of claims incurred. The
Employers’ Reinsurance Trust claims are funded from assessments
on all workers' compensation insurance issued to employerswithin
the State. The Utah Labor Commission sets the rate up to the
maximum established by the Legidlatureto keep current revenuesat
a level sufficient to cover current cash disbursements. State law
limits the State’s liability to the cash or assets in the Employers
Reinsurance Trust only. State law also limits the Trust’s liability to
claims resulting from industrial accidents or occupational diseases
occurring on or before June 30, 1994. For claims resulting from
accidents or diseases on or after July 1, 1994, the employer or its
insurance carrier isliable for resulting liabilities. Unfunded future
claims are payable solely from future trust revenues.

The Petroleum Storage Tank Trust coversthe clean-up costs of lesks
from state-approved underground petroleum storage tanks. The
assets in the fund are more than adeguate to pay current claims.
Unfunded future claims will be funded solely by future trust
revenues.

Funds/activities reporting a deficit position in the unrestricted
portion of their net assets at June 30, 2009, are (in thousands):

Internal Service Funds:
Technology Services
Genera Services.................

Fleet Operations.........ccccevvevveeveeeeeeseseenenns

Thelnternal Service Fundsdeficitsare mainly dueto thesignificant
investment in capital assets required for these operations. The
deficitswill be covered by future chargesfor services. Management
may also seek rate increases to help reduce these deficits.

The Transportation Investment Fund (major governmental fund)
reported a $8.652 million deficit unreserved undesignated fund
balance asaresult of outstanding encumbrances on various highway
projects. Bond proceeds available in the next fiscal year will fund
these deficits.

In addition, the Capital Projects — General Government and State
Building Ownership Authority Funds (nonmajor governmental
funds) reported a $8.895 million and $4.324 million deficit
unreserved undesignated fund balance, respectively, as aresult of
outstanding encumbrances on various capita  projects.
Appropriations and bond proceeds available in the next fiscal year
will fund these deficits

NOTE 13. INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Transfers between funds occur when one fund collects revenue
and transfers the assets to another fund for expenditure or when
one fund provides working capital to another fund. All transfers
must be legally authorized by the L egislature through statute or an
Appropriation Act. Interfund transfers for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2009, are as follows (in thousands):

Transfersin:
Governmental Funds
Uniform Transportation Trust Nonmajor
General School Transportation Investment Lands Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

Transfers Out:
Genera Fund ........cceeveeevvveenenee. $ — $ 44412 $ 100,912 $ 55,000 $ 34 $ 220,767
Education Fund...........cccoeeuveunnne 237,676 2,181,640 — — — 72,432
Uniform School Fund.................. 55,265 — — — — —
Transportation Fund.................... 46,033 — — 76,977 — 26,044
Transportation Investment Fund . — — 87,569 — — 135,227
Nonmajor Governmental Funds.. 143,049 — — — — 409
Unemployment Compensation.... 227 — — — — —
Weater Loan Programs.................. 32,992 — — — — —
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds........ 63,267 1,936 — — 14,537 —
Internal Service Funds................ 8,629 — 1,500 — — —

Total Transfersin.............. $ 587,138 $ 2,227,988 189,981 $ 131,977 $ 14571 $ 454,879

Continues Below
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Transfersin:
Enterprise
Funds
Water Nonmajor Internal Total
Loan Enterprise Service Transfers
Programs Funds Funds Out
Transfers Out:
Genera Fund........ccoevvrvevnennennn $ 8,890 $ 61,615 $ 247 $ 491,877
Education Fund..........cccceeeuvennne. — — — 2,491,748
Uniform School Fund ...... — — — 55,265
Transportation Fund.................... — 1,000 — 150,054
Transportation Investment Fund . — — — 222,796
Nonmajor Governmental Funds.. — 2,524 37 146,019
Unemployment Compensation.... — — — 227
Water Loan Programs.................. — — — 32,992
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds........ — — 23 79,763
Internal Service Funds................ — — 17 10,146
Total Transfersin.............. $ 8,890 $ 65139 $ 324 $ 3,680,887
Transfers from major governmental funds to nonmajor including interest and attorneys’ fees. Although progress has

governmental funds are primarily for capital facility construction
and debt service expenditures. Transfers from the General Fund to
nonmajor enterprise funds are primarily mineral leaseroyaltiesused
to make loans and grants to local governments through the
Community Impact Loan Fund. Transfersfrom nonmajor enterprise
funds to the General Fund are mostly liquor profits from the
Alcoholic Beverage Control Fund that are required by statute to be
deposited in the General Fund. All other transfers are made to
finance various programs as authorized by the Legidlature.

During fiscal year 2009, the Legidature authorized transfers of
$8.629 million from the Interna Service Fundsto the General Fund
to subsidize general fund revenues. In addition, the Legislature
authorized payments of $751.866 million to the Colleges and
Universities. Paymentsto the Collegesand Universitiesare reported
as expenditures in both the General Fund fund statements and the
Governmental Activities column of the Statement of Activities. They
are a so reported asrevenuesin the Component Units column of the
Statement of Activities.

NOTE 14. LITIGATION, CONTINGENCIES, AND
COMMITMENTS
A. Litigation

The Stateisinvolved in variouslegal actionsarising in the ordinary
course of business. The State is vigorously contesting al of these
matters, but as of this date it is not possible to determine the
outcome of these proceedings. In the opinion of the Attorney
Genera and management, the ultimate disposition of these matters
will not have a materia adverse effect on the State's financial
position.

e Members of the Navajo Nation allege the State of Utah has
mismanaged Navajo Nation Trust Fund monies. The plaintiffs
are seeking an accounting of the legitimacy of the fund's
receipts and disbursements, and damages of $142 million
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been made toward a settlement, no agreement has been
reached.

A lawsuit was filed by the Tobacco Companies against the
settling states participating in amaster settlement agreementin
an effort to recoup tobacco settlement payments madein prior
years. The plaintiffs alege that they are entitled to a non-
participating manufacturer adjustment that will allow them to
take a credit against these payment obligations. The disputeis
currently subject to arbitration. It is impossible to determine
the potential liability; however, any settlement will be a
reduction in future state tobacco receipts.

In addition to the items above, the State is contesting other
legal actionstotaling over $31.097 million plus attorneys fees
and interest and other cases where the amount of potential loss
is undeterminable. Some portions of the amounts sought have
been paid by the State or placed in escrow.

Contingencies

Financia and compliance audits (Single Audit) of federal
grants, contracts, and agreements were conducted under the
provisions of the Federal Office of Management and Budget's
circulars. As aresult of the audits, the allowability of $1.561
million of federal expendituresisin question. These costswill
be contested with the federal agency involved, and
management estimates the liability to be less than the
questioned amounts. In addition, program compliance audits
by the federa government are conducted periodicaly;
however, an estimate of any potentia disallowances on these
audits and findings on other audits on honcompliance cannot
be estimated as to the potential liability. The Single Audit for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, isin process.

Management’s estimated liability for the Petroleum Storage Tank
Trust (private purpose trust fund) is highly sensitive to change
based on the short period of historica dataand the uncertainties
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in estimating costs. Since it is not possible to determine the
occurrence date of aleak in an underground storagetank, itisnot
possible to estimate the number or the associated costs of leaks
that have not been detected.

The State is self-insured for liability claims up to $1 million
and beyond the excess insurance policy limit of $10 million.
The State is self-insured for individual property and casualty
claims up to $1 million and up to $3.5 million in aggregate
claims and beyond the excess insurance policy limit of $700
million per occurrence. According to an actuaria study and
other known factors, $43.650 million exists as either incurred
but unfiled or unpaid claims. This amount is reported as a
liability of the Department of Administrative Services' Risk
Management Fund (internal service fund).

The Utah School Bond Guaranty Act (Utah Code Annotated,
1953, as amended, Sections 53A—28-101 to 402), which took
effect on January 1, 1997, pledges the full faith, credit, and
unlimited taxing power of the State to guaranty full and timely
payment of the principal and interest on genera obligation bonds
issued by qualifying local school boards. The primary purpose of
the Guaranty Act is to reduce borrowing costs for loca school
boards by providing credit enhancement for Guarantied Bonds.

In the event a school board is unable to make the scheduled
debt service payments on its Guarantied Bonds, the State is
required to make such payments in atimely manner. For this
purpose, the State may use any available monies, may use
short-term borrowing from the State Permanent School Fund
(part of the permanent Trust Lands Fund), or may issue short-
term general obligation notes. Thelocal school board remains
liableto the State for any such payments on Guarantied Bonds.
Reimbursements to the State may be obtained by intercepting
payment of state fundsintended for thelocal school board. The
State may also compel the local school board to levy a tax
sufficient to reimburse the State for any guaranty payments.

The State Superintendent of Public Instruction is charged with
monitoring the financia condition of local school boards and
reporting, at least annualy, its conclusions to the Governor, the
Legidature, and the State Treasurer. The State Superintendent
must report immediately any circumstanceswhich suggest aloca
school board may not be able to pay its debt service obligations
when due. The State does not expect that it will be required to
advance monies for the payment of debt service on Guarantied
Bonds for any significant period of time.

Local school boards have $2.5 billion principal amount of
Guarantied Bonds outstanding at June 30, 2009. The State
cannot predict the amount of bonds that may be guarantied in
future years, but no limitation is currently imposed by the
Guaranty Act.

TheAttorney General of the State sued thetobacco industry for
medical costsrelated to smoking. The State of Utah hassigned
on to amaster settlement agreement al ong with 45 other states.
The major tobacco manufacturers and most of the smaller
manufacturers have joined the agreement. The State received
$45.25 million from tobacco companiesin fiscal year 2009 and
expectsto receive approximately $45.721 millioninfiscal year
2010. Annual payments will be adjusted for factors such as
inflation, decreased sales volume, previously settled law suits,
disputed payments, and legal fees.
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Commitments

At June 30, 2009, theIndugtrial Ass stance Program of the Generdl
Fund had grant commitments of $6.552 million, contingent on
participating companies meeting certain performance criteria.

Utah Retirement Systems (defined benefit pension plans and
defined contribution plans) has at its yearend December 31,
2008, committed to fund certain private equity partnerships and
redl estate projects for an amount of $6.004 billion. Funding of
$3.683 hillion has been provided, leaving an unfunded
commitment of $2.321 billion as of December 31, 2008, which
will be funded over the next five years.

As of June 30, 2009, the Utah Housing Corporation (major
component unit) has committed to purchase mortgages under the
warehouse loans and the Single-Family Mortgage Purchase
Programin theamount of $11.474 million. The Corporation has
three Revolving Credit Notes with two Utah industrial banks.

The first Revolving Credit Note, in the amount of $5 million
matures on Octaober 30, 2010. At June 30, 2009, the outstanding
balance on this Revolving Credit Note was $2.098 million. The
Revolving Credit Note bearsinterest at acalculated LIBOR rate
advance or base rate advance. The Revolving Credit Note
balance congists of two separate loans. The first loan is dated
June 26, 2008 for $450 thousand with an interest rate of 1.31
percent at June 30, 2009. The second loan isdated November 24,
2008 for $1.648 million with an interest rate of 2.17 percent at
June 30, 2009. These two loans are due during the year ended
June 30, 2010.

The second Revolving Credit Note, in the amount of $3
million, matures on March 24, 2011. At June 30, 2009, the
outstanding balance on this Revolving Credit Note was $1.4
million. The Revolving Credit Note bears interest at a
calculated LIBOR rate advance with a minimum rate of 5.25
percent. The Revolving Credit Note balance consists of two
separate loans. Thefirst loan is dated March 26, 2009 for $900
thousand with an interest rate of 6.25 percent at June 30, 2009.
The second loan is dated April 1, 2009 for $500 thousand with
aninterest rate of 6.25 percent at June 30, 2009. Thesetwo loans
are due during the year ended June 30, 2010.

Thethird Revolving Credit Note, in the amount of $2 million,
matures on March 24, 2011 and has no outstanding balance as
of June 30, 2009.

At June 30, 2009, the enterprise funds had loan commitments
of approximately $338.855 million and grant commitments of
approximately $44.439 million.

At June 30, 2009, the Utah Higher Education Assistance
Authority Student Loan Guarantee Program (Student
Assistance Programs, major enterprise fund) had guaranteed
student loans outstanding with an original principal amount
of approximately $2.608 billion. Also, at June 30, 2009, the
Student Assistance Programs had commitments to purchase
approximately $173.315 million in student loans and fund
undisbursed loans of $13.024 million.

At June 30, 2009, the Permanent Trust Lands Fund
(permanent fund) had real estate commitments of $100
million, of which $61.457 million have been called,
leaving a remaining commitment of $38.543 million.
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e At June 30, 2009, the Utah Department of Transportation had
construction and other contract commitments of $1.233 billion, of
which $181.9 million is for Centennia Highway Projects within
the Trangportation Investment Fund (specid revenue fund) and
$1.051 hillion is for Transportation Fund (specid revenue fund)
projects. These commitmentswill befunded with bonded debt and
future gppropriations.

Under the terms of various limited partnership agreements
approved by the Board of Trustees or by the University of Utah
(maor component unit) officers, the University is obligated to
make periodic payments for advance commitments to venture
capita and private equity investments. As of June 30, 2009, the
University had committed, but not paid, atota of $19.324 million
in funding for these aternative investments.

Under the terms of various limited partnership agreements
approved by the Board of Trustees or by the Utah State University
(major component unit) officers, the University is obligated to
make periodic payments for advance commitments to venture
capita, naturd resource, and private equity invesments Asof June
30, 2009, the University had committed, but not paid, a totd of
$2.447 million in funding for these dternative investments.

NOTE 15. JOINT VENTURE

The Utah Communications Agency Network (UCAN) was created
by the State Legidature in 1997 as an independent agency. Its
purpose is to provide public safety communications services and
facilities on aregiond or statewide basis.

UCAN's governing board consists of ten representatives el ected by
theboard, and five state representatives of which four are appointed
by the Governor. The State has contracted to purchase
communication services from UCAN to meet the needs of law
enforcement officers in the Departments of Public Safety,
Corrections, Natural Resources, and other smaller state agencies.

Infiscal year 1998 the State provided startup capita of $185 thousand.
UCAN aso may receive lega counsel from the Attorney Genera’s
Office a no cost. Contracts with state agencies are estimated to
provide over 30 percent of UCAN's operating revenues.

UCAN had $6.47 million of revenue bonds outstanding at June 30,
2009. UCAN’sdebt isnot alega obligation of the State; however, if
UCAN cannot meet its debt service requirements, state law allows
the Governor to request an appropriation to restore the debt service
reservefundtoitsrequired level or to meet any principal or interest
payment deficiency. The Legislature is not required to make any
such appropriation, but if made, UCAN must repay the State within
18 months. To date, UCAN has never requested any such funding
from the State and has had sufficient resources to cover its debt
service and debt service reserve requirements.

The Office of the Utah State Auditor audits UCAN'’s financid
statements. Copi es of those statements can be obtained from UCAN's
administrative office or from the Office of the Utah State Auditor.

NOTE 16. PENSION PLANS

Eligible employees of the State are covered by one of thefollowing
retirement plans:
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A. Utah Retirement Systems

Utah Retirement Systems (URS) was established by Section 49 of
Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as amended. URS administers the
pension systems and plans under the direction of the URS Board,
which consists of the State Treasurer and six members appointed
by the Governor. URS has a separate accounting system and
prepares a separately issued financial report covering all
retirement systems and deferred compensation plans it
administers. URS maintains records and prepares separately
issued financial statements using fund accounting principles and
the accrual basis of accounting under which expenses, including
benefits and refunds, are recorded when the liability isincurred.
Revenues, including contributions, are recorded in the accounting
period in which they are earned and become measurable. URS
reports on a calendar yearend. The December 31, 2008, financial
report has been included in this Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report as a pension trust fund for the Utah Retirement Systems
(URS) within thefiduciary funds. Copies of the separately issued
financial report that include financial statements and required
supplemental information may be obtained by writing to Utah
Retirement Systems, 540 East 200 South, Salt Lake City, Utah
84102, or by calling 1-800-365-8772.

The URS operations are comprised of the following groups of
systems and plans covering substantially all employees of the State,
public education, and other political subdivisions of the State:

e The Public Employees Contributory Retirement System
(Contributory System); the Public Employees Noncontributory
Retirement System (Noncontributory System); and the Fire-
fighters Retirement System (Firefighters System), which are
defined-benefit  multiple-employer, cost-sharing, public
employee retirement systems;

o ThePublic Sofety Retirement System (Public Sefety System), which
is a defined-benefit mixed agent and cost-sharing, multiple-
employer retirement system;

e  TheJudges Retirement System (Judges System) and the Utah
Governors and Legidlative Retirement Plan, which are single-
employer service employee retirement systems; and five
defined contribution plans comprised of the 401(k) Plan, 457
Plan, Roth and Traditional IRA Plans, and Heath
Reimbursement Arrangement.

Retirement benefits are specified by Section 49 of Utah Code
Annotated, 1953, as amended. The retirement systems are defined-
benefit plansin which the benefits are based on age and/or years of
service and highest average salary. Various plan optionswithin the
systems may be selected by retiring members. Some of the options
reguire actuarial reductions based on attained age, age of spouse,
and similar actuarial factors. A brief summary of digibility for and
benefits of the systemsis provided in the following table:

(Table on next page.)
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Summary of Eligibility and Benefits

Contributory Noncontributory Public Safety Firefighters Judges
System System System System System
Highest Average Salary Highest 5 Years Highest 3 Years Highest 3 Years Highest 2 Years
Years of Service 30 years any age 30 years any age 20 years any age 25 years any age
Required and/or Age *20 years age 60 *25 years any age 10 years age 60 *20 years age 55
Eligible for Benefit *10 years age 62 *20 years age 60 4 years age 65 10 years age 62
4 years age 65 *10 years age 62 6 years age 70
4 years age 65
Benefit Percent per 1.25% to June 1975 2.00% per year 2.50% per year up to 20 years 5.00% first 10 years
Year of Service 2.00% July 1975 2.00% per year over 20 years 2.25% second 10 years
to present Benefit cannot exceed 1.00% over 20 years

70% of fina average
sdary

Benefit cannot exceed
75% of final average

*With actuarial reductions

Former governors a age 65 receive $1,200 per month per term.
Legidators receive abenefit actuarially reduced at age 62 with ten or
more years of service, or an unreduced benefit at age 65 with four or
more years of service et the rate of $26.40 per month per year of
service. Both the governors and legidators benefits are adjusted
based on the Consumer Price Index (CPI), limited to 4 percent of the
base benefit per year.

Death benefits for active and retired employees are in accordance
with retirement statutes. Upon termination of employment, members
of the systems may leave their retirement account intact for future

salary

benefits based on vesting qualification, or withdraw the accumulated
funds in their individua member account and forfeit service credits
and rightsto future benefits upon whi ch the contributions were based.

As a condition of participation in the systems, employers and/or
employees are required to contribute certain percentages of salaries
and wages as authorized by statute and specified by the Board.
Employee contributions may be paid in part or in whole by the
employer. Contributionsin some systems are also augmented by fees
or insurance premium taxes. Below is a summary of system
participants.

Participants
December 31, 2008

Non- Public Fire- Governorsand
contributory  Contributory Safety fighters Judges Legidative
System System System System System Retirement Plan
Number of participating:

Employers......ccoovereneieene 416 158 128 52 1 1
Members:

ACHVE....ciieeeeeee 93,576 2,743 7,894 1,849 106 93

Terminated vested.............. 30,360 1,374 1,654 117 9 81
Retirees and beneficiaries:

Service benefits................. 31,731 5,236 3,752 1,002 97 222

Disability benefits............. — 3 14 81 — —

Employer contribution rates consist of (1) an amount for normal
cost (the estimated amount necessary to finance benefits earned by
the members during the current year) and (2) an amount for
amortization of the unfunded, or excess funded actuaria accrued
liability over an open 20 year amortization period. These rates are
determined using the entry age actuarial cost method with a
supplemental present value and the same actuarial assumptionsused
to calculate the actuarial accrued liability.
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The following table presents the State of Utah's actuarialy
determined employer contributionsrequired and paid to URS. These
amounts are equal to the annual pension costs for each of the stated
yearsand all of these amountswere paid for each year. Accordingly,
the net pension obligation (NPO) at the end of each year was zero.
For the Governors and L egidlative Retirement Plan, there has been
no annual pension cost, required contributions, or NPO becausethe
plan was overfunded for each of these years.
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Sate of Utah’s Employer Contributions
Required and Paid
For Fiscal Years Ended June 30
(Expressed in Thousands)

Non- Public Fire- Total
Contributory contributory  Safety fighters Judges All
System System System System System Systems

Primary Gover nment:

2009 ...t $ 3,692 $106,881 $33,711 $ 76 $1,980 $146,340
$ 3,792 $101,591 $29,261 $ 75 $1,737 $ 136,456
$ 3,874 $ 94,384 $27,208 $ 59 $1,238 $126,763
$ 4,197 $ 87,445 $22,701 $ 49 $1,007 $ 115,399
$ 4,335 $ 80,966 $21,112 $ 52 $ 814 $107,279

Component Units:
Colleges and Universities:

2009 $ 2,133 $ 42,026 $ 596 $ — $ — $ 44,755

2008 $ 2,160 $ 40,781 $ 498 $ — $ — $ 43,439

2007 $ 2,200 $ 39,016 $ 488 $ — $ — $ 41,704

2006 $ 2,117 $ 37,813 $ 425 $ — $ — $ 40,355

2005 $ 2,201 $ 35,195 $ 422 $ — $ — $ 37,818
$ 70 $ 3483 $ — $ — $ — $ 3,553
$ 76 $ 2938 $ — $ — $ — $ 3014
$ 78 $ 2722 $ — $ — $ — $ 2,800
$ 60 $ 2,385 $  — $ — $ — $ 2445
$ 59 $ 2273 $  — $ — $ — $ 2,332

Total Primary Gover nment
and Component Units:

2009 ...t $ 5,895 $152,390 $34,307 $ 76 $1,980 $194,648
$ 6,028 $145,310 $29,759 $ 75 $1,737 $182,909
$ 6,152 $136,122 $27,696 $ 59 $1,238 $171,267
$ 6,374 $127,643 $23,126 $ 49 $1,007 $158,199
$ 6,595 $ 118,434 $21,534 $ 52 $ 814 $147,429

(Continues on next page.)
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The following table summarizes contribution rates in effect at December 31, 2008:

Contribution Rates as a Percent of Covered Payroll

System Member Employer Other
Contributory.........cccceevveeeennene. 6.00 % 7.61%—-9.73% —
Noncontributory — 11.62 % —14.22 % —
Public Safety:

Contributory..........ccccceenne. 10.50 % —13.74 % 11.22 % —22.99 % —

Noncontributory — 22.47 % —35.71 % —
Firefighters:

DIiVISIONA ..o 13.14% — 1112 %

Division B.......ccccovirinnnen 9.68 % — 11.12%
Judges:

Contributory.........cccoeeeneee. 2.00 % 11.51 % 14.32 %

Noncontributory................ — 13.51 % 14.32%

Governors and Legidative......... —

Defined Contribution Plans

The 401(k), 457, Roth and Traditional IRA Plans, and Heath
Reimbursement Arrangement (HRA) administered by URS, in
which the State participates, are defined contribution plans. These
plans are available as supplemental plans to the basic retirement
benefits of the retirement systems. Contributions may be madeinto
the plans subject to plan and Internal Revenue Code limitations.
Employer contributions may be made into the plans at rates
determined by the employers and according to Utah Title 49. There
are 361 employers participating in the 401(k) Plan and 150
employers participating in the 457 Plan. There are 143,360 plan
participantsin the 401(k) Plan, 16,880 participantsin the 457 Plan,
1,639 participants in the Roth IRA Plan, 435 participants in the
Traditional IRA Plan, and 742 in the HRA.

After termination of employment, benefits are paid out to
individuals in lump sum, or as periodic benefit payments, at the
option of the participant based on individual account balances and
plan provisions. The defined contribution plans account balances
are fully vested to the participants at the time of deposit.
Investments of the plans are reported at fair value.

Employees of the State are eligible to participate in the deferred
compensation 401(k), 457, Roth and Traditional IRA Plans. For the
401(K) plan, the State and participating employers are required to
contribute to employees who participate in the noncontributory
retirement plan. The State contributes 1.5 percent of eligible
employees’ salaries which amount vestsimmediately. The amounts
contributed to the 401(k) Plan during the year ended June 30, 2009,
by employees and employers are as follows: for Primary
Government, $37.179 million and $18.627 million; for Component

Units — Colleges and Universities, $4.629 million and $4.846
million; for Component Units — Other, $1.154 million and $814
thousand; and the combined total for all is $42.962 million and
$24.287 million, respectively. The amounts contributed by
employees to the 457, Roth and Traditiona IRA Plans (Primary
Government) are $7.283 million, $907 thousand, and $28 thousand,
respectively.

Pension Receivables and | nvestments

Investments are presented at fair value. The fair value of
investments is based on published market prices and quotations
from major investment brokers at current exchange rates, as
avallable. Many factors are considered in arriving at that value.
Corporate debt securities are valued based on yields currently
available on comparable securities of issuers with similar credit
ratings. Mortgages have been valued on an amortized cost basis,
which approximates market or fair value. The fair value of rea
estate investments has been estimated based on independent
appraisals. For investments where no readily ascertainable market
value exists, management, in consultation with their investment
advisors have determined the fair value for the individua
investments. Approximately 15 percent of thenet assetsheldin trust
for the pension benefits are invested in debt securities of the U.S.
Government and its instrumentdities. Of the 15 percent,
approximately 2 percent are U.S. Government debt securitiesand 13
percent are debt securities of the U.S. Government instrumentalities.
The systems and plans have no investments of any commercial or
industrial organization whose market value equals5 percent or more
of the net assets held in trust for pension benefits. The principal
components of the receivables and investment categories are
presented below.

(Continues on next page.)
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Receivables:
Member Contributions........
Employer Contributions......
Court Feesand Fire
Insurance Premium............
Investments.........ccoceeecveeene

Total Receivables........

Investments:
Debt Securities....................
Equity Investments.......
Absolute Return........
Private Equity........
Redl Edtate.............
Mortgage Loans..................
Invested Securities

Lending Collaterd......
Investment Contracts.

Total Investments................

Receivables:
Member Contributions........
Employer Contributions......
Court Feesand Fire
Insurance Premium............
Investments........cccoceeeeueeen.

Total Receivables................

Investments:
Debt Securities....................
Equity Investments.......
Absolute Return ........
Private Equity........
Red Estate.............
Mortgage Loans..................
Invested Securities

Lending Collaterdl......
Investment Contracts.

Total Investments................

Pension Receivables and | nvestments
(Expressed in Thousands)

Non- Public Fire- Governors
contributory Contributory Safety fighters Judges  and Legidative
System System System System System  Retirement Plan
$ — $ 388 % 49 $ 421 % — 3 —
31,538 572 3,495 — — —
— — — — 230 —
302,084 19,874 38,360 14,583 2,398 207
$ 333622 $ 20,834 $ 41,904 $ 15,004 $ 2628 $ 207
$ 3663014 $ 240990 $ 465138 $ 176835 $ 29,074 $ 2,505
4,096,910 269,536 520,235 197,781 32,518 2,802
1,678,417 110,423 213,129 81,027 13,322 1,148
1,154,125 75,930 146,553 55,717 9,160 789
2,624,738 172,682 333,297 126,711 20,833 1,795
5,478 361 694 265 43 4
884,518 58,192 112,318 42,701 7,020 605
$ 14107200 $ 928114 $ 1,791,364 $ 681,037 $ 111970 $ 9,648
Continues Below
Health Total
401(k) 457 IRA Reimbur sement December 31,
Plan Plan Plans Arrangement 2008
$ — $ — 3 — 3 — $ 858
— — — — 35,605
— — — — 230
53,905 4,140 — — 435,551
$ 53,905 $ 4140 $ — $ — $ 472,244
$ 1111824 $ 114803 $ 16,186 $ — $ 5,820,369
941,100 98,722 10,148 — 6,169,752
— — — — 2,097,466
— — — — 1,442,274
— — — — 3,280,056
— — — — 6,845
78,336 8,191 952 — 1,192,833
27,154 12,066 — — 39,220
$ 2158414 $ 233,782 $ 27,286 $ — $ 20,048,815
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Actuarial M ethods and Assumptions

Theinformation contained in the Schedules of Funding Progressis
based on the actuarial study dated January 1, 2008, and calendar
year 2008 activity. The actuarial accrued liability and schedule of
funding progressis presented by the retirement systemsfor the last
tenyearsin their separately presented financial reports based on the
report generated by the latest actuarial study, conducted by Gabrid,
Roeder, Smith & Company. Beginning with the 2008 actuarial
study, theinvestment rate of return assumption was changed from 8
percent to 7.75 percent. The actuarial value of assetsis based on a
smoothed expected investment income rate. Investment incomein
excess or shortfall of the expected rate on fair value is smoothed

over afive-year period with 20 percent of ayear’s excessor shortfall
being recognized each year, beginning with the current year. All
systems use the entry age actuarial cost method and thelevel percent
of payroll amortization method. The remaining amortization period
for all systems is open group, 20 years, open period. An inflation
rate of 3.0 percent is used for all systems. Post-retirement cost of
living adjustments are non-compounding and are based on the
original benefit. The adjustments are also limited to the actual CPI
increase for the year with any unusua CPI increase not met carried
forward to subsequent years. Below are the Schedules of Funding
Progress.

Schedules of Funding Progress
By Valuation Date
(Expressed in Thousands)

Governors
Contributory Noncontributory Public Safety  Firefighters Judges and Legidative
System System System System System Retirement Plan
Actuarial Value of Assets:
January 1, 2007.......cccoeueeeenene $ 1,004,452 $ 14,446,928 $ 1,809,198 $705,051 $ 116,879 $ 10,983
January 1, 2008.........cccceueenne $ 1,102,107 $ 16,199,077 $ 2,038,613 $787,663 $129,847 $ 11,736
December 31, 2008................. $ 1,002,443 $ 15,257,243 $ 1,936,871 $735,235 $121,075 $ 10,407
Actuarial Accrued
Liability (AAL):
January 1, 2007.......cccoeueeeenens $ 1,062,967 $ 15,084,061 $ 1,968,982 $643,765 $ 117,127 $ 9212
January 1, 2008..........cccceveenene $ 1,170,251 $ 17,025,185 $ 2,247,826 $732,829 $135,379 $ 9,862
December 31, 2008................. $ 1,208,625 $ 18,127,048 $ 2,406,752 $779,035 $143,368 $ 9845
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued
Liability (UAAL):
January 1, 2007.......cccovvreueenens $ 58,515 $ 637,133 $ 159,784 $ (61,286) $ 248 $ (L,771)
January 1, 2008..........cccevenene $ 68144 $ 826,108 $ 209,213 $ (54,834) $ 5532 $ (1,874)
December 31, 2008................. $ 206,182 $ 2,869,805 $ 469,881 $ 43,800 $ 22,293 $ (562
Funding Ratios:
January 1, 2007.......cccoereveenens 94.5% 95.8 % 91.9% 109.5 % 99.8 % 119.2%
January 1, 2008...........cceeuenne 94.2 % 95.1% 90.7 % 107.5% 95.9 % 119.0 %
December 31, 2008................. 82.9% 84.2% 80.5% 94.4% 84.5% 105.7 %
Annual Covered Payroll:
January 1, 2007 $ 133,812 $ 3,326,392 $ 316,662 $ 88,682 $ 12,195 $ 860
January 1, 2008 $ 132,899 $ 3,582,495 $ 339,187 $ 95,767 $ 13,322 $ 947
December 31, 2008................. $ 133,110 $ 3,871,636 $ 365,043 $102,252 $ 14,404 $ 910
UAAL asa Percent of
Covered Payrall:
January 1, 2007.......cccoereveenene 43.7 % 19.2% 50.5 % (69.1)% 20% (205.9)%
January 1, 2008 51.3% 23.1% 61.7 % (57.3)% 41.5% (197.9)%
December 31, 2008................. 154.9 % 74.1% 128.7 % 42.8 % 154.8 % (61.8)%
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B. Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association—College
Retirement Equities Fund

Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association—College Retirement
Equities Fund (TIAA-CREF), privately administered defined-
contribution retirement plans, provides individual retirement fund
contracts for each eligible participating employee. Eligible
employees are mainly state college/university faculty and staff.
Benefitsto retired employees are generally based on the value of the
individual contracts and the estimated life expectancy of the
employee at retirement and are fully vested from the date of
employment. The total current year required contribution and the
amount paid is 14.2 percent of the employee's annual salary. The
State has no further liability once annual contributions are made.

Thetota contribution made by the college and university (component
units) to the TIAA—CREF retirement system for June 30, 2009 and
2008, were $115.986 million and $108.887 million, respectively.

NOTE 17. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

A. Sate’'s Other Postemployment Benefit Plan

At the option of individua state agencies, employees may
participatein the State’s Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (State
Employees OPEB Plan), a single-employer defined benefit
healthcare plan, as set forth in Section 67-19-14(2) of the Utah
Code. The State administers the Employee OPEB Plan through the
State Post-Retirement Benefits Trust Fund, an irrevocable trust, as
set forth in Section 67—19d-201 of the Utah Code. Thetrust fundis
under the direction of aboard of trustees, which consists of the State
Treasurer, the Director of the Division of Finance, and the Director
of the Governor’s Office of Planning and Budget.

Plan assets of the State Post-Retirement Benefits Trust Fund are
irrevocable and legally protected from creditors and dedicated to
providing postemployment health and life insurance coverage, and
in some situations dental coverage to current and eligible future
state retirees in accordance with the terms of the plan. The State
Post-Retirement Benefits Trust Fund does not issue a publicly
available financia report, but is included in this report of the
primary government using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrua basis of accounting under which expenses,
including benefits and refunds, are recorded when the liagbility is
incurred. Employer contributions are recorded in the accounting
period in which they are earned and become measurable.
Investments are reported at fair value and are based on published
prices and quotations from major investment brokers at current
exchange rates, as available. For investments where no readily
ascertainable fair value exists, management, in consultation with
their investment advisors have determined the fair values for the
individual investments.

Only state employees entitled to receive retirement benefits and
hired prior to January 1, 2006, are €ligible to receive
postemployment health and life insurance benefits from the OPEB
Plan. Upon retirement, an empl oyee receives 25 percent of thevalue
of their unused accumulated sick leave as a mandatory employer
contribution into a 401(k) account. The employee may exchange
oneday of remaining unused accumulated sick leave earned prior to
January 1, 2006, for one month of paid health and life insurance
coverage up to age 65. Regardless of the unused sick leave balance,
the State will provide postemployment health and life insurance
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coverage for up to five years (if the employee retired in 2006) or
until the employee reaches age 65. This automatic coverage
provision will decline by one year each calendar year until it is
completely phased out on January 1, 2011. After age 65, the
employee may use any remaining unused accumulated sick leave,
earned prior to January 1, 2006, to exchange for spouse health
insurance to age 65, or Medicare supplementa insurance for the
employee or spouse. As of December 31, 2008, the date of the latest
actuarial valuation, approximately 4,888 retirees and their
beneficiaries were receiving state post-retirement health and life
insurance benefits, and an estimated 20,385 active state employees
are eligible to receive future benefits under the State Employee
OPEB Plan.

The contribution requirements of employees and the State are
established and may be amended by the State Legidature. For
retirees that participate in the State Employee OPEB Plan, health
insurance premiums are paid 100 percent by the State for
individuals that retired before July 1, 2000. Individuals retiring
thereafter are required to contribute specified amounts monthly,
ranging from 2 percent to 27 percent, toward the cost of health
insurance premiums. For the year ended June 30, 2009, retirees
contributed $1.269 million, or approximately 4.4 percent of total
premiums, through their required contributions of $7.76 to $491.31
per month depending on the coverage (single, double, or family)
and health plan selected.

The State Legislature currently plans to contribute amounts to the
trust fund sufficient to fully fund the Annual Required Contribution
(ARC), an actuarially determined rate in accordance with the
parameters of GASB Statement 45, Accounting and Financial
Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions. The ARC represents alevel of funding that, if paid on an
ongoing basis, is projected to cover norma cost each year and
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over
a period not to exceed thirty years. The ARC of $53.491 million,
from the December 31, 2006 actuarial vauation and used to
establish the annual budget for fiscal year 2009, is 7.2 percent of
annual covered payroll. There are no long-term contracts for
contributions to the plan.

B. Elected Officials Other Postemployment Benefit Plan

The State of Utah aso administers the Elected Officials Other
Postemployment Benefit Plan (Elected Officials OPEB Plan), a
single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan, as set forth in
Section 49-20-404 of the Utah Code. The Elected Officials OPEB
Plan does not issue a publicly available financial report.

Only governors and legidators (elected officias) that retire after
January 1, 1998 and have 4 or more years of service can elect to
receive and apply for this benefit. To qualify for health coverage,
elected officials must be between 62 and 65 years of age and either
be active members at the time of retirement or have continued
coverage with the program until the date of eligibility. To qualify
for Medicare supplemental coverage an elected official must be at
least 65 years of age. As established by 49-20-404(3) of the Utah
Code, the State will pay 40 percent of the benefit cost for 4 years of
service and up to 100 percent for ten or more years of service, for
elected officias, and their spouses.

For the year ended June 30, 2009, the State paid the expected
benefit payments of $252 thousand on a pay-as-you-go basis.
Retirees that participate in the Elected Officids OPEB Plan are
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required to contribute specified amounts monthly, ranging from $0
(for ten or more years of service) to $545.22 per month (for four
years of service) depending on the coverage (single, double) and
health plan selected.

Annual required contribution.............ccocevererereinicnene e

Interest on net OPEB obligation
Adjustment to annual required contribution
Annua OPEB cost (expense)

ContributioNS MAJE. .......ooovveeereeeeeeee e

Increase in net OPEB obligation..........cccccoeeericninennnne
Net OPEB obligation (asset) — Beginning of year..............

Net OPEB obligation — End of year .........ccccceoeeviveneneenne

The following table shows the components of the annual OPEB
cost for the year, amount actually contributed to the plan, and
changes in the net OPEB obligation for both the State Employees’
and Elected Officials OPEB plans for fiscal year 2009 (dollar
amount in thousands):

State Employees’ Elected Officias
OPEB Plan OPEB Plan

.................. $ 53491 $ 2,188
.................. — 80
.................. — (207)

53,491 2,161
.................. (53,491) (252)
.................. 0 1,909
.................. (0) 2,009
.................. $ 0 $ 3,918

The annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation (asset) for fiscal year 2009 and
the preceding years for both the State Employees’ and Elected Officials OPEB plans were as follows (dollar amount in thousands):

Fiscal Percentage of Net
Y ear Annual Annual OPEB OPEB
Ended OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
State Employees’ OPEB Plan: 6/30/2007 $ 50433 101.37 % $ (691)
6/30/2008 $ 53,502 98.71 % $ 0
6/30/2009 $ 53491 100.00 % $ 0
Elected Officials OPEB Plan: 6/30/2008 $ 2,188 8.19% $ 2,009
6/30/2009 $ 2,161 11.66 % $ 3918

The funded status of both the State Employees’ and Elected OfficialsS OPEB plans as of December 31, 2008, was as follows (dollar amount in

thousands):

Actuaria accrued liability ........ccocooriiinereeceeeeee
Actuaria value of plan assets.........cccovererereeirienceceene e

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (funding excess)

FUNDEA FatiO.....cveeceeeeee et

Covered payroll
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (funding excess) as a
percentage of covered payroll

State Employees Elected Officias

OPEB Plan OPEB Plan
................. $ 446,601 $ 24515
................. 53,851 0
................. $ 392,750 $ 24515
................. 121% 0.0%
................. $ 901,245 $ 866
................. 43.6 % 2,830.8 %

(Notes continues on next page)
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Actuaria vauations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the
value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of
events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about
future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend.
Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continua revisonsas
actual results are compared with past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future. The Schedule of Funding
Progress, presented as required supplementary information
following the notes to the financial statements, is designed to
present multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial
value of plan assetsisincreasing or decreasing over timerelativeto
the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Projections of benefitsfor financial reporting purposesare based on
the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the
plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at thetime
of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit
costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The
projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not
explicitly incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual
funding limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between the
employer and plan members in the future. The actuarial methods
and assumptions used include techniquesthat are designed to reduce
the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued ligbilitiesand
the actuariad value of assets, consistent with the long-term
perspective of the calculations.

The actuarial methods and assumptions of both the State Employees and Elected Officiads OPEB plansas of December 31, 2008, were asfollows:

Actuarial valuation date...........ccccoeeiireieieeeeeeeee e
Actuarial cost MEthOd..........ccooiiiiee e
AMOrtization MEthOd.........coiveerirere e e
Remaining amortization Period ............cccveierenenenereiesesesese e

Asset valuation MELhOd ...........ooovviiiiiieee e

Actuaria assumptions:

Investment rat€ Of FELUM........c..occeeiiecceece e

Healthcare inflation rafe........c..oocveeieeeceeeeee et

NOTE 18. RISK MANAGEMENT AND INSURANCE
Itisthe policy of the State of Utah to periodically assess the proper
combination of commercia insurance and self-insurance to cover
therisk of lossesto which it may be exposed. Thisisaccomplished
by the State through the Risk Management (internal service fund)
and the Public Employees Health Program (component unit). The
State is a major participant in these programs. The Risk
Management Fund manages the general property, auto/physica
damage, and liability risk of the State. The Public EmployeesHedlth
Program manages the health insurance and long-term disability
programs of the State. The University of Utah, Utah State
University, Southern Utah University, Salt Lake Community
College, and Utah Valey University (component units) each
maintain self-insurance funds to manage headth care. The University
of Utah aso maintains a self-insurance fund to manage medical
malpractice liabilities.

The State has determined that the risk funds can economically and
effectively manage the State's risks internally and have set aside
assets for claim settlement. The risks are covered through reserves
and commercid insurance for excessive losses. The State has not
had any losses or settlements that exceeded the commercial excess
insurance coverage for any of the last three years. The risk funds
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State Employees’ Elected Officials
OPEB Plan OPEB Plan
12/31/2008 12/31/2008

Projected Unit Credit

Level Dollar Amount; Open

25 years 30 years
Fair Value Fair Vaue
6 % discounted 4 % discounted
10 % initia

4.5 % ultimate

service al claims for risk of loss to which the State is exposed,
including genera liability, property and casualty, auto/physical
damage, group medical and dental, disability, and some
environmental claims. They also service the general risk claimsfor
all local school districts and many charter schoolswithin the State.
All funds, agencies, public schools, and public authorities of the
State may participate in the State's Risk Management and Public
Employees Health Programs. The risk funds allocate the cost of
providing claims servicing, claims payment, and commercial
insurance by charging a“premium’ to each agency, public authority,
or employee, based on each organization’s estimated current year
liability and property values. The reserve for ligbility losses is
determined using an independent actuarial study based on past,
current, and estimated |oss experiences.

Risk Management and Public Employees Hedlth Program claims
ligbilitiesarereported when it is probable that aloss has occurred and
the amount of that |oss can be reasonably estimated and include an
amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported. Because
actud claims liabilities are affected by complex factors including
inflation, changes in legal doctrines and insurance benefits, and
unanticipated damage awards, the process used in computing claims
liabilities does not necessarily result in exact amounts. Claims
liabilities are recomputed periodicaly by actuaries to take into
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consideration recently settled claims, the frequency of claims, and
other economic and socid factors. Inflation is included in this
calculation because reliance is based on historical data that reflects
past inflation and other appropriate modifiers. The Risk Management
clam liabilities reserves are reported using a discount rate of 3
percent. The Public Employees Health Program long-term disability
benefit reserves are reported using discount rates between 4.25 and
7.75 percent. The primary government and the discrete component
units of the State paid premiums to the Public Employees Hedlth
Program of $252.314 million and $15.795 million, respectively, for
hedlth and lifeinsurance coveragein fiscal year 2009. In addition, the
State Department of Health paid $44.912 million in premiumsto the
Public Employees Health Program for the Children’sHedlth Insurance
Program.

All employers who participate in the Utah Retirement Systems are
eligibleto participate in the Public EmployeesL ong-term Disability
Program per Section 49-21-201 of the Utah Code. Employees of
those state agencies who participate in the program and meet |ong-
term disability eligibility receive benefits for the duration of their
disability up to the time they are eligible for retirement or until age
65. Benefits begin after athree-month waiting period and are paid
100 percent by the program. As of June 30, 2009, thereare 302 state

employees receiving benefits. The program is funded by paying
premiums to the Public Employees Health Program (component
unit), where assets are set aside for future payments. For the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2009, the primary government and the discrete
component units of the State paid premiums of $5.556 million and
$150 thousand, respectively, for the Long-Term Disability Program.

The State covers its workers compensation risk by purchasing
insurance from Workers Compensation Fund (a related
organization). The University of Utah, Utah State University,
Southern Utah University, Salt Lake Community College, and Utah
Valley University report claims liabilities if it is probable that a
liability has been incurred as of the date of the financial statements
and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The
University of Utah and the University of Utah Hospital and Clinics
have a*“claims made’ umbrella malpractice insurance policy in an
amount considered adequate by their respective administrationsfor
catastrophic malpractice liabilities in excess of the trusts fund
balances. Amounts for the current year are included below. The
following table presents the changes in claims liabilities balances
(short and long-term combined) during fiscal years ended June 30,
2008 and June 30, 2009:

Changesin Claims Liabilities
(Expressed in Thousands)

Current Year
Claimsand
Beginning Changesin Claims Ending
Balance Estimates Payments Balance
Risk Management:
2008........cueueueiririeieieee e $ 44,755 $ 8123 $ (11,593) $ 41,285
2009.....ceeeeeeeere e $ 41,285 $ 11,980 $ (9,615) $ 43,650
Public Employees Health Program:
2008........coeueiiriieet e $121,129 $ 556,909 $(556,222) $121,816
2009.......oc e $121,816 $ 558,493 $(560,990) $ 119,319
College and University Self-Insurance:
2008........cueueueiririeieieet s $ 71,731 $203,846 $(200,378) $ 75,199
2009.....ceceeeee e $ 75,199 $205,565 $(227,861) $ 52,903
NOTE 19. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS through 2030. Interest rates on the bonds range from 3.00 to 5.77

On September 29, 2009, the State issued $490.41 million and
$491.76 million of General Obligation Bonds Series 2009 C and
2009 D, respectively. Principal on the bonds is due annually
commencing July 1, 2011, through July 1, 2021. Interest rates on
the bonds range from 2.00 to 5.00 percent, with a“trueinterest rate”
of 2.72 percent after considering premium received upon the sale of
the bonds. Proceeds of the bonds will be used for capital facilities
and highway projects.

On September 9, 2009, the Utah State Building Ownership
Aduthority (blended component unit) issued $8.445 million, $16.715
million, $12.125 million, and $89.47 million of Lease Revenue
Bonds Series 2009 B, 2009 C, 2009 D, and 2009 E, respectively.
Principa on the bondsis due annually commencing May 15, 2012

114

percent with a“true interest rate” of 3.64 percent after considering
premium received upon the sale of the bonds. Proceeds of the bonds
will be used for capital facilities projects.

Subseguent to June 30, 2009, the Student Loan Purchase Program
(major enterprise Fund) entered into a$200 million revolving line
of credit. The line of credit will be used as a short term financing
vehicle to originate or purchase eligible student loans. The initial
term is for 364 days with an option to renew for an additional 364
days. The interest rate is 125 basis points (.0125 percent) over the
30 day London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) with a minimum
rate of not less than 1.75 percent.

Subsequent to June 30, 2009, the Student Loan Purchase Program
(major enterprise fund) sold eligible student loans to the U.S.
Department of Education (ED) under a Master Loan Saes
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Agreement as authorized by the “Ensuring Continued Access to
Student Loans Act of 2008” (Pub. L. No. 110-227). Under the
agreement the Program may sell student loansto ED for apurchase
price equal to the principle and accrued interest, reimbursement of
the 1 percent lender origination fee, and payment of a $75
administrative fee per loan. At the date of sale, the ownership and
servicing of the loans transfersto ED. On September 23, 2009, the
Program sold loans to ED with a principal and accrued interest
balance of $429.596 million.

Subseguent to June 30, 2009, certain bonds with the Student Loan
Purchase Program’s (major enterprise fund) 1988 Revenue Bond
Fund were remarketed to investors or tendered to the liquidity
provider. As of October 26, 2009, total bonds from the 1988
Revenue Bond Fund held in the liquidity facility amounted to
$338.787 million.

The defined benefit pension plans and defined contribution plans
(fiduciary funds) administered by Utah Retirement Systems are
reported as of December 31, 2008. Subsequent to this date, the
overal financia markets have continued to fluctuate in vaue.
However, because the values continue to fluctuate with market
conditions the amount of investment |osses the planswill recognize
initsfuturefinancial statements, if any, can not be determined as of
the date of this report.

Subsequent to June 30, 2009, the Utah Housing Corporation (major
component unit) issued $83.995 million Single Family Mortgage
Class| Refunding Bonds, 2009 Series A Variable Bonds, interest at
avariablerate adjusted weekly maturing on July 1, 2038 and $5.68
million Single Family Mortgage Class | Refunding Bonds, 2009
Series A Fixed Rate Bonds maturing in annual installments from
July 1, 2010 through July 1, 2019 with interest rates of 1.4 percent
to 4.45 percent. The Corporation also issued $72.455 million Single
Family Mortgage Class| Refunding Bonds, 2009 SeriesB Variable
Bonds, interest at a variable rate adjusted weekly maturing on
January 1, 2039 and $2.005 million Single Family Mortgage Class|
Refunding Bonds, 2009 Series B Fixed Rate Bonds maturing in
annual installments from July 1, 2010 through July 1, 2019 with
interest rates of 1.4 percent to 4.45 percent.

Subseguent to June 30, 2009, the Utah Housing Corporation (major
component unit) has entered into an additional Standby Bond
Purchase Agreement with Barclays Capital PLC at a commitment
amount of $156 million.

Subsequent to June 30, 2009 the Utah Housing Corporation (major
component unit) commenced the Home Run 2 Grant, a mortgage
assistance program that grants $4 thousand to qualifying
homebuyers. Federa funds under the American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act were used to provide $8 million for this program.

On October 6, 2009, Utah State University’s (major component
unit) $8.13 million Series 2009 Student Fee and Housing System
Revenue Bondswereissued for the purpose of refunding in advance
of their maturity the Series 1999A Student Fee and Housing System
Revenue Refunding Bonds that were previously issued.

On August 26, 2009, the University of Utah (major component unit)
issued $19.08 million of Research Facilities Revenue Bonds, Series
2009A and $27.73 million Taxable Research Facilities Revenue
Bonds, Series 2009B (Issuer Subsidy — Build America Bonds).
Principle on the Series 2009A bonds is due annually commencing
April 1, 2010 through April 1, 2019 and principle on the Series
2009B bonds is due annually commencing April 1, 2020 through
April 1, 2029. Bond interest isdue semiannually commencing April
1, 2010 at rates ranging from 4 percent to 6.28 percent. Each
interest payment on the Series 2009B bonds will receive a subsidy
fromthe Federal Government with funds provided by the American
Recovery and Reinvestment Act totaling $9.05 million over thelife
of the bonds. Proceeds from these bonds will be used to finance
certain infrastructureimprovementsincluding acentral chilled water
plant. The infrastructure improvements are necessary for planned
construction for interdisciplinary research, clinical operations and
improving inefficient cooling systemsin some existing buildings.

On September 1, 2009, the University of Utah (major component
unit) entered into a sublease agreement for Phase 11-B of the
Huntsman Cancer Hospital which requires semi-annual lease
payments beginning May 2010 through May 2030. Fiscal year
payments range from $2.6 million in fiscal year 2010 to $12.4
millionin fiscal year 2030. Total lease paymentsover thelife of the
lease amount to $158.9 million.

During the 2009 Legidative General Session, House Bill 15
transferred the Salt Lake portion of the Salt Lake/Tooele Applied
Technology College (non-major component unit) to Salt Lake
Community College’'s (non-major component unit) School of
Applied Technology. Thelegislation also created a new campus of
the Utah College of Applied Technology specifically serving Tooele
County. The bill took effect July 1, 2009.

(Remainder of pageisblank.)
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(Expressed in Thousands)

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues
General Revenues
[T I $ 1,821,087 $ 1,544,190 $ 1,547,475 $ 3,285
Licenses, Permits, and Fees:
INSUFANCE FEES ...ttt 6,766 5,012 5,825 813
COUM FEES .ottt 6,460 7,217 6,746 (471)
Other Licenses, Permits, and FEes ........ccccocvevvieiiiievvneene, 6,459 7,659 10,468 2,809
INVESIMENT INCOME ....vvvieeice e 31,050 17,000 25,072 8,072
Miscellaneous Taxes and Other:
BEEN TAX .iviiiiiiiciec ettt ettt 8,845 8,358 8,567 209
Cigarette and TODACCO TAX ...ocveverveerierieirieieie e 60,874 52,114 52,042 (72)
INNEMIEANCE TAX c.vvvivieiviicie et 50 200 321 121
Insurance Premium Tax 79,808 81,257 82,980 1,723
Oil, Gas, and Mining Severance TaX ......cc.ccoveveverenereeennans 85,306 86,321 85,570 (751)
Taxpayer REDALES .........ccccoveiiirrireeee s (6,223) (6,450) (6,234) 216
Court Collections ...... 5,220 4,067 4,738 671
Other Taxes ............... 26,347 28,005 31,572 3,567
Miscellaneous Other ............... 9,461 12,490 13,233 743
Total General Revenues .... 2,141,510 1,847,440 1,868,375 20,935
Department Specific Revenues
ReStrcted SAlES TaX ..ocviivieceiiciiecieecteee e 3,890 3,803 3,803 —
Federal Contracts and Grants ............ccccoeeevieieicieesvee s, 2,055,724 2,268,666 2,268,666 —
Departmental COIIECtiONS .........cccovrvvveviiriricineeececee 312,396 313,415 325,953 12,538
Higher Education ColleCtions ...........ccccoceviinnencincnneneens 384,804 416,933 416,933 —
Federal Mineral Lease ................ 141,095 167,800 172,642 4,842
Investment Income .............. e ———— 16,172 6,799 6,060 (739)
MISCEIIANEOUS ..ot 495,439 578,266 579,073 807
Total Department Specific Revenues ............cccocevecenienene 3,409,520 3,755,682 3,773,130 17,448
Total REVENUES .....ocvveereieiecie ettt 5,551,030 5,603,122 5,641,505 38,383
Expenditures
General GOVEIMMENT ......oviveiieeeeeeeereere et 435,045 354,648 300,164 54,484
Human Services and Youth Corrections ...........cocceveveeeveeennee. 737,732 719,875 708,098 11,777
Corrections, Adult 286,399 263,344 253,312 10,032
Public Safety ............. 274,133 244,536 212,465 32,071
COUIS 1.ttt e st e b e s besbeebeeraeneens 136,292 130,228 127,656 2,572
Health and Environmental Quality ..........ccocccovoeiiiiiinennne. 2,051,118 2,173,082 2,157,204 15,878
Higher Education — State Administration ............... 1,231,468 60,919 60,225 694
Higher Education — Colleges and Universities 35,116 1,174,062 1,173,374 688
Employment and Family Services ..........c.cocceenne. 320,854 534,125 531,522 2,603
Natural RESOUICES .......ccveeiiiiiiieiciie et s 197,058 199,734 177,780 21,954
Community and CUTUFE ........ceeiriiiiiecee e 200,131 147,887 143,899 3,988
Business, Labor, and Agriculture 107,987 104,012 93,147 10,865
Total EXpenditures ...........ccoovrvreeienireneienerneerenens 6,013,333 6,106,452 5,938,846 167,606
Excess Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures ........... (462,303) (503,330) (297,341) 205,989
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Capital Leases ACQUISITION .......ccoereeiieiiieiecreece e — — 2,010 2,010
Sale of Capital ASSELS ....ccccvverieiriiieee e — — 11,001 11,001
TrANSTEIS TN ot 610,175 591,278 591,278 —
Transfers QUL ....c.cviviiiiieicece e (354,338) (490,981) (490,981) —
Total Other Financing Sources (USeS) .....cccccovvevveesvenanen 255,837 100,297 113,308 13,011
Net Change in Fund Balance .........cc.ccocooeveiencnniennn. (206,466) (403,033) (184,033) 219,000
Budgetary Fund Balance — Beginning 686,109 686,109 686,109 —
Budgetary Fund Balance — ENding ..........cccocevuivnniriiininisinininas $ 479,643 $ 283,076 $ 502,076 $ 219,000

The Notes to Required Supplementary Information — Budgetary Reporting are an integral part of this schedule.

118



State of Utah

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Education Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 (Expressed in Thousands)
Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues
General Revenues
INAIVIAUAI TNCOME TAX vt eeee e $ 2,772,281 $ 2,323,000 $ 2,338,592 $ 15,592
COrPOrate TAX vvevveveiveieresierieieiere et 325,628 276,250 263,892 (12,358)
Total General REVENUES .........cccvevveieiierieieiecreereereeveennens 3,097,909 2,599,250 2,602,484 3,234

Department Specific Revenues
Miscellaneous:

INVESIMENT INCOME ...vveeeeieiee e 9,272 4,628 5,849 1,221
Total Department Specific Revenues ............ccccocceveenenne 9,272 4,628 5,849 1,221
TOtal REVENUES .....oovvecveicteecteectee ettt 3,107,181 2,603,878 2,608,333 4,455

Expenditures
EdUCation SUPPOIt ......ccvcviiiiieice e — — — —
Total EXPENItUreS .......covevivveeeieiciieesee e

o
o
o
o

Excess Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures ........... 3,107,181 2,603,878 2,608,333 4,455

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
TranSfers QUL ....oc.cviviiceieiccee e (3,231,247) (2,491,748) (2,491,748) —
Total Other Financing Sources (USeS) .....cccccoveevvererreennen (3,231,247) (2,491,748) (2,491,748) 0
Net Change in Fund Balance ............ccocccvvevviericnnnnn, (124,066) 112,130 116,585 4,455

Budgetary Fund Balance — Beginning
Budgetary Fund Balance — Ending

234,676 234,676 234,676 —
........................................... $ 110,610 $ 346,806 $ 351,261 $ 4,455

The Notes to Required Supplementary Information — Budgetary Reporting are an integral part of this schedule.
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State of Utah

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Uniform School Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 (Expressed in Thousands)
Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues
General Revenues
MiSCEIANEOUS OLNET ...t $ 12,386 $ 11,600 $ 25,358 $ 13,758
Total General REVENUES ........c.ccoevevieeiieiiie e 12,386 11,600 25,358 13,758

Department Specific Revenues

Federal Contracts and Grants ............cccceevereveeeecieeseeessee e 375,266 597,254 597,254 —
Departmental Collections 4,483 7,823 7,823 —
INVESTMENE INCOME ... 26,500 26,858 27,326 468
Miscellaneous:
SChool LUNCH TaX .vviiieiecii et 21,612 26,769 26,769 —
Driver Education Fee .... 3,955 5,002 5,002 —
(@] 13T TSRO 5,174 8,753 8,917 164
Total Department Specific Revenues ............ccccocceveenenne 436,990 672,459 673,091 632
Total Revenues 449,376 684,059 698,449 14,390
Expenditures
PUBIIC EAUCALION ..o 3,160,876 3,095,983 3,048,561 47,422
Total EXPENItUIES .......cvivevierieieiceieesee e 3,160,876 3,095,983 3,048,561 47,422
Excess Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures ........... (2,711,500) (2,411,924) (2,350,112) 61,812
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
TranSTers IN ..o 2,662,591 2,227,988 2,227,988 —
Transfers OUL .......cooiiieeeee e (57,350) (55,265) (55,265) —
Total Other Financing Sources (USeS) .......ccovvereiereene 2,605,241 2,172,723 2,172,723 0
Net Change in Fund Balance ..........c.ccocooeveienininnnnn (106,259) (239,201) (177,389) 61,812
Budgetary Fund Balance — Beginning ..........ccccccevvevvereierienenns 371,621 371,621 371,621 —
Budgetary Fund Balance — ENding .........ccccoeevveeveviivecniesennen $ 265,362 $ 132,420 $ 194,232 $ 61,812

The Notes to Required Supplementary Information — Budgetary Reporting are an integral part of this schedule.
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State of Utah

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Transportation Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Revenues
General Revenues
(1Y [0 (o] g =V 1= I I GO
Special FUET TaX .o.vcviveiiiiieiiiieiseess e
Licenses, Permits, and Fees:
Motor Vehicle Registration FEes .........cccceevervrinieiesieirnnn.
Proportional Registration FEes ..........coceveviirenniencienien
Temporary Permits ..........cccovvee.
Special Transportation Permits ....
Highway Use Permits ...................
Motor Vehicle Control FEES ........coevveveeceeieiceece e,
MISCEIANEOUS .....vovevecieciecece e
Investment Income
Miscellaneous Other ........cccccvvieieeiceeecee e
Total General REVENUES ........ccccveveievieiieieie et

Department Specific Revenues

Restricted Sales and Aviation Fuel TaXes .........ccoeevvevvevvennenn,
Federal Contracts and Grants ............cccevvevveieeieeseeieeecreeinens
Departmental Collections
Federal AronNaULICS ......c.cccviiieiiiiie et
INVESTMENT INCOME ..o
MISCEIIANEBOUS .....veovieieiecece e

Total Department Specific Revenues ............ccccoceeveenenne

TOtal REVENUES ..ottt

Expenditures
TranSPOrtatioN .........ccovveieiericiieiesei e
Total EXPENItUreS .......covevevveesieiiirieeseeeesee e

Excess Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures ...........

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
General Obligation Bonds ISSUed ...........ccccceveveveiiienieniienan,
Sale of Capital ASSELS .......cceierieerieieerec e
TranSTers IN ..o
TranSfers OUL .......ccooeiieee e

Total Other Financing Sources (USeS) .......ccovvereiereenes

Net Change in Fund Balance .........cc.ccoccoeveiencnniennn.
Budgetary Fund Balance — Beginning .........c.ccccoeevveviiiiiernannns
Budgetary Fund Balance — Ending ..........ccccocevvveriieneienenienenn

(Expressed in Thousands)

The Notes to Required Supplementary Information — Budgetary Reporting are an integral part of this schedule.
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Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
$ 273,735 $ 223,476 $ 235481 $ 12,005
127,923 104,571 101,367 (3,204)
32,319 35,731 34,917 (814)
12,435 13,644 14,114 470
449 501 492 9)
7,166 8,430 8,235 (195)
6,389 6,880 12,520 5,640
4,871 4,676 4,552 (124)
1,734 1,979 2,094 115
3,569 3,643 3,370 (273)
1,309 4,616 5,833 1,217
471,899 408,147 422,975 14,828
150,471 115,819 122,281 6,462
177,281 322,175 322,175 —
50,297 65,631 64,688 (943)
45,000 45,000 34,141 (10,859)
1,030 1,030 5,761 4,731
20,050 117,781 118,028 247
444,129 667,436 667,074 (362)
916,028 1,075,583 1,090,049 14,466
922,315 1,409,084 1,403,297 5,787
922,315 1,409,084 1,403,297 5,787
(6,287) (333,501) (313,248) 20,253
— — 427,917 427,917

— — 6,157 6,157
168,200 189,981 189,981 —
(136,836) (150,054) (150,054) —
31,364 39,927 474,001 434,074
25,077 (293,574) 160,753 454,327
466,015 466,015 466,015 —
$ 491,092 $ 172,441 $ 626,768 $ 454,327



State of Utah

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Transportation Investment Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(Expressed in Thousands)

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues
General Revenues
ST LT I I TS $ 179,800 $ 151,800 $ 157,050 $ 5,250
Motor Vehicle Registration Fees ........c.ccvvvvrevvviriienienriennan, 23,700 23,600 22,955 (645)
Total General REVENUES ........ccccvvueenininieeninieieinesieeeins 203,500 175,400 180,005 4,605
Department Specific Revenues
Federal Contracts and Grants ............ccccouvveiennnieienneencnennns 30,000 1,200 1,200 —
INVESTMENE INCOME ..o 2,000 2,000 949 (1,051)
Total Department Specific Revenues ............ccccoceevenenne 32,000 3,200 2,149 (1,051)
TOtal REVENUES .....ceviieieicsieeese et 235,500 178,600 182,154 3,554
Expenditures
TranSPOrtatioN .........ccovveieiericiieiesei e 172,130 293,498 293,498 —
Total EXPENItUIES .....c.cveveieeiieiceieesiee e 172,130 293,498 293,498 0
Excess Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures ........... 63,370 (114,898) (111,344) 3,554
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
TranSTers IN ..o 131,977 131,977 131,977 —
Transfers OUL .......coiiiieeee e (194,193) (222,796) (222,796) —
Total Other Financing Sources (USeS) ......cccovereiereene (62,216) (90,819) (90,819) 0
Net Change in Fund Balance ..........c.ccocooeveienencnnnn 1,154 (205,717) (202,163) 3,554
Budgetary Fund Balance — Beginning ..........ccccccevvevvereierienenns 182,855 182,855 182,855 —
Budgetary Fund Balance — ENding .........ccccoeevvieveniicceniesenne, $ 184,009 $  (22,862) $ (19,308) $ 3,554

The Notes to Required Supplementary Information — Budgetary Reporting are an integral part of this schedule.
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State of Utah

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Budget To GAAP Reconciliation

For the Fiscal Y ear Ended June 30, 2009 (Expressed in Thousands)
Uniform Transportation
General Education School Transportation I nvestment
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
Revenues
Actual total revenues (budgetary basis) ........coceeerrerirnnnnene $ 5,641,505 $ 2,608,333 $ 698,449 $ 1,090,049 $ 182,154

Differences — Budget to GAAP:
Intrafund revenues are budgetary revenues but
are not revenues for financial reporting .........ccceceveeecenne. (398,472) — (8,633) (1,430) —
Higher education and Utah Schools for the Deaf and
the Blind collections are budgetary revenues but

are not revenues for financial reporting .........coceeeveveeeceene. (426,529) — (5,105) — —
Changein revenue accrual for nonbudgetary
Medicaid ClaimS .........ccceiiirrrrr s 10,433 — — — —

Change in tax accruals designated by law for
postemployment and other liabilities are revenues for
financial reporting but not for budgetary reporting ............ (64,064) (12,906) 1,616 2,784 (6,361)
Total revenues as reported on the Statement
of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changesin
Fund Balances — Governmental Funds.............c.coceeueee. $ 4,762,873 $ 2,595,427 $ 686,327 $ 1,091,403 $ 175,793

Expenditures
Actual total expenditures (budgetary basis) .......ccovveerirrererennes $ 5,938,846 $ — $ 3,048,561 $ 1,403,297 $ 293,498
Differences — Budget to GAAP:
Intrafund expenditures for reimbursements
are budgetary expenditures but are not
expenditures for financia reporting ..........cccoeveeervciieens (398,472) — (8,633) (1,430) —
Expenditures related to higher education and
Utah Schools for the Deaf and the Blind collections
are budgetary expenditures but are not

expenditures for financia reporting ..........cccoeveeervecineens (426,529) — (5,105) — —
Certain budgetary transfers and other charges are reported

as areduction of expendituresfor financia reporting ........ (5,036) — — — —
L eave/postemployment charges budgeted as expenditures

when earned rather than when taken or due........................ (7,894) — (245) (1,009) —
Changein accrual for Medicaid incurred but not

reported claims excluded from the budget by statute......... 2,407 — — — —

Total expenditures as reported on the Statement
of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changesin
Fund Balances — Governmental Funds..............coeveeene $ 5,103,322 $ 0 $ 3,034,678 $ 1,400,858 $ 293,498

The Notes to Required Supplementary Information — Budgetary Reporting are an integral part of this schedule.
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State of Utah Required Supplementary I nformation Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

NOTESTO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION —BUDGETARY REPORTING
Budgetary Presentation

A Budgetary Comparison Schedule is presented for each of the State's major governmental funds for which the Legislature enacts an annua
budget. An annual budget is aso adopted for the Debt Service Fund, a nonmajor fund. The budgets are enacted through passage of
Appropriations Acts. Budgets for specific general revenues are not adopted through an Appropriations Act but are based on supporting
estimates approved by the Executive Appropriations Committee of the Legislature. General revenues are those revenues available for
appropriation for any program or purpose as alowed by law. Department-specific revenues are revenues dedicated by an Appropriations Act
or restricted by other law or external grantor to a specific program or purpose.

Original budgets and related revenue estimates represent the spending authority enacted through Appropriations Acts as of June 30, 2009, and
include nonlapsing carryforward balances from the prior fiscal year. Final budgets represent the original budget as amended by supplemental
appropriations and related changes in revenue estimates, executive order reductions when applicable, and changes authorized or required by
law when department-specific revenues either exceed or fall short of budgeted amounts.

Unexpended balances at yearend may: (1) lapse to unrestricted balances and be available for future appropriation; (2) lapse to restricted
balances and be available for future appropriation restricted for specific purposes as defined by statute; or (3) be nonlapsing, which means
balances are reported as reservations of fund balance. The nonlapsing balances are considered automatically reappropriated as authorized by
statute, by an Appropriations Act, or by limited encumbrances.

Budgetary Control

In September of each year, al agencies of the government submit requests for appropriations to the Governor’s Office of Planning and
Budget so that a budget may be prepared. The budget is prepared by fund, function, and activity and includes information on the past year,
current year estimates, and requested appropriations for the next fiscal year.

In January, the proposed budget is presented to the Legislature. The Legislature reviews the budget, makes changes, and prepares the annual
Appropriations Act. The Legidature passes the Appropriations Act by a simple magjority vote. The Appropriations Act becomes the State's
authorized operating budget upon the Governor’s signature. The Constitution of Utah requires that budgeted expenditures not exceed
estimated revenues and other sources of funding, including beginning bal ances.

Budgetary control is maintained at the functional or organizational level, as identified by numbered line items in the Appropriations Act.
Budgets may be modified if federal funding or revenue specifically dedicated for aline item exceeds origina estimates in the Appropriations
Act. If funding sources are not sufficient to cover the appropriation, the Governor is required to reduce the budget by the amount of the
deficiency. Any other changes to the budget must be approved by the Legisature in a supplementa Appropriations Act.

Any department that spends more than the authorized amount must submit a report explaining the overspending to the State Board of
Examiners. The Board will recommend corrective action, which may include a request to the Legidlature for a supplemental appropriation to
cover the deficit. If a supplemental appropriation is not approved, the department must cover the overspending with the subsequent year’'s
budget. In the General Fund, the State Courts Administrator’s budget for juror and witness fees was overexpended by $804 thousand. This
deficit is allowed by statute and will be funded with future appropriations. All other appropriated budgets of the State were within their
authorized spending levels.

Spending Limitation

The State also has an appropriation limitation statute that limits the growth in state appropriations. The total of the amount appropriated from
unrestricted General Fund sources plus the income tax revenues appropriated for higher education is limited to the growth in population and
inflation. The appropriations limitation can be exceeded only if a fiscal emergency is declared and approved by more than two-thirds of both
houses of the Legidature, or if approved by a vote of the people. However, the appropriations limitation statute may be amended by a
majority of both houses of the Legidature. Appropriations for debt service, emergency expenditures, amounts from other than unrestricted
revenue sources, transfers to the Budgetary Reserve Account (Rainy Day Fund), Education Budget Reserve Account and the Transportation
Investment Fund; or capital developments meeting certain criteria are exempt from the appropriations limitation. For the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2009, the State was $285.51 million below the appropriations limitation.
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State of Utah Required Supplementary I nformation Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATE'SOTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The State Employees Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (State Employees’ OPEB Plan) is administered through the State Post-Retirement
Benefits Trust Fund as an irrevocable trust. Assets of the trust fund are dedicated to providing post-retirement health and life insurance
coverage to current and eligible future state retirees. Only state employees entitled to receive retirement benefits, and hired prior to January 1,
2006, are eligible to receive post-retirement health and life insurance benefits.

The following factors contributed to the decrease in the State Employees’ OPEB Plan Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) and the Unfunded
Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) from December 31, 2006 to December 31, 2008:; 1) fully funding the Annual Required Contribution
(ARC) over the last two fiscal years; 2) changes in benefit provisions that shifted increases in health care costs to employees and retirees; and
3) the State Employees’ Plan is a closed plan (i.e., only state employees entitled to receive retirement benefits and hired prior to January 1,

2006 are eligible to receive benefits).

The following schedules present the State of Utah's actuarially determined funding progress and required contributions for the State
Post-Retirement Benefits Trust Fund (using the projected unit credit method):

Sate Employees’' OPEB Plan
Schedule of Funding Progress
By Valuation Date
(Expressed in Thousands)

Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial UAAL asa
Actuarial Accrued Accrued Annual Per centage of
Value of Liability Liability Funded Covered Covered
Valuation Date Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payrall
December 31, 2006 $ 0 $ 669,617 $669,617 0.00 % $ 748,096 89.51 %
December 31, 2008 $ 53,851 $ 446,601 $ 392,750 12.06 % $901,245 43.58 %

Sate Employees’ OPEB Plan
Schedule of Employer Contributions
(Expressed in Thousands)

Annual

Required Per centage
Year Ended Contributions Contributed
June 30, 2007 $ 50,433 101.37 %
June 30, 2008 $ 53,491 98.71 %
June 30, 2009 $ 53,491 100.00 %

The Elected Officias' Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (Elected Officials' OPEB Plan) is administered by the State and funded on a pay-
as-you-go basis. Only elected officias that retire after January 1, 1998 and have 4 or more years of service are eligible for this benefit. The
following schedule presents the State of Utah's actuarially determined funding progress for the Elected Officials OPEB Plan (using the

projected unit credit method):

Elected Officials OPEB Plan
Schedule of Funding Progress
By Valuation Date
(Expressed in Thousands)

Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial UAAL asa
Actuarial Accrued Accrued Annual Per centage of
Value of Liability Liability Funded Covered Covered
Valuation Date Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroall
December 31, 2008 $ 0 $ 24,515 $ 24,515 0.00 % $ 866 2,830.8%
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State of Utah Required Supplementary I nformation Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

INFORMATION ABOUT INFRASTRUCTURE ASSETS REPORTED USING THE M ODIFIED APPROACH

As dlowed by GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Satements—and Management’s Discussion and Analysis—for Sate and Local
Governments, the State has adopted an aternative to reporting depreciation on roads and bridges (infrastructure assets) maintained by the
Utah Department of Transportation (UDOT). This includes infrastructure acquired prior to fiscal year 1981. Under this alternative method,
referred to as the “modified approach,” infrastructure assets are not depreciated, and maintenance and preservation costs are expensed.

In order to utilize the modified approach, the Stateis required to:

e Maintain an asset management system that includes an up-to-date inventory of eligible infrastructure assets.

e Peform and document replicable condition assessments of the eligible infrastructure assets and summarize the results using a
measurement scale.

e Edtimate each year the annua amount to maintain and preserve the eligible infrastructure assets at the condition level established
and disclosed by the State.

o  Document that the infrastructure assets are being preserved approximately at, or above the condition level established by the State.

Roads

UDOT uses the Pavement Management System to determine the condition of 5,699 centerline miles of state roads. The assessment is based
on the Ride Index, which is a measure of ride quality on a1 to 5 scale, with 5 representing new or nearly new pavements that provide a very
smooth ride. The Ride Index is caculated from the International Roughness Index (IRI), with pavement type (asphalt or concrete) taken into
account. The IRl isamathematical statistic based on the longitudinal profile of the road.

Category Range Description
Very Good 4.35-5.00 New or nearly new pavements that provide avery smooth ride, and are mainly free of distress.
Good 355-4.34 Pavements that provide an adequate ride, and exhibit few, if any, visible signs of distress.
Fair 2.75-354 Surface defectsin this category such as cracking, rutting, and raveling are affecting the ride.
Poor 1.85-2.74 These roadways have deteriorated to such an extent that they are in need of resurfacing and theride
is noticeably rough.
Very Poor 1.00-184 Pavements in this category are severely deteriorated, and the ride quality must be improved.

Condition Level — Roads

The State's established condition level is to maintain 50 percent of its roads with arating of “fair” or better and no more than 15 percent of
roads with arating of “very poor.”

The State performs compl ete assessments on a calendar year basis. The following table reports the result of pavements with ratings of “fair”
or better (ratings of 2.75 through 5.0) or “very poor” (ratings of 1.0 through 1.84) for the last three years:

Rating 2008 2007 2006
Fair or Better 61.0% 62.6 % 64.5 %
Very Poor 13.9% 124 % 11.3%
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The following table presents the State’s estimated amounts needed to maintain and preserve roads at or above the established
condition levels addressed above, and the amounts actually spent for each of the past five reporting periods (in thousands):

FISCAL YEAR ESTIMATED SPENDING ACTUAL SPENDING
2009 $ 296,443 $ 313,817
2008 $ 418,386 $ 292,585
2007 $212,911 $ 252,526
2006 $ 240,854 $ 366,600
2005 $ 226,345 $ 307,858

Bridges

UDOT uses the Structures Inventory System to monitor the condition of the 1,833 state-owned bridges. A number, ranging from 1 to 100, is
calculated based on condition, geometry, functional use, safety, and other factors. Three categories of condition are established in relation to
the number range as follows:

Category Range Description

Good 80 - 100 Preventive maintenance requirements include repair leaking deck joints, apply deck overlays and
seals, place concrete sealers to splash zones, paint steel surfaces, and minor beam repairs.

Fair 50-79 Corrective repairs include deck, beam, and substructure repairs, fixing settled approaches, and
repairing collision damage.

Poor 1-49 Major rehabilitation and replacement includes deck, beam, or substructure replacements or
replacement of the entire bridge.

Condition Level — Bridges

The State performs complete assessments on an annual basis ending April 1 of each year. The established condition level is to maintain
50 percent of the bridges with a rating of “good” and no more than 15 percent with a rating of “poor.” The following table reports the results
of the bridges assessed for the past three years:

Rating 2009 2008 2007
Good 69.0 % 72.0% 71.0%
Poor 1.0% 2.0% 2.0%

The following table presents the State’s estimated amounts needed to maintain and preserve bridges at or above the established condition
levels addressed above, and the amounts actually spent for each of the past five reporting periods (in thousands):

FISCAL YEAR ESTIMATED SPENDING ACTUAL SPENDING
2009 $52,314 $ 55,379
2008 $73,833 $51,633
2007 $37,573 $ 44,563
2006 $ 42,504 $ 64,694
2005 $39,943 $ 54,328
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State of Utah

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

State Endowment Fund

This fund accounts for a portion of proceeds relating to

the State’s settlement agreement with major tobacco
manufacturers, severance tax revenue in excess of statutory
base amounts, and money or other assets given to this

fund under any provision of law. The principal of the fund
cannot be appropriated except by a three-fourths vote of
both houses of the Legislature and with the concurrence of
the Governor. One-half of all interest and dividends earned on
tobacco settlement proceeds is deposited in the General Fund.

Environmental Reclamation

This fund consists of various programs aimed at preserving
open land, improving irrigation in the State, funding
recycling programs, and funding cleanup and reclamation
projects. Funds received are from state appropriations,
fees and fines, recovered liens and costs, and voluntary
contributions.

Crime Victim Reparation

This fund accounts for court-ordered restitution and a
surcharge on criminal fines, penalties, and forfeitures.
Monies deposited in this fund are for victim reparations,
other victim services, and, as appropriated, costs of
administering the fund.

Universal Telephone Services

This fund is designed to preserve and promote universal
telephone service throughout the State by ensuring that all
citizens have access to affordable basic telephone service.
Revenues come from surcharges on customers’ phone
bills and from fines and penalties levied against telephone
service providers by the Public Service Commission.

Consumer Education Fund

This fund accounts for revenues and expenditures
associated with educating and training Utah residents in
various consumer matters. Funding is provided through
the assessment and collection of fines and penalties from
various regulated professions.

Rural Development Fund

This fund promotes various programs in rural areas of the
State including construction of communications systems
and economic development grants to Native American

tribes. Funding comes from oil and gas severance taxes and
from royalties on mineral extractions on federal land within
the State.

State Capitol Fund

This fund was created to account for the funding and
operations of the State Capitol Preservation Board. Funds
are used in part to pay for repairs, maintenance, and the
restoration of Capitol Hill facilities and grounds. Funding
is provided through legislative appropriations, fees, and
private donations.

Miscellaneous Special Revenue

This fund is made up of individual small funds set up
to account for various revenue sources that are legally
restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

Capital Projects — General Government

This fund accounts for the acquisition or construction

of major capital facilities for use by the State and its
component units. The fund receives financial resources
from the proceeds of general obligation bonds, legislative
appropriations, and intergovernmental revenues.

Capital Projects — State Building Ownership Authority
(Blended Component Unit)

This fund accounts for the acquisition or construction of
major capital facilities for use by various state agencies.

The fund receives financial resources from the proceeds of
lease revenue bonds issued by the Authority and the interest
earned on the proceeds of the bonds.

Debt Service — General Government

This fund accounts for the payment of principal and interest
on the State’s general obligation bonds. The fund receives
most of its financial resources from appropriations made by
the Legislature.

Debt Service — State Building Ownership Authority
(Blended Component Unit)

This fund accounts for the payment of principal and
interest on lease revenue bonds issued by the Authority.
The fund receives financial resources from rent payments
made by various state agencies occupying the facilities
owned by the Authority.



State of Utah

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2009

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents ...........ccccoeoerenneneicicnene
INVESEMENTS ...t e
Receivables:

ACCOUNES, NEL ..o
ACCIUEH INTEIESE ..ottt
Due From Other FUNAS .......c.cccevveveiiieiececececeeeeee
Due From Component Units

Total ASSEtS ......ccvvvvvecreecrreireennen,

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities .....................
Due To Other FUNAS ........cooovvveveirniciinsceciees
Due To Component Units
Deferred REVENUE ........oooveiviriieiicc e

Total Liabilities .......cc.coovvviiiiiiicecic e,

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Nonlapsing Appropriations and Encumbrances ...........
Specific Purposes by Statute
DeDt SEIVICE ....cuviviiciiiieieeee e
Unreserved Designated, reported in nonmajor:
Debt Service FUNAS .........ccooeiiiiiiiiirceeeeesee
Unreserved Undesignated, reported in nonmajor:
Special Revenue FUNdS .......cccoevevrivneieninseeneseeenes
Capital Projects FUNAS ........ccoovveveiriininec e
Total Fund Balances ..........cccovervineieneneesereeeee
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances ........c.ccccoevevrenireniennne

(Expressed in Thousands)

Special Revenue

132

Crime Universal

State Environmental Victim Telephone
Endowment Reclamation Reparation Services
$ 23,105 $ 704 $ 1241 $ 8,763
56,375 27,404 3,425 —
9,144 3 — —

$ 88,624 $ 28,111 $ 4,666 $ 8,763
$ — $ 452 $ 171 $ 629
_ 3 126

9,144 — — —
9,144 455 171 755
79,480 19,465 — —
— 8,191 4,495 8,008
79,480 27,656 4,495 8,008

$ 88,624 $ 28,111 $ 4,666 $ 8,763



Special Revenue

Capital Projects

Miscellaneous

State Building
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Consumer Rural State Special General Ownership
Education Development Capitol Revenue Government Authority
$ 431 $ 8,906 $ 739 $ 8225 $ 99,562 $ 2370
2,656 30,127 599 18,825 116,795 24,296
6 — — 202 — —
— — — — — 22
— — 22 142 979 309
— — — — 27,293 —
$ 3,093 $ 39,033 $ 1,360 $ 27,394 $ 244,629 $ 26,997
$ 217 $ 99 $ 67 $ 1,280 $ 33,367 $ 268
59 731 11 645 1,295 24,962
— — — — — 3,048
— — — 12,191 — —
276 830 78 14,116 34,662 28,278
— — — — 217,961 3,043
— — — 8,859 901 —
2,817 38,203 1,282 4,419 — —
— — — — (8,895) (4,324)
2,817 38,203 1,282 13,278 209,967 (1,281)

$ 3,093 $ 39,033 $ 1,360 $ 27,394 $ 244,629 $

26,997

Continues



State of Utah

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental

Funds

Continued

June 30, 2009

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents ..........

INVESMENTS ..o,

Receivables:

Accounts, net .........ccevrvninenn,

Accrued Interest ........ccccvveneee.

Due From Component Units
Total ASSELS ....cvevvrvirerreeeeees

Due From Other Funds .................

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities .....................

Due To Other Funds ..................

Due To Component Units ...

Deferred Revenue ...........c..........

Total Liabilities ...................

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:

Nonlapsing Appropriations and Encumbrances ...........

Specific Purposes by Statute ..
Debt Service .......cccoceveveiennens

Unreserved Designated, reported in nonmajor:

Debt Service Funds ................

Unreserved Undesignated, reported in nonmajor:

Special Revenue Funds ..........

Capital Projects Funds ............
Total Fund Balances ............

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

(Expressed in Thousands)

Debt Service Total
State Building Nonmajor
General Ownership Governmental
Government Authority Funds
$ 33,099 $ 3,799 $ 190,944
1,820 4,830 287,152
37 — 9,392
— 2 24
— — 1,452
— 1,304 28,597
$ 34,956 $ 9,935 $ 517,561
$ 29,673 $ 184 $ 66,407
73 2,676 30,581
— — 3,048
— 1,305 22,640
29,746 4,165 122,676
— — 221,004
— — 108,705
— 5,770 5,770
5,210 — 5,210
— — 67,415
— — (13,219)
5,210 5,770 394,885
$ 34,956 $ 9,935 $ 517,561
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State of Utah

Combining Statement Of Revenues,
Expenditures, And Changes In Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 (Expressed in Thousands)

Special Revenue

Crime Universal
State Environmental Victim Telephone
Endowment Reclamation Reparation Services
REVENUES
Taxes:
Sales and Use Tax $ — $ — $ — $ —
Other Taxes ............... 23,017 — — —
Total Taxes 23,017 0 0 0
Other Revenues:
Federal Contracts and Grants ............cocoevveeeeveeereveneieennnn — — 1,754 —_
Charges for Services — 3,556 7,439 6,493
Intergovernmental ...........cccccvveneen. — — — —
Investment Income .................. (8,094) 720 140 —
Miscellaneous and Other ..........ccceevveviiveice e 18,100 305 — —
Total REVENUES ......eecveeiiecreeiteeetee et 33,023 4,581 9,333 6,493
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General GOVErNMENL .........ccvvvvvviiiiieciecee e — 2,336 7,257 —
Human Services and Youth Corrections ...........ccccceevenens — — — —
Corrections, AdUlt ..........ccooeveviiiiiece e —_ —_ —_ —_
Public Safety .........ccccoveeee. — — — —
(©01 1] ¢ USSR — — — —
Health and Environmental Quality ............ccccovvenniennncns — 5,960 — —
Higher Education — Colleges and Universities ............... — — — —
Employment and Family Services — — — —
Natural RESOUICES .......cveveierieiieie e — — — —
Community and CUltUre ........c.cccvereiiiineeece — — — —
Business, Labor, and Agriculture ... — 387 — 6,836
Public Education ...........cccceevennnne — — — —
Transportation ...........cccocoveevrenne — — — —
Capital OUIAY ......ooeveieiee s — — — —
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement ..........coceovvvieieninnecereeeeieeene — — — —
Interest and Other Charges ..........ccoceeveevveesereiesicesienas — — — —
Total EXPenditures ..........ccceevrreeenninerenneeeesieene 0 8,683 7,257 6,836
Excess Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures ..........c.cc....... 33,023 (4,102) 2,076 (343)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
General Obligation Bonds Issued — — — —
Premium on Bonds Issued — — — —
Transfers In ....ccceveeveeeicieenns 623 2,446 — —
Transfers QUL ......ccceevveeiciicecce e — (130) (4,472) —
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 623 2,316 (4,472) 0
Net Change in Fund Balances ............cccccocevvierienennen, 33,646 (1,786) (2,396) (343)
Fund Balances — BEginNing ........c.cccceereenecnenesieneenenienens 45,834 29,442 6,891 8,351
Fund Balances — ENAiNG ........ccoovvrereeirinieeienseee e $ 79,480 $ 27,656 $ 4,495 $ 8,008
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Special Revenue

Capital Projects

Miscellaneous

State Building

137

Consumer Rural State Special General Ownership
Education Development Capitol Revenue Government Authority
$ — $ — $ — $ 3741 $ — $ —
— 8,912 — 17 — —

0 8,912 0 3,758 0 0

— — — 12,542 — —

1,037 — 1,632 1,117 — —

_ _ — — 9,446 —

75 719 23 787 362 —

— — — 3,728 1,289 25

1,112 9,631 1,655 21,932 11,097 25

— — 4,211 17,345 10,789 —

— — — 812 3,500 —

— — — — 2,562 —

— — — 2,018 1,059 —

— — — — 1,683 —

— — — — 402 —

— — — — 35,804 —

— — — 54 405 —

— — — 2,730 2,438 —

— 4,335 — 915 141 —

2,281 — — 3 29 —

— — — 34 807 —

— — — 3 452 —

— — — — 192,792 3,412

2,281 4,335 4,211 23,914 252,863 3,412
(1,169) 5,296 (2,556) (1,982) (241,766) (3,387)

. _ — — 104,450 —

— — — — 9,269 —

— — 3,713 4,528 237,784 —

(153) (2,524) — (1,714) (137,026) —
(153) (2,524) 3,713 2,814 214,477 0
(1,322) 2,772 1,157 832 (27,289) (3,387)
4,139 35,431 125 12,446 237,256 2,106

$ 2817 $ 38,203 $ 1,282 $ 13,278 $ 209,967 $ (1,281)

Continues



State of Utah

Combining Statement Of Revenues,
Expenditures, And Changes In Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds Continued
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 (Expressed in Thousands)
Debt Service Total
State Building Nonmajor
General Ownership Governmental
Government Authority Funds
REVENUES
Taxes:
Sales ANA USE TaX .veviviriririrererererererevereverereseseresesesesesenenas $ — $ — $ 3741
Other Taxes ............... — — 31,946
Total Taxes 0 0 35,687
Other Revenues:
Federal Contracts and Grants ............cocoeveeeeveiceriveesieinnens — — 14,296
Charges for Services — — 21,274
Intergovernmental .............cccoeenene. — — 9,446
Investment Income .................. 17 82 (5,169)
Miscellaneous and Other ... 324 20,871 44,642
Total REVENUES ......oovveieieeeceecteee e 341 20,953 120,176
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General GOVEINMENT ......c.covviieiiiiie et — — 41,938
Human Services and Youth Corrections ...........ccceeeuvennee — — 4,312
Corrections, Adult — — 2,562
Public Safety ................. — — 3,077
COUIS ittt tre e e et — — 1,683
Health and Environmental Quality ............cccocoveeiiinnnne — — 6,362
Higher Education — Colleges and Universities ............... — — 35,804
Employment and Family Services — — 459
Natural RESOUICES .....ceeevieiviiirieireecreecte et — — 5,168
Community and CUtUre .........cccoeriiriiiiieeec e — — 5,391
Business, Labor, and Agriculture ... — — 9,536
Public Education ........... — — 841
Transportation — — 455
Capital OULIAY ..o — — 196,204
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement .........ccooeierirniennnee e 167,700 12,913 180,613
Interest and Other Charges .........ccocoeerennverinneecnnans 56,413 8,262 64,675
Total EXPENTITUrES .......cceveirirerieirisieensisee e 224,113 21,175 559,080
Excess Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures ..................... (223,772) (222) (438,904)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
General Obligation Bonds Issued — — 104,450
Premium on Bonds Issued 2,619 — 11,888
Transfers In ............... 205,562 223 454,879
Transfers Out — — (146,019)
Total Other Financing Sources (USes) ...........cccveveane. 208,181 223 425,198
Net Change in Fund Balances ...........c.ccceovrreeirnnnnn (15,591) 1 (13,706)
Fund Balances — BEgiNNing .........cccoceeveienereeiencieneneeeseeas 20,801 5,769 408,591
Fund Balances — ENAiNG ......ccovevvvvviiveeieiieeeeeeeeeeee s $ 5,210 $ 5,770 $ 394,885
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State of Utah

Detail Schedule of Expenditures
Budget and Actual Comparison
General Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 (Expressed in Thousands)
Source of Funding
Line Restricted
Item Appropriation Line Item State Federal and Other Final
# Description Funds Funds Funds Budget
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Legislature
242 SENALE <.ttt ettt ettt ee s $ 3,138 $ — $ — $ 3,138
243 HOUSE <ot 4,741 — — 4,741
246 Printing ......ccocoevevrveeieneeec e 659 — 191 850
247 Research and General Counsel ...........ccccuc.... 8,141 — — 8,141
248 Tax Review COmMMISSION ....c.ccvveeveeiveecieieeeiesreeereens 49 — — 49
249 Constitutional Revision Commission ...................... 54 — — 54
245 Fiscal Analyst 3,864 — 17 3,881
244 AUdItor GENEral .......ccovevvveeiiiiicecece e 3,486 — — 3,486
Total LegiSIature ........ccoeevvvveiviiisecei e 24,132 0 208 24,340
Elected Officials
12 SEALE TTEASUIET .ot ee e e e reeeenene $ 2,938 $ — $ 365 $ 3,303
6 GOV - Administrative Office 6,744 33 485 7,262
9 GOV - Planning and Budget ...........ccccooervenereniennn 5,304 — 200 5,504
7 GOV - Lt. Governor Character Education ............... 45 — — 45
10 GOV - Criminal and Juvenile Justice ..........cccccoueeun. 9,601 8,159 82 17,842
8 GOV - Emergency and Contingency Fund .............. 100 — — 100
93 GOV - Incentive FUNAS ........ccooovevvieiieiicie e, 143 — — 143
90 GOV - Economic Development Administration ...... 4,500 — — 4,500
91 GOV - Office of TOUFSM .....oovvviiiiiiiecie e 24,788 — 96 24,884
92 GOV - Business Development ..........ccccoeeevviinninnae 12,820 300 — 13,120
— GOV - Industrial Assistance Fund ...........ccccocuvevuee.. 3,434 — — 3,434
95 USTAR oottt 25,720 — 6 25,726
13 Attorney General ..o 28,102 1,304 18,478 47,884
14 AG - Contract Attorneys 77 — 773 850
16 AG — Prosecution Council ..........ccceeeveiveeieeieeinnns 667 — 191 858
17 AG — Domestic VIOIENCE .......covevveeieiiecieecece e, 78 — — 78
15 AG - Children's Justice Centers ...... 3,258 209 48 3,515
11 State Auditor ........ccoeevvviecieiee, 3,854 — 1,339 5,193
Total Elected Officials .........ccevvevvevieieiiieieceeens 132,173 10,005 22,063 164,241
Government Operations
38 Department of Administrative Services .................... $ 984 $ — $ — $ 984
39 DAS — Administrative RUIES .........cccoeevevveeiieiieiinens 402 — — 402
40 DAS - Facilities Construction and Management ...... 5,389 — — 5,389
41 DAS - Archives 2,477 56 39 2,572
42 DAS — FINANCE ..vvivvcieieiecie et 9,770 — 1,837 11,607
44 DAS - Post Conviction Indigent Defense Fund ....... 287 — — 287
43 DAS — Finance Mandated ............cccceevevvviieivinineennne 29,880 — — 29,880
45 DAS - Judicial Conduct Commission .............c........ 335 — — 335
46 DAS — PUrchasing .......ccccocoverivenninneinsensiseeseens 1,606 — 104 1,710
77 Tax Commission — Administration ...........ccceevveeneee. 73,372 797 12,031 86,200
78 TAX — License Plates Production 3,031 — 2,010 5,041
79 TAX — Liquor Profit Distribution 5,426 — — 5,426
51 Human Resource Management ....... 4,116 — 263 4,379
53 Career Service Review Board ...........cocceeveeveeveenvenen, 235 — — 235
57 DTS Chief Information Officer .........cccccevevvivvennnen. 628 — 110 738
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Lapse Lapse to Nonlapse Line
Actual to Restricted or (Deficit) Item
Expenditures Unrestricted and Other Carry Forward #
$ 2,184 $ — $ — $ 954 242
3,658 — — 1,083 243
746 — — 104 246
7,261 — — 880 247
45 — — 4 248
50 — — 4 249
2,418 — — 1,463 245
3,136 — — 350 244
19,498 0 0 4,842
$ 2,526 $ 101 $ 201 $ 475 12
5,422 — — 1,840 6
4,078 — — 1,426 9
2 — — 43 7
14,750 — 731 2,361 10
— — — 100 8
143 — — — 93
4,017 263 — 220 90
20,681 13 — 4,190 91
9,567 682 — 2,871 92
3,434 — — — —
13,561 — — 12,165 95
46,867 — — 1,017 13
773 — — 77 14
820 — — 38 16
78 — — — 17
3,272 — — 243 15
5,097 — — 96 11
135,088 1,059 932 27,162
$ 919 $ — $ — $ 65 38
357 — — 45 39
5,256 133 — — 40
2,550 — — 22 41
10,321 — — 1,286 42
96 — — 191 44
21,579 — 8,301 — 43
229 — — 106 45
1,650 15 — 45 46
80,029 — 592 5,579 77
2,250 — — 2,791 78
5,426 — — — 79
3,629 244 — 506 51
207 13 — 15 53
732 — — 6 57
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State of Utah

Detail Schedule of Expenditures
Budget and Actual Comparison
General Fund

Continued

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Source of Funding

(Expressed in Thousands)

Line Restricted
Item Appropriation Line Item State Federal and Other Final
# Description Funds Funds Funds Budget
GENERAL GOVERNMENT (Continued)
58 DTS Automated Geographic Reference Center ........ 2,378 730 862 3,970
— DTS Technology AcquisSition ...........cccevvvervierienenn. — — 6,912 6,912
Total Government Operations ...........cccccevvevrvenenne 140,316 1,583 24,168 166,067
Total General Government ..........ccocveveevevevveervennnn. $ 296,621 $ 11,588 $ 46,439 $ 354,648
HUMAN SERVICES
110 Department of HUmMan Services ............ccccoevveevcvnnnn. $ 9,802 $ 6,125 $ 1,440 $ 17,367
112 Substance Abuse and Mental Health ........................ 94,890 24,474 16,022 135,386
111 Mental Health Therapist Grant ...........c.ccoceevenncnee 8 — — 8
113 Services for People with Disabilities .............ccccu..e. 49,557 2,597 157,905 210,059
114 RECOVEIY SEIVICES ....coiviiieiieienieieesees s 15,722 28,864 5,735 50,321
115 Child and Family Services .... 101,858 50,766 21,904 174,528
24 Juvenile JUSLICE SErVICES .......ccovvveveviieciee e 85,510 2,007 19,945 107,462
116 Aging and Adult SErVICES ......ccccvvvivierieireiierienans 12,851 11,033 860 24,744
Total HUMaN Services .......ccccvevvvveveiieiecieeesienns $ 370,198 $ 125,866 $ 223,811 $ 719,875
CORRECTIONS
Department of Corrections
18 Corrections — Programs and Operations ................... $ 197,453 $ 718 $ 4,372 $ 202,543
19 DOC Medical SEIVICES ......ceevviiiviieiiie i 23,228 — 293 23,521
21 Jail Contracting ................. 22,626 8 — 22,634
22 Jail Reimbursement ...........ccceevveveenenne 10,753 — — 10,753
Total Department of Corrections ...........cc.ccceeeenee. 254,060 726 4,665 259,451
Board of Pardons and Parole
23 Board of Pardons and Parole ..........ccoceoeeveeeveveeeennnn. $ 3,892 $ — $ 1 $ 3,893
Total Board of Pardons and Parole ............cco......... 3,892 0 1 3,893
TOtal COMTECHIONS ..ot eee e $ 257,952 $ 726 $ 4,666 $ 263,344
PUBLIC SAFETY
Department of Public Safety
30 Programs and Operations .............ccccevoveeveresverenrnnens $ 98,083 $ 1,194 $ 17,456 $ 116,733
31 Emergency Services and Homeland Security ... 2,431 23,516 5 25,952
32 Peace Officer's Standards and Training ............ 4,173 — 44 4,217
33 Liquor Law Enforcement ..........cccccoeoeneienennenccnns 2,366 — — 2,366
34 DIIVEr LICENSE .viveiveiveceieiecte et 35,112 301 74 35,487
35 Highway Safety .......cccovvvrieiirreienrreeeseee e 1,235 4,460 390 6,085
— Retiree Cost of Living .......ccccovervieriennnn. 3,519 — — 3,519
Total Department of Public Safety 146,919 29,471 17,969 194,359
Utah National Guard
223 Utah National Guard Administration .............coceeven... $ 6,151 $ 42,602 $ 64 $ 48,817
Total Utah National Guard ............ccoeevevievciercnnenne 6,151 42,602 64 48,817
Department of Veteran's Affairs
224 Veteran's AFfairs ... $ 1,195 $ — $ 165 $ 1,360
Total Department of Veteran's Affairs ................... 1,195 0 165 1,360
Total Public Safety .........ccceevviveviviiiieciceceeee, $

S 154265
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$ 72,073

18,198

$ 244,536



Lapse Lapse to Nonlapse Line
Actual to Restricted or (Deficit) Item
Expenditures Unrestricted and Other Carry Forward #
3,436 — — 534 58
6,912 — — — —
145,578 405 8,893 11,191
$ 300,164 $ 1,464 $ 9,825 $ 43,195
$ 17,271 $ 96 $ — $ — 110
135,052 225 20 89 112
8 — — — 111
206,169 1,340 100 2,450 113
50,321 — — — 114
168,199 978 80 5,271 115
106,343 359 — 760 24
24,735 9 — — 116
$ 708,098 $ 3,007 $ 200 $ 8,570
$ 194,300 $ — $ 245 $ 7,998 18
23,491 — — 30 19
21,219 — — 1,415 21
10,519 — — 234 22
249,529 0 245 9,677
$ 3,783 $ — $ — $ 110 23
3,783 0 0 110
$ 253,312 $ 0 $ 245 $ 9,787
$ 97,969 $ — $ 2,287 $ 16,477 30
24,535 — 1,417 — 31
4,002 — 215 — 32
1,632 — — 734 33
25,225 — — 10,262 34
5,599 — — 486 35
3,519 — — — —
162,481 0 3,919 27,959
$ 48,805 $ — $ — $ 12 223
48,805 0 0 12
$ 1,179 $ 71 $ — $ 110 224
1,179 71 0 110
$ 212,465 $ 71 $ 3,919 $ 28,081
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State of Utah

Detail Schedule of Expenditures
Budget and Actual Comparison

General Fund Continued
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 (Expressed in Thousands)
Source of Funding
Line Restricted
Item Appropriation Line Item State Federal and Other Final
# Description Funds Funds Funds Budget
STATE COURTS
25 Judicial CounCil .......ccccvveviiiiiiiccc e $ 98,170 $ 625 $ 2,596 $ 101,391
26 Grand JUMY ..o e 1 — — 1
27 Contracts and Leases ..... 21,311 — 405 21,716
28 Jury and Witness FEES .........ccoverrereiineieee e 1,167 — 11 1,178
29 Guardian Ad Litem ........ et 5,842 — 100 5,942
Total State COUMS ...cvcvvviereecieicreree e $ 126,491 $ 625 $ 3,112 $ 130,228
HEALTH and ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
101 Department of Health ...........ccccooooeeveveceeiiiccan $ 6,530 $ 17,416 $ 3,367 $ 27,313
102 Health System Improvements .................... 7,314 3,955 5,530 16,799
104 Epidemiology and Laboratory Services .................... 6,087 8,874 8,181 23,142
105 Community and Family Health Services .................. 24,265 63,138 24,177 111,580
106 Health Care Financing ..........ccccooevrencinenneneeeene 6,000 63,270 45,943 115,213
107 Medical ASSISTANCE .......cccvvvvirieicieie e 197,860 687,701 20,497 906,058
— Medicaid Optional Services ..........cccccvveienencienenens 91,858 560,541 173,146 825,545
109 Local Health Department ..........ccccooeieveieneneieniennns 2,497 — — 2,497
108 Children's Health Insurance Program ...........c.ccc.c..... 15,526 54,645 2,063 72,234
103 Workforce Assistance .... 1,076 107 — 1,183
— Commodities .........eurenee. — 19,467 — 19,467
225 Environmental Quality .........c.ccccoevveiiieriiienniieienns 25,634 16,851 9,566 52,051
Total Health and Environmental Quality ............... $ 384,647 $ 1,495,965 $ 292,470 $ 2,173,082
HIGHER EDUCATION
168 Board of Regents ............... $ 3,957 $ — $ 4,180 $ 8,137
171 REG - Campus Compact 100 — — 100
170 REG - Federal Programs — 648 — 648
169 REG - Engineering Initiative 250 — — 250
172 REG — Student Aid .......ccocovevvervenee. 12,096 511 — 12,607
173 REG —WICHE ..ot 1,022 — — 1,022
174 REG —T. H. Bell Scholarship Program .................... 1,823 — — 1,823
176 REG - Jobs Now Initiative ............c.ccveveene. 1,000 — — 1,000
175 REG - Technology Initiative ... 6,425 — — 6,425
177 REG - Electronic College .........c.cceenen. 556 — — 556
178 REG - Academic Library Consortium ...................... 3,184 — — 3,184
119 U of U — Education and General ...........cc.cccoevvvenvenen. 206,770 9,591 130,761 347,122
120 U of U — Educationally Disadvantaged 781 — — 781
121 U of U — School of Medicing .........cccovevvevvevieieiieennn, 23,748 — 12,503 36,251
122 U of U — University Hospital ............ccccooeiiincinnne 5,225 — — 5,225
123 U of U — Regional Dental Education ........................ 606 — 215 821
127 U of U — Tele Health Network ..........cccceevvevvvecveenene, 523 — — 523
124 U of U — Public SErvice .......ccevvevvvviiicieviecee e, 1,908 — — 1,908
125 U of U — Statewide TV Administration .................... 2,749 — — 2,749
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Lapse Lapse to Nonlapse Line

Actual to Restricted or (Deficit) Item
Expenditures Unrestricted and Other Carry Forward #
$ 98579 $ — $ 1,483 $ 1,329 25

1 — — — 26
21,400 — — 316 27
1,982 — — (804) 28
5,694 — — 248 29

$ 127,656 $ 0 $ 1,483 $ 1,089
$ 27171 $ 104 $ 38 $ — 101
15,727 — 277 795 102
23,056 — 70 16 104
111,099 1 480 — 105
114,720 — — 493 106
898,735 — 577 6,746 107
824,560 — — 985 —
2,497 — — — 109
70,299 — — 1,935 108
560 — — 623 103
19,467 — — — —
49,313 — 1,416 1,322 225

$ 2,157,204 $ 105 $ 2,858 $ 12,915
$ 8,073 $ — $ 64 $ — 168
100 — — — 171
648 — — — 170
250 — — — 169
12,607 — — — 172
1,022 — — — 173
1,823 — — — 174
1,000 — — — 176
6,425 — — — 175
556 — — — 177
3,184 — — — 178
346,459 — 663 — 119
781 — — — 120
36,251 — — — 121
5,225 — — — 122
821 — — — 123
523 — — — 127
1,908 — — — 124
2,749 — — — 125

Continues

145



State of Utah

Detail Schedule of Expenditures
Budget and Actual Comparison
General Fund

Continued

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Source of Funding

(Expressed in Thousands)

Line Restricted
Item Appropriation Line Item State Federal and Other Final
# Description Funds Funds Funds Budget
HIGHER EDUCATION (Continued)
128 U of U — Center on Aging ....c.ccoceereereeninienecieneneens 181 — — 181
126 U of U — Poison Control Center .........c.ccccovvvvreenenn. — — 2,431 2,431
129 USU — Education and General .........c..cccooeeveiviienenns 103,839 5,889 54,307 164,035
130 USU - Educationally Disadvantaged ......... 258 — — 258
135 USU - Water Research Laboratory ............... 5,930 — — 5,930
136 USU - Agricultural Experiment Station .... 13,653 4,183 — 17,836
137 USU — Cooperative Extension Service ...........c.c....... 13,650 1,842 — 15,492
131 USU — Uintah Basin CEC ........ccccccvvvvvieiiiiiiiens 4,506 — 1,845 6,351
132 USU - Southeastern Utah CEC 742 — 625 1,367
133 USU - Brigham City CEC .......ccooevvvirieinneceean 2,980 — 8,651 11,631
134 USU —Tooele CEC .......cooveeiirreeeeeere e 2,723 — 6,624 9,347
138 Weber — Education and General .................... 63,778 2,621 45,314 111,713
139 Weber — Educationally Disadvantaged 388 — — 388
140 SUU - Education and General ............... 30,252 1,244 22,094 53,590
141 SUU - Educationally Disadvantaged ............c.c......... 104 — — 104
142 SUU — Shakespeare Festival .........c.c.ccceovieirnninenen. 25 — — 25
143 SUU — Rural Development ............ccoccceeee 111 — — 111
144 Snow College — Education and General 18,456 823 6,046 25,325
145 Snow College — Educationally Disadvantaged ......... 32 — — 32
146 Snow College Applied Technology .........ccccvvvveeennne. 1,264 — — 1,264
147 Dixie — Education and General ............coccoovvvevinenee. 21,005 865 12,177 34,047
148 Dixie — Educationally Disadvantaged 31 — — 31
149 Dixie — Zion Park Amphitheatre ..........c.c.cocecervrrunen. 61 — 23 84
150 CEU - Education and General ..........cccccceeevvevernienen, 13,469 668 2,098 16,235
151 CEU - Educationally Disadvantaged 120 — — 120
152 CEU - Prehistoric Museum 296 — — 296
153 CEU —San Juan Center .........ccovvvevvveiiieeiciee e 2,501 — 693 3,194
— CEU — Western Energy Training Center .................. 600 — 37 637
154 UVU — Education and General ...........coceeveeveeurennen. 60,681 2,483 63,802 126,966
155 UVU - Educationally Disadvantaged ........... 158 — — 158
156 SLCC — Education and General ...........ccocoveivrinnnnn. 57,737 2,554 43,062 103,353
157 SLCC - Educationally Disadvantaged ...................... 178 — — 178
158 SLCC — Skill Center ........cooveverireierenenn 4,707 — 1,258 5,965
159 Utah College of Applied Technology 6,036 199 — 6,235
160 UCAT Bridgerland ..........cccccovevevvevniennan. 9,146 368 1,088 10,602
161 UCAT DaVIS ..eevinieeieeierieiee s es 9,291 386 1,576 11,253
164 UCAT Ogden/WEDET ........cevririeiniieieinsieeenene 10,328 416 1,671 12,415
167 UCAT Uintah Basin 4,699 203 356 5,258
165 UCAT Salt Lake/T0o0EIE ......ccoovvviveiiciiieceee 3,167 124 362 3,653
163 UCAT Mountainlands ..........ccccoererrriererneiennrennnenes 4,756 189 570 5,515
166 UCAT Southwest ........... 2,399 93 152 2,644
162 UCAT DiXi€ .oovevereerieernnne 2,187 84 161 2,432
179 Utah Education Network ....... 20,674 — — 20,674
180 Medical Education Council 1,335 — 3,158 4,493
Total Higher EAUCAtioN ..........ccovevvcveieicreeieenen $ 771,157 $ $ 427,840 $ 1,234,981
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Lapse Lapse to Nonlapse Line

Actual to Restricted or (Deficit) Item

Expenditures Unrestricted and Other Carry Forward #
181 — — — 128
2,431 — — — 126
164,035 — — — 129
258 — — — 130
5,905 — 25 — 135
17,836 — — — 136
15,492 — — — 137
6,351 — — — 131
1,367 — — — 132
11,631 — — — 133
9,347 — — — 134
111,713 — — — 138
388 — — — 139
53,590 — — — 140
104 — — — 141
25 — — — 142
111 — — — 143
25,325 — — — 144
32 — — — 145
1,264 — — — 146
34,047 — — — 147
31 — — — 148
84 — — — 149
16,235 — — — 150
120 — — — 151
296 — — — 152
3,194 — — — 153
637 — — — —
126,966 — — — 154
158 — — — 155
103,353 — — — 156
178 — — — 157
5,965 — — — 158
6,235 — — — 159
10,602 — — — 160
11,253 — — — 161
12,415 — — — 164
5,258 — — — 167
3,653 — — — 165
5,515 — — — 163
2,644 — — — 166
2,432 — — — 162
20,674 — — — 179
3,863 — — 630 180

$ 1,233,599 $ 0 $ 752 $ 630

Continues
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State of Utah

Detail Schedule of Expenditures
Budget and Actual Comparison

General Fund Continued
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 (Expressed in Thousands)
Source of Funding
Line Restricted
Item Appropriation Line Item State Federal and Other Final
# Description Funds Funds Funds Budget

WORKFORCE SERVICES

— Food Stamps — EBT ISSUANCES .......cccccveveevverernenans $ — $ 215,107 $ — $ 215,107

61 Department of Workforce Services .........c.ccoccoeveenne. 73,656 211,256 34,106 319,018

Total Workforce Services .......cccooeveevveeeeeeeveeinenne. $ 73,656 $ 426,363 $ 34,106 $ 534,125

NATURAL RESOURCES

181 Department of Natural ReSOUrces ...........c.ccceevrvevnene. $ 3,223 $ — $ — $ 3,223
183 Rent, Utilities, and FIXtUres .........ccccoeeveiveeviee s 1,631 — — 1,631
186 Forestry, Fire, and State Lands ...........cccccoeerveerienene. 12,873 6,731 5,115 24,719
187 Qil, Gas, and Mining 5,651 4,252 169 10,072
188 Wildlife Resources ..... 39,153 12,265 390 51,808
182 Species Protection ...... 3,199 — 2,450 5,649
184 RaNGe Creek ..o 118 — — 118
185 Watershed Development ...........coeovernieneninenecnnns 2,279 — 500 2,779
191 Contributed Research ..........ccccocoeevvverennnne. — — 1,150 1,150
192 Cooperative Environmental Studies — 6,296 10,736 17,032
194 Parks and ReCreation .........ccccceceveveneseseeieeneennennens 31,206 1,304 635 33,145
195 Parks and Recreation — Capital Development ........... 11,183 2,959 739 14,881
196 Utah Geological SUMVEY .........cccoveiirieieninnecrenne 9,157 1,275 1,066 11,498
197 Water RESOUICES ......covvvveiieiiieiee e 6,076 — 150 6,226
193 Wildlife Resources — Capital Development .............. 2,122 1,168 — 3,290
200 Water RIGOES ..c.ovveeeiiecccce e 7,998 34 1,056 9,088
201 Public Lands Policy Office 3,425 — — 3,425

Total Natural Resources $ 139,294 $ 36,284 $ 24,156 $ 199,734

COMMUNITY AND CULTURE
Department of Community and Culture
80 Community and CUUIE ........ccoovveviviririeiiieieeie e $ 6,381 $ — $ — $ 6,381
86 Indian Affairs 616 — 85 701
82 State HiStory ...ooveeeveicicececeee e 2,778 784 90 3,652
81 Historical SOCIEtY ........cccccoviiiiriiiiieeeeec e 182 — 78 260
83 Fine Arts ...cccoovvevvennene. 4,656 998 905 6,559
84 Museum Services 1,637 — — 1,637
85 State Library .......cccooevviinene 5,054 1,755 2,099 8,908
87 Community Development .........ccccoevveeiniennicneienens 24,341 49,738 1,233 75,312
88 Community Development Capital ..........cc.coeveerenae. 42,622 — — 42,622
89 ZOOS c..vciecieieteetee ettt 1,247 — — 1,247
— HOUSING LOANS ..o 398 — — 398
Total Department of Community and Culture ....... 89,912 53,275 4,490 147,677
Utah Sports Authority
94 Utah Sports AULNOTILY .......ccceveiiviveieiieeieieeceeie e $ 164 $ — $ 46 $ 210
Total Utah Sports Authority .........cccocooeeiicieicnene. 164 0 46 210
Total Community and Culture ..........cccceeevevnneee. $ 90,076 $ 53,275 $ 4,536 $ 147,887

148



Lapse Lapse to Nonlapse Line

Actual to Restricted or (Deficit) Item
Expenditures Unrestricted and Other Carry Forward #
$ 215,107 $ — $ — $ — —

316,415 — 6 2,597 61
$ 531,522 $ 0 $ 6 $ 2,597
$ 3,000 $ — $ — $ 223 181
1,631 — — — 183
21,398 — 100 3,221 186
8,878 — — 1,194 187
49,450 — 2,058 300 188
4,611 — 238 800 182
118 — — — 184
2,220 — — 559 185
1,150 — — — 191
17,032 — — — 192
32,034 — 628 483 194
8,011 — — 6,870 195
9,826 — 137 1,535 196
5,995 — 231 — 197
1,614 — 976 700 193
8,799 — — 289 200
2,013 — 416 996 201
$ 177,780 $ 0 $ 4,784 $ 17,170
$ 4,227 $ 105 $ — $ 2,049 80
520 — — 181 86
3,652 — — — 82
49 — — 211 81
5,223 5 — 1,331 83
1,637 — — — 84
8,908 — — — 85
75,215 36 61 — 87
42,622 — — — 88
1,247 — — — 89
398 — — — —
143,698 146 61 3,772
$ 201 $ — $ — $ 9 94
201 0 0 9
$ 143,899 $ 146 $ 61 $ 3,781

Continues
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State of Utah

Detail Schedule of Expenditures
Budget and Actual Comparison

General Fund Continued
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 (Expressed in Thousands)
Source of Funding
Line Restricted
Item Appropriation Line Item State Federal and Other Final
# Description Funds Funds Funds Budget

BUSINESS, LABOR, and AGRICULTURE

203 Department of Agriculture and Food ...........cc..oo..... $ 14,336 $ 7,332 $ 4,202 $ 25870
204 AGR — Building Operations ...........cccccoeeereierenennene 305 — — 305
205 AGR - Utah State Fair ........c.cccevevvevveiiinennens 766 — — 766
206 AGR - Predatory Animal Control ...........c.cccccoceenene 1,528 — 500 2,028
207 AGR - Resource Conservation ............coeeeveeveiveineennn 1,614 — — 1,614
64 Labor COMMISSION .....ccuevieeiieiiie e s 9,872 2,325 45 12,242
65 Department of COMMErCe ........c.ocoovvvvvvevvieinirieennnns 24,951 263 703 25,917
66 COM/Public Utilities — Professional Services .......... 1,042 — — 1,042
67 COM/Consumer Services — Professional Services ... 1,702 — — 1,702
68 Financial InStitutions ..........cccceiiveiiviie e 6,592 — — 6,592
69 Insurance Department .........ccccoeevvrvnnnnne. 7,792 — 2,719 10,511
70 Comprehensive Health Insurance Pool 9,300 — — 9,300
71 Bail Bond Program ...........ccccovvcrinnnnns 23 — — 23
72 Title Insurance Program .........ccccceceeeencienenesienenens 18 — 60 78
73 Public Service CommISSiON .......ccccvcevveveveereiieeeieann, 1,901 — 333 2,234
74 PSC — Research and Analysis — — 65 65
75 PSC — Speech and Hearing Impaired ..........c.couevee. 2,462 — 1,261 3,723
Total Business, Labor, and Agriculture ................. $ 84,204 $ 9,920 $ 9,888 $ 104,012

TOTAL GENERAL FUND
Total EXPeNditures ........cccoovveeeenireneennieeereseeenes $ 2,748,561 $ 2,268,669 $ 1,089,222 $ 6,106,452
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Lapse Lapse to Nonlapse Line

Actual to Restricted or (Deficit) Item
Expenditures Unrestricted and Other Carry Forward #
$ 23,967 $ — $ 224 $ 1,679 203

305 — — — 204
766 — — — 205
1,472 — 406 150 206
1,564 — 2 48 207
12,155 6 81 — 64
23,181 — 405 2,331 65
394 — — 648 66
346 — — 1,356 67
6,148 — 444 — 68
9,077 35 — 1,399 69
9,300 — — — 70
21 — 2 — 71
65 — — 13 72
2,233 — — 1 73
65 — — — 74
2,088 — — 1,635 75
$ 93147 $ 41 $ 1,564 $ 9,260

$ 5,938,846 $ 4,834 $ 25,697 $ 137,075
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State of Utah

Detail Schedule of Expenditures—Budget and Actual Comparison
Uniform School Fund, Transportation Fund,
Transportation Investment Fund, and Debt Service Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 (Expressed in Thousands)
Source of Funding
Line Restricted
Item Appropriation Line Item State Federal and Other Final
# Description Funds Funds Funds Budget

UNIFORM SCHOOL FUND

Office of Education
212 State Office of EAUCALION .....cveveveeereeeeeeeeeeenn $ 53,710 $ 236,619 $ 9,314 $ 299,643
62 State Office of Rehabilitation ...........cccccoeveivveeneen. 21,458 44,876 1,135 67,469
— Minimum School Program ..........cccccceeevenciiennncne 2,336,622 185,582 358 2,522,562
216 Child Nutrition 162 110,266 26,769 137,197
217 Fine Arts OULIeach .......cc.coceeevcerivie e 3,066 — — 3,066
218 Educational Contracts .........ccccoceevveieevieesiiesciieeinns 3,701 — — 3,701
213 Charter School Board ... 718 4,804 — 5,522
219 Science OULreach ........ccovceveieiicieie e 2,008 — — 2,008
214 Educator LiCeNSING .......ccocvereeneieneneeneree e 1,466 — — 1,466
— Commodities — 15,078 — 15,078
222 Indirect CoSt POOI .......cccvcviviiiiiiie e — — 4,632 4,632
— Teacher Salary Supplement ... 4,300 — — 4,300
Total Office of Education .........c..ccoeeveeveiveennnne 2,427,211 597,225 42,208 3,066,644
Schools for the Deaf and the Blind
220 Schools for the Deaf and the Blind .........cccoveve.... $ 24,235 $ 30 $ 4,468 $ 28,733
221 Institutional Council ..........cccocveeveiviiiieceece e — — 606 606
Total Schools for the Deaf and the Blind ............ 24,235 30 5,074 29,339
Total Uniform School Fund .........c.ccccoeeeevvveneee. $ 2,451,446 $ 597,255 $ 47,282 $ 3,095,983
TRANSPORTATION FUND
228 SUPPOIt SEIVICES ...t $ 30,278 $ 2,010 $ — $ 32,288
229 Engineering Services ........cccovvereieiennenecseienene 20,035 18,121 1,383 39,539
230 Maintenance Management 127,339 8,589 2,130 138,058
231 Construction Management 250,901 289,643 130,626 671,170
232 Region Management ...........cccccoooeneeiiennenscneens 21,656 3,470 1,387 26,513
233 Equipment Management .. 6,267 — 29,331 35,598
234 ACTONAULICS ...ttt 8,072 342 34,594 43,008
235 B and C ROAAS .......c.coveieiriiireecreece et 118,372 — — 118,372
236 Safe Sidewalk Construction .... 824 — — 824
237 MINEral LEASE .......ccoovcvevvieieiiiee e 68,406 — — 68,406
— Corridor Preservation ..........ccceveeeeivieeiieesiee s 29,896 — — 29,896
239 Critical Highway Needs ... 179,187 — — 179,187
— TOHWAY ..o 337 — — 337
— Counties of the 1St Class ........cccoevvvvvieiiviee v 27,000 — — 27,000
— Nonappropriated ..........cccccveevreincrnienens — — (1,112) (1,112)

Total Transportation Fund $ 888,570 $ 322,175 $ 198,339 $ 1,409,084

TRANSPORTATION INVESTMENT FUND

238 Centennial Highway Program ...........ccccccevercvevnnn. $ 291,597 $ 1,200 $ 701 $ 293,498

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

— General GOVErNMENt ........oovvveeiieeee e $ 223,913 $ — $ 5,410 $ 229,323
— State Building Ownership Authority ............c......... 5,992 — 20,953 26,945
Total Debt Service Funds $ 229,905 $ 26,363 $ 256,268

o
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Lapse Lapse to Nonlapse Line
Actual to Restricted or (Deficit) Item
Expenditures Unrestricted and Other Carry Forward #
$ 285,336 $ — 29 $ 14,278 212
67,470 1) — — 62
2,490,299 — 358 31,905 —
137,197 — — — 216
3,066 — — — 217
3,701 — — — 218
5,522 — — — 213
1,998 — — 10 219
1,116 — 350 — 214
15,078 — — — —
4,896 — (264) — 222
3,543 — 757 — —

3,019,222 (1) 1,230 46,193
$ 28,733 $ — — $ — 220
606 — — — 221

29,339 0 0 0

$ 3,048,561 $ (1) 1,230 $ 46,193
$ 30581 $ 1,107 — $ 600 228
38,766 573 — 200 229
135,949 109 — 2,000 230
671,170 — — — 231
25,911 402 — 200 232
34,882 516 — 200 233
42,097 — 911 — 234
118,372 — — — 235
745 — — 79 236
68,406 — — — 237
29,896 — — — —
179,187 — — — 239
337 — — — —
27,000 — — — —
(2) — (1,110) — —

$ 1,403,297 $ 2,707 (199) $ 3,279
$ 293,498 $ 0 0 $ 0 238
$ 224113 $ — — $ 5,210 —
21,175 — — 5,770 —

$ 245,288 $ 0 0 $ 10,980
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State of Utah

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

Community Impact Loan Fund

This fund provides loans to local governments to alleviate
the social, economic, and public financial impacts resulting
from the development of the State’s natural resources.
Working capital for this fund is provided from federal
mineral lease funds transferred from the General Fund.

Housing Loan Programs

These programs provide loans or grants to low income or
special needs individuals for construction, rehabilitation,
or purchase of single or multi-family housing. Funds

are provided from federal funds, appropriations, loan
repayments, and interest earnings.

Agriculture Loan Fund

This fund is comprised of two separate revolving loan
programs: the Agriculture Resource Development Loan Fund
and the Rural Rehabilitation Fund. Both programs issue
farm loans for soil and water conservation projects and the
rehabilitation of rural areas within the State.

Energy Efficiency Fund

This fund provides revolving loans to assist in the conversion
of government and private fleet vehicles to clean fuel and
for energy efficiency projects in local school districts and
state facilities. Funds are provided from public and private
contributions, appropriations, and interest earnings on loans
and invested funds.

Petroleum Storage Tank Loan Fund

This fund was created to provide revolving loan capital

to support small businesses, increase the availability of
gasoline in rural areas, and reduce the threat of a petroleum
release. Funds are provided from appropriations and interest
earnings on loans and invested funds.

Transportation Infrastructure Loan Fund

This fund was created as a revolving loan fund to provide
infrastructure assistance to local governments to expedite
construction projects. The fund was capitalized with federal
grants and state matching appropriations.

Alcoholic Beverage Gontrol

The Alcoholic Beverage Control Commission was
established to conduct, license, and regulate the sale of
alcoholic beverages. Funding is provided through the sale
of products. The net profit from the fund is transferred

to the State’s General Fund and is used for general
government purposes.

Utah Correctional Industries (UCI)

UCI was established to provide work training opportunities
for inmates of the Utah State Prison. UCI manufactures and
sells such items as license plates, furniture, highway signs,
dairy and meat products, and provides printing and other
miscellaneous products and services. Funding comes from
charges for products and services.

State Trust Lands Administration

This agency manages the assets of the Trust Lands
permanent fund. Its objective is to maximize the growth of
principal and income production for the beneficiaries.

Utah Dairy Commission

The purpose of the Commission is to promote the use of
dairy products. Its operations are comprised of promotion,
advertising, research, and nutritional education regarding
dairy products. Funding consists primarily of fees from
milk producers.



State of Utah

Combining Statement Of Net Assets
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

June 30, 2009 (Expressed in Thousands)
Community Housing Agriculture Energy
Impact Loan Loan Loan Efficiency
Fund Programs Fund Fund
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash EQUIVaIENtS .........cccccoveveeericiceiececa $ 196,291 $ 8,350 $ 15,428 $ 5,868
Receivables:
ACCOUNES, NBL ..vieieie s — 831 — —
ACCTUE INTEIEST ...t 3,031 926 584 1
Notes/Loans/Mortgages, net 15,946 6,290 10,733 88
Due From Other Funds .... — — — —
Prepaid Items ..........cccoveveen. — — — —
INVENTOTIES ..vvveceetecie e — — — —
Total Current ASSELS ......coeveieveiiiiii e 215,268 16,397 26,745 5,957
Noncurrent Assets:
INVESTMENTS ..o e — 766 — —
Notes/Loans/Mortgages Receivables, net ..........c.ccccoeeenee 288,174 72,150 22,992 9
Accrued Interest Receivable ........c.ccccovviieveiiveiiiieieee, 281 635 — —
Capital Assets:
LaNd oo — — — —
INFraStIUCLUNE ..o — — — —
Buildings and Improvements ............ccccoeoveeiennneicnnnnns — — — —
Machinery and EQUIPMENT .........ccooeeniinencieneneenens — — 20 —
Construction in Progress — — — —
Less Accumulated Depreciation .............ccoceeverencnnnne. — — (20) —
Total Capital ASSELS ......ccoeireriireire e 0 0 0 0
Total Noncurrent Assets .... 288,455 73,551 22,992 9
TOtAl ASSELS ..o s 503,723 89,948 49,737 5,966
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities — 1,164 702 —
DEPOSIES ... — 97 — —
Due To Other FUNAS .......covieiieieiieicieese e — 113 10 —
Due To Component UNits ........ccooeveerreieienneeeneseeens — — — —
Unearned Revenue — — — —
Revenue Bonds Payable ... — — — —
Total Current Liabilities ........c.cccocevevivieiieseieieenne 0 1,374 712 0
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Revenue Bonds Payable ..........cccocceirneinnneiencees — — — —
Total Noncurrent Liabilities ..........cccccoeveieviiieiennn 0 0 0 0
Total Liabilities .......cccoovveeiiiiiceee e 0 1,374 712 0
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt ................ — — — —
Restricted for:
Loan Programs — 52,121 3,957 —
Unrestricted ........... 503,723 36,453 45,068 5,966
Total Net Assets $ 503,723 $ 88,574 $ 49,025 $ 5,966
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Total

Petroleum Transportation Alcoholic Utah State Utah Nonmajor

Storage Tank Infrastructure Beverage Correctional Trust Lands Dairy Enterprise
Loan Fund Loan Fund Control Industries Administration Commission Funds

$ 6,001 $ — $ 124 $ — $ 8,475 $ 768 $ 241,305

— — 2,966 1,481 6,467 227 11,972

— — — — — — 4,542

27 706 — — — — 33,790

— — 27,490 329 31 — 27,850

— — — — — 3 3

— — 28,420 1,874 — 13 30,307

6,028 706 59,000 3,684 14,973 1,011 349,769

— — — — — 154 920

43 3,021 — — — — 386,389

— — — — — — 916

— — 17,635 — 263 32 17,930

— — — 304 — — 304

— — 45,931 3,542 233 126 49,832

— — 9,224 3,309 1,105 105 13,763

— — 1,458 662 — — 2,120

— — (18,439) (3,318) (1,048) (198) (23,023)

0 0 55,809 4,499 553 65 60,926

43 3,021 55,809 4,499 553 219 449,151

6,071 3,727 114,809 8,183 15,526 1,230 798,920

— — 8,991 816 5,137 31 16,841

— — — — — — 97

— — 20,239 881 2,962 — 24,205

— — — — 3 — 3

— — — — 3,596 — 3,596

— — 2,239 121 — — 2,360

0 0 31,469 1,818 11,698 31 47,102

— — 70,265 2,238 — — 72,503

0 0 70,265 2,238 0 0 72,503

0 0 101,734 4,056 11,698 31 119,605

— — 8,904 2,204 553 65 11,726

— 3,727 — — — — 59,805

6,071 — 4,171 1,923 3,275 1,134 607,784

$ 6,071 $ 3727 $ 13,075 $ 4,127 $ 3,828 $ 1,199 $ 679,315
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State of Utah

Combining Statement Of Revenues, Expenses, And
Changes In Fund Net Assets
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 (Expressed in Thousands)
Community Housing Agriculture Energy
Impact Loan Loan Loan Efficiency
Fund Programs Fund Fund
OPERATING REVENUES
Sales and Charges for Services/Premiums ...........c.ccccceeeuene $ — $ — $ — $ —
Fees and ASSESSMENTS ........ccveviririierirereeceeeseeennas — — — —
Interest on Notes/Mortgages 4,761 1,572 1,008 —
MIiSCEHANBOUS ......covviiiiiircce s 359 115 3 —
Total Operating REVENUES ........c.covviirieeieriierieeiienas 5,120 1,687 1,011 0
OPERATING EXPENSES
— 340 294 —
— 1,494 — 10
J— J— 5 J—
DePreCiation ........ccooeeieiiiereere s — — — —
Miscellaneous Other:
Data ProCeSSING .....ccoveeriererienieenienise s — — 7 —
SUPPHES et — — 4 —
ULHHLIES oo — — 3 —
Advertising and Other 60 130 —
Total Operating EXpenses .........cccccvvuee 60 1,964 313 10
Operating Income (L0ss) 5,060 (277) 698 (10)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
INVESTMENE INCOME ... 4,258 214 225 185
Federal Grants ... — 3,967 — —
Tax Revenues — — 525 —
INEEreSt EXPENSE ... — — — —
Total Nonoperating Revenues (EXpenses) ................... 4,258 4,181 750 185
Income (Loss) before Transfers 9,318 3,904 1,448 175
Transfers IN ... 50,416 3,136 8,500 —
TransSfers OUL .......oooiiiiiee e (1,194) — (659) (1,988)
Change in Net ASSELS .....ccooeoerereereeeeree e 58,540 7,040 9,289 (1,813)
Net Assets — BEginning .......ccccooveeveivserereennns 445,183 81,534 39,736 11,429
Adjustment to Beginning Net Assets — — — (3,650)
Net Assets — Beginning as Adjusted ............c......... 445,183 81,534 39,736 7,779
Net ASSEts — ENAING ...ovvvveveiiiicireeseee e $ 503,723 $ 88,574 $ 49,025 $ 5,966
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Total

Petroleum Transportation Alcoholic Utah State Utah Nonmajor

Storage Tank Infrastructure Beverage Correctional Trust Lands Dairy Enterprise
Loan Fund Loan Fund Control Industries Administration Commission Funds

$ — — $ 226,337 $ 21,293 $ 25,742 $ 51 $ 273,423

2 — 1,880 — 24 2,253 4,159

3 15 — — — — 7,359

— — 257 — — 74 808

5 15 228,474 21,293 25,766 2,378 285,749

2 — 18,355 7,550 7,007 484 34,032

— — 138,754 13,785 — 104 152,643

— — — — — — 1,504

— — 923 390 789 — 2,107

— — 2,173 318 100 — 2,591

— — 1,540 163 30 7 1,740

— — 1,673 356 242 — 2,278

— — 353 581 164 — 1,102

— — 372 122 99 — 596

— — 2,390 376 1,312 1,531 5,799

2 0 166,533 23,641 9,743 2,126 204,392

3 15 61,941 (2,348) 16,023 252 81,357

148 42 45 25 21 9) 5,154

— — — — — — 3,967

— — — — — — 525

— — (2,311) (125) — — (2,436)

148 42 (2,266) (100) 21 9) 7,210

151 57 59,675 (2,448) 16,044 243 88,567

— 1,000 2,087 — — — 65,139

(147) — (61,215) — (14,560) — (79,763)

4 1,057 547 (2,448) 1,484 243 73,943

6,067 — 12,528 6,575 2,344 956 606,352

— 2,670 — — — — (980)

6,067 2,670 12,528 6,575 2,344 956 605,372

$ 6,071 3,727 $ 13,075 $ 4,127 $ 3,828 $ 1,199 $ 679,315
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State of Utah

Combining Statement Of Cash Flows
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 (Expressed in Thousands)
Community Housing Agriculture Energy
Impact Loan Loan Loan Efficiency
Fund Programs Fund Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers/Loan Interest/Fees/Premiums ... $ 4,644 $ 1,489 $ 1,008 $ —
Receipts from Loan Maturities 18,906 3,056 4,328 —
Receipts from State Customers — — 3 —
Payments to Suppliers/Claims/Grants ...........c.cccocevveerienns — (2,954) 589 (10)
Disbursements for Loans Receivable ...........cccocooeeiiinnne (49,893) (7,509) (9,389) (81)
Payments for Employee Services and Benefits — — (295) —
Payments to State SUPPHErS .......cccovevrennieneeeeee (95) (511) (140) —
Payments of Sales, School Lunch, and Premium Taxes .... — — — —
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating ACtIVItIES ........ccovverriicerree e (26,438) (6,429) (3,896) (91)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Borrowings Under Interfund Loans — — — —
Repayments Under Interfund Loans — — — —
Federal Grants and Other Revenues — 4,398 — —
Restricted Sales TaX ......cccoevirerririeineiee e — — 525 —
Transfers In from Other FUNdS .........c.ccoevviviiiiiiecieiens 50,416 3,136 8,500 —
Transfers Out to Other FUNS ........coooeveineneiencreees (1,194) — (659) (1,988)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Noncapital Financing Activities ............cccoeeenenne 49,222 7,534 8,366 (1,988)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Bond and Note Debt Issuance/Grants ........ — — — —
Proceeds from Disposition of Capital ASSets ..........c.ccee.... — — — —
Principal Paid on Debt and Contract Maturities ..... — — — —
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets ..... — — — —
Interest Paid on Bonds, Notes, and Capital Leases ............ — — — —
Transfers In from Other FUNAS .........cccooevvineieiinceceen — — — —
Transfers Out to Other FUNds ...........coceovrevveieninceneen — — — —
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Capital and Related Financing Activities .............. 0 0 0 0
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from the Sale and Maturity of Investments ........ — — — —
Receipts of Interest and Dividends from Investments ........ 4,258 214 225 184
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Investing ACLIVILIES .......cccceererreriereeeee e 4,258 214 225 184
Net Cash Provided (Used) — All Activities ............ 27,042 1,319 4,695 (1,895)
Cash and Cash Equivalents — Beginning ..........c.cccoceevennene. 169,249 7,031 10,733 11,413
Adjustment to Beginning Cash and Cash Equivalents .......... — — — (3,650)
Cash and Cash Equivalents — Ending ..........cccocoveeevenirenennnn, $ 196,291 $ 8,350 $ 15,428 $ 5,868
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Total

161

Transportation Alcoholic Utah State Utah Nonmajor

Storage Tank Infrastructure Beverage Correctional Trust Lands Dairy Enterprise
Loan Fund Control Industries Administration Commission Funds

$ 15 $ 270,374 $ 11,477 $ 39,327 2,280 $ 330,619

694 — — — — 27,081

— — 10,545 — — 10,548

— (147,558) (12,156) (2,911) (1,648) (166,648)

(3,727) — — — — (70,607)

— (16,290) (7,334) (4,963) (484) (29,366)

— (4,220) (2,252) (13,878) — (21,098)

— (40,764) — — — (40,764)

(3,018) 61,542 280 17,575 148 39,765

— 19,597 — — — 19,597

— (16,651) — — — (16,651)

— — — — — 4,398

— — — — — 525

1,000 — — — — 63,052

— (59,675) — (14,560) — (78,223)

1,000 (56,729) 0 (14,560) 0 (7,302)

— 25,805 1,465 — — 27,270

— — 73 — — 73

— (2,358) (159) — — (2,517)

— (26,602) (1,644) (19) (6) (28,271)

— (2,247) (40) — — (2,287)

— 2,087 — — — 2,087

— (1,540) — — — (1,540)

0 (4,855) (305) (19) (6) (5,185)

— — — — 24 173

42 45 25 21 32 5,046

42 45 25 21 56 5,219

(1,976) 3 0 3,017 198 32,497

— 121 — 5,458 570 210,482

1,976 — — — — (1,674)

$ 0 $ 124 $ 0 8,475 768 $ 241,305

Continues



State of Utah

Combining Statement Of Cash Flows
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

Continued
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 (Expressed in Thousands)
Community Housing Agriculture Energy
Impact Loan Loan Loan Efficiency
Fund Programs Fund Fund

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME
(LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED)
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating INCOME (LOSS) .....c.vveviveriieererieeieieesieeveiesenens $ 5,060 $  (217) $ 698 $ (10)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (L0ss)
to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation EXPENSE ......ccvcervevivieeierieesieesresieesreneas — — —
Miscellaneous Gains, Losses, and Other Items ............ — — —
Net Changes in Assets and Liabilities:

Accounts Receivable/Due From Other Funds ............. — 10 (90) —
Notes/Accrued Interest Receivables ............cccoveenne. (31,463) (5,673) (5,064) (81)
INVENTOFIES ..ot — — — —
Prepaid ItemS ......cccceviiiciic e — — — —
Accrued Liabilities/Due to Other Funds ............cc........ (35) (489) 560 —

Unearned Revenue/Deposits ..........ccoevvvreeiinscieninnnnns — — —
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating ACHIVItIES .......coooererieeeineeeeeeeeienas $ (26,438) $ (6,429) $ (3,896) $ (91)

SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING,
CAPITAL, AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments .............. $ 798 $ 25 $ 44 $ 11
Total Noncash Investing, Capital, and
Financing ACtiVIties ...........cccevvvvieiresccesecees $ 798 $ 25 $ 44 $ 11
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Total

Petroleum Transportation Alcoholic Utah State Utah Nonmajor
Storage Tank Infrastructure Beverage Correctional Trust Lands Dairy Enterprise
Loan Fund Loan Fund Control Industries Administration Commission Funds
$ 3 $ 15 $ 61,941 $ (2,348) $ 16,023 $ 252 $ 81,357
— — 1,540 163 30 7 1,740
— — 1,219 — — (41) 1,178
89 — 1,136 729 13,961 (57) 15,778
— (3,033) — — — — (45,314)
— — (3,738) 2,030 — 12 (1,696)
— — 24 — — — 24
— — (580) (294) (12,039) (25) (12,902)
— — — — (400) — (400)
$ 92 $ (3,018) $ 61,542 $ 280 $ 17,575 $ 148 $ 39,765
$ 26 $ 6 $ — $ — $ 7 $ (41) $ 876
$ 26 $ 6 $ 0 $ 0 $ 7 $ (41) $ 876
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State of Utah

Internal
Service Funds

Technology Services
This fund is responsible for providing data processing, computer programming, and voice and data
communication services to state agencies.

General Services

This fund is used to administer office supply contracts and provide print and mail services to state agencies.
This fund is also used to account for the central warehouse services for the Department of Natural
Resources and the renting and maintaining of facilities used by the Department of Human Services.

Fleet Operations
This fund accounts for automobile rental, fuel dispensing, and surplus property services to state agencies.

Risk Management

This fund is used to account for insurance coverage and loss prevention provided to state agencies,
institutions of higher education, and participating local school districts. Coverage is provided using a
combination of self-insurance and private excess insurance.

Property Management
This fund has statutory responsibility for the operation and maintenance of facilities used by state agencies.

Human Resource Management
This fund is used to account for human resource and payroll services provided to state agencies.



State of Utah

Combining Statement Of Net Assets
Internal Service Funds

June 30, 2009 (Expressed in Thousands)
Technology General Fleet Risk
Services Services Operations Management
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash EQUIVaIENtS ..........ccccoveeerericiceiccccs $ — $ 945 $ 1817 $ 53,851
Receivables:

ACCOUNES, NBL .ovviiee e 386 686 1,593 1,866
Due From Other FUNS ........coeoeieeiiiiccie e 18,580 2,239 4,490 439
Due From Component Units 1 24 19 6
Prepaid Items ......... 1,702 8 — —
Inventories ...........cooev... 699 879 3,088 —
Deferred Charges — — — —

Total Current ASSELS ......veeveeeicieeiee e 21,368 4,781 11,007 56,162
Noncurrent Assets:
Prepaid ItemMS ..o — 32 — 250
Deferred Charges ........ccoeoeereneienenneneesee e 33 — — —
Capital Assets:

[ T SRRSO 17 — — —

INFrAStIUCTUNE .vevvececiectece e 303 — — —

Buildings and Improvements .. 4,308 15 1,758 —

Machinery and EQUIPMENE .........cccoveiiieinieneieieieeseas 53,716 11,139 109,610 —

COoNSEruCtion iN PrOgIeSS ......ccooeirverieerieinieneeeseeeeie s 78 — — —

Less Accumulated Depreciation (45,259) (7,226) (54,696) —
Total Capital ASSets ........cccueneeee. 13,163 3,928 56,672 0
Total Noncurrent ASSEtS ........ccevvrvevevierierieieeinens 13,196 3,960 56,672 250
TOtAl ASSELS ...vvviierecieicreciee ettt 34,564 8,741 67,679 56,412
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities ............c.coeee.. 10,643 1,723 3,831 1,439
Due To Other Funds ................... 548 41 225 1,391
Interfund Loans Payable 8,260 2,121 16,822 —
Unearned REVENUE .........covveiveeiieeeteecie et — — 90 —
Policy Claims Liabilities ..........ccccoovoiriiiiiiireiieesee, — — — 16,711
Contracts/Notes Payable — 12 — —
Revenue Bonds Payable — — 69 —
Total Current Liabilities ...........cccovevvviciiiiecie e, 19,451 3,897 21,037 19,541
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Unearned REVENUE ........cc.cvvveieriiee s — — — 165
Interfund Loans Payable 3,497 1,830 2,403 —
Policy Claims Liabilities — — — 26,939
Contracts/Notes Payable — — — —
Revenue Bonds Payable — — 736 —
Total Noncurrent Liabilities .........cccoevvvvvvveiieiienne. 3,497 1,830 3,139 27,104
Total Liabilities .....oooveveeiiiciicee e 22,948 5,727 24,176 46,645
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt ................ 13,163 3,916 55,976 —
Restricted for:

Insurance Programs — — — 4,844

Unrestricted (Deficit) (1,547) (902) (12,473) 4,923
Total NEt ASSELS ....cuevvcviiicicieees et e $ 11,616 $ 3,014 $ 43,503 $ 9,767
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Human

Property Resource
Management Management Total

$ 4,263 $ 2550 $ 63,426
14 — 4,545

185 305 26,238

— — 50

— — 1,710

— — 4,666

16 — 16

4,478 2,855 100,651

— — 282

484 — 517

— — 17

— — 303

— — 6,081

638 42 175,145

— — 78
(562) (15) (107,758)

76 27 73,866

560 27 74,665

5,038 2,882 175,316
1,704 490 19,830

38 18 2,261

— — 27,203

6 — 96

— — 16,711

16 — 28

— — 69

1,764 508 66,198

— — 165

— — 7,730

— — 26,939

484 — 484

— — 736

484 0 36,054

2,248 508 102,252

76 27 73,158

— — 4,844
2,714 2,347 (4,938)

$ 2,790 $ 2374 $ 73,064
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State of Utah

Combining Statement Of Revenues, Expenses, And
Changes In Fund Net Assets
Internal Service Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 (Expressed in Thousands)
Technology General Fleet Risk
Services Services Operations Management
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services/Premiums ...........ccocevvveevevesrereniennan. $ 142,036 $ 18,647 $ 61,286 $ 32,605
MIiSCEIANEOUS ...t — 44 — —
Total Operating REVENUES ..........cccovrereeeririie e 142,036 18,691 61,286 32,605
OPERATING EXPENSES
AAMINISTFALION ... 81,259 2,970 2,625 2,581
Materials and Services for Resale .........ccccoovvevnneiinnnnn 14,262 11,699 30,844 19,803
Rentals and LEases .........coevererereerieninereee e 400 890 535 32
MAINTENANCE ...ttt 653 1,074 14,454 2
DePreCiation .........cooeeriereneereee s 4,523 1,705 10,114 —
BeNefit ClaimS ......covviiiiiicece e — — — 11,980
Miscellaneous Other:
Data ProCeSSING ....ccvevvereiieieenieisieie e 35,678 90 656 143
SUPPHES et 762 124 148 148
ULHHEIES 1. 490 27 211 17
Advertising and Other ..o 1,691 189 1,244 734
Total Operating EXPENSES ........cccevvererenerenienenenieeneenes 139,718 18,768 60,831 35,440
Operating INCOME (LOSS) ..c.vovevreerieeriereeiesieesie e 2,318 (77) 455 (2,835)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment Earnings .........cccoevvenieininsesies e — — — 1,492
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital ASSEtS ........ccccocevevreeerienne 14 (12) (180) —
INEEreSt EXPENSE ...vcvvveeiiieiciisieece et — — (38) —
Refunds Paid to Federal Government ............c.cccccoerereneene. (203) (19) (91) (730)
Other Revenues (EXPENSES) ....cvevirervererieeiereeresieressessesens — (244) — —
Total Nonoperating Revenues (EXPenses) ..........c........ (189) (275) (309) 762
Income (Loss) before Transfers .........ccocccvvevvierienenn. 2,129 (352) 146 (2,073)
TrANSTES TN e — — 324 —
TranSFers OUL ......ccvoveiiiiicicee s (129) — (2,250) (6,250)
Change in Net ASSELS ....c.covvrveeniriieereeessee e 2,000 (352) (1,780) (8,323)
Net Assets — BEGINNING .....cooveirerieeneiseee e 9,616 3,366 45,283 18,090
Adjustment to Beginning Net ASSEtS .......ccccvvevvverernrinnnnn — — — —
Net Assets — Beginning as Adjusted ..........cccovvernneininnnee 9,616 3,366 45,283 18,090
Net ASSEtS — ENAING ...vovvvvvveveiiiicis e $ 11,616 $ 3,014 $ 43,503 $ 9,767
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Reclassified to

Enterprise
Transportation Human
Property Infrastructure Resource
Management Loan Fund Management Total
$ 26,556 $ — $ 12,790 $ 293,920
— — — 44
26,556 0 12,790 293,964
8,262 — 10,734 108,431
— — — 76,608
475 — 11 2,343
7,675 — 1 23,859
39 — 14 16,395
— — — 11,980
389 — 249 37,205
164 — 80 1,426
8,322 — 85 9,152
489 — 122 4,469
25,815 0 11,296 291,868
741 0 1,494 2,096
72 _ — 1,564
— — — (178)
(30) — — (68)
3) — — (1,046)
13 — — (231)
52 0 0 41
793 0 1,494 2,137
— — — 324
(1,517) — — (10,146)
(724) 0 1,494 (7,685)
(136) 2,670 880 79,769
3,650 (2,670) — 980
3,514 0 880 80,749
$ 2,790 $ 0 $ 2374 $ 73,064

169



State of Utah

Combining Statement Of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 (Expressed in Thousands)
Technology General Fleet Risk
Services Services Operations Management
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers/Loan Interest/Fees/Premiums ... $ 1,885 $ 1,133 $ 25,456 $ 14,964
Receipts from State CUStOMErS ........ccccvevveivvieriiiiriciiiienns 148,217 17,626 40,970 17,602
Payments to Suppliers/Claims/Grants (64,757) (9,430) (16,730) (32,387)
Payments for Employee Services and Benefits .................. (79,278) (2,897) (2,574) (2,508)
Payments to State Suppliers and Grants ...........cccccccveeenene (323) (5,395) (30,838) —
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating ACHIVItIES .......ccooeveiireieeeeeec 5,744 1,037 16,284 (2,329)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayments Under Interfund Loans .........cccccoeenenccnnnne. (4,460) — — —
Payments of Bonds, Notes, Deposits, and Refunds ........... (203) (263) (91) (730)
Interest Paid on Bonds, Notes, and Financing Costs ......... — — — —
Federal Grants and Other REVENUES .........cccoeevrnieeninnnns — — — —
Transfers Out to Other Funds (129) — (2,250) (6,250)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Noncapital Financing ACtiVities ...........cc.ccoevenenne (4,792) (263) (2,341) (6,980)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Borrowings Under Interfund Loans ..........c.cccovveenininnnns 4,265 460 — —
Repayments Under Interfund Loans ................... — — (4,337) —
Proceeds from Disposition of Capital Assets ......... 214 50 3,156 —
Principal Paid on Debt and Contract Maturities — — (48) —
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (5,567) (1,666) (11,736) —

Interest Paid on Bonds, Notes, and Capital Leases ............ — — (43) —

Transfers In from Other Funds — — 324 —
Transfers Out to Other Funds ................... — — — —
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Capital and Related Financing Activities .............. (1,088) (1,156) (12,684) 0
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Receipts of Interest and Dividends from Investments ........ — — — 1,492
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Investing ACtIVILIES .......ccccevvrericircece e 0 0 0 1,492
Net Cash Provided (Used) — All Activities ............ (136) (382) 1,259 (7,817)
Cash and Cash Equivalents — Beginning ..........c.ccccoceeeeerenne. 136 1,327 558 61,668
Adjustment to Beginning Cash and Cash Equivalents .......... — — — —
Cash and Cash Equivalents — Ending ..........cccceoeerirvcverennne. $ 0 $ 945 $ 1817 $ 53,851

170



Reclassified to

Enterprise

Transportation Human

Property Infrastructure Resource
Management Loan Fund Management Total
$ 3,349 $ — $ 240 $ 47,027
24,821 — 12,503 261,739
(17,602) — (384) (141,290)
(8,052) — (10,410) (105,719)
(499) — (433) (37,488)
2,017 0 1,516 24,269
— — — (4,460)
(14) — — (1,301)
(30) — — (30)
13 — — 13
(1,500) — — (10,129)
(1,531) 0 0 (15,907)
— — — 4,725
— — — (4,337)
— — 1 3,421
— — — (48)
(14) — — (18,983)
— — — (43)
— — — 324
(17) — — (17)
(31) 0 1 (14,958)
72 — — 1,564
72 0 0 1,564
527 0 1,517 (5,032)
86 1,976 1,033 66,784
3,650 (1,976) — 1,674
$ 4,263 $ 0 $ 2,550 $ 63,426

Continues
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State of Utah
Combining Statement

Of Cash Flows

Internal Service Funds

Continued

For the Fiscal Year Ended June

RECONCILIATION OF OP

30, 2009

ERATING INCOME

(LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED)

BY OPERATING ACTIVIT
Operating Income (LO0SS) .....

IES

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (L0ss)
to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Depreciation Expense ....

Net Changes in Assets and Liabilities:

Accounts Receivable/Du
Inventories .........cceevvn.

e From Other Funds .............

Prepaid Items/Deferred Charges ..........ccoovevviivieienennas
Accrued Liabilities/Due to Other Funds ..........ccccueue.
Unearned Revenue/DepOoSits ........ccccvvvveviereeerieieienas

Notes Payable ................
Policy Claims Liabilities

Net Cash Provided (Used) by

Operating Activities

SCHEDULE OF NONCASH

INVESTING,

CAPITAL, AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments ..............
Total Noncash Investing, Capital, and

Financing Activities

(Expressed in Thousands)

172

Information General Fleet Risk

Technology Services Operations Management

$ 2318 $ (77) $ 455 $ (2,835

4,523 1,705 10,114 —

8,099 75 5,204 (39)

(376) 87 2,442 —

(945) (40) — 15

(7,875) (670) (1,867) (1,835)

— () (64) —

— (36) — —

— — — 2,365

$ 5744 $ 1,037 $ 16,284 $ (2,329)

$ — $ — $ — $ 250

$ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 250



Reclassified to

Enterprise
Transportation Human
Property Infrastructure Resource
Management Loan Fund Management Total
$ 741 $ — $ 149 $ 2,096
39 — 14 16,395
1,608 — (47) 14,900
— — — 2,153
11 — — (959)
(388) — 55 (12,580)
6 — — (65)
— — — (36)
— — — 2,365
$ 2,017 $ 0 $ 1516 $ 24,269
$ 3 $ — $ — $ 253
$ 3 $ 0 $ 0 $ 253
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State of Utah

Fiduciary Funds

PENSION AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFIT TRUST
FUNDS

Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Defined Contribution
Plans

These funds are used to account for the various pension
trust funds and defined contribution plans administered

by the Utah Retirement Systems. Funding comes from
employee and employer contributions and investment
earnings. Contributions in some systems are augmented by
fees, insurance premium taxes, or legislative appropriations.

State Post-Retirement Benefits Trust Fund

The State administers this defined benefit Other
Postemployment Benefit Plan (State Employees’ OPEB
Plan) as an irrevocable trust. This trust accounts for the
assets accumulated and the payments made for other
postemployment benefits provided to current and future
state retirees. Funding comes from employer contributions
and investment earnings.

PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS

Utah Navajo Royalties Holding

This fund receives oil royalties, operating, and other

trust revenues. Funds received are used for the health,
education, and general welfare of Navajo residents of San
Juan County, Utah.

Unclaimed Property Trust

This fund is used to account for unclaimed property
escheated to the State. Proceeds of the fund pay the
administrative costs to operate the fund and any claims. The
remaining proceeds are deposited in the Uniform School
Fund and are used to help fund public education.

Employers’ Reinsurance Trust

This fund primarily provides compensation to individuals
injured from industrial accidents or occupational diseases
occurring on or before June 30, 1994, where the injury is
of a permanent nature and workers’ compensation benefits
have expired. Revenues come from assessments on

insurance premiums and court-ordered penalties. The net
assets of the fund are held in trust for injured workers and
cannot be used for any other purpose.

Petroleum Storage Tank Trust

This fund is used to pay the costs of damage caused by
petroleum storage tank releases. Sources of funding include
fees from participating companies, recovered costs and
settlements from responsible parties, and investment income.
The net assets of this fund are held in trust for the benefit of
participants and cannot be used for any other purpose.

Utah Educational Savings Plan Trust

This fund was created as a means to encourage
investment in a public trust to pay for future higher
education costs. Participant contributions are used to pay
for future college expenses.

Miscellaneous Restricted Trust

This is made up of various small individual funds created to
receive and disburse funds in accordance with applicable
laws and trust agreements.

AGENCY FUNDS

Taxes and Social Security
This fund is used to account for federal withholding and
social security taxes on the State’s payroll.

County and Local Collections
This fund receives and disburses various taxes collected by
the State on behalf of county and local governments.

State Courts

This fund receives and disburses various fines and
forfeitures collected by the state courts on behalf of state
and local agencies.

Deposits, Suspense, and Miscellaneous
This fund is made up of small individual funds set up to
account for various receipts and disbursements.



State of Utah

Combining Statement Of Fiduciary Net Assets
Pension And
Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds

June 30, 2009

(Expressed in Thousands)

Pension Trust

Non- Public Fire-
Contributory Contributory Safety fighters
System System System System
ASSETS
Cash and Cash EQUIVAIENtS ..........ccccoveveeericiccerececs $ 817,753 $ 53575 $ 103,417 $ 39,313
Receivables:
Member Contributions ....................... — 388 49 421
Employer Contributions 31,538 572 3,495 —
Court Fees and Fire Insurance Premiums ...........c.ccveueee. — — — —
QA= (1T ) 302,084 19,874 38,360 14,583
Total RECEIVADIES .......coeveeeicicececececeeceee e 333,622 20,834 41,904 15,004
Due From Other FuNds ..........ccocovveveiieiiecee e, — — — —
Investments:
DEDt SECUITIES ...vcveeeeieiceictecte e 3,663,014 240,990 465,138 176,835
EqQUity INVESIMENLS .....coveviiiicirscec s 4,096,910 269,536 520,235 197,781
Absolute Return 1,678,417 110,423 213,129 81,027
Private Equity 1,154,125 75,930 146,553 55,717
REAI ESLALE ...ttt 2,624,738 172,682 333,297 126,711
MOrtgage LOANS .......ccceveririeenreinienreesreesie e 5,478 361 694 265
Invested Securities Lending Collateral 884,518 58,192 112,318 42,701
Investment Contracts — — — —
Total Investments 14,107,200 928,114 1,791,364 681,037
Capital Assets:
LaANG oo 1,427 95 176 71
Buildings and Improvements .. 9,146 608 1,130 456
Machinery and EQUIpmMEeNt .........cccoeovvrieininnienene, 3,107 207 384 155
Less Accumulated Depreciation ..... (13,259) (882) (1,638) (661)
Total Capital ASSets .........c.ccoueeee. 421 28 52 21
TOtAl ASSELS .t 15,258,996 1,002,551 1,936,737 735,375
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable ... 664,564 43,492 83,946 31,914
Securities Lending Liability .........ccocooviiiiiiiiniiee 884,518 58,192 112,318 42,701
Leave/Postemployment Benefits .........c.coeceveieieneenennen 5,934 390 754 287
INSUFANCE RESEIVES ....evveiviiiieiii et 4,088 269 519 197
Real Estate Liabilities .......c.cccovviviviiciciene e 985,521 64,838 125,143 47,577
Total Liabilities .....cccvveveviiiiiiiceceeeee 2,544,625 167,181 322,680 122,676
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for:
Pension Benefits .......cccovvieiiccieicr s 12,714,371 835,370 1,614,057 612,699
Other Postemployment Benefits ..........c.ccoevvveienrininnene. — — — —
Defined Contribution ..........ccccoevveveviciie e — — — —
Total Net ASSELS .....ccviveiieeieicreceecreeee e $ 12,714,371 $ 835,370 $ 1,614,057 $ 612,699
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State

Pension Trust Defined Contribution Plans Post-
Governors Health Retirement
Judges and Legislative 401(k) 457 IRA Reimbursement  Benefits
System Pension Plan Plan Plan Plans Arrangement Trust Total
$ 6,464 $ 557 $ 3,346 $ 36 $ 22 $ 1,546 $ — $ 1,026,029
— — — — — — — 858
— — — — — — 2,468 38,073
230 — — — — — — 230
2,398 207 53,905 4,140 — — — 435,551
2,628 207 53,905 4,140 0 0 2,468 474,712
— — — — — — 3,850 3,850
29,074 2,505 1,111,824 114,803 16,186 — 24,863 5,845,232
32,518 2,802 941,100 98,722 10,148 — 38,586 6,208,338
13,322 1,148 — — — — — 2,097,466
9,160 789 — — — — — 1,442,274
20,833 1,795 — — — — — 3,280,056
43 4 — — — — — 6,845
7,020 605 78,336 8,191 952 — — 1,192,833
— — 27,154 12,066 — — — 39,220
111,970 9,648 2,158,414 233,782 27,286 0 63,449 20,112,264
10 — — — — — — 1,779
65 — — — — — — 11,405
22 — — — — — — 3,875
(94) — — — — — — (16,534)
3 0 0 0 0 0 0 525
121,065 10,412 2,215,665 237,958 27,308 1,546 69,767 21,617,380
5,247 452 5,384 298 74 — — 835,371
7,020 605 78,336 8,191 952 — — 1,192,833
47 4 — — — — — 7,416
33 3 — — — — — 5,109
7,823 673 — — — — — 1,231,575
20,170 1,737 83,720 8,489 1,026 0 0 3,272,304
100,895 8,675 — — — — — 15,886,067
— — — — — — 69,767 69,767
— — 2,131,945 229,469 26,282 1,546 — 2,389,242
$ 100,895 $ 8,675 $ 2,131,945 $ 229,469 $ 26,282 $ 1,546 $ 69,767 $ 18,345,076
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State of Utah

Combining Statement Of Changes In Fiduciary Net Assets

Pension And
Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

ADDITIONS
Contributions:

Employer
Court Fees and Fire Insurance Premiums .........cccccevveuveene..
Total Contributions .........ccceeveviiecieie e

Investment Income:
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments .......
Interest, Dividends, and Other Investment Income ............
Less Investment EXPENnSes .........ccocvveveiinininicnennennn,
Net Investment INCOME .......oeovvivieeiiiiiee e

Transfers From Affiliated Systems ..........ccocooviieininncnenn,
Total AdAItions .......ccoovvveirrieieieseeee

DEDUCTIONS
Retirement Benefits .........cocoevvvnceiiniene,
Cost of Living Benefits
Supplemental Retirement Benefits ...........ccccoveeericennn
Retiree Healthcare Benefits ..o
Refunds/Plan Distributions
AdMINIStrative EXPENSES ........ccooevireneirieinenec e
Transfers To Affiliated Systems ...

Total DedUCLIONS ........ceeevveviiiiecie e

Change in Net Assets Held in Trust for:
Pension Benefits ...
Other Postemployment Benefits
Defined Contribution ..o
Net ASSEtS — BEGINNING .....coovriireiiirieeeseee s
Net ASSEtS — ENGING ....ovoveviiirciiiieieceece e

(Expressed in Thousands)

Pension Trust

178

Non- Public Fire-
Contributory Contributory Safety fighters
System System System System
14,110 $ 9,410 $ 2,159 $ 10,428
522,733 11,037 93,899 —
— — — 10,219
536,843 20,447 96,058 20,647
(4,245,074) (285,172) (536,033) (205,336)
394,520 26,502 49,816 19,083
(38,070) (2,557) (4,807) (1,842)
(3,888,624) (261,227) (491,024) (188,095)
— 9,008 3,727 1,491
(3,351,781) (231,772) (391,239) (165,957)
551,391 44,218 83,142 27,792
108,401 17,309 15,317 7,093
— 569 485 470

2,514 1,473 899 284
8,809 605 1,163 379
14,537 — — —
685,652 64,174 101,006 36,018
(4,037,433) (295,946) (492,245) (201,975)
16,751,804 1,131,316 2,106,302 814,674
$ 12,714,371 $ 835,370 $ 1,614,057 $ 612,699



State

179

Pension Trust Defined Contribution Plans Post-
Governors Health Retirement
Judges and Legislative 401(k) 457 IRA Reimbursement  Benefits
System Pension Plan Plan Plan Plans Arrangement Trust Total
$ 138 $ — $ 229,981 $ 29,021 $ 10,790 $ — $ — $ 306,037
1,730 — — — — 1,129 53,491 684,019
2,072 — — — — — — 12,291
3,940 0 229,981 29,021 10,790 1,129 53,491 1,002,347
(33,900) (3,016) (557,817) (57,991) (5,519) 23 (9,905) (5,939,740)
3,151 280 6,477 1,014 — — 1,885 502,728
(304) (27) (2,836) (290) (31) — — (50,764)
(31,053) (2,763) (554,176) (57,267) (5,550) 23 (8,020) (5,487,776)
294 17 — — — — — 14,537
(26,819) (2,746) (324,195) (28,246) 5,240 1,152 45,471 (4,470,892)
5,201 606 — — — — — 712,350
1,379 157 — — — — — 149,656
— — — — — — — 1,524
— — — — — — 27,585 27,585
— 7 141,904 18,683 3,069 288 — 169,121
70 5 6,104 665 65 3 — 17,868
— — — — — — — 14,537
6,650 775 148,008 19,348 3,134 291 27,585 1,092,641
(33,469) (3,521) — — — — — (5,064,589)
— — — — — — 17,886 17,886
— — (472,203) (47,594) 2,106 861 — (516,830)
134,364 12,196 2,604,148 277,063 24,176 685 51,881 23,908,609
$ 100,895 $ 8,675 $ 2,131,945 $ 229,469 $ 26,282 $ 1,546 $ 69,767 $ 18,345,076



State of Utah

Combining Statement Of Fiduciary Net Assets
Private Purpose Trust Funds

June 30, 2009 (Expressed in Thousands)
Utah
Navajo Unclaimed Employers' Petroleum
Royalties Property Reinsurance Storage Tank
Holding Trust Trust Trust
ASSETS
Cash and Cash EQUIVaIENtS ..........ccccoveeerericiceiccccs $ 331 $ — $ 9304 $ 396
Receivables:
ACCOUNES ..ttt ee e s ebre e s s bre e s s sbreee e e 1,124 — 4518 4
Accrued ASSESSIMENTS .....c.cvrvrieieiririeeenrieiee e — — 10,840 —
Due From Other FUNAS ..........cccoiiiiiieinc e 723 — — —
Investments:
DEDE SECUTILIES ...vveveieeieeceee et 15,878 35,282 190,455 16,293
EqUity INVESIMENLS ..o 101 14,787 — —
Total INVESEMENES ....ocvveiviiciiiiccee e, 15,979 50,069 190,455 16,293
Capital Assets:
Land ..o 271 — — —
Buildings and Improvements 10,715 — — —
Machinery and EQUIPMENT ... 173 — — —
Less Accumulated Depreciation ...........c.ccoceeeveiercnnne. (2,017) — — —
Total Capital ASSES .......coevreiiiieere e 9,142 0 0 0
TOtAl ASSELS ..o 27,299 50,069 215,117 16,693
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable ... 313 92 420 267
Due To Other FUNS .........ccoiiririiiieese e 17 — 88 17
Unearned REVENUE ..........cccvvieiriirieeieeee et — — — 260
Policy Claims Liabilities .........c.cccooviiireiiiinieence — — 254,233 38,630
Total Liabilities .....cccoeovvveeirieiiereee e 330 92 254,741 39,174
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for:
Individuals, Organizations, and Other Governments ...... 26,969 49,977 (39,624) (22,481)
Total Net ASSELS ....cvveveiiirieeeree s $ 26,969 $ 49,977 $ (39,624) $(22,481)
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Utah

Educational Miscellaneous
Savings Plan Restricted
Trust Trust Total

$ 705 $ 9,214 $ 19,950
_ 98 5,744
— — 10,840
_ 407 1,130
659,608 8,943 926,459
1,767,038 — 1,781,926
2,426,646 8,943 2,708,385
— — 271
— — 10,715
761 — 934
(636) — (2,653)
125 0 9,267
2,427,476 18,662 2,755,316
402 852 2,346
— 13 135
_ — 260
— — 292,863
402 865 295,604
2,427,074 17,797 2,459,712
$ 2,427,074 $ 17,797 $ 2,459,712

181



State of Utah

Combining Statement Of Changes In Fiduciary Net Assets
Private Purpose Trust Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 (Expressed in Thousands)
Utah
Navajo Unclaimed Employers' Petroleum
Royalties Property Reinsurance Storage Tank
Holding Trust Trust Trust
ADDITIONS

Contributions:

$ — $ — $ — $ —
0 0 0 0
Investment Income:
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments ....... 22 (26,990) 777 72
Interest, Dividends, and Other Investment Income ............ 320 919 3,574 348
Total Investment INCOME .......c.cccvevveviieviecieireenenn 342 (26,071) 4,351 420
Other Additions:
ESCHEALS ... — 15,585 — —
Royalties and RENLS .........cccveereiiierieieiecsees e 3,259 — — —
Fees, Assessments, and REVENUES ...........ccceevvveeeirereierennnns. 203 — 43,731 4,636
MISCEIIANEOUS ..ot — — 3,004 —
Total Other ...occvvieeececee e 3,462 15,585 46,735 4,636
Total AddItions .......ccceceveieiirieieseeceeeseeen 3,804 (10,486) 51,086 5,056
DEDUCTIONS
Trust Operating EXPENSES ......ccccovvverirerieirienieenieeseeseeieneas 1,911 — — 694
Distributions and Benefit Payments ............ccccoveeerinienen. — 7,128 52,501 —
Administrative and General EXPenses .........cccocevrereereene. 3,123 9,325 4,089 1,574
Total Deductions ...........ccevevveeveeveiciecie e, 5,034 16,453 56,590 2,268
Change in Net Assets Held in Trust for:
Individuals, Organizations, and Other Governments ...... (1,230) (26,939) (5,504) 2,788
Net Assets — Beginning 28,199 76,916 (34,120) (25,269)
Net Assets — Ending $ 26,969 $ 49,977 $ (39,624) $(22,481)
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Utah

Educational Miscellaneous
Savings Plan Restricted
Trust Trust Total
$ 401,575 $ 10,062 $ 411,637
401,575 10,062 411,637
(541,953) 29 (568,043)
73,252 169 78,582
(468,701) 198 (489,461)
— — 15,585
— — 3,259
— 24,453 73,023
15 9,394 12,413
15 33,847 104,280
(67,111) 44,107 26,456
— 27,896 30,501
82,577 10,026 152,232
4,800 1,986 24,897
87,377 39,908 207,630
(154,488) 4,199 (181,174)
2,581,562 13,598 2,640,886
$ 2,427,074 $ 17,797 $ 2,459,712
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State of Utah

Combining Statement Of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities
Agency Funds

June 30, 2009 (Expressed in Thousands)
Taxes County Deposits,
and Social and Local State Suspense, and
Security Collections Courts Miscellaneous Total
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents ...........c...ccccoeevnanee. $ 19 $109,990 $ 33,620 $ 22,957 $166,586
Accounts Receivable ..........occevvveiiieiviiesnene — — 33 6,261 6,294
Due From Other FUNds .......c.ccooovvveiveireiveineennn — — — 105 105
Investments:
Debt SECUMLIES ....cvvevicieciecie e — 34 — 21,642 21,676
Total INVeStMeNts .........ccceevvevvvcieiieiiens 0 34 0 21,642 21,676
Total ASSELS ..ovevveviierecieieeee e $ 19 $110,024 $ 33,653 $ 50,965 $194,661
LIABILITIES
Due To Individuals, Organizations, and
Other GOVErNMENTS .......cecvvvveeeereeieeeise s $ 19 $110,024 $ 33,653 $ 50,965 $194,661
Total Liabilities .......ccccoevvevvievieeireinenn. $ 19 $110,024 $ 33,653 $ 50,965 $194,661
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State of Utah

Combining Statement Of Changes
In Assets And Liabilities

Agency Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 (Expressed in Thousands)
Balance Balance
June 30, 2008 Additions Deletions June 30, 2009
TAXES AND SOCIAL SECURITY
Assets
Cash and Cash EQUIVaIENtS ..........ccccoveveereriieccicece $ 36 $ 245,019 $ 245,036 $ 19
TOtAl ASSELS ovieievecieicriiee et $ 36 $ 245,019 $ 245,036 $ 19
Liabilities
Due To Individuals, Organizations, and
Other GOVEIMMENTS ......cveevereireiereeree et $ 36 $ 245,062 $ 245,079 $ 19
Total Liabilities .......ccoevevveivieececceeee e $ 36 $ 245,062 $ 245,079 $ 19
COUNTY AND LOCAL COLLECTIONS
Assets
Cash and Cash EQUIVaIENtS ..........ccccoveveereriiiccicececea $ 126,990 $ 1,401,028 $ 1,418,028 $ 109,990
INVESTMENTS ..o 34 1,707 1,707 34
Receivables:
Accounts Receivable ... 677 — 677 —
TOtAl ASSELS .vvivviririciecre et $ 127,701 $ 1,402,735 $ 1,420,412 $ 110,024
Liabilities
Due To Individuals, Organizations, and
Other GOVEIMMENTS .......ceevereireieriree et $ 127,701 $ 1,410,301 $ 1,427,978 $ 110,024
Total Liabilities ....c.covcvviviiviiiie e $ 127,701 $ 1,410,301 $ 1,427,978 $ 110,024
STATE COURTS
Assets
Cash and Cash EQUIVaIENtS ..........cccccveveeeriiiceeececs $ 32,674 $ 134,957 $ 134,011 $ 33,620
Receivables:
ACCOUNES ...ttt — 33 — 33
TOtAl ASSELS .evieicvecieecriiee et $ 32,674 $ 134,990 $ 134,011 $ 33,653
Liabilities
Due To Individuals, Organizations, and
Other GOVEIMMENTS ......ccveevereireiereeree et $ 32,674 $ 100,581 $ 99,602 33,653
Total Liabilities .......cccvovevveiieeieceececececee e $ 32,674 $ 100,581 $ 99,602 $ 33,653
DEPOSITS, SUSPENSE, AND MISCELLANEOUS
Assets
Cash and Cash EQUIValENtS ..........cccccvcveerericeciricccsa, $ 21,976 $ 769,972 $ 768,991 $ 22,957
INVESTMENES ..ot 24,096 195,758 198,212 21,642
Receivables:
Accounts ReCeivable ... 2,610 3,820 169 6,261
Due From Other FUNAS .........cccovvieiecececrecececre e 245 144 284 105
TOtAl ASSELS .ovieieveieecriiee et $ 48,927 $ 969,694 $ 967,656 $ 50,965
Liabilities
Due To Individuals, Organizations, and
Other GOVEIMMENTS .......cveevereireiereeree et $ 48,927 $ 612,946 $ 610,908 $ 50,965
Total Liabilities .......cccvcvevveiieeiiceeceecccee e $ 48,927 $ 612,946 $ 610,908 $ 50,965
TOTAL — ALL AGENCY FUNDS
Assets
Cash and Cash EQUIVaIENtS ..........ccccoveeeericieciicecs $ 181,676 $ 2,550,976 $ 2,566,066 $ 166,586
INVESTMENTS ..ot 24,130 197,465 199,919 21,676
Receivables:
Accounts ReCeivable ... 3,287 3,853 846 6,294
Due From Other FUNAS .........cccovvvieiecececreeecre e 245 144 284 105
TOtAl ASSELS ..oviereveieecriiee et $ 209,338 $ 2,752,438 $ 2,767,115 $ 194,661
Liabilities
Due To Individuals, Organizations, and
Other GOVEIMMENTS .......ceeviveireieriree ettt $ 209,338 $ 2,368,890 $ 2,383,567 $ 194,661
Total Liabilities ......cccoveevviivieececceeee e $ 209,338 $ 2,368,890 $ 2,383,567 $ 194,661
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State of Utah

Nonmajor
Component Units

Comprehensive Health Insurance Pool

The Pool was created as a nonprofit quasi-governmental entity to provide access to health insurance
coverage for residents of the State who are considered uninsurable. Ongoing operating costs are
recovered through premium charges supplemented with both appropriations from the General Fund and
federal grants.

Utah Schools for the Deaf and Blind
The Schools were created to provide education to individuals with hearing and/or vision impairments, through
direct and indirect education services, as well as consultation to their families and service providers.

Heber Valley Historic Railroad Authority
The Authority was created to operate, maintain, improve, and provide for a scenic and historic railway in
and around the Heber Valley in Wasatch County. Operations are funded primarily through user charges.

Utah State Fair Corporation

The Corporation was created to operate the State Fair Park and conduct the Utah State Fair and other
expositions and entertainment events. Operations are funded by admissions, rentals, donations, and
state appropriations.

Colleges and Universities
The colleges and universities are the State’s public institutions of higher education. The nonmajor
institutions of higher education are:

Weber State University

Southern Utah University

Salt Lake Community College

Utah Valley University

Dixie State College of Utah

College of Eastern Utah

Snow College

Utah College of Applied Technology



State of Utah

Combining Statement Of Net Assets
Nonmajor Component Units

June 30, 2009 (Expressed in Thousands)
Comprehensive Heber Valley
Health Utah Schools Historic Utah State Weber
Insurance For the Deaf Railroad Fair State
Pool And the Blind Authority Corporation University
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash EqQuivalents ............cccoovvririreeiceneennns $ 34,832 $ 2845 $ — $ 766 $ 16,717
INVESEMENTS ... — — — — 10,262
Receivables:
ACCOUNLS, NEL ... 23 995 61 189 6,199
Notes/Loans/Mortgages/Pledges, net .........c.cccceeeee. — — — — 1,133
Accrued INErest .......ccovveririririnnerrssseeeeiee — — — — 268
Due From Primary Government .... . — 394 — — —
Prepaid Items ......cccoevevvivvciennnns . — — — 38 72
Inventories ........ . — — 46 — 3,002
Deferred Charges ........ccccvvvveeveeerenscinee e — — — — 307
Total Current ASSELS ........ccccveveeveveerierieeieenenns 34,855 4,234 107 993 37,960
Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted INVESMENLS ........cccveveeieviicicesesevee — — — — 3,013
Accounts Receivables, Net .......cccccoevvevvivvevieciceine — — — — —
INVESIMENLS ... — — — — 98,411
Notes/Loans/Mortgages/Pledges Receivables, net ...... — — — — 8,943
Other ASSELS ..ocveveieieese e — — — — —
Capital Assets (net of Accumulated Depreciation) ..... — 9,019 2,477 820 205,637
Total Noncurrent Assets .. 0 9,019 2,477 820 316,004
TOtAl ASSELS ...t 34,855 13,253 2,584 1,813 353,964
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities .................. 397 1,612 367 193 2,784
DEPOSIES ..ottt — — — — —
Due To Primary GOVErnMEeNt ..........cccovveererieereseennne — 282 — — 1,029
Unearned REVENUE .........cccoeveveviveiiieeseeeeeese s 299 15 — 105 5,655
Current Portion of Long-term Liabilities ..................... 2,638 — 395 38 4,110
Total Current Liabilities ............cccoovevevvevviennns 3,334 1,909 762 336 13,578
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Accrued Liabilities .......ccooeevivneiiiceieseceeec e — — — — —
DEPOSILS ...t — — — — —
Due To Primary GOVErnment ..........c.cccoveveveereeecnenenen. — — — — —
Long-term Liabilities ..........cccvveriiniinrienceeesee — — 68 33 37,813
Total Noncurrent Liabilities ..........ccccocoveviriinnne 0 0 68 33 37,813
Total Liabilities .......ccoeveveieeeiiiiiei s 3,334 1,909 830 369 51,391
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt .......... — 9,019 2,477 770 170,610
Restricted for:
Nonexpendable:
Higher EQUCAtIoN .........cccovveviiccicciciice — — — — 41,330
Expendable:
Higher EQUCAtION ........ccvvvieiciccicciccie — — — — 55,459
(0] {1 RS — — — 58 —
Unrestricted (DefiCit) ......cccoveviiiiiiiiinnee 31,521 2,325 (723) 616 35,174
Total NEt ASSELS ...vcuevevieiieeteeeeeee e $ 31,521 $ 11,344 $ 1,754 $ 1444 $ 302,573
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Total

Southern Salt Lake Utah Dixie College Utah College Nonmajor

Utah Community Valley State College of Eastern Snow of Applied Component
University College University of Utah Utah College Technology Units

$ — $ 41,934 65,809 $ 20,364 $ 2,010 $ 13,654 $ 12,494 211,425
21,766 42,532 1,253 1,752 146 2,654 678 81,043
3111 7,703 6,580 1,367 2,501 555 3,705 32,989
383 618 2,254 258 58 682 52 5,438
— — — — 17 65 — 350
— — — — — — — 394
— — 346 7 205 47 482 1,197
1,153 4,099 2,684 1,073 469 775 2,939 16,240
3,135 29 — — — — — 3,471
29,548 96,915 78,926 24,821 5,406 18,432 20,350 352,547
13,292 9,948 15,978 — 16,675 4,426 — 63,332
— — — — — — 431 431
7,650 3,806 — 12,316 19 1,965 1,068 125,235
2,089 4,420 5,546 2,964 234 1,805 — 26,001
2,369 483 4,358 — 20 — — 7,230
125,188 174,446 222,496 92,101 46,913 70,611 97,950 1,047,658
150,588 193,103 248,378 107,381 63,861 78,807 99,449 1,269,887
180,136 290,018 327,304 132,202 69,267 97,239 119,799 1,622,434
2,339 11,145 6,648 1,735 259 1,591 4,000 33,070
441 — 920 6 — 305 155 1,827
2,160 34 1,512 4 120 283 4,189 9,613
3,981 6,583 4,457 508 257 504 982 23,346
3,778 4,927 5,746 1,457 216 443 1,402 25,150
12,699 22,689 19,283 3,710 852 3,126 10,728 93,006
— — — — — — 10 10
— 765 — 149 72 75 — 1,061
— — — — 936 233 — 1,169
25,691 11,718 24,064 10,854 856 764 8,855 120,716
25,691 12,483 24,064 11,003 1,864 1,072 8,865 122,956
38,390 35,172 43,347 14,713 2,716 4,198 19,593 215,962
101,772 165,748 198,920 86,335 46,912 70,288 86,790 939,641
9,824 3,597 10,757 16,192 2,526 4,806 815 89,847
7,663 18,264 26,132 6,609 14,405 4,535 2,925 135,992
— — — — — 305 363
22,487 67,237 48,148 8,353 2,708 13,412 9,371 240,629
$ 141,746 $ 254,846 283,957 $ 117,489 $ 66,551 $ 93,041 $ 100,206 1,406,472
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State of Utah

Combining Statement Of Activities
Nonmajor Component Units

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 (Expressed in Thousands)
Comprehensive Heber Valley
Health Utah Schools Historic Utah State Weber
Insurance For the Deaf Railroad Fair State
Pool And the Blind Authority Corporation University
EXPENSES ovvverereieieiiereieisiee et eseeenes $ 30,275 $ 29,746 $ 2,110 $ 4,345 $ 176,958

Program Revenues:
Charges for Services:

Tuition and FEES ......cvveeiiiiiirrersse — — — — 72,549
Scholarship AlOWaNCES ........ccccccovrrerirrcnennenes — — — — (14,690)
Sales, Services, and Other Revenues ................. 19,112 4,469 2,221 3,455 18,434
Operating Grants and Contributions . 1,440 734 — — 22,542
Capital Grants and Contributions ...........cccccccevveenene. — — — — 26,733
Total Program ReVENUES ........ccccecvvreeeririninnen 20,552 5,203 2,221 3,455 125,568
Net (Expenses) REVENUES ...........cccovvvvenne. (9,723) (24,543) 111 (890) (51,390)

General Revenues:
State APPropriations ..........ccccveeereerneiensenisseens 9,300 24,235 — 795 64,166
Unrestricted Investment INCOME ........ccccovveevrienenene. 901 6 — — —
Permanent Endowments Contributions ...........cc.cccceevene. — — — — 2,613
Total General REVENUES .........cccvvereerieveeriennns 10,201 24,241 0 795 66,779
Change in Net ASSetS ......ccoceevreierincieinnins 478 (302) 111 (95) 15,389
Net Assets — Beginning ........ccoccoevveierncrinsienneenne 31,043 11,646 1,643 1,539 287,184
Net Assets — ENAINg ......ccovvvvrvriririnieieeieeeeeneneeeees $ 31,521 $ 11,344 $ 1,754 $ 1,444 $ 302,573
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Total

Southern Salt Lake Utah Dixie College Utah College Nonmajor
Utah Community Valley State College of Eastern Snow of Applied Component
University College University of Utah Utah College Technology Units
$ 98,587 $ 172,205 $ 219,620 $ 45,007 $ 34,360 $ 37,839 $ 82,037 $ 933,089
32,769 59,072 92,334 21,666 3,943 7,920 14,028 304,281
(7,835) (7,385) (11,273) (4,451) (1,385) (2,164) (1,206) (50,389)
18,079 19,458 27,061 6,714 2,540 3,800 7,229 132,572
18,572 31,045 47,714 10,883 9,318 5,164 12,861 160,273
1,256 1,010 48,282 627 3,580 371 16,110 97,969
62,841 103,200 204,118 35,439 17,996 15,091 49,022 644,706
(35,746) (69,005) (15,502) (9,568) (16,364) (22,748) (33,015) (288,383)
32,429 64,596 66,157 22,561 17,950 20,323 48,667 371,179
— — — — — — 15 922
401 — 419 146 60 272 — 3,911
32,830 64,596 66,576 22,707 18,010 20,595 48,682 376,012
(2,916) (4,409) 51,074 13,139 1,646 (2,153) 15,667 87,629
144,662 259,255 232,883 104,350 64,905 95,194 84,539 1,318,843
$ 141,746 $ 254,846 $ 283,957 $ 117,489 $ 66,551 $ 93,041 $ 100,206 $ 1,406,472
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State of Utah

STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the State of Utah’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context for
understanding what the information in the financial statements, notes to the financial statements, and required supplementary
information says about the State’s overall financial health.

Financial Trends Information
These schedules present trend information to help the reader understand how the State’s financial performance and fiscal health
have changed over time.

Schedule A—1  Net AsSets BY COMPONENT ........c..cvreericeeeeerceeeeeeeeeeseeeeee e eesee s eenesseseesee s s eeneesensnes
Schedule A—2  Changes iN NET ASSELS ........ccucveveiececeetete ettt ee ettt es s ea ettt en s e bbb s
Schedule A-3  Fund Balances — Governmental FUNGS ...........ccooevviiiiiiiieiccecce e [202]
Schedule A-4  Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds ...........cccccooenninininieiinicnee e, [[204]

Revenue Capacity Information
These schedules contain information to help the reader understand the State’s capacity to raise revenues and the sources of
those revenues.

SCREAUIE B—1  REVENUE BASE .....eoveeeeeeee ettt ettt et e et e et e et e e e et e e st eee s neeneeeees
Schedule B-2  Revenue Payers by Industry — Taxable Sales, Services, and Use Tax Purchases ..........
Schedule B-3  Revenue Payers — Personal INCOME TaX ..o
Schedule B—4  Personal INCOME TaX RAIES .......ccviveveiieeeeeieeeeeeeeeee st s et s st s e st st e s s e en st s s e s neee s

Debt Capacity Information
These schedules present information to help the reader understand and assess the State’s levels of outstanding debt and the
State’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Schedule C-1  Ratios of Outstanding Debt DY TYPE .......ccoviueiieveiireieiieeisieie et
Schedule C-2  Other Long-Term LiaDilTIES ......ccooveereeeieiriiiieciesisisse et
Schedule C=3  Legal DDt IMAIGIN ........ccoviveuiiiieiiesicee sttt re s
Schedule C—4  Statutory DDt LIMIt ......coooiiiiiiiiieisiccce ettt [216]
Schedule C-5  Pledged Revenue BoNd COVEIAgE .......ccccovriirirueueiereiereenenesesesisisesisieseseseesesesesesssssnssenas

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules contain demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment within which the
State’s financial activities take place.

Schedule D-1  Demographic and ECONOmIc INAICAOrS .............cooveveveueececcceeee e,
Schedule D=2 PrinCipal EMPIOYEIS ....c.cvoiiiiiriririeieieeieeieeese sttt sene s ssssnnnns [2201]
Schedule D=3 Composition Of LaOr FOICE .......c.cccuiuiveieieiceecece ettt
Schedule D-4  Public Education Student Enrollment (K—=12) .........ccooeoiiiriininiiieneieeeseeeeseees [2247]
Schedule D-5 Public Higher Education ENrolMENt ...........cccccciviiieiiiiciieieeessee et

Operating Information
These schedules offer operating data to help the reader understand how the information in the State’s financial report relates to
the services it provides and the activities it performs.

Schedule E-1  Full-Time Equivalent State Employees by FUNCLION ..........ccooviiiiiniiiicneecees
Schedule E-2  Operating Indicators by FUNCHION ........cccovvviiiiiiiccccc s [228]
Schedule E-3  Capital Asset Statistics DY FUNCLION .........ooeiiiiiiiie s

Other Information
These graphs and schedules offer a historical view of expenditures in constant dollars.

Schedule F-1  Expenditures — Historical and Constant DOIIArs .........ccccovvvvvreeeeierenninnesesssesseenns
Schedule F-2  Per Capita Expenditures — Historical and Constant DOIIars ............cccceeveveveveveveerevennns

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in the following schedules is derived from the State of Utah
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
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State of Utah

Net Assets by Component
Last Eight Fiscal Years

(Accrual Basis of Accounting) (Expressed in Thousands)
Fiscal Year
2002 2003 2004 2005
Governmental Activities
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt ................ $ 7,827,247 $ 7,661,130 $ 7,942,495 $ 8,197,279
RESLICIEA Li.eeieeeeee et 776,121 973,636 1,237,258 1,518,523
Unrestricted * 320,613 336,129 408,145 690,177
Total Governmental Activities Net ASSets ..........cccev.. 8,923,981 8,970,895 9,587,898 10,405,979
Business-type Activities
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt ................ 21,336 22,104 24,141 28,419
RESICIEA ...t 916,526 814,147 807,224 928,115
UNIESHHICtEd 3. 627,668 668,198 724,154 793,099
Total Business-type Activities Net ASSets ................... 1,565,530 1,504,449 1,555,519 1,749,633
Primary Government
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt ................ 7,848,583 7,683,234 7,966,636 8,225,698
RESIIICIEA ...t 1,692,647 1,787,783 2,044,482 2,446,638
Unrestricted .... 948,281 1,004,327 1,132,299 1,483,276
Total Primary Government Net ASSets .............cevene.. $ 10,489,511 $ 10,475,344 $ 11,143,417 $ 12,155,612

Notes: The State implemented GASB Statement 34 in fiscal year 2002. The government-wide schedules are effective
beginning in fiscal year 2002.

This schedule has been restated for prior period adjustments. Adjustments were made to the fiscal year and the preceding
fiscal year in which the prior period adjustment was identified.

! From fiscal years 2004 to 2007, governmental activities' restricted and unrestricted net assets increased due to higher
tax revenues from a strengthening economy. In fiscal years 2008 and 2009, governmental activities' restricted and
unrestricted net assets decreased as the economy slowed and tax revenues declined.

2 From fiscal years 2002 to 2004, business-type activities' restricted net assets decreased primarily due to unemployment
claims exceeding related revenue. From fiscal years 2005 to 2008, business-type activities' restricted net assets
increased due to unemployment revenues exceeding related claims. In fiscal year 2009, the weak economy caused an
increase in unemployment claims, which in turn caused a decrease in the restricted assets of business-type activities.

% In fiscal years 2006 to 2009, business-type activities' unrestricted net assets increased primarily due to the State
providing additional capital to the loan funds from mineral lease revenues.
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Schedule A-1

Fiscal Year

2006 2007 2008 2009
$ 8,719,751 $ 9,465,667 $ 10,447,357 $ 11,277,630
2,379,269 3,043,599 2,618,556 2,349,499
856,207 1,163,548 1,169,342 689,052
11,955,227 13,672,814 14,235,255 14,316,181
32,068 13,008 13,837 13,751
1,139,691 1,334,737 1,434,828 1,269,006
893,118 971,435 1,037,893 1,080,231
2,064,877 2,319,180 2,486,558 2,362,988
8,751,819 9,478,675 10,461,194 11,291,381
3,518,960 4,378,336 4,053,384 3,618,505
1,749,325 2,134,983 2,207,235 1,769,283
$ 14,020,104 $ 15,991,994 $ 16,721,813 $ 16,679,169
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State of Utah

Changes in Net Assets
Last Eight Fiscal Years

(Accrual Basis of Accounting) (Expressed in Thousands)
Fiscal Year
2002 2003 2004 2005
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Expenses
General GOVEINMENt .....c.cevveeireicricieecreiereerenas $ 218,758 $ 194211 $ 187,544 $ 240,091
Human Services and Youth Corrections 539,028 538,492 576,276 573,154
Corrections, AdUlt ...........covevvevieveneie e 191,642 184,805 197,043 195,716
PUBIIC SAfELY .ovvveeeeiee e 154,257 127,861 150,772 162,922
COUMS vttt 104,979 106,045 97,894 98,319
Health and Environmental Quality L..........cccccooeveivevernnne. 1,062,393 1,177,121 1,341,059 1,461,016
Higher EQUCAtION .......coceiviiiirieieiccesee e 704,595 647,572 781,468 694,732
Employment and Family Services .........cccccoevvnerncnccnnns 324,113 352,082 384,457 409,334
Natural Resources ............ . 114,083 119,528 119,188 121,714
Community and Culture ................. 91,083 90,794 88,339 86,065
Business, Labor and Agriculture ..........cccoceevvieveivvviinnns 66,215 66,965 72,693 84,992
PUBLIC EAUCALION 2. 1,999,112 1,981,119 2,033,153 2,169,071
TranspPortation .........ccccceveevereserieieseresese e 541,547 523,591 538,525 579,914
Interest and Other Charges on Long-Term Debt ................ 68,964 73,835 75,935 76,382
TOtal EXPENSES ...t 6,180,769 6,184,021 6,644,346 6,953,422
Program Revenues
Charges for Services:
General GOVEIMMENT ........covcvieieiie et 77,155 84,500 96,780 99,303
Human Services and Youth Corrections ...........cccevevvennens 13,304 17,182 11,918 13,193
Corrections, AdUlt .........coceeveeieici e 7,452 6,235 7,260 2,138
Public Safety 28,348 28,471 31,147 31,594
Courts .............. 34,977 29,221 32,991 46,468
Health and Environmental Quality ...........ccccoovveriiieninnne 87,120 74,087 84,251 108,406
Higher EAUCALION .........cccoiiiiiiiiieeeeee e 714 676 231 282
Employment and Family Services ........c.cccovvvveivnennne. 7,366 5,397 9,139 6,414
Natural Resources 40,660 35,353 41,554 44,842
Community and CUltUre ..........cocevvviveinierce e 4,579 4,807 1,427 4,420
Business, Labor and Agriculture ...........c.ccocooeveenenennne 46,230 50,318 55,906 61,637
Public Education 35,859 38,604 38,209 59,213
Transportation ...........ccceeevenecrienenn 123,934 97,759 134,123 137,934
Operating Grants and Contributions . 1,794,902 2,034,177 2,347,065 2,436,116
Capital Grants and Contributions ............cccceoeveeriiccnnne. 109,751 123,883 105,149 124,836
Total Program ReVENUES ..........cccoeiiririiineiicieeseeae 2,412,351 2,630,670 2,997,150 3,176,796
Net Program (Expense) —
Governmental ACHIVItIES ........cccovevierieieneine, (3,768,418) (3,553,351) (3,647,196) (3,776,626)
General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets
Taxes:
Sales Tax and USe TaX 3......cccvriiieiieeeeseeeeese e 1,470,175 1,488,452 1,547,174 1,697,720
Individual Income Tax Imposed for Education 3. 1,473,341 1,604,618 1,760,844 2,001,286
Corporate Tax Imposed for Education 3...........c..cccevvene. 124,333 160,705 165,921 209,403
Motor and Special Fuel Taxes
Imposed for Transportation ............cccoveerenneiiinennas 329,296 317,536 332,673 335,625
OthEr TAXES .vveveceecteeeeeeeee ettt s 201,586 213,613 234,777 275,755
Unrestricted Investment Income ... 11,914 9,152 7,818 17,690
Gain on Sale of Capital ASSEtS .......cccccererereieniineneenine 19,642 15,412 13,072 23,010
Federal Appropriation—-Jobs and Growth Relief ................ — 37,970 37,970 —
Miscellaneous 40,670 34,733 30,117 24,781
Special Item-Distribution to Local Governments .............. (29,772) — — —
Transfers—Internal ACtiVIties .........cccocvvvveeeiviee e 26,358 24,237 13,408 9,437
Prior Period Adjustments and Restatements ...........c.......... (61,189) (306,163) 120,425 —
Total General Revenues and
Other Changes in Net ASSEtS ........cccevevveeriereierienenn. 3,606,354 3,600,265 4,264,199 4,594,707
Change in Net Assets — Governmental
Activities — Increase (DeCrease) .........c.cveevrvenas (162,064) 46,914 617,003 818,081
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Schedule A-2

Fiscal Year

2006 2007 2008 2009

$ 289,749 $ 328,779 $ 385331 $ 390,373

595,337 634,265 679,920 700,307
208,922 237,305 255,319 254,980
182,042 172,912 191,910 189,069
109,180 115,811 125,587 123,209

1,635,544 1,620,936 1,649,209 1,812,067
810,228 824,503 912,998 997,218
405,845 393,938 423,122 514,915
133,441 174,711 159,955 174,730

84,843 108,110 132,687 139,840
90,573 92,441 95,563 101,995

2,321,139 2,548,391 2,959,311 3,033,574

640,251 702,833 850,387 819,833
70,345 64,019 58,851 52,070

7,577,439 8,018,954 8,880,150 9,304,180

121,067 156,111 257,537 154,794
11,073 10,889 10,840 13,359
4,483 4,624 5,332 5,211
32,777 43,806 49,247 51,475
47,330 46,158 46,517 48,957
98,296 84,938 65,666 64,328
115 235 31 32,981
8,492 3,532 7,413 8,067
50,308 45,367 64,407 71,266
5,368 4,833 5,278 3,632
64,098 63,240 68,622 65,376
85,867 69,471 100,919 79,462
175,821 199,277 251,562 288,205

2,744,231 2,769,644 2,658,284 3,177,737
100,519 122,939 144,867 145,353

3,549,845 3,625,064 3,736,522 4,210,203

(4,027,594) (4,393,890) (5,143,628) (5,093,977)

1,921,048 2,131,958 2,006,926 1,762,745

2,496,911 2,667,207 2,435,059 2,336,528
379,801 412,720 409,794 252,095
356,176 353,107 350,426 337,395
316,980 320,204 333,545 354,982

46,856 89,795 63,947 29,267
46,084 52,139 26,980 15,583
31,999 37,569 41,659 46,375
(19,013) 46,778 37,733 38,953
5,576,842 6,111,477 5,706,069 5,173,923
1,549,248 1,717,587 562,441 79,946 Continues
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State of Utah

Changes in Net Assets
Last Eight Fiscal Years

(Accrual Basis of Accounting) (Expressed in Thousands)
Fiscal Year
2002 2003 2004 2005
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Expenses
Student Assistance Programs ............c.ccceevevevenne. $ 79,666 $ 86,995 $ 82,406 $ 95,495
Unemployment Compensation LT 272,924 307,834 242,828 142,632
Water Loan Programs ..........cceeevevenininisisiesnennee e see e 6,181 7,074 6,730 8,648
Community and Economic Loan Programs ............cc.cc...... 1,382 1,482 1,199 1,160
Liquor Retail Sales 100,455 101,747 106,515 114,897
Other Business-type ACtIVItIes ..........occoveriereieneninenee 20,757 20,477 23,450 25,317
TOtal EXPENSES ..ot 481,365 525,609 463,128 388,149
Program Revenues
Charges for Services:

Student Assistance Programs ..........cccoceeeeererereneenenenns 75,836 73,685 72,823 87,375

Unemployment Compensation ... 84,611 108,130 158,466 221,298

Water Loan Programs ..........ccceeeeerenenene s 9,132 8,975 9,160 9,796

Community and Economic Loan Programs .................... 4,642 4,964 5,344 5,245

Liquor Retail Sales 132,994 134,810 143,634 153,004

Other Business-type ACHVItIES ........ccccovvveerirneeininnans 22,067 22,574 27,401 30,865
Operating Grants and Contributions ............ccccccecevvnenineene. 163,584 130,235 92,141 65,173

Total Program ReVENUES ..........cccoevireriineniieeie e 492,866 483,373 508,969 572,756
Net Program Revenue (Expense) —
Business-type ACHIVIties ........cccccevvveverrncennn, 11,501 (42,236) 45,841 184,607
General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets
Taxes:

Sales Tax and USe TaX ......cccceeevvereiieesesiereceeseseere e 16,343 2,180 14,402 14,874
Unrestricted Investment INCOME .........ccccovveveencinieniennn 3,648 2,248 1,627 3,844
Gain on Sale of Capital ASSEtS ........ccccervrereiereieeceeene 2,347 — — 226
MIiSCEIANEOUS ......cvviveieviiicececcee e — — — —
Federal Appropriation—Jobs and Growth Relief — 964 462 —
Transfers—Internal ACtIVItIES .........cccoovveiirnneeniice, (26,358) (24,237) (13,408) (9,437)
Prior Period Adjustments and Restatements ...................... 100 — 2,146 —

Total General Revenues and
Other Changes in Net ASSEtS ........cccvevevveeriereierienenn. (3,920) (18,845) 5,229 9,507
Change in Net Assets — Business-type
Activities — Increase (Decrease) .........ccceeeeeruenns 7,581 (61,081) 51,070 194,114
Total Primary Government Change in Net Assets ............. $ (154,483) $ (14,167) $ 668,073 $ 1,012,195

Notes: The State implemented GASB Statement 34 in fiscal year 2002. The government-wide schedules are effective
beginning in fiscal year 2002.

Legislative action created the Governor's Office of Economic Development in fiscal year 2006; this action moved activity
from the community and culture function to the general government function.

This schedule has been restated for prior period adjustments. Adjustments were made to the fiscal year and the preceding
fiscal year in which the prior period adjustment was identified.

! Expenses for health and environmental quality have increased over the last eight fiscal years due to rising Medicaid
program costs.

2 From fiscal years 2005 to 2009 public education expenses increased for both enrollment growth and benefit-related
costs for educators.

% From fiscal years 2005 to 2007, general tax revenues, specifically sales and use taxes, individual income taxes, and

corporate taxes, increased significantly compared to prior years due to Utah's continued economic improvement. In fiscal
years 2008 and 2009, general tax revenues declined due to the recessionary economy.
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Schedule A-2 (Continued)

Fiscal Year

2006 2007 2008 2009

$ 152,895 $ 174,220 $ 164,411 $ 144,007

102,476 97,692 148,424 489,925
6,560 13,042 10,477 12,900
1,570 1,136 2,310 2,349

126,114 143,721 160,635 168,844

27,581 31,404 33,417 35,635

417,196 461,215 519,674 853,660

112,960 126,498 117,246 89,805

253,809 219,690 157,624 144,383

10,715 10,634 12,135 12,234
5,394 5,876 6,524 7,838
173,400 195,276 219,801 228,474
32,826 39,753 44,140 49,437

109,140 138,252 143,853 214,876

698,244 735,979 701,323 747,047

281,048 274,764 181,649 (106,613)

14,875 25,440 23,462 22,976
308 — — —

— 877 — —
19,013 (46,778) (37,733) (38,953)
34,196 (20,461) (14,271) (15,977)
315,244 254,303 167,378 (122,590)

$ 1,864,492 $ 1,971,890 $ 729,819 $ (42,644)

* From fiscal years 2003 to 2007 unemployment compensation expenses decreased, reflecting Utah's improved
employment. However, beginning in fiscal year 2008 and continuing in fiscal year 2009, unemployment
compensation expenses increased significantly as the economy continued to weaken at a faster pace than in prior
years.
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State of Utah

Fund Balances — Governmental Funds
Last Eight Fiscal Years

(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) (Expressed in Thousands)
Fiscal Year
2002 2003 2004 2005
General Fund
RESEIVED Lo $ 221,474 $ 230,980 $ 214,063 $ 262,360
UNESEIVEA 2. ee e 146,551 156,016 271,890 391,619
Total General FUNd .........ccooveiiieiececececcee e, 368,025 386,996 485,953 653,979

All Other Governmental Funds
RESEIVEA ... 940,566 878,603 831,812 1,048,146
Unreserved reported in:

Special Revenue Funds 418,365 562,605 643,340 737,746
Capital Projects 3.................. 52,959 75,489 (15,380) (71,127)
DEDE SEIVICE ..ovviviiicieece e 8,173 7,107 5,787 5,881
Total All Other Governmental Funds ..........c..ccccvevenee. 1,420,063 1,523,804 1,465,559 1,720,646
Total Fund Balances — Governmental Funds ............. $ 1,788,088 $ 1,910,800 $ 1,951,512 $ 2,374,625

Notes: Due to changes in the State's fund structure initiated when GASB Statement 34 was implemented, the changes in
fund balance information are only available beginning in fiscal year 2002.

This schedule has been restated for prior period adjustments. Adjustments were made to the fiscal year and the preceding
fiscal year in which the prior period adjustment was identified.

L In fiscal year 2009, general fund reserved fund balances decreased due to less reserves available as a result of the
slowing economy.

2 From fiscal years 2004 to 2007, general fund unreserved fund balances increased due to higher tax revenues from a
strengthening economy. In fiscal years 2008 and 2009, general fund unreserved fund balances decreased as the State's
economy slowed. Sales and use tax diversions along with reductions in the sales tax rate also contributed to the decrease
in tax revenues in the general fund.

% From fiscal years 2004 to 2007, and again in fiscal year 2009, unreserved fund balance for capital projects reported a

deficit balance as a result of outstanding encumbrances on various capital projects. Appropriations and bond proceeds
available in subsequent fiscal years will fund these deficits.
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Schedule A-3

Fiscal Year
2006 2007 2008 2009

$ 300,497 $ 411,600 $ 470,800 $ 305,224

568,639 667,972 394,068 327,467

869,136 1,079,572 864,868 632,691

1,286,583 1,558,607 1,867,469 1,892,734

1,096,485 1,473,424 975,035 807,356
(93,248) (107,624) 57,027 (13,219)

14,332 17,801 20,801 5,210

2,304,152 2,942,208 2,920,332 2,692,081

$ 3,173,288 $ 4,021,780 $ 3,785,200 $ 3,324,772
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State of Utah

Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds
Last Eight Fiscal Years

(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) (Expressed in Thousands)
Fiscal Year
2002 2003 2004 2005
Revenues
Sales and Use TaxX L. $ 1,473,479 $ 1,481,823 $ 1,553,909 $ 1,699,636
Individual Income Tax* 1,584,546 1,587,520 1,706,774 1,946,593
Corporate TaX e s 124,561 161,129 165,893 209,304
Motor and Special FUels TaxX ......cccovvvrrerieererersereseens 321,682 321,370 327,838 336,417
Other TaXes .....ccevverererceeenenenes 201,583 213,618 234,774 275,715
Federal Contracts and Grants 2 1,856,477 2,049,922 2,295,428 2,366,786
Charges for Services/Royalties ..........ccccevvervreivneiericinnenn, 256,213 244 527 286,879 330,998
Licenses, Permits, and Fees 98,632 101,529 103,635 121,382
Federal Mineral LEASE ........ccccvevveeeiieecieieceee e 30,527 47,307 67,216 82,704
Federal ABIrONAULICS ......cvveveveerieieieeese e 31,026 18,791 25,821 34,416
Intergovernmental 7,611 8,463 11,395 4,104
INVEStMENE INCOME 2 ... e (10,347) 34,626 69,314 71,538
Miscellaneous and Other ...........ccceervverererereinnee e 176,895 193,448 204,331 231,708
TOtal REVENUES ...t 6,152,885 6,464,073 7,053,207 7,711,301
Expenditures
General GOVEIMMENT ........cocvviviiieireecie e 179,769 170,666 176,907 178,891
Human Services and Youth Corrections ...........ccceevevvvenens 531,290 533,898 553,136 576,871
Corrections, AdUlt ..o 185,471 179,115 188,951 198,030
Public Safety 150,715 125,517 150,353 163,072
COUIS 1ttt 107,255 98,784 102,302 107,807
Health and Environmental Quality s 1,058,291 1,175,092 1,342,903 1,461,618
Higher Education-State Administration ........... 42,155 34,891 32,827 39,121
Higher Education—Colleges and Universities ... 610,837 597,477 614,922 637,087
Employment and Family Services .................... 321,154 363,116 394,926 417,037
Natural RESOUICES ........ccoerveveiirenes . 121,072 134,247 121,461 123,195
Community and CURUIE .......ccocvvriririreee e 91,014 91,986 89,051 87,621
Business, Labor, and AgriCulture ............cccccccovvennrnnnene 63,940 66,382 72,124 85,115
PUBliC EQUCALION 5 ... 1,998,450 1,979,880 2,033,259 2,168,896
Transportation °.. . 848,617 756,634 811,088 832,285
Capital Outlay .......ccoveeeririrrccene . 112,569 205,861 173,869 139,488
Debt Service — Principal Retirement ........... 104,298 109,653 124,498 183,911
Debt Service — Interest and Other Charges ..... 70,890 79,367 87,462 89,768
Total EXpenditures .........cccoovrvecerinnninnnn 6,597,787 6,702,566 7,070,039 7,489,813
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures ................... (444,902) (238,493) (16,832) 221,488
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
General Obligation Bonds ISsued ...........ccococvvvierrervrnnenn. 421,200 278,705 — 140,635
Revenue Bonds ISSUE .........ccccovrvreeiieineireeseesieeseenns 114,389 — 16,377 18,430
Refunding Bonds ISSUE .........cccovevriieneeerieeicenecccennns 208,000 381,800 319,230 22,066
Premium on Bonds ISSUEd ............ccerennrninnencnicneieieieenens 29,153 87,756 35,729 12,039
Payment of Current Bond Refunding .........c.ccoocvvvvvvrnnnnn. (208,000) (150,000) (5,050) —
Payment to Refunded Bond Escrow Agent ............cccccueeee. — (279,369) (349,244) (23,212)
Capital Leases/Contracts ISSUE .........ccccvrevveivrererinenennn, — — 11,498 —
Sale of Capital ASSELS .......cvvririiiririeieiere s 16,115 15,412 13,066 18,070
TranSTers IN ..o 763,114 458,734 572,766 852,989
TranSfers OUL ......occvieeceiiiiree s (734,251) (431,833) (555,468) (839,392)
Special Item — Sale of Olympic Park Facilities ............... 58,512 — — —
Special Item — Distribution to Local Governments .......... (29,772) — — —
Prior Period Adjustments and Restatements ..... — — (1,360) —
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) ... 638,460 361,205 57,544 201,625
Net Change in Fund Balances ............ccococevveevnnnne. $ 193,558 $ 122,712 $ 40,712 $ 423,113
Debt Service as a Percentage of Noncapital Expenditures .... 2.81% 3.02 % 3.22% 3.87%

Notes: Due to changes in the State's fund structure initiated when GASB Statement 34 was implemented, the changes in fund balance
information are only available beginning in fiscal year 2002.

Legislative action created the Governor's Office of Economic Development in fiscal year 2006. This action moved activity from the
community and culture function to the general government function.

This schedule has been restated for prior period adjustments. Adjustments were made to the fiscal year and the preceding fiscal year in
which the prior period adjustment was identified.

! From fiscal years 2005 to 2007, tax revenues, specifically sales and use taxes, individual income taxes, and corporate taxes, increased
significantly compared to prior years due to Utah's continued economic improvement. In fiscal year 2009, tax revenues decreased
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Schedule A-4

Fiscal Year
2006 2007 2008 2009

$ 1,915,600 $ 2,109,732 $ 2,031,239 $ 1,761,224
2,324,365 2,589,252 2,560,394 2,340,400
379,624 411,929 410,586 249,177
344,902 366,446 357,664 337,529
316,994 320,204 333,542 354,713
2,524,022 2,480,016 2,574,585 3,207,110
405,013 412,411 468,451 463,248
113,684 120,349 121,882 128,212
156,851 145,985 134,404 172,642
37,521 44,074 68,193 34,141
9,109 23,332 12,884 9,446
116,215 240,988 46,716 (132,523)
239,901 261,617 373,047 382,614
8,883,801 9,526,335 9,493,587 9,307,933
239,838 268,775 319,389 325,076
593,392 627,598 677,234 701,099
205,310 229,198 251,216 255,448
179,622 172,427 196,008 213,038
114,111 119,650 131,261 129,125
1,634,619 1,620,400 1,648,841 1,812,488
43,505 49,064 64,587 60,224
675,267 708,063 793,283 782,650
413,380 406,532 432,955 519,741
140,592 171,014 174,120 178,306
85,231 108,592 132,413 140,453
89,255 91,162 96,072 101,966
2,322,871 2,547,421 2,960,873 3,035,519
975,565 1,221,371 1,472,208 1,694,811
170,748 196,126 193,733 196,204
152,746 159,862 193,292 180,613
82,690 75,149 139,883 64,675
8,118,742 8,772,404 9,877,368 10,391,436
765,059 753,931 (383,781) (1,083,503)
— — 75,000 498,810
_ — 1,557 45,445
— — 2,131 2,010
50,679 47,193 30,824 28,035
935,723 3,721,041 4,550,400 3,606,534
(952,798) (3,674,615) (4,512,711) (3,557,759)
33,604 93,619 147,201 623,075
$ 798,663 $ 847,550 $ (236,580) $ (460,428)

3.11% 2.95 % 3.72% 2.66 %

significantly as the economy slowed. Sales and use tax diversions along with a reduction in the sales tax rate also contributed to this decrease.
2 In fiscal year 2009, federal contracts and grants increased in part due to funding provided by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act.
% In fiscal years 2002 and 2009, the decrease in fair value in investments for the permanent fund created a negative revenue.

* Expenditures for health and environmental quality have increased over the last seven fiscal years due to rising Medicaid program costs.

% From fiscal years 2005 to 2009, public education expenditures increased for both enrollment growth and benefit-related costs for educators.

® Expenditures for Transportation have increased over the last three fiscal years as additional funding through bond proceeds were used to
address the State's transportation infrastructure needs.
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State of Utah

Revenue Base
Last Ten Calendar Years

(Expressed in Thousands)

Calendar Year

1999 2000 2001 2002
Taxable Sales, Services, and Use Tax Purchases
$ 26,499 $ 32,173 $ 35,596 $ 37,667
180,267 202,157 207,660 157,344
421,476 407,857 368,364 315,095
1,539,452 1,543,234 1,587,075 1,369,021
140,231 149,218 144,106 96,434
2,252,281 2,592,628 2,966,872 2,963,647
3,278,676 3,444,614 3,278,275 3,099,989
17,064,458 17,954,684 18,472,120 19,049,964
Finance, Insurance, and Real Estate ............ccocveevvvreviveennee, 449,726 469,097 442,357 457,361
SBIVICES .ottt ettt ettt sas e sae e s besbe e e e sreerenreas 3,900,743 4,276,454 4,267,008 4,157,216
Public AdmMINIiStration ..........cocoeveivvie i 67,973 66,505 67,043 77,846
Prior Period Payments and Refunds ............ccccocevrcnnenen 676,759 506,392 589,713 730,567
Total Taxable Sales, Services and

Use TaX PUIChASES ......c.coeeveveiviiericieicteeere e $ 29,998,541 $ 31,645,013 $ 32,426,189 $ 32,512,151

State Sales TaX RALE ......cccevveveveieiicece e 475 % 475 % 475 % 4,75 %

Personal Income by Industry

Federal Civilian .......ocovoeieiieiecce e $ 1,860,682 $ 2,092,156 $ 2,193,593 $ 2,423,704
Federal Military ...........cccccovvvnee. 415,852 447,703 495,066 631,174
State and Local GOVErNMENt ..........cocveevieieviie e 5,041,634 5,361,261 5,701,905 5,973,292
Forestry, Fishing, and Related Activities ..... e ——— 69,819 64,061 54,705 46,069
MINING Lo 456,432 495,981 550,927 532,637
UBHITIES oottt 319,073 335,693 408,094 459,954
Construction 2,996,429 3,271,568 3,491,766 3,580,465
ManUFACTUFING ....oveveiieeee e 5,327,895 5,648,259 5,927,719 5,718,329
Wholesale Trade .......ccocoveveeeeeeiceicecece e 1,925,470 2,075,701 2,131,879 2,120,316
Retail Trade ......ccoveevvieiiieiece e 3,270,230 3,418,911 3,579,776 3,639,657
Transportation and Warehousing 1,833,166 1,957,340 2,105,772 2,099,374
INFOIMALION ....veiviicieccecceeccee e 1,557,010 1,771,212 1,671,477 1,547,549
Financial, Insurance, Real Estate, Rental, and Leasing ..... 2,926,702 3,096,721 3,553,045 3,774,022
Services 10,613,627 11,695,394 12,253,544 12,749,249
Farm Earnings ... 256,110 201,081 277,134 180,687
OMNEE Lottt ee e en e 10,472,441 11,628,169 12,197,106 12,695,237
Total Personal INCOME .......ccoevvvveieeieicececeeeeeeeenns $ 49,342,572 $ 53,561,211 $ 56,593,508 $ 58,171,715

Highest Income Tax Rate ..........ccoeeriiiiniiineiiieeeas 7.00 % 7.00 % 7.00 % 7.00 %

Sources: Taxable Sales, Services, and Use Tax Purchases — Utah State Tax Commission;
Personal Income by Industry — U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis and the Utah Department
of Workforce Services

! other personal income includes dividends, interest, rents, residence adjustment, government transfers to individuals,
and deduction for social insurance contributions.
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Schedule B-1

Calendar Year

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
$ 41,251 $ 44,957 $ 69,102 $ 75,432 $ 73,621 $ 69,067
141,246 195,448 284,634 407,292 477,342 913,227
305,795 368,876 512,075 711,035 792,084 651,069
1,392,412 1,691,533 2,027,777 2,507,326 2,678,207 2,452,251
89,823 128,218 171,898 201,036 205,763 165,864
2,833,309 3,080,330 3,248,719 3,557,949 3,591,019 3,606,457
3,105,001 3,611,473 4,265,754 5,087,766 5,318,425 4,770,063
19,559,540 21,013,848 22,897,441 25,784,902 27,428,307 27,373,277
390,057 355,012 384,754 412,926 429,446 408,388
4,005,676 4,179,256 4,747,385 5,261,263 5,689,281 6,413,609
93,453 83,973 106,941 114,007 116,614 242,975
602,479 557,951 524,772 674,846 889,925 294,293
$ 32,560,042 $ 35,310,875 $ 39,241,252 $ 44,795,780 $ 47,690,034 $ 47,360,540

475 % 4.75 % 475 % 4.75 % 475 % 4.65 %
$ 2,492,234 $ 2,653,388 $ 2,827,949 $ 3,001,035 $ 3,138,372 $ 3,238,995
785,698 832,917 927,445 905,950 912,409 951,870
6,296,192 6,582,221 6,940,881 7,314,145 7,795,916 8,394,680
50,461 50,788 54,446 61,100 70,750 68,407
540,759 656,558 782,327 1,020,766 1,168,058 1,354,744
366,172 407,838 419,901 473,612 481,972 486,537
3,510,360 3,843,588 4,452,093 5,334,442 5,724,470 5,132,484
6,017,090 6,484,455 6,744,183 7,433,295 7,979,603 8,332,275
2,164,106 2,336,127 2,592,648 2,854,575 3,143,922 3,314,664
3,745,249 4,000,677 4,256,761 4,678,838 5,138,055 5,104,347
2,100,420 2,339,759 2,491,349 2,569,311 2,896,873 2,748,637
1,545,802 1,603,195 1,827,679 1,806,953 1,782,130 1,879,193
3,928,379 4,198,455 4,578,330 4,977,776 5,226,007 5,295,606
14,924,398 16,165,823 17,506,414 19,283,184 20,727,833 22,276,183
208,888 278,957 246,234 110,011 186,047 81,855
10,735,870 11,130,398 13,098,844 13,773,349 13,245,450 14,229,591
$ 59,412,078 $ 63,565,144 $ 69,747,484 $ 75,598,342 $ 79,617,867 $ 82,890,068

7.00 % 7.00 % 7.00 % 6.98 % 6.98 % 5.00 %
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State of Utah

Revenue Payers by Industry — Schedule B-2

Taxable Sales, Services, and Use Tax Purchases

Most Current Calendar Year and Historical Comparison (Dollars Expressed in Thousands)
Calendar Year 1999 Calendar Year 2008

Number Percent Taxable Sales Percent Number Percent Taxable Sales Percent
of Outlets of Total and Purchases of Total of Outlets of Total and Purchases of Total

Agriculture, Forestry, and Fishing .. 437 06% $ 26,499 0.1% 490 05% $ 69,067 0.1%
MiNING ..o 259 0.4 % 180,267 0.6 % 768 0.8 % 913,227 19%
CONSErUCtIoN ......coveveevereireiereeiene 1,518 21% 421,476 14% 1,267 13% 651,069 14%
Manufacturing ........cococeevrvrerenreenns 4,948 6.8 % 1,539,452 5.1% 5,550 5.9 % 2,452,251 5.2 %
Transportation ........cccoceceevrereeenns 451 0.6 % 140,231 0.5 % 427 0.5 % 165,864 0.4 %
Communications and Utilities ........ 476 0.7 % 2,252,281 7.5 % 9,454 10.0% 3,606,457 7.6 %
Wholesale Trade ........cccoeevevvevennens 9,305 128 % 3,278,676 109 % 8,767 9.2% 4,770,063 10.1%
Retail .....cccccovvviiiiie e 24,989 34.4% 17,064,458 56.9% 32,420 34.2% 27,373,277 57.8 %
Finance, Insurance, and

Real EState ........c.cccoveeveievieeeienns 1,528 21% 449,726 15% 2,835 3.0% 408,388 0.9 %
SEIVICES ..voveviieteiee e 18,654 25.7% 3,900,743 13.0% 18,702 19.7% 6,413,609 13.5%
Public Administration ..................... 105 0.1% 67,973 0.2% 143 0.2 % 242,975 0.5 %
Prior Period Payments, Refunds ..... 9,960 13.7% 676,759 23% 14,033 147 % 294,293 0.6 %

Total Number of Filers and
Total Taxable Sales, Services,

and Use Tax Purchases .......... 72,630 100.0% $29,998,541 100.0% 94,856 100.0% $47,360,540  100.0 %
4.75 % except 2.00 % for 4.65 % except 2.00 % for
State Sales Tax Rate ..........cc.ceveenee. Communications and Utilities Communications and Utilities

Source: Utah State Tax Commission

Note: Due to confidentiality issues, the names of the ten largest revenue payers are not available. The categories
presented are intended to provide alternative information regarding the sources of the State's revenue. The most
current period available for taxable sales, services, and use tax purchases is calendar year 2008.
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State of Utah

Revenue Payers — Personal Income Tax Schedule B-3
Most Current Calendar Year and Historical Comparison
(Dollars Expressed in Thousands)

Calendar Year 1998 Calendar Year 2007
Number Percent Tax Percent Number Percent Tax Percent
of Filers of Total Liability of Total of Filers of Total Liability of Total
Adjusted Gross Income Class

$10,000 and under ...... 194,218 232%  $ 5,432 0.4 % 178,848 170%  $ 2,508 0.1%
$10,001-20,000 .......... 151,704 18.2 % 40,857 31% 156,467 14.9 % 29,863 1.2%
$20,001-30,000 .......... 116,065 13.9% 77,533 5.8 % 140,155 13.3% 74,578 31%
$30,001-40,000 .......... 90,906 10.9 % 103,654 7.8% 109,854 10.4 % 105,190 43%
$40,001-50,000 .......... 74,243 8.9% 122,574 9.2% 89,357 8.5 % 128,271 53%
$50,001-75,000 .......... 118,305 142 % 297,717 225% 164,730 15.6 % 377,123 15.5 %
$75,001-100,000 ........ 46,511 5.6 % 177,368 134 % 95,903 9.1% 347,784 143 %
$100,001-250,000 ...... 36,326 43 % 243,241 18.4 % 99,345 9.4 % 637,086 26.2%
Over $250,000 ............ 7,120 0.8 % 257,516 19.4 % 18,683 1.8 % 732,382 30.0 %
Total ..o 835,398 100.0%  $ 1,325,892 100.0 % 1,053,342 100.0%  $ 2,434,785 100.0 %

Source: Utah State Tax Commission, for full-year residents only.

Note: Due to confidentiality issues, the names of the ten largest revenue payers are not available. The categories
presented are intended to provide alternative information regarding the sources of the State's revenue. The most
current period available for personal income tax information is calendar year 2007.
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State of Utah

Personal Income Tax Rates Schedule B-4
Last Ten Calendar Years
Calendar Year
1999 to 2000 * 2001 to 2005 * 2006 to 2007 2 * 2008 *
Single and Married Filing Separately
Tax Rate ....ocovveeeiiivieeceens 2.30 % 2.30 % 2.30 % —
Taxable Income Levels .. $0-750 $0-863 $0-1,000 —
Tax Rate .....covevvevivviieeeens 3.30% 3.30 % 3.30% —
Taxable Income Levels .. $751-1,500 $864-1,726 $1,001-2,000 —
Tax Rate .....covveeevviveieceies 4.20 % 4,20 % 4.20 % —
Taxable Income Levels .. $1,501-2,250 $1,727-2,588 $2,001-3,000 —
Tax Rate .....ccoveeevviveeecens 5.20% 5.20% 5.20% —
Taxable Income Levels .. $2,251-3,000 $2,589-3,450 $3,001-4,000 —
Tax Rate .....ccoevevieviieeees 6.00 % 6.00 % 6.00 % —
Taxable Income Levels .. $3,001-3,750 $3,451-4,313 $4,001-5,500 —
Tax Rate .....covevvvvcvieeeens 7.00 % 7.00 % 6.98 % —
Taxable Income Levels .. Over $3,750 Over $4,313 Over $5,500 —
FlatTax Rate ...........cooeuvee. — — 5.35% 5.00 %
Married Filing Joint, Head of Household, and Qualifying Widow(er)
Tax Rate ....cccocvvvveveiiieeie 2.30% 2.30 % 2.30% —
Taxable Income Levels .. $0-1,500 $0-1,726 $0-2,000 —
Tax Rate ....cccocvvvvvveieiiee 3.30% 3.30 % 3.30% —
Taxable Income Levels .. $1,501-3,000 $1,727-3,450 $2,001-4,000 —
Tax Rate .....ccoceeevvvveeeeinns 4.20% 4.20 % 4.20% —
Taxable Income Levels .. $3,001-4,500 $3,451-5,176 $4,001-6,000 —
Tax Rate ..ocoeevveicveeciieens 5.20% 5.20 % 5.20% —
Taxable Income Levels .. $4,501-6,000 $5,177-6,900 $6,001-8,000 —
Tax Rate ....cccocvvvvvciceee 6.00 % 6.00 % 6.00 % —
Taxable Income Levels .. $6,001-7,500 $6,901-8,626 $8,001-11,000 —
Tax Rate ...coeevvveeiivieciiieens 7.00 % 7.00 % 6.98 % —
Taxable Income Levels .. Over $7,500 Over $8,626 Over $11,000 —
FlatTax Rate ........cccoeeueeee — — 5.35% 5.00 %

Source: Utah State Tax Commission

Note: The Utah State Legislature can raise the income tax rates by legislation, no vote of the populace is
required; Utah Constitution , Article XIII, Section 5.

! The Legislature passed structural reductions in the state income tax rate effective for calendar year 1997 and
increased the income levels effective for calendar years 2001 through 2005.

% The Legislature increased income levels and lowered the maximum tax rate effective for calendar year 2006.

% The Legislature passed an option for the taxpayer to use the single rate of 5.35% or the tax tables for calendar

year 2007.

* The Legislature passed a single tax rate for all taxpayers for calendar year 2008.
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State of Utah

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Eight Fiscal Years

(Expressed in Millions)

Fiscal Year
2002 2003 2004 2005
Governmental Activities
General Obligation Bonds ...........cccccovieereiieveenisieeieniinnns $ 1,474 $ 1,624 $ 1,510 $ 1515
State Building Ownership Authority
Lease Revenue Bonds .........c.ccceveneee. 342 332 336 309
Capital Leases ......cccceevreerererencrrennene 12 13 23 21
Total Governmental Activities 1,828 1,969 1,869 1,845
Business-type Activities
Student Assistance Programs Revenue Bonds ................... 1,227 1,311 1,398 1,545
Water Loan Revenue Bonds .........ccccccoeevveeeececce e, 4 3 1 —
State Building Ownership Authority
Lease Revenue BONdsS ........c.ccceeeeveeeieieeeieeceecie e 23 22 23 31
Total Business-type ACtIVItIeS ........ccccoeenerricicieneene 1,254 1,336 1,422 1,576
Total Primary Government .............ccceveeeeverrnenens $ 3,082 $ 3,305 $ 3,291 $ 3421
Debt as a Percentage of Personal Income L.......ccccvvvvvnene. 5.30 % 5.56 % 5.18% 4,91 %
Amount of Debt Per Capita (expressed in dollars) ............. $ 1,307 $ 1,369 $ 1,333 $ 1,343

Net General Obligation Bonded Debt
General Obligation Bonds ...........cccccoveveeiesiieeriiicceesinnns $ 1,474 $ 1,624 $ 1,510 $ 1515

Less: Restricted Debt Service Funds (6) — — —
Net General Obligation Bonded Debt $ 1,468 $ 1,624 $ 1510 $ 1,515
Net General Obligation Bonded Debt as a Percentage of
Taxable Property Value 2.........cccccoooovevoeeeeceeeceeeenernn, 1.22% 1.29% 1.17% 1.12%
Amount of Net General Obligation Bonded
Debt Per Capita (expressed in dollars) *.........ccccocoueenn.eee. $ 623 $ 673 $ 612 $ 595

Sources: Utah State Administrative Services, Division of Finance; Utah State Tax Commission — Property Tax; and
Utah Governor's Office of Planning and Budget — Demographics.

Note: Only principal debt is included. Not included are premiums, discounts, and deferred amounts on refundings.
Ratios of outstanding debt by type, presented separately by governmental and business-type activities, are only available
beginning in fiscal year 2002 when the State implemented GASB Statement 34.

! Ratios are calculated using personal income and population data. See Schedule D-1 for personal income and population
data.

% The percentage of Net General Obligation Bonded Debt based upon taxable property value is presented for comparative
purposes. The State does not presently levy ad valorem property taxes for General Obligation Bonded Debt, but is authorized
to do so in accordance with Title 59, Chapter 2, Part 901 of the Utah Code . See Schedule C-3 for taxable property value.
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Schedule C-1

Fiscal Year
2006 2007 2008 2009

$ 1,377 $ 1,237 $ 1,162 $ 1,493
293 274 162 149

20 18 19 19

1,690 1,529 1,343 1,661
2,138 2,138 2,165 2,235

38 37 50 74

2,176 2,175 2,215 2,309

$ 3,866 $ 3,704 $ 3,558 $ 3,970
511% 4.65 % 4.29% 4.85 %

$ 1,478 $ 1,372 $ 1,290 $ 1,415
$ 1,377 $ 1,237 $ 1,162 $ 1,493
$ 1,377 $ 1,237 $ 1,162 $ 1,493
0.95% 0.73% 0.58 % 0.66 %

$ 527 $ 458 $ 421 $ 532
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State of Utah

Other Long-Term Liabilities
Last Eight Fiscal Years
(Expressed in Thousands)

Fiscal Year
2002 2003 2004 2005
Governmental Activities
General Obligation Bonds ...........ccccevvveiveireiisiiereeseeseas $ 1,474,400 $ 1,623,680 $ 1,510,160 $ 1,514,510
State Building Ownership Authority
Lease Revenue Bonds ..........cc.oeuenee. 342,378 331,537 335,941 308,898
Net Unamortized Premiums 27,642 107,435 108,594 101,395
Deferred Amount on Refunding ..........ccococvvevivcieicnicieiens — (14,038) (26,966) (25,361)
Capital LEASES ...cvvveeereerieieirisieie e 15,026 12,846 22,902 20,931
Contracts Payable * — — — 8,527
Compensated AbSENCES “......ccccevereruerenne. 135,541 134,746 139,594 140,029
Postemployment Benefits * 213,633 216,442 240,538 —
ClAIMS et 126,709 43,659 40,423 44,673
Pollution Remediation Obligation * — — — —
Arbitrage Liability .......ccccoiininiinieee 99 103 — —
Net Other Post Employment Benefit Obligation ................. — — — —
Total Governmental ACtiVIties ......cc.cccvvvevvvieiiiiiecieinenns 2,335,428 2,456,410 2,371,186 2,113,602
Business-type Activities
REVENUE BONAS ...t 1,231,460 1,313,605 1,398,520 1,544,830
State Building Ownership Authority
Lease RevenUE BONGS .........coceecieeeieeiiie it 22,858 22,341 23,330 30,672
Net Unamortized Premiums ........... 269 265 237 1,061
Deferred Amount on Refunding .... — — — (464)
Capital Leases .......ccovvererrveeiirnnnas 96 — — —
Contracts/Notes Payable ... — — — —
Claims and Uninsured Liabilities ..........cccooorvvvereivieniiennnn — — 5,201 6,025
Arbitrage Liability ......cccooovveieiinreeeee e 36,830 52,884 61,766 66,411
Total Business-type ACHIVILIeS ......c.cccvvereeiernenecne, 1,291,513 1,389,095 1,489,054 1,648,535
Total Primary Government
Other Long-term Liabilities .........c.cccccoevevirevinnne, $ 3,626,941 $ 3,845,505 $ 3,860,240 $ 3,762,137

Note: Details regarding the liabilities listed above can be found in Note 10. Long-term Liabilities in the financial statements.

! Beginning in 2008 the Pollution Remediation Obligation is no longer reported in the financial statements as part of
Contracts Payable under Governmental Activites. This obligation is now being reported as Pollution Remediation Obligation
per the implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 49, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations.

2 During 2009, a new evaluation was performed in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences and as a result the total liability decreased.

3 Beginning in 2005 the Postemployment Benefits liability is no longer reported in the financial statements in preparation for

the implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 45, Accounting and Financial
Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions.
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Schedule C-2

Fiscal Year

2006 2007 2008 2009
$ 1,377,390 $ 1,237,170 $ 1,161,510 $ 1,492,620
293,226 273,538 161,614 148,654
83,347 66,581 51,011 80,962
(21,546) (17,732) (13,621) (10,151)
19,644 18,228 18,769 19,210
7,936 6,941 559 512
148,762 185,630 186,581 162,689
46,725 44,755 41,285 43,650
_ — 7,842 7,687
— 109 — —
— — — 3,918
1,955,484 1,815,220 1,615,550 1,949,751
2,138,085 2,137,655 2,165,180 2,235,322
37,814 36,552 50,246 73,676
988 879 1,117 1,491
(415) (365) (318) (267)
— — — 297,381
4,960 4,678 5,786 14,941
67,845 72,487 65,945 57,782
2,249,277 2,251,886 2,287,956 2,680,326
$ 4,204,761 $ 4,067,106 $ 3,903,506 $ 4,630,077
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State of Utah

Legal Debt Margin
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Expressed in Millions)

Fiscal Year
2000 2001 2002 2003
Taxable Property, Taxable Value L........cccccoovivinvercereeenenn. $ 105,149 $ 112,218 $ 120,332 $ 125,437
Taxable Property, Fair Market Value ™........c...cccccoevevvrenennnn $ 142,192 $ 152,329 $ 163,186 $ 170,776
Debt Limit (Fair Market Value times 1.5%) .........cccocevveernann. 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50%
Debt Limit AMOUNT .......coovviiiiiiceeee e 2,133 2,285 2,448 2,562
Net General Obligation Bonded Debt 2 e, 1,212 1,146 1,498 1,714
Legal Debt Margin ...........coceevveevcrerniieeeeeieee e $ 921 $ 1,139 $ 950 $ 848
Net General Obligation Bonded Debt
As a Percentage of the Debt Limit Amount ...........c.ccoevevnnnee 56.82 % 50.15 % 61.19 % 66.90 %

Source: Utah State Tax Commission.

Note: Article XIV, Section 5 of the Utah Constitution authorizes general obligation debt for purposes as authorized by the
Legislature. Section 1 of the Article limits outstanding state general obligation debt to 1.5 percent of the fair market value of

the taxable property in the State. Net General Obligation Bonded Debt includes premiums, discounts, and deferred amounts
on refundings.

! Taxable property is assessed January 1 of each year. The value used for the fiscal year limitation is from the prior calendar
year; assessed values as of January 1, 2008, are used for fiscal year 2009.

2 Prior to fiscal year 2002, only principal debt is included; not included are premiums, discounts and deferred amounts on
refundings.

Statutory Debt Limit
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Expressed in Thousands)

Fiscal Year
2000 2001 2002 2003
Appropriations Limitation Amount L $ 3,673,543 $ 3,798,512 $ 4,176,703 $ 4,150,684
Limit (Appropriations Limitation Amount times
applicable percentage) e 20.00% 20.00% 20.00% 20.00%
Statutory Debt Limit Amount .........ccccoeevvieveieieienenn 734,709 759,702 835,341 830,137
Net General Obligation Bonded Debt ...........ccccccevviivieivienann, 1,212,325 1,146,000 1,498,371 1,713,755
Less: Exempt Highway Construction Bonds ....................... (908,000) (908,000) (1,000,450) (1,020,049)
Net General Obligation Bonded Debt
Subject to Statutory Debt Limit .........ccccovvrevrnnenen 304,325 238,000 497,921 693,706
Additional General Obligation Debt
INCUrTing Capacity .....c.coevevevrerereeiieere e $ 430,384 $ 521,702 $ 337,420 $ 136,431

Source: Utah State Administrative Services, Division of Finance.

Notes: Article X1V, Section 5 of the Utah Constitution authorizes general obligation debt for purposes as authorized by the
Legislature. In addition, Title 63, Chapter 38c of the Utah Code limits outstanding state general obligation debt to not
exceed the applicable percentage (unless approved by more than two-thirds of both houses of the Legislature) of that fiscal
year's appropriations limit. Net General Obligation Bonded Debt includes premiums, discounts, and deferred amounts on
refundings.

! The 2004 Legislature made changes to the calculation of the appropriations limit which also necessitated changing the
applicable percentage from 20 to 45 percent, effective for fiscal year 2004.
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Schedule C-3

Fiscal Year
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
$ 129,345 $ 135,827 $ 144519 $ 168,812 $ 201,774 $ 224,689
$ 176,541 $ 185,620 $ 198,983 $ 233,013 $ 282,176 $ 311,525
1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50%
2,648 2,784 2,985 3,495 4,233 4,673
1,589 1,588 1,437 1,284 1,198 1,563
$ 1,059 $ 1,196 $ 1,548 $ 2,211 $ 3,035 $ 3,110
60.01 % 57.04 % 48.14 % 36.74 % 28.30 % 33.45%
Schedule C-4
Fiscal Year
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
$ 1,856,205 $ 1,956,584 $ 2,099,609 $ 2,276,693 $ 2,477,629 $ 2,544,948
45.00% 45.00% 45.00% 45.00% 45.00% 45.00%
835,292 880,463 944,824 1,024,512 1,114,933 1,145,227
1,588,810 1,587,804 1,436,845 1,284,023 1,198,172 1,562,815
(980,811) (957,093) (877,979) (790,567) (763,583) (1,079,270)
607,999 630,711 558,866 493,456 434,589 483,545
$ 227,293 $ 249,752 $ 385,958 $ 531,056 $ 680,344 $ 661,682
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State of Utah

Pledged Revenue Bond Coverage Schedule C-5
Last Eight Fiscal Years
(Expressed in Thousands)

Less Net
Fiscal Gross Operating Available Debt Service
Year Revenues Expenses 2 Revenue Principal Interest Coverage 8
Water Loans *
2009 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — —
2008 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — —
2007 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — —
2006 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — —
2005 $ 9,796 $ 8,611 $ 1185 $ 1,060 $ 37 1.08
2004 $ 9,160 $ 6,613 $ 2,547 $ 1,580 $ 117 1.50
2003 $ 8,975 $ 6,873 $ 2102 $ 1,495 $ 201 1.24
2002 $ 9,132 $ 5,716 $ 3416 $ 4,540 $ 465 0.68
Student Assistance Programs °

2009 $ 84,465 $ 25,658 $ 58,807 $ 121,358 $ 62,839 0.32
2008 $ 129,255 $ 19,682 $ 109,573 $ 72,145 $ 98,154 0.64
2007 $ 146,108 $ 33211 $ 112,897 $ 430 $ 97,729 1.15
2006 $ 118,044 $ 37,810 $ 80,234 $ 40,420 $ 64,807 0.76
2005 $ 83,093 $ 31,944 $ 51,149 $ 3,710 $ 33,404 1.38
2004 $ 67,550 $ 35645 $ 31,905 $ 43,640 $ 18,797 0.51
2003 $ 69,561 $ 41,346 $ 28215 $ 36,110 $ 23,507 0.47
2002 $ 72451 $ 22216 $ 50,235 $ 7,540 $ 29,367 1.36

Notes: Details regarding the State's outstanding bonds can be found in Note 10. Long-term Liabilities in the financial
statements.

Due to changes in the State’s fund structure initiated when GASB Statement 34 was implemented, pledged revenue
bond coverage is only available beginning in fiscal year 2002.

! Revenues for Water Loans are primarily interest on revolving loan receivables. Revenues for Student Assistance
Programs are primarily interest on student loans and federal allowances.

2 Operating Expenses do not include interest, depreciation, or amortization expenses.
% Coverage equals net available revenue divided by debt service.

* As of fiscal year 2005, the State does not have any outstanding revolving loan recapitalization bonds issued for the
State's Water Loan Programs.

> Only the Student Loan Purchase Program bonds are presented.
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State of Utah

Demographic and Economic Indicators Schedule D-1
Last Ten Calendar Years

Population (in Thousands) Unemployment Rate Utah
Calendar Utah u.S. Net

Year Number Change Number Change Utah U.S. Migration
2000 2,247 25% 282,217 1.1% 3.4% 4.0% 18,612
2001 2,306 2.6 % 285,226 1.1% 4.4% 4.8% 23,848
2002 2,358 23% 288,126 1.0% 5.8% 5.8% 17,299
2003 2,414 2.4% 290,796 09% 5.7 % 6.0 % 18,568
2004 2,469 23% 293,638 1.0% 5.0% 55% 18,367
2005 2,547 32% 296,507 1.0% 42 % 51% 40,647
2006 2,615 2.7 % 299,200 09% 3.0% 4.6 % 28,730
2007 2,700 3.3% 302,040 09% 2.7% 4.6 % 44,252

2008 2,758 2.1% 304,992 1.0% 3.4% 5.8% 16,648

2009 (est.) 2,805 1.7% 307,979 1.0% 6.5 % 9.2% 6,000

Personal Income (in Millions) Per Capita Income (in Dollars)
Calendar Utah u.S. Utah U.S.

Year Amount Change Amount Change Amount Change Amount Change
2000 $ 53,561 8.5 % $ 8,429,675 8.1% $23,837 5.9% $27,869 (0.3)%
2001 $ 56,594 5.7% $ 8,724,125 35% $24,542 3.0% $30,587 9.8 %
2002 $58,172 2.8% $ 8,881,900 1.8% $24,670 0.5% $30,826 0.8%
2003 $59,412 2.1% $ 9,163,600 32% $24,611 (0.2)% $31,512 22%
2004 $ 63,565 7.0% $ 9,727,200 6.2 % $25,745 4.6 % $33,127 51%
2005 $69,744 9.7 % $ 10,269,750 5.6 % $ 27,383 6.4 % $ 34,636 4.6 %
2006 $ 75,598 8.4 % $ 10,993,900 71% $ 28,909 5.6 % $ 36,744 6.1%
2007 $79,619 53% $ 11,894,000 8.2% $ 29,489 20% $39,379 72%
2008 $82,890 41% $ 12,239,000 29% $ 30,054 1.9% $ 40,129 1.9%
2009 (est.) $81,812 (1.3)% $ 11,973,000 (2.2)% $29,166 (3.0)% $ 38,876 (3.1)%

Source: Population—Utah Population Estimates Committee at July 1 each year. The 2009 estimate is from the
Utah Revenue Assumption Committee.

Source: Unemployment Rate—Utah Department of Workforce Service. The 2009 estimate is from the Utah
Revenue Assumption Committee.

Source: Utah Net Migration—Utah Population Estimates Committee at July 1 each year. The 2009 estimate is
from the Utah Revenue Assumption Committee.

Source: Personal Income—U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis, and Utah
Department of Workforce Services. The 2009 estimate is from the Utah Revenue Assumption Committee.

Note: Per Capita Income is calculated by dividing total personal income by population. Amounts may not be
exact due to rounding.
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State of Utah

Principal Employers Schedule D-2
Most Current Calendar Year and Historical Comparison
Calendar Year 1999 Calendar Year 2008
Percent Percent
Number of of All Number of of All
Entity Name Employees Rank Employees Employees Rank Employees

Intermountain Health Care (IHC) .............. 20,000 + 1 2.2%

State of Utah ...c.cocooveeiiiccicccce 20,000 + 1 21% 20,000 + 2 1.9%

University of Utah (includes Hospital) ...... 15,000 — 19,999 2 1.7% 15,000 - 19,999 3 15%

Brigham Young University ...........cccccevee. 15,000 — 19,999 3 1.6% 15,000 — 19,999 4 1.4%

Wal-Mart Stores .......cccoeevverieireriieriennnns 15,000 — 19,999 5 1.3%

Hill Air Force Base 7,000 - 9,999 4 0.9% 10,000 — 14,999 6 1.0%

Granite School District ........cc.cccovevveienienns 7,000 - 9,999 5 0.8% 7,000 - 9,999 7 0.8%

Jordan School District ...........ccccocevviiriennnn. 7,000 - 9,999 6 0.7% 7,000 - 9,999 8 0.7%

Davis County School District ...........c....... 7,000 - 9,999 9 0.6 % 7,000 - 9,999 9 0.7%

Utah State University ........c.ccccoeveevrvrrerennn 5,000 - 6,999 8 0.6 % 7,000 - 9,999 10 0.6 %
CONVEIGYS v 5,000 - 6,999 7 0.7%
Smith's Food King .......ccoceevveviiiiiiiienins 5,000 - 6,999 10 0.6 %

Total Employees of
Principal Employers .........cccccovvveene. 106,200 10.3% 146,600 12.1%

Source: Utah Department of Workforce Services.

Note: Number of employees is based on a calendar year average.

220



This page intentionally left blank.

221



State of Utah

Composition of Labor Force
Last Nine Calendar Years

Nonagricultural Jobs

GOVEIMMENT ..ottt
MINING oot
CONSIIUCHION ...vovviiccie e
Manufacturing
Trade, Transportation, and Utilities ...........ccccccveriiieriennnn.
INFOrMALION ...
Financial ACIVILY ..o
Professional and BUSINESS SEIVICeS .........ccocevvrverveiesreeerennans
Education and Health Services .........c..coovvveviveieiieniciesenas
Leisure and HOSPItality ........cccovevievieiieisescesee e
Other SEIVICES ...vcviveiiiieietiieece e

Total Nonagricultural JObS ..........ccooevviierieiiiicine,

Civilian Labor FOICE .....c.oviiiiiiiiiisc e
Total EMPIOYEd ....cvceieiiiieeecceee e
UNemMPIOYEd ......ooveiiiiecc e

Unemployment RAte .......c.ccovvierieiieiieseeseee e

Source: Utah Department of Workforce Services

Note: The U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis switched from the Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) to the North
American Industry Classification System (NAICS) beginning in calendar year 2001. The Utah Department of Workforce
Services provided calendar year 2000 data that conforms to the NAICS groupings.

Calendar Year

222

2000 2001 2002 2003
185,349 190,117 195,246 196,537
7,291 7,209 6,880 6,670
72,309 71,620 67,838 67,599
125,784 122,092 113,873 112,291
219,823 219,954 216,032 213,970
35,927 33,514 31,004 30,016
58,731 62,214 63,352 64,674
139,533 136,646 131,912 131,910
104,855 109,520 113,696 118,379
95,391 98,328 100,943 99,634
29,886 30,471 32,970 32,451
1,074,879 1,081,685 1,073,746 1,074,131
1,104,208 1,159,433 1,181,601 1,207,436
1,068,371 1,108,547 1,113,645 1,139,129
35,837 50,886 68,046 68,307

34% 44% 5.8 % 5.7 %



Schedule D-3

Calendar Year
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2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
198,877 202,307 204,483 206,868 211,710
7,083 8,473 10,024 11,034 12,506
72,631 81,685 95,164 103,450 90,469
114,765 117,246 123,064 127,695 125,852
219,212 225,938 234,797 245,672 247,978
30,272 32,105 32,541 32,448 30,747
65,040 67,583 71,469 74,739 74,050
138,220 146,704 154,834 161,022 162,194
123,282 128,605 134,410 139,991 146,617
102,031 104,223 108,477 112,821 114,813
32,915 33,451 34,651 35,542 35,534
1,104,328 1,148,320 1,203,914 1,251,282 1,252,470
1,237,055 1,276,378 1,318,473 1,361,768 1,383,743
1,174,797 1,223,248 1,279,453 1,325,480 1,336,156
62,258 53,130 39,020 36,288 47,587

5.0% 42% 3.0% 2.7% 3.4%



State of Utah

Public Education Student Enrollment (K-12)
Last Ten Academic Years

Academic Year

1999-2000 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03
EIBMENTAIY ...vovvcieiiciceee s 254,922 256,429 259,328 262,168
SECONUANY ..vveviieiieieieic et 221,052 218,840 218,473 218,975
Total All Grades 475,974 475,269 477,801 481,143
Source: State of Utah Office of Education
Note: Public Education Student Enrollment count is based on October 1% counts.
Public Higher Education Enrollment
Last Ten Academic Years
Academic Year
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04
University of Utah ..o 26,180 27,664 29,992 29,936
Utah State UNIVErSity ......ccccoeirveiirineeerrseien e 21,490 23,001 22,848 23,474
Weber State UNIVErSItY .......cccoeiiiiriiniiie e 16,378 17,258 18,654 19,167
Southern Utah UNIVErSity .......cccooereiiennieneieieeeee e 5,963 6,095 5,881 6,048
Salt Lake Community College ........ccccovreiinencieieneiecene 22,118 24,220 23,873 24,154
Utah Valley State COlEge .......coeveiereieeieeceeere e 20,946 22,609 23,609 23,803
Dixie State College of Utah e 6,515 7,255 7,473 7,682
College of Eastern Utah ... 2,704 2,746 2,646 2,692
SNOW COIIEGE .. 4,092 4,096 3,768 4,036
Utah College of Applied Technology 37,443 37,210 37,660 35,549
Total All INSLIEULIONS ....veeeeeicececece e 163,829 172,154 176,404 176,541

Source: Utah State Board of Regents

Note: Utah Higher Education Enroliment count is based on fall semester third week headcounts.

! Dixie State College of Utah included summer term headcounts for academic years prior to 2006-07.
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Schedule D-4

Academic Year
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2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09
266,666 273,163 283,972 295,252 314,676 322,704
220,272 222,519 226,040 230,835 236,694 240,569
486,938 495,682 510,012 526,087 551,370 563,273
Schedule D-5
Academic Year

2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10
30,479 30,558 30,511 29,797 30,228 31,407
23,908 23,107 23,623 24,421 23,925 25,065
18,875 18,334 18,642 18,306 21,674 23,331
6,672 6,859 7,029 7,057 7,516 8,066
25,711 25,551 25,129 25,144 29,866 33,774
24,149 24,487 23,305 23,840 26,696 28,765
8,564 9,114 5,967 5,944 6,443 7,911
2,471 2,179 2,220 2,444 2,082 2,173
4,108 4,113 4,179 3,745 3,798 4,368
25,817 25,199 19,389 19,595 20,321 18,831
170,754 169,501 159,994 160,293 172,549 183,691



State of Utah

Full-Time Equivalent State Employees by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year

2000 2001 2002 2003

General Government

Government Operations e 1,302 1,321 1,344 1,297

TaxX COMMISSION ....cuvviiiiiiiiiieieiriie e 859 884 872 835

AL OThET oot 144 144 145 144
Human Services and Youth COrrections ...........c.coceevrevveenne 4,530 4,605 4,706 4,543
AdUIt COITECLIONS ... 2,169 2,243 2,253 2,159
Public Safety

Department of Public Safety ...........ccoevvvieiciiiiciice 1,105 1,106 1,171 1,166

Utah National Guard ...........cccooveienineinceceeee 180 202 223 227
StALE COUIMS ..ot 1,111 1,127 1,125 1,053
Health and Environmental Quality

Department of Health .........cccccooeiviiiiice 1,101 1,144 1,189 1,207

Department of Environmental Quality ...........ccccccvervienae, 396 404 416 408
Employment and Family SErvices ..........ccocovvvvviveriiiirieinanens 1,702 1,772 1,850 1,889
Natural RESOUICES .....c.cvviiveiiiieiieieeee e 1,192 1,191 1,219 1,215
COmMUNity and CUUTE “oovvvveeeeooeeeeeeeeeeeeeec e 287 302 297 267
Business, Labor, and Agriculture ........cc.ccooeevevvvenrcienrenenne, 663 688 701 701
Education

Public Education SUPPOIt ......c.ccovvievieieiiereeseeceiee e 1,042 1,061 1,066 1,055

Higher Education SUPPOIt ........cccovvveieenieiiiiceses e 160 158 160 147
TranSPOrtation ........ccveevveiiiiiiereiee e 1,888 1,895 1,951 1,871

Total Full-time Equivalent State Employees ............. 19,831 20,247 20,688 20,184

Source: Utah State Administrative Services, Division of Finance

! In fiscal year 20086, the Legislative action created the Governor's Office of Economic Development; this action shifted
employees from community and culture to the government operations function.
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Schedule E-1

Fiscal Year
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
1,295 1,292 1,345 2,074 2,114 2,084
846 844 852 764 777 763
127 132 147 152 157 154
4,630 4,697 4,644 4,521 4,546 4,464
2,228 2,234 2,319 2,316 2,377 2,439
1,211 1,182 1,159 1,151 1,153 1,202
252 245 247 246 237 239
1,056 1,073 1,077 1,077 1,112 1,096
1,271 1,289 1,295 1,231 991 988
397 403 406 382 385 383
1,993 1,999 1,931 1,729 2,030 2,062
1,266 1,273 1,319 1,304 1,330 1,361
262 251 188 187 188 191
703 712 716 706 722 715
1,088 1,129 1,176 1,159 1,168 1,178
154 177 200 230 223 205
1,829 1,762 1,768 1,691 1,716 1,685

20,608 20,694 20,789 20,920 21,226 21,209
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State of Utah

Operating Indicators by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

General Government
Government Operations
Construction Projects Managed ..........ccoccovveveencieneneneene
Tax Commission
Percent of Data Managed Electronically ............cc.ccco.......
Number of Returns Filed Electronically ..........c.ccccccovvnen.
Motor Vehicle Registrations (in thousands) ...........cc.c.......

Human Services and Youth Corrections
Food Stamp RECIPIENES L.......coevveeeieeeeiereerceecees e
Percent of Population ............cccoceoienniicnnencce
Juveniles, Daily Average in Justice System Placement .....
Rate of Recommitment to Juvenile Custody ................

Adult Corrections
Incarcerated Offenders L ..........ccocueiveieierierierceee e,
Supervised Offenders L............ccoceiecueieceeeeeeeeee e
Utah Incarceration Rate (per 100,000 population)
US Incarceration Rate (per 100,000 population) ...............

State Courts 2
State Court FiliNgs ....occovveieineiececese e
State Court DISPOSILIONS ..........covrereririeiene e

Health
Children's Health Insurance Program Enrollment .............
Medicaid Eligible (unduplicated) .........ccccooevvrinnencennne.
Percent of Population ...........ccccovverinncieniiecnee

Employment and Family Services
Individuals Registered for Employment ..............ccccooeuenee.
Percent Who Entered Employment .........cccocoeovnninne.

Natural Resources
Hatchery Fish, Pounds Raised ..........cccccoviieineneicinenne
Hunting and Fishing Licenses Sold (in thousands) * =.......
State Park Visitations (in thousands) ..........cccceceeevererennne

Business, Labor, and Agriculture
Department of Commerce
Licenses and Registrations Issued “...........c.ccccocovevevuernnns.
Department of Agriculture and Food
Dairy Farm INSPECtioNns .........cccceoveereieneneneneenesese e
Pounds of Turkey Inspected and Graded (in thousands) ...
Gas Pumps and Scales Inspected ..........ccoovevnerciencneneene

Higher Education
Number of Certificates and Degrees Awarded ...................

Transportation
Percent of Roads Which are Deficient (see page 126) ®.....
Vehicles Weighed or Inspected (in thousands) ..................

Fiscal Year
2000 2001 2002 2003
654 638 757 886
15.7 % 20.1 % 27.3% 33.5%
146,914 191,565 263,337 325,077
2,382 2,383 2,464 2,524
171,872 181,501 209,209 233,836
7.6 % 7.9 % 8.9 % 9.7 %
1,355 1,288 1,231 1,208
10.2 % 10.2 % 9.8 % 10.3%
5,573 5,590 5,434 5,687
10,690 11,025 11,392 11,514
254 230 233 240
478 470 476 482
374,700 350,633 342,794 313,340
418,277 354,961 338,551 323,235
14,612 21,366 24,674 24,854
222,360 235,813 249,447 249,745
9.9 % 10.2% 10.6 % 10.3%
264,113 252,520 263,218 259,914
N/A N/A 62 % 62 %
N/A 862,442 810,513 887,546
N/A 408,587 373,381 360,285
6,555 6,075 5,640 4573
243,661 249,927 251,982 250,295
1,601 1,369 1,453 1,145
118,837 81,279 88,989 88,780
14,046 20,434 21,602 23,913
21,114 22,327 25,026 25,999
10.7 % 8.3% 6.6 % 6.4 %
4,473 5,467 5,647 5,462

Source: Various departments of the State and Utah State Board of Regents.

Note: N/A = Not Available

! Data is provided on a calendar year basis.

2 State Courts includes filings and dispositions for the appellate, district, and juvenile courts; it does not include the justice

courts which are operated by cities and counties.

% Includes only licenses for elk, deer, fishing and all other big game. Year 2009 is an estimate.

* Includes professional, occupational, real estate, and securities licenses. Does not include corporation and other business

registrations or filings.
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Schedule E-2

Fiscal Year
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
844 782 828 909 946 841
421 % 48.3 % 54.4 % 58.9 % 62.9 % 65.3 %
409,249 482,443 565,851 640,365 725,293 748,879
2,657 2,732 2,818 2,955 2,779 2,759
255,284 263,502 253,586 251,143 266,352 348,189
10.3% 10.3% 9.7 % 9.3% 9.7 % 124 %
1,203 1,239 1,128 1,150 1,132 1,105
9.4 % 7.3% 9.5% 6.8 % 7.3% 72%
5,875 6,148 6,325 6,502 6,489 N/A
11,519 11,798 12,158 11,521 12,519 N/A
246 240 240 246 232 N/A
486 488 497 445 509 N/A
294,376 300,049 283,724 275,020 270,684 369,821
317,015 339,664 263,703 240,180 225,362 369,772
28,443 28,924 35,259 31,998 32,101 38,036
276,813 286,983 287,559 274,710 267,378 298,372
11.2 % 11.3% 11.0% 10.2 % 9.7 % 10.6 %
256,934 266,105 250,855 202,642 211,906 283,692
61 % 66 % 70 % 2% 74 % 71 %
930,071 893,497 1,062,512 993,323 964,630 1,106,719
366,256 366,341 415,066 438,286 599,691 607,875
4,414 4,458 4,390 4,465 4,554 4,645
257,140 262,216 291,162 309,106 314,894 321,943
1,087 1,089 1,054 769 718 N/A
69,371 92,650 88,544 85,954 81,945 N/A
22,510 37,892 26,394 21,333 16,624 22,216
30,801 30,093 30,463 30,182 33,608 26,990
6.2% 6.3 % 11.3% 124 % 13.9% N/A
5,456 5,528 5,796 6,358 6,278 4,790
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State of Utah

Capital Asset Statistics by Function
Last Eight Fiscal Years

General Government
BUITAINGS .ot
VERNICIES ..o
Data Processing Equipment and Software
Reproduction and Printing Equipment ...........cc.ccccoceinenee

Human Services and Youth Corrections
Data Processing Equipment and Software ...........c.cccccoeeee

Adult Corrections
Data Processing Equipment and Software ...........c.cccccoeeee
Security and Surveillance Equipment ........cccccceevveieniennn.

Public Safety
Department of Public Safety
VERICIES ..o
Data Processing Equipment and Software .............cccccevae.
Medical and Lab EqQUIPMENt ........ccoerieniiiinenieereene
Utah National Guard
BUIIAINGS ...

State Courts
Data Processing Equipment and Software ...........c.cccccoeeee
Audio Visual Equipment

Health and Environmental Quality
Department of Health
Data Processing Equipment and Software ...........c.ccoccoeeee
Medical and Lab EqQUIpment ..........ccccoveevnnecenneccan
Department of Environmental Quality
Monitoring and Lab Equipment ..........ccccocovvvevciencnicienen,

Employment and Family Services
Department of Workforce Services
Data Processing Equipment and Software ...........c.cccccoeeee

Natural Resources

Division of Parks and Recreation
SEALE PArKS ...oveieicceeecee et
BUIIAINGS ...ttt
VENICIES ..ot e

Division of Wildlife Resources
Wildlife Management Areas
Fish Hatcheries .........cccovvevvevveennen.
BUIIAINGS ...
VENICIES ...ttt

Business, Labor, and Agriculture
Data Processing Equipment and Software ...........c.ccocceeeee
Monitoring and Lab Equipment ..........ccccooveinniciennnnns

Transportation
Highway Center Line Miles
Buildings ......ccccooevvrennenenene
VENICIES ...
Heavy EQUIPMENT ..o

Fiscal Year

2002 2003 2004 2005
306 307 313 319
7,422 7,339 7,368 7,354
3,727 3,927 2,048 2,116
750 872 1,013 1,011
78 81 84 86
186 183 185 188
44 44 43 41
29 21 22 28
189 95 117 129
187 109 116 122
198 199 201 202
146 148 151 80
107 141 163 188
285 276 214 229
152 159 172 189
238 250 247 279
235 226 289 351
39 39 39 40
527 562 634 626
216 239 248 258
87 87 87 87
11 11 11 11
166 185 192 167
89 93 107 117
98 94 91 100
88 90 101 107
5,855 5,799 5,733 5,724
297 299 308 315
742 693 701 737
1,827 1,892 1,991 2,158

Source: Utah State Administrative Services, Division of Finance and various agencies of the State.

Note: Capital asset statistics by function are only available beginning in fiscal year 2002 when the State implemented GASB

Statement 34.
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Schedule E-3

Fiscal Year

2006 2007 2008 2009
319 288 289 290
7,376 7,376 7,437 7,256
2,179 2,156 2,302 2,448
1,011 948 1,020 994
75 72 61 45
192 189 230 219
40 43 52 55
35 28 28 28
135 121 127 182
133 140 146 147
204 192 192 193
85 86 95 95
190 190 191 190
215 216 211 216
204 203 228 218
295 304 313 327
370 424 458 464
42 42 42 42
622 642 667 681
269 296 292 315
87 87 87 92
11 11 11 11
167 164 165 163
136 142 189 193
94 94 99 91
108 107 106 106
5,680 5777 5,754 5,699
336 343 345 358
770 812 832 832
2,346 2,462 2,543 2,544
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State of Utah

Expenditures— Historical and Constant Dollars
All Governmental Fund Types

Last Five Fisca Years

Schedule F-1

Fiscal Year Historical Dollars Constant Dollar<
(in Millions) Change (in Millions) Change
2005 $ 7,490 59 % $ 3,909 29%
2006 $ 8119 8.4 % $ 4,080 44 %
2007 $ 8772 8.0 % $ 4,297 53 %
2008 $ 9877 12.6 % $ 4,666 8.6 %
2009 $ 10,391 52 % $ 4842 38 %

Source: Constant Dollars are derived using the Consumer Price Index for all urban consumers, base year 1982-84 = 100.
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State of Utah

Per Capita Expenditures— Historical and Constant Dollars
All Governmental Fund Types

Last Five Fisca Years

Schedule F-2

Per Capita Expenditures

Fiscal Year Historical Dollars Constant Dollars
Change Change
2005 $ 2941 2.7 % $ 1535 (0.3)%
2006 $ 3,105 5.6 % $ 1,560 1.6 %
2007 $ 3,249 46 % $ 1,592 21 %
2008 $ 3,581 10.2 % $ 1,692 6.3 %
2009 $ 3704 34 % $ 1,726 20%

Source: Constant Dollars are derived using the Consumer Price Index for all urban consumers, base year 1982-84 = 100.
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